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Charter Overview
The Charter Overview should provide a concise summary of the following:

the proposed plan for the school, including core values/beliefs;

the geographic and population considerations of the school environment;

the challenges particular to those considerations; and

the applicant team’s capacity to successfully open and operate a high quality school given the above
considerations.

. Vision and Mission. State the vision and mission of the proposed charter school. The vision

statement outlines what the school will achieve in the long term and how it will operate to meet that
goal/vision. The mission is a statement of the fundamental purpose of the school, describing why it
exists. The vision and mission statements provide the foundation for the entire application. The
vision and mission statements, taken together, should provide a framework that illustrates what
success will look like, guides the decisions and actions of the charter, and is aligned with the purposes
of Texas charters schools as outlined in TEC§12.001.

. Community Engagement. Describe the relationships that you have established to generate

community engagement in and support for the proposed school and how you have assessed demand
and/or solicited support for the school. Briefly describe these activities and summarize their results.

. Geographic Boundary. Describe the community{s} where the school/campuses will be located and

provide the rationale for selecting the location({s). Include the types of resources currently available in
the community{s). Provide as Attachment A, a list of the school districts from which the proposed
charter school will accept students. If the charter school will accept students from only a portion of a
school district or districts, state exactly what the boundary will be. Do not list the charter schools
located within the designated geographic boundary.

a. Submit, as Attachment B, the certified mail receipt cards showing the dates the Statement of
Impact form and accompanying documents were received by each recipient. In the absence of
signed certified mail return receipt cards, the certified mail receipt showing each addressee,
fees paid, and the date mailed will be accepted. Follow these directions in preparing your
mailings:

i. Prepare a cover letter (following the TEA sample) addressed to the board of trustees and
superintendent of each school district and charter school within the designated geographic
boundary, and copying each member of the legisiature that represents the geographic area
to be served by the proposed school as directed in TEC §12.1101. Enclose with that letter the
Statement of Impact Form and your completed Charter Coversheet,

ii. The documents must be sent to districts, charter schools, and members of the Texas
legislature in time to include signed certified return receipt card copies as part of the
submitted application. If a school board trustee, district superintendent, or legislative office
receiving the documents requests a complete copy of the application, the sponsoring entity
must provide the document, including all attachments.

. Educational Need and Anticipated Student Population. Describe the anticipated student population

and the rationale for serving these students; their anticipated educational needs; and non-academic
challenges the school is likely to encounter. Describe the rationale for selecting the location,
including resources for students currently available. Identify any enrollment priorities on which the
program is based and explain how they are consistent with applicable restrictions on enroliment
eligibility and selection.

Education Plan/School Design. Provide an overview of the education program of the proposed
school, including major instructional methods and assessment strategies and non-negotiables of the
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school model. Describe the evidence that demonstrates the school model will be successful in
improving academic achievement for the targeted student population. Summarize what the
proposed school would do more effectively or innovatively than the schools that are now serving the
targeted population and how the school would achieve its goals.

6. Leadership and Governance. List the names of the current members of the governing board. Provide
as Attachment C, notarized Board Member Biographical Affidavits for the current members of the
proposed school’s governing board, including their roles and their current professional affiliation.
Use the template provided by the TEA to prepare these affidavits.

7. Provide, as Attachment D, the following Assurance Documents, prepared using the templates
provided by the TEA: Bilingual Education/ESL, Section 504,and Dyslexia Assurances; General
Application of Assurances for Federal Programs; Special Assurances; Special Education Assurances;
and Campaign Contribution Disclosure.

8. Provide as Attachment E, a complete set of Eligibility Documents, prepared using the template
provided by the TEA, including: 501 (c}(3) Determination Letter; the original Articles of Incorporation
and any restated Articles of Incorporation and Articles of Amendment (if incorparated priar to
December 31, 2005), OR {if incorporated after January 1, 2006) the Certificate of Formation and the
Certificate of Filing; bylaws of the sponsoring entity including any amendments; attendance receipt
from Information Session; copies of public hearing notice(s); (if applicable) Out of state operators
ONLY, provide the state-issued performance data for each charter school currently in operation; and
{if applicable) Qut of state operators ONLY, provide in the template document EITHER a disclosure
statement to include details pertaining to any charter school or campuses that have been closed,
non-renewed, or revoked OR certify that the operator has not had a charter school/campus closed

under any of the circumstances listed in TEC §12.101.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE N THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Charter Overview

Vision & Mission

The vision of Beta Academy {BA) is to establish a world-class school through a culture of “joyful
rigor” to develop scholars and leaders who can contribute competitively on a community,
national, and international levei.

The fundamental mission and purpose of BA is to create a school with an environment of hope
that not only nurtures but challenges students to become successful academically and in life.
We exist to help families find the best educational fit for their children. We purpose to provide
a haven of differentiated learning for students who are slipping through the cracks and “left
behind” in their current academic environments. Research shows too many children are
performing below grade level in reading and math, as well as other content areas. The United
States continually performs at a mediocre or below average level on the Programme for
International Student Assessment (PISA), especially in the areas of science and math

(Ripley, p. 3). It is BA’s goal to turn the tides of mediocre education and create a culture of
positive change to bring our scholars into a place of global competitiveness.

At the heart of BA is our passion to teach scholars the importance of hard work, character
development, and perseverance. We will do this through joyful rigor; defined as engaging,
dynamic learning that is academically, intellectually, and personally challenging
(http://edglossary.org/rigor/). Through academic rigor, we will meet all scholars at their
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individual level and challenge them to reach their highest potential. We will foster a love of
learning so that our scholars learn the value of persistence through challenging problems and
experience the reward as they find answers.

It is BA’s firm belief that the most efficient and effective way to provide innovative, rigorous
instruction is to have highly qualified teachers in each classroom. Thus, we will carefully select
and hire, not only highly educated but highly qualified teachers. To further foster an
environment of professionalism and respect for the worthy occupation of teaching, BA teachers
will be encouraged to pursue higher levels of learning by attaining either a master’s degree or
national board certification within five years of employment. Teacher’s will also be encouraged
to collaborate with peers, use on-line helps, attend seminars and training opportunities to stay
current, relevant and highly effective in meeting the academic needs of their scholars.

We hold to the belief that children can learn in spite of different learning styles, background,
and socio-economic status. At BA we seek to close achievement gaps and equip scholars with
critical thinking skills that assist them in reaching their personal aspirations. We will be diligent
in our endeavor to prepare them for success in whatever life path they choose. To do this, BA
will continually look to the ever evolving future to guide us in how best to equip our scholars
with the right skills and highest education. We will always look forward to determine what
scholars will need to be both competitive and successful. What courses/curricula will equip
them best for college, the military, technical school, career and life? We will know we are
turning the tide of mediocre education when BA scholars consistently excel and rise above the
state and national averages on TEKS, STAAR, PISA, ACT, and SAT exams.

Community Engagement

Efforts to assess demand within BA's target demographic included community surveys and
public hearings. Volunteer surveyors obtained parent signatures, representing over 1,000
eligible children, affirming parental intent to enroll their scholars in BA. Our public hearing had
over 600 parents and community leaders in attendance.

Our volunteer community liaison has established relationships with community service
providers such as The Houston Department of Health and Human Services to plan for programs
like Project Saving Smiles and See to Succeed. The Mobile Express program will bring on-site
resources like WeCAN and The CORE. We have reached out to the local police and fire
departments for safety related events and our alliance with Hispanic and other Chambers of
Commerce will foster awareness of an open enrollment charter school within their community.

A team of volunteers along with the governing board has reached out to elected officials to
share BA's vision, mission and heart for reaching the children of this community. Community
business leaders with a heart for at-risk children such as The Caring for Chiidren Foundatian af
Texas, Bay Area Tutoring & Famiiy Counseling, and Nifios con Desabilidades / Kids with
Disabilities First, have pledged their support and services.
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Geographic Boundary

The proposed location for the first BA campus is within the Pasadena Independent School
District (PISD), with future sites to fall within the geographic boundary defined by a sixty-mile
radius of downtown Houston. The founding board selected this geographical area because of
limited school choice options and the high population of students at risk for school failure and
high school dropout.

PISD has an enrollment of 51,000 students. Of this population, 77.2% are Hispanic with a low
economic indicator; 75% qualify for free or reduced price meals (International Center for
Leadership in Education 2010}). An exhaustive body of data exists showing the correlations
between minority enroliment and low income statuses with being at risk for failure to complete
high school and poor academic performance at all grade levels. Statistics for the 77075 zip
code, which is a part of PISD and the proposed site of the first BA campus, support our
assertion that there is a need for a charter school, with a strategic plan, to address these
alarming trends. City-Data.com average Adjusted Gross Income (AGI} for 77075 is $30,975,
while statewide, the AGl is $47,881. Compounding the reported income disparity, the 77075
community is also plagued with high crime and illegal drug usage, a high incidence of
substandard living conditions, and high representation of single parent families. Beta Academy
offers a compassionate, effective, zero-cost community response to these alarming trends.

Educational Need and Anticipated Student Population

Community interest generated by surveys and feedback from public hearings indicate
significant interest. The need for a future BA open-enroliment public charter school among
members of a predominantly Hispanic, low to middle socio-economic status student population
is evident. The 77075 zip code is a community comprised of a 62-64% Hispanic/Latino
population with 17.5% of its constituents living below poverty level (zipcodes.com,
BiggestUSCities.com). Within this demographic, approximately 30% of those 25 years of age
and older have no high school diploma and only 12.4% of those in this age cohort have college
degrees (BiggestUSCities.com}. This population of at risk students is further disadvantaged by
other risk factors for high school dropout such as high family mobility among the Hispanic
population, low educational expectations associated with language barriers, family member
high school and college dropout, and an incidence of at least 16% single parent families
(zipcodes.com). While we recognize these statistics describe the community, the children from
this community have infinite potential to become part of the solution. We believe our scholars
will be the leaders in positive change, not only in their community but in the world they enter
upon graduation from BA.

To raise world-class leaders, families within the proposed geographical boundary need a school
of choice to help break the cycle of poor academic performance among their children. Many
children living within five to seven miles of the proposed site for the initial BA campus are
zoned to schools ranking among the worst in PISD and in the State of Texas as a whole. Jackson
Intermediate, for example, ranks below 80.2% of middle schools in Texas and last among 10
ranked middie schools in PISD. Similarly, Gardens Elementary School ranked worse than 89.5%
of elementary schools in the state and last among 35 elementary schools in PISD
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{SchoolDigger.com). Beta Academy offers hope to families seeking to overcome the influences
of these multiple factors, which place their children at risk for poor school performance and
failure to earn high school diplomas and college degrees. An open-enrollment process will guide
enroliment of scholars at BA, maintaining a pathway of equal access to a guality, life-changing
educational experience.

Education Plan/School Design

Beta Academy will offer a rigorous education program characterized by an array of teacher-
directed learning methods, active scholar participation, and exceptional, quantifiable academic
achievement. Teachers will maintain autonomy in their respective classrooms with respect to
the methods employed for each day's activity. Whole class instruction, small group instruction,
independent study, and one-on-one tutoring, designed to enhance scholar interest and
facilitate learning, are foundational to BA's instructional methodology. Our teachers will be
trained for effective implementation of Whole Brain Teaching {WBT) and Interactive Student
Notebooks {ISN). Every teacher will be held accountable for the following methodologies:
demonstration of muiti-sensory (WBT) instruction, utilization of Interactive Students Notebooks
(ISN}, a campus-wide college preparatory practice, and facilitation of the engagement of
scholars in relevant learning through contextualization and creativity (Hands On Learning).

For our K-2 scholars, benchmark achievement scores will be based on informal teacher
assessments from anecdotal summaries, reporting rubrics, and curriculum assessment tools.
The Texas Primary Reading Inventory {TPRI} will be used to assess early reading development
for K-2 scholars. To assess scholar achievement in grades 2-8, the Measurement of Academic
Progress (MAP), a national benchmark testing too! developed by the Northwest Evaluation
Association (NWEA), will be utilized. The MAP benchmark results will be utilized as a predictive
measure of scholar success on the year-end STAAR standardized state testing that is required
for (and will be administered to) scholars in grades 3-8. Benchmark assessments for grades 9-12
will be adopted within the next three years before opening Beta Academy High School

Beta Academy will provide English as a Second Language (ESL} instruction utilizing a mixed-
model approach. Pullout classes, taught by a certified ESL instructor, for scholars with the
lowest levels of English proficiency will accelerate acquisition of verbal, reading and writing
skills in English. For scholars exhibiting a higher level of English language proficiency and
capable of mastering content in the regular classroom setting, inclusion—with support from a
certified ESL teacher—will limit time out of content classes and thus maximize both language
acquisition and academic achievement.

Scholars will be accepted to attend BA without discrimination on the basis of disability.
Individuals qualified as disabled will be offered a free and appropriate education as required by
Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Beta Academy believes every child can learn and
the development of appropriately challenging goals for each scholar, detailed on his or her
individual education plan {IEP), is essential, not only to satisfy federal and state requirements
but also, to realize BA's vision of developing future scholars and leaders who can function
competitively in the global marketplace. Scholars will be qualified for special education services
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according to the Admission Review and Dismissal (ARD) committee member’s determinations.
This committee will also monitor progress, make appropriate changes to scholars IEP, and
address the results of re-evaluations as part of the organic process of maximizing scholar
achievement in the areas addressed.

Research cited in What Works in Schools asserts that “the most important factor affecting
student learning is the teacher” {Marzano, 2003, p. 72). Results of the study noted that the
cumulative effects on student achievement, over a three-year period, between students with
“least effective” versus “most effective” teachers were significantly disparate: conclusions
showed an 83 percentile point gain for those with the most effective teacher and a 29
percentile point gain for those under the tutelage of the least effective teacher. Therefore,
teachers whose personal mission is to unlock the store of creative, academic and social
greatness within each chitd are key to the process of effecting not only change within an
individual, but also in communities, our country and throughout the world. World-class
teachers who maintain a rigorous but compassionate commitment to developing the full
potential of each scholar are the only fit for BA. We are committed to hire and retain only
highly educated, scholar-focused, top quality teachers on an “at will” basis. This gives BA a
distinct advantage, with respect to advancing scholar achievement, over schools whose
teachers (some of whom are among the “least effective”) serve under contracts that must be
fulfilled before changes in staffing are possible.

Innovative teaching models and strategies will drive the positive influence that BA teachers will
have on scholar achievement, attitude, and goals. Among the methods that will guide the
learning of our BA scholars is Whole Brain Teaching (WBT), an innovative instructional set
designed to help teachers create a more engaged learning environment than traditional
classroom instruction affords. Teachers across the United States who utilize WBT as the
framework for their classroom instruction report state test scores exceeding those of
traditional teachers by 20-30% (wholebrainteaching.com). Additionally, the AVID system of
instruction, implemented across grade levels, will help scholars develop a greater sense of
personal responsibility for the learning process by requiring organization, verbal and written
communication, inquiry, collaboration and accountability. By participating in AVID strategies,
BA scholars will begin preparation for coliege and career success at the elementary level,
continuing through high school.

Leadership and Governance

The Beta Foundation, Board of Directors (Governing body for Beta Academy)
Teresa Sones, President

Timothy Wayne King, Vice-President/Treasure

Justin James, Secretary

Helen Abernathy, Director

WHEN YOU HAVE FINISHED, LEAVE THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE BLANK,
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Section One - Educational Plan

Program Overview

Explain the educational philosophy that guides the design of the school, and describe the curriculum
program to be offered and how it aligns with the education program, including primary instructional
methods and assessment strategies. Describe any non-negotiable elements of the school model. Briefly

describe the evidence that promises success for this program with the anticipated student population.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED,

Section One-Educatignal Plan
Program Overview
Beta Academy’s (BA) educational philosophy is that all children can learn joyfully in a rigorous,
academic environment. At Beta Academy we value the ability to provide autonomy to our high
performing teachers which builds an environment of trust and personal responsibility. Qur
highly trained teachers will successfully implement best practices and brain-based instruction in
order to deliver efficient and effective instruction. Beta Academy teachers will systematically
focus instructiona! methods and strategies of brain-based teaching through:

v Whole Brain Teaching {WBT]: WBT, primary instructional method BA teachers will t
trained in and use, is reported to assists teachers in raising their scholars state test
scores by 20-30%. A survey of teachers using WBT reports that “98% of educators
believe WET is superior to every other teaching system” and as we intend to be sup
in our instructional methods, WBT is a natural fit for our pedagogy.
(http://www.wholebrainteaching.com/index.php?option=com_k2&view=item&id=:
esearch&Itemid=200).

» Hands on Learning: In addition to WBT instructional methods, BA teachers will emp
hands-on learning activities and instruction in order to engage all learners. “By using
hands-on instruction, educators are fostering the 21st century skills that students n¢
to be successful: critical thinking, communication, collaboration, and creativity. Han
on activities encourage a lifelong love of learning and motivates students to explore
discover new things” (Bass, et al.) {http://www.raft.net/). To instill a love of learning
our scholars is definitely the desire and intention of BA.

Interactive Student Notebooks {ISN): ISN’s, another form of brain-based teaching w
encourages students to take an active role in understanding the classroom content
deeply and storing it in their long-term memory (http://tccl.rit.albany.edu).

Through the implementation of these three main methodologies and strategies, BA will engage
students in a variety of ways to ensure scholars achieve their academic potential.

Understanding that assessment demonstrates scholar progress and helps improve and shape
teacher instruction, BA will utilize the following variety of assessments: diagnostic, formative,
summative, and benchmark testing. Teachers will use informal assessments such as
observation, anecdotal records, rubrics, and checklists. They will also utilize textbook provided
quizzes/tests along with teacher-created assessment tools in order to measure scholar mastery
of class content and standards. Formal testing will include: the Texas Primary Reading
Inventory (TPRI) and benchmark assessments found in the math textbook for grades K-2, and
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Section One — Educational Plan

Program Overview—P. 9
1. Provide an overview of the training instructional staff will receive in Whole Brain
Teaching, Hands on Learning, and Interactive Student Notebooks. Include details on who
will provide the training and when it will occur.

Whole Brain Teaching

Training for Whole Brain Teaching will be done in two ways. First, teachers who are identified
earlier in the summer or teachers returning from the previous school year needing additional
training will be sent to one of the many free Whole Brain Teaching seminars offered during the
summer, In addition, during Beta Academy’s teacher-in-service, we will provide training from a
whole brain teaching professional. As part of the Whole Brain Teaching's vision, they offer their
services and training for free. They only ask the school would pay for food and travel. This will
be very cost effective solution to a great teaching method. Once Beta Academy has seasoned
Whole Brain Teachers a part of the team, these teachers will further be used for training not
oniy at the beginning of the year, but will assist in year round coaching.

Hands on Learning

There are several ways Beta Academy will help teachers gain experience with the hands-on
learning method. First, Beta Academy will offer training during the teacher-in-service week
before school begins. This training will be done either by, the CEQ, Principal, Board Members
with experience in this teaching method, or any professional identified by the board as an
expert in this field. During the course of the year, teachers will be encouraged to talk to other
teachers (especially those teaching the same grade) for ideas on activities, materials, classroom
management and resources that can ease their way into this teaching method. Teachers will be
given the opportunity weekly for team meetings to not only grow and strengthen their skill set,
but find activities together that correlate with a concept they are currently teaching. When
additional outside workshops become available during the school year. Beta Academy will send
team leads as the representative for gathering new ideas and bringing them back to the team.
Workshops will also be used for teachers needing to strengthen their hands on learning skills.
Teachers who stand out to the administration for their hands on learning approach will be used
to help train not only at the beginning of the year, but will assist in year round coaching.

Interactive Student Notebooks

Currently, Beta Academy has two Board Members with experience in effectively implementing
Interactive Student Noteboaoks. Justin James and Helen Abernathy have used and implemented
Interactive Students Notebooks effectively in the classroom. Both Board Members will be
actively involved in training, reviewing and helping the teachers of Beta Academy to implement
Interactive Student Notebooks effectively. Teachers will not only have training during the
teacher-in-service, but throughout the school year. During the school year the teachers who are
meeting and exceeding the standard for Interactive Student Notebooks, will help lead in training
and coaching throughout the year and following years.
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Measurement of Academic Progress (MAP), for grades 3-8. For grades 3-8, the MAP will also be
used to predict student success on the year-end STAAR standardized state testing. Additional
benchmark assessments for grades 9-12 will be adopted within the next three years before
opening the high school. Teachers will utilize results from assessments during lesson planning
to effectively target scholar’s educational needs.

Beta Academy will have unwavering tenacity in regard to our non-negotiable elements which
are:

¢ Joyful and Rigorous Teaching: Through our passion for rigorous instruction, with the
purpose of equipping for success, our scholars will be ready for college, technical school,
military service, or a skilled career path of their choice.

o High Expectations: While we will hold ALL scholars to a standard of high expectations,
our teachers and support teams will work diligently to identify and document individual
expectations for students with mild, moderate and severe disabilities. Although all ESL
students, GT, and at-risk students will be held to high-expectations, we understand that
what is rigorous for one scholar may be too easy or frustrating for another.

¢ No “low track”: We believe that tracking students based on supposed “ability levels or
performance” actually inhibits and restricts students, causing them subconsciously to
“live down” to low expectations. A rigorous, innovative education will not inhibit or
restrict scholars but rather challenge them to “live up” to their highest potential.

With the appropriate support, encouragement, and rigorous instruction, ALL scholars can and
will excel when they work hard to master the content and standards at BA. High expectation
standards and joyful rigor for our scholars and teachers is therefore non-negotiable.

Curriculum and Instructional Design

Propose a framework for instructional design that both reflects the needs of the anticipated population

and ensures all students will meet or exceed the Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills (TEKS) standards.

1. Describe the basic learning environment (e.g., classroom-based, independent study), including class
size and structure.

2. Give an overview of the planned curricula, addressing alignment with the TEKS. Describe the
evidence that these curricula will be appropriate and effective for the targeted students.

a. Provide, as Attachment E.1, a sample course scope and sequence for one subject for each grade
configuration (elementary, middle, high school) the school would serve. Identify course
outcomes and demonstrate alignment with the TEKS.

OR

b. If the curricutum is not already developed, provide as Attachment E.1 a curriculum development
plan, including identification of individuals responsible and the timeline for development and
completion, including review to ensure alignment with the TEXS.

3. Describe the primary instructional strategies that the school will expect teachers to use and why
they are well-suited for the anticipated student population. Describe the methods and systems

teachers will have for providing differentiated instruction to meet the needs of all students.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.
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Curriculum and Instructional Design

Upon receiving the proposed charter, BA will adopt TEA textbooks and curricula that align with
the TEKS. We will embrace textbooks that include rigorous content, higher-order thinking
strategies, differentiation for scholars of multiple intelligences, as well as scholars who are
learning disabled, ESL, low-achieving, at-risk, and gifted.

The framework for BA’s instructional design is founded upon the dreams, passions, and
experience of the school board, proposed superintendent, and supporters. We desire to leave a
mark, to effect change, and transform lives. We each have one lifetime and the governing
board and CEO of BA want to dedicate ours to empowering young scholars to achieve academic
success. Therein lies true fulfillment.

At BA we want to implement change to meet the demands of our ever-evolving world, while
holding fast to tried and true methods that have stood the test of time. We truly desire to
impact the field of education through research-based and highly effective school reform. We
are passionate about providing an innovative, individualized, and rigorous education for
scholars that will uncover their hidden potential and cultivate a life-long drive for learning.

The anticipated population for BA has a high student poputation of ESL, low socioeconomic and
at-risk students. Approximately 5% of PISD students are identified as Gifted & Talented with
numbers varying from campus to campus {pasadenaisd.org} while 78% of PISD students are
economically disadvantaged, 56% are at-risk academically, and 28.8% are Limited English
Proficient {LEP) (texastribune.org). We hold firmly to the belief that “economically
disadvantaged” does not mean “academically disadvantaged.” Therefore, BA teachers will have
the skills to differentiate instructional methods while implementing research-based, best
practices to meet the individua! learning needs of their scholars.

The best learning takes place when scholars are allowed to explore, manipulate, reason with,
and connect to their learning. Beta Academy teachers will display and verbally explain/describe
the objectives and standards that are covered with each lesson. In turn, the scholars will
demonstrate their understanding by explaining the assignment/activity and, more importantly,
WHY they are doing it.

Beta Academy will have clear, concise standards and objectives such as the TEKS. Of notable
interest is the fact that high performance schools have returned to the basics of what school is
truly about; a strong, equal education for all students. Schools that have made the greatest
strides in improving their educational programs and attaining stellar student progress have
simplified and clarified their standards and objectives (Ripley, 73). The Texas standards will be
BA's standard and objective and will be seamlessly woven throughout the fabric of an academic
day. We will be focused and go deep with each of the TEKS rather than adding additional
objectives that spread our teachers thin and water down our efforts. We firmly believe that
LESS is MORE. To maximize quality instructional time and increase learning opportunities, we
will not burden our teachers with inefficient activities and assignments that rob teachers and
scholars of quality focused instructional time.
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Environment: The classroom environment at Beta Academy will be a busy place filled with the
buzz and excitement of a hive of enthusiastic learners. Observers of a BA classroom may find
the scholars engaged in a stimulating lesson from the teacher using Whole Brain Teaching,
engrossed in a book, working in their Interactive Student Notebooks, participating in a hands-
on experiment, involved in small l[earning groups, or working on creative problem-solving with a
team.

Class Size and Structure: Qur classes at Beta Academy will be small with 20-2S scholars per
classroom. Classes with students that qualify for additional special education, ESL or GT services
will have additional teacher support from the appropriate specialist. This will ensure that BA
scholars can reach their full potential based on their individual needs.

Approach: Our educational approach is an integration of both a teacher-directed and learner-
centered classroom. The educational staff of BA will be strong leaders, skilled in classroom
management with a scholar-centered focus; providing instruction through engaging lessons and
presentations. Presentation and recitation will be used when it is most appropriate, such as
when presenting core knowledge and new information. However, they will also incorporate
hands on learning, or constructivist methods, which encourage active and authentic learning. In
The Act of Teaching, research suggests that, “Constructivist techniques are best for developing
higher-level thinking or skill” (Cruickshank, Jenkins, & Metcalf, 271). It is a BA core belief that
having a mixed approach will best serve our scholars with differing learning styles and multiple
intelligences.

Focus on Reading and Literacy: Beta Academy’s heartbeat is to develop skilled readers with
strong comprehension/retention abilities. If we fail to develop a scholar’s strong literacy skills,
they cannot engage in a rigorous curriculum to become independent learners. Literacy
development is one of the most fundamental roles of a scholar’s education. According to Slavin,
Karweit, Wasik, Madden, and Dolan {1994), students who complete the third grade lacking
reading proficiency are not likely to graduate from high school. In fact, the National Reading
Panel (2000) affirms that reading comprehension is vital to one’s ability to obtain an education
at any level. Statistics become more relevant, especially to students, when one reads that
American school children without high levels of reading comprehension face a difficult and
uncertain economic future

(http://www.readingmatrix.com/articles/jophnson howard/article.pdf). Further, researchers
have found that children who experience difficulties with reading early on often demonstrate
negative expectations with respect to their academic competency, making it even more difficult
for them to acquire necessary skills (Rider and Colmar, 2000). Beta Academy has a “back to the
basics” solution to the negative statistics impacting our community; teach children to read.
Studies have demonstrated positive correlations between reading achievement and the
development of skil Is in all academic areas. Furthermore, links have been identifled between
reading achievement and positive self-concept and between reading and one’s ability to
function successfully in society as a whole (Rider and Colmar, 2000).
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In light of these and a myriad of other observations regarding the importance of strong reading
skills, BA commits to a fundamental focus on enhancing reading skills, beginning in
Kindergarten. It is vital to give children a strong start in reading to circumvent them sliding
down the slippery slope towards academic apathy and frustration.

There are two schools of thought with respect to teaching basic reading skills—phonetics and
whole word training (http://www.howitworks.net/how-phonics-works.html). Beta Academy
will stand apart in this area by capitalizing on the benefits of both approaches in teaching
children strong reading literacy. We agree with the International Reading Association (IRA) that,
“Teaching phonics is an important aspect of beginning reading instruction. However, effective
phonics instruction is embedded in the context of a comptete reading and language arts
program.” {(www.reading.org)

At BA, phonics instruction will begin with learning the alphabet and associating sounds with
each letter, e.g., ¢ = /k/. Following this, scholars will be introduced to more complex sounds and
basic two and three letter words (e.g., “00” and in “too”, etc.). Finally, when scholars are ready,
they will learn to pronounce words based on the sounds they have learned to associate with
the letters. “Sounding out” words is a basic technique used in phonics training, and is often
under-utilized, especially when a school adopts a more holistic approach to reading
(HowitWorks.net). Beta Academy scholars will continue to be taught phonetic skills all the way
through high school in order to facilitate the acquisition of new vocabulary as encountered in
every subject. When scholars have strong word attack skills, they are less apt to be discouraged
by unfamiliar words in reading assignments and comprehension is less likely to be negatively
affected.

Peculiarities in the English fanguage, however, make a totally phonetic approach to teaching
reading inadvisable. For example, phonetically, there is no difference between the sound of
words like “maid” and “made,” “bear” and “bare,” or “to,” “too” and “two.” With homonyms
such as these, and in the case of unusual spellings and instances in the English language where
the rules of phonics do not apply, simple memorization (omitting the “sounding out” technique)
works best. Tools such as the Dolch Sight Word list will be utilized to incorporate “sight word”
recognition into our scholars reading vocabularies. Although this is especially important for
younger scholars, middle and high school scholars benefit as well from a holistic, contextual
approach. Proponents also advocate language immersion, rereading to enhance
comprehension and emphasizing context rather than focusing on sounding out individual words
{(HowltWorks.net).

Additional Reading Tools: Beta Academy teachers will employ additional instructional tools at
every grade level in order to support our scholars’ reading instruction and assist them in
reading books on their independent level by using the Accelerated Reading program (AR). In a
published study of reading achievement and vocabulary development, Dr. Roger A. Johnson
illustrates that 755 students from a low socioeconomic urban area {(grades third through fifth),
who used the AR program with greater frequency had a higher achievement rate in their
reading comprehension than students who used AR with less or much less frequency.
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Dr. Roger’s states:

The AR program was effective in improving the reading skills of urban, inner-city
students. Students who read the most (High Participants) gained 2.24 years on the
Gates-MacGinitie Reading Test. The Average Participants gained 1.52 years; and the Low
Participants gained .73 of a year. The High AR Participants exceeded normal
expectations for gains by an additional one year and two months. The Average
Participants gained an extra one-half year, while the Low Participants only achieved
three-quarters of an academic year’s progress. Thus, as reading practice increased with
AR usage, reading comprehension and reading vocabulary scores improved. The results
indicate that the AR program can be quite effective if the participating students are
willing to do supplemental reading.

(http://www.readingmatrix.com/articles/johnson howard/article.pdf)

To attain the highest scores in reading comprehension, reading fluency, and vocabulary, BA will
stand apart by instituting focused AR reading time throughout every scholar’s school day. Our
scholars will have time during English/Language Arts for independent reading and AR
assessments. By incorporating AR into our everyday curriculum, each scholar will automatically
be categorized as a “High Participant” and will be challenged to achieve maximum growth and
success in reading.

Being intentional about strengthening the reading abilities of each BA scholar, which is a
cornerstone of our academic growth plan, will require teacher commitment, administrative
support, and parental involvement. To that end, BA will host events during and after school
hours to assimilate each member of the BA family into the culture of reading. A partial list of
events and activities to be hosted during the first five years includes, but is not limited to the
following:

¢ Book Fair—Scholars review and purchase books displayed by book vendors.

e Rainy Day Reading—Scholars come to school on a day when rain is forecasted, wearing
pajamas and bringing a pillow. They read books of their own choosing in a relaxed setting
for an extended, specified time.

» Beta Academy AR Night—Parents and scholars participate in AR activities together at
school.

e Dr. Seuss’s Birthday — Scholars dress up as characters from Dr. Seuss books and brings their
favorite book to share/read aloud to the class.

e Macho Nacho Readers - Scholars enter a competition to see which grade level can read the
most books in a set amount of time.

e Book It — A reading incentive program sponsored by Pizza Hut.

e Six Flags Reading to Succeed — A reading incentive program in which scholars, upon
completing six hours of recreational reading, are given a free ticket to Six Flags.

e Reading Month — One month of the school year is dedicated to encouraging scholars to
reading more. During that month, classrooms will host guest readers, participate in Drop
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Everything and Read (DEAR), hold a school wide “vote for your favorite book” election,
produce a reader’s theater play, author focus day, share your favorite book day, and dress
up as book characters, etc.

Scaffolded Silent Reading (ScSR): Beta Academy scholars will read deeply every day! Classes
will be required to have time for ScSR daily {excluding field trip, assemblies, and early dismissal
days). ScSR is a period of sustained reading in which students are given time for uninterrupted,
student selected reading at their independent level. It differs from traditional Sustained Silent
Reading {SSR) in that it intends “to provide students with necessary support, guidance,
structure, appropriate text difficulty, accountability, and monitoring that will assist them in
transferring their oral reading skills to successful and effective silent reading practice”
(reading.org). By incorporating ScSR into our academic school day, we will build reading
stamina in BA scholars which will prepare them not only for more rigorous texts and
assessments such as the STAAR but future challenging reading tasks that they will encounter
throughout their entire lives. Our “Quiet Reading Rooms,” “Computer Labs”, and “Interactive
Oral Reading Rooms” dedicated to reading activities, will provide our scholars appropriate
learning spaces to complete reading assignments.

Primary Instructional Strategies: Beta Academy will implement several primary instructional
methods and strategies that are based on brain research. These strategies will be implemented
school-wide for appropriate grade levels. Our teachers will be carefully trained and supported
to ensure the methods and strategies are implemented effectively. The main instructional
strategies include: Whole Brain Teaching, Hands on Instruction, and Interactive Student
Notebooks. Each of these strategies/methods is based on teaching with the brain in mind and
has relevant research to support them.

Whole Brain Teaching (WBT): The heartbeat of BA is driven by a passion to connect our
scholars with powerful, engaging instruction and learning opportunities. Whole Brain Teaching
is an interactive style of instruction in which the teacher presents new information in small
parts using clear descriptors along with symbolic hand motions to remember new key
terms/vocabulary. Scholars then re-teach the new information to a designated partner using
their own words and the teacher-introduced hand motions. During this time the teacher
circulates the classroom monitoring the scholars’ understanding and clarifying when necessary
{wholebrainteaching.com). Research suggests that WBT has a powerful impact on standardized
test scores for at-risk students.

“In poverty level schools in San Jacinto, California in a district that is 98% free and
reduced lunch and 80% Hispanic, students' reading scores in WBT classrooms showed a
12% increase, in three months, over students in non-WBT settings. At San Jacinto
Elementary, a team of fourth grade teachers achieved significant results using Whole
Brain Teaching with over 120 students. As compared with the previous year, math
scores on state tests advanced a remarkable 28%.” (wholebrainteaching.com)
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Not only does WBT affect student learning and test scores, it also has a positive impact on
reducing discipline problems. Three schools in Hemet, California who adopted WBT have seen
decreases in office referrals and suspensions by as much as 50% in a two year period
{wholebrainteaching.com).

Hands-on Instruction: Another important method of instruction is hands-on learning activities
and instruction in order to engage all learners. Students that are at-risk, ESL, special needs, and
GT can all benefit from performing real-life tasks, activities, and experiments. Hands-on
learning activities are especially beneficial for ESL and special needs students who may struggle
with understanding complex, abstract ideas. For example, when students perform hands-on
learning activities in the content area of science, “it promotes inquiry- based learning, and
most, if not all students, generally sustain a higher level of interest and enthusiasm for science.
In addition, all students experience the most success when learning activities are tailored to
their interests and abilities” {(Hardman et al., 1981). When students work together, and actively
engage in a learning task, it fosters authentic conversation thereby providing wonderful
opportunities for language development. Hands-on learning supports language development
because students are no longer passively listening to instruction, but rather taking part in
pursuing knowledge and understanding for themselves. Perhaps most importantly it
encourages “maximum involvement of each student,” which will assist them in learning
“important observation, problem-solving and communications skills”

(http://www.letstalkscience.ca/). Hands-on learning is not only engaging and enjoyable; it can
be a rigorous and powerful way to differentiate instruction for a variety of BA’s schofars.

interactive Student Notebook (ISN): interactive Student Notebooks are a brain-based,
instructional tool in which students create written records of their daily learning. Beta Academy
scholars will use their notebooks to take class notes, identify main points, and summarize the
lesson. They will then creatively represent and record in their ISN the learned information in a
new form such as: a drawing, chart, poem, jingle, acronym, or mnemonic. Using an ISN helps
activate the right and left sides of the brain, which will in turn reach both our right and left-
brain-dominant scholars. This instructional tool assists and encourages the learner to actively
process classroom content, which promotes increased retention of new content. “The theory of
active processing states that in order to learn and retain information in meaningful ways,
learners must be actively involved in what they are learning” (Kaufeldt, 2010),
(http://tccl.rit.albany.edu). This creative and innovative learning tool is a powerful way to
differentiate instruction for BA scholars and provides both a valuable assessment of scholar
learning and a resource for scholar study.

College Preparation: Beta Academy will prepare scholars to be successful in college by using
the College Career Readiness Standards (CCRS) and the Advancement Via Individual
Determination (AVID); a powerful college readiness program. A few of the components that
make the AVID program highly effective include: rigorous curriculum, Cornell notes, time
management, binder organization, tutoring, small group collaboration, oral presentation skills,
individual determination, and positive classroom environment. Researchers have followed up
with AVID program graduates in order to determine the effectiveness of the program and have
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found that:

e AVID students were better prepared for college due to being exposed to rigorous
curriculum,

* 79% percent were on track to graduate from college in six years, compared to 54%
nationally.

e AVID students outperformed their peers on state mandated exams and grade point
averages.

¢ Most notable, AVID student’s attendance rates improved and surpassed the general
population.

Key Findings of the 1998-99 Follow Forward Study of 100 AVID Graduates:

e AVID graduates complete the sequence of courses necessary for four-year college
acceptance at an 84% rate; the California state average is 34%

e 95% of the 100 AVID graduates that were surveyed were enrolled in a college or university.

e Nearly 75% reported attending 4-year colleges — a rate almost three times that of the
California state average.

* More than 80% of the seventy 1997-98 AVID graduates had been enrolled continuously in
college since leaving high school.

¢ 85% of the AVID students expect to graduate from college in four to five years.

Identifying Predictors of College Success Through an Examination of AVID Graduates’ College

Preparatory Achievements. Watt, K.M., Huerta, J., & Alkan, E. (2011). Journal of Hispanics in

Higher Education. http://avid.org/d)/res research/research review.pdf

Differentiation: Beta Academy teachers will differentiate instruction for all scholars, whether
they are gifted and talented, ESL, at-risk or special education. Since we anticipate a large
population of ESL scholars, we will use intensive language instruction with a variety of
strategies that benefit our second language learners. Teachers will utilize a variety of realia,
maps, photographs/images, graphic organizers, and manipulatives to communicate content
through powerful, non-linguistic visuals. Every class will have explicit vocabulary instruction;
research based reading strategies designed specifically for English language learners, and
dynamic daily writing instruction/practice. Teachers will incorporate multiple modes of learning
using music, art, drama/role play, and learning games. Chants and poetry will be used to
develop oral language and build confidence in using English in an academic environment. All of
these strategies will greatly contribute to the learning of our at-risk ESL scholars.

Beta Academy teachers will also differentiate instruction for our Gifted and Talented scholars.
Because we are dedicated to implementing a rigorous curriculum, our GT scholars will be
sufficiently challenged. To provide appropriate and stimulating educational experiences for
gifted scholars, differentiation may include: acceleration of instruction, in-depth study, a high
degree of complexity, and advanced and varied content (http://www.nagc.org/). One method a
classroom teacher wili use to differentiate instruction for GT scholars is through text selection.
While the class is learning a specific reading strategy, such as how to find the main idea, GT
scholars will be given leveled texts or reading selections that will appropriately challenge them.
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The AR program will also assist with differentiation. Teachers can easily monitor if their scholars
are reading books at their independent level rather than books that are far too easy for them.
Another innovative approach BA will take is providing tutoring for all our learners. Individual
tutoring will address scholars’ weaknesses and challenge them to excel in their strengths. This
approach will meet the scholars at their individual level and allow them to continually progress
at an optimum rate.

The classroom teacher and the special education teacher will collaborate on ways to
differentiate for our special education scholars. Decisions will be based on how to provide the
best possible education in the feast restrictive environment. Depending on the needs of the
individual scholar, BA teachers will differentiate for each scholar using appropriately leveled
texts, accommodations, and research based strategies such as: mnemonic strategies, spatial
organizers, note-taking strategies, study skills instruction, hands-on learning, and explicit
instruction {http://nichcy.org/disability}. Special education scholars will also be given the
opportunity to participate in after school tutoring.

In conclusion, the curriculum and instructional design at Beta Academy will be research-based,
innovative and rigorous. Each method, strategy and approach has been carefully selected and
analyzed by the proposed schoo! board and superintendent. Our vision is to build a world-class
school for students that perhaps need an exceptional education the most. We believe that Beta
Academy will be a school that makes it possible for students to achieve success as life-long
learners and readers. That will be a dream come true for us.

Student Performance Standards

Responses to the following items regarding the proposed school’s student performance standards must

address the TEKS.

1. Clearly state how the TEKS will be incorporated into classroom instruction and assessment.

2. If you plan to adopt or develop additional academic standards beyond the TEKS, explain the types of
standards {content areas, grade levels). Describe the adoption or development process that has
taken place or will take place. Select one grade level and subject area as an example, and explain
how these additional standards exceed the TEKS.

3. Explain the policies and criteria for promoting students from one grade to the next. If mid-year
opportunities for grade advancement will be available, explain and provide the rationale for this
option. Discuss how and when promotion and graduation requirements will be communicated to
parents and students.

4. Provide, in Attachment E.2 the school’s promotion requirements for students to the next grade
and/or graduation requirements, as applicable. The promotion/graduation requirements should
clearly set forth what students in the last grade served will know and be able to do, if in addition to

TEKS.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Student Performance and Standards
The objective throughout the Reading TEKS is the mastery of grade level words and
sounds. TEKS (§110.12) has set a goal for 1* grade readers to identify and read at least 100 high
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frequency words from a commonly used list and monitor accuracy of decoding. Beta Academy
will incorporate this goal into everyday classroom learning, by having a Velcro word wall with
high frequency words from the Dolch Sight Word List. These words will be reviewed daily as
part of the class routine. The wall will serve as a speiling resource for all scholars. The words
may be removed at any time during the day to help scholars in writing or spelling. Additionally,
scholars will engage in daily word games that help them master words in a fun and interactive
way. One such game is Word Ball in which students bounce a large ball with sight words written
on it. Upon catching the ball, the scholar must read the word closest to their right hand thumb
and quickly bounce it to another player. A different game will be played each day of the week
and help reinforce the Reading TEKS goal of producing excellent, excited readers.

The Dolch Sight Word list will be stapled inside each scholar’s take home folder with 10 words
highlighted the first week for flashcard memorization. At the end of the first week scholars will
be given a test by flashcards to assess their knowledge of the new words. in week two, 10
additional words will be highlighted from the list in their folder for memorization. At the end of
week two the scholars will be tested cumulatively on all 20 words. This ensures scholars will not
learn and then dump the information later. This will continue until week five. At the end of
week five the scholars will be tested by flashcard on the first fifty words from the Dolch Sight
Word list. After week five, the first five words from the list will be removed and five new words
will be added. Each week first grade scholars will be assessed on 50 words by flashcard from the
Dolch Sight Word List. These words will be located on the word wall in a visible and easily
assessable area. The teacher will assess progress weekly and send assessments home for
parental review. This approach will guide student mastery of over 100 high frequency words.

Another example of how the TEKS will be incorporated into classroom instruction and assessed
is from the fifth grade Social Studies TEKS. The objective throughout the Social Studies TEKS is
the mastery of the states, their capitals, landforms, maps and use of map keys. TEKS (§113.162)
has set a goal for fifth graders to translate this data into a variety of formats such as raw data to
graphs and maps. Beta Academy will accomplish this by assigning each student a 3-D Map
Project. The scholars will work on these projects as part of their classroom instructional

time. Completing this project within the instructional time will ensure scholars are learning the
necessary skills for the mastery of the TEKS.

Scholars will be instructed to choose a state for their 3-D map. They will be required to look at
several maps of their state to learn where their states’ landforms are located. The scholars will
identify rivers, mountain ranges, bays, coastlines, valleys, lakes, deltas, volcanoes, and
peninsulas on their 3-D map. They will be required to have main products, animals, crops,
natural resources, and manufactured goods identified on their maps. The maps will further
include their state bird, flag and capital. Each map will be required to have a compass rose and
map key. In addition to creating the 3-D map the schotars will submit a report with the full
name of the state, date admitted to the union (and rank}, population, land area, capital, flag,
postal abbreviation, state nickname, motto, state symbols such as: flower, tree, bird, stone,
animal, colors, fish, song, or other symbols. Scholars will include information about the
agriculture industry of their state and at least two historic events associated with their state.
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STAAR grade level scholars. In the event that a scholar is unable to perform proficiently on the
STAAR, we will provide a content-focused plan of instruction to strengthen the area of concern.
However, in the event that the scholar does not perform satisfactory on the STAAR, a grade
placement committee will be formed to assign the student to a more intensive program to
target the area of concern.

In reference to mid-year placements, we will strive to place scholars accordingly and
appropriately at the beginning of the year; therefore, we will not supply mid-year advancement
opportunities.

Student Performance Assessment

1. Describe the process to be used to determine baseline achievement levels of students and methods
of measurement to be used.

2. Inaddition to all mandatory assessments, identify the primary interim assessments the school will
use to assess student learning needs and progress throughout the year. Explain how these interim
assessments align with the school’s curriculum, performance goals, and the TEKS.

3. Explain the plan to measure and evaluate academic progress — of individual students, student
cohorts, and the school or campuses as a whole - throughout the school year, at the end of each
academic year, and for the term of the charter contract. Explain the plan to collect and analyze
student academic achievement data, use the data to refine and improve instruction, and report the
data to the school community. Identify the person{s), position(s), and/or entities that will be

responsible and involved in the collection and analysis of assessment data.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND A$ NEEDED.

Student Performance Assessment

Scholars in Kindergarten through second grade will be assessed in Reading and Mathematics
through benchmark assessments that measure active learning. The learning growth scale will
be measured three times in the year, beginning and middle of the year. Texas Primary Reading
Inventory (TPRI} will provide teachers with accurate depictions of student reading readiness
through one-on-one assessments. Math oral assessments and performance tasks will be
provided by TEKS centered curriculum and will be given throughout the schoo! year being left at
teacher’s discretion to incorporate we needed. However, benchmark testing will only be
administered two times a year, once at the beginning and once in the middle. State mandated
testing will serve as the final benchmark for scholars.

Scholars in third grade and up will be assessed in appropriate state mandated assessment
subject areas. For example, third grader scholars are tested in Reading and Mathematics on the
state mandated STAAR. Beta Academy will be using Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA)
and Istation to ensure proper growth and TEKS alignment to prepare scholars for proficiency
not only on a state level, but on a national level. As the curriculum development team accrues
and develops curriculum, they will also develop benchmarks and ensure assessments/
benchmarks are aligned with the TEKS per grade level. Benchmark testing will be administered
at the beginning and middle of each school year.

The growth of BA scholars will be periodically documented between benchmark assessments
and through primary interim assessments in both formal and informal formats. Formal
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assessments will be projects, oral test, content based test and written assessments. Informal
assessments will be teacher observations and documentation, in class and at-home
assignments, class discussion and work samples. All assessments are based on the content of
the school’s curriculum which will be aligned with the TEKS. We will have an accurate depiction
of scholars’ performance to ensure alignment with school expectations.

Beta Academy has a plan to evaluate and measure academic progress through several
resources. Test/assessments done will match each scholar’s individual needs by providing the
teachers with information regarding their academic achievement. Scholar cohort progress will
be tracked in extended day tutorials and small group in-class meetings where like-minded
individuals can share in an academic experience and will be challenged to grow from their
current standing. The benchmark assessments administered two times a year will provide a
detailed analysis on campus academic growth. This information will be collected and analyzed
by the principal and school board to strengthen instruction as well as curriculum and provide
data to the school community. The collected data will be archived for the term of the charter
contract to be referenced annually to ensure quality education. This data will also be used in
the evaluation of the instructional programs.

Pre K Transition (Prekindergarten Only)
1. Describe strategies to ensure that the educational program will effectively prepare students to enter
kindergarten on or above grade level including a successful transition plan from kindergarten.

2. Explain how students will be monitored and progress assessed.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX, IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED,

Pre K Transition
Not Applicable, Beta Academy will not be offering Prekindergarten.

High School Graduation Requirements (High School Only)

High schools will be expected to meet the Foundation High School Program as outlined in TEC §28.025.

1. Describe how the school will meet Texas graduation standards. Explain how students will earn
credit hours, how grade-point averages will be calculated, and what elective courses will be offered.
if graduation requirements for the school will exceed state standards, explain the additional
requirements,

2. Explain how the graduation requirements will ensure student readiness for college or other
postsecondary opportunities {trade school, military service, or entering the workforce).

3. Explain what systems and structures the school will implement for students at risk of dropping out

and/or not meeting the proposed graduation requirements.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. 5T WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS

Students attending BA shall complete a minimum of 22 units of credit and master all sections of
state mandated examinations to receive a high school diploma. Along with combining rigorous
academic program methodologies such as AVID, BA will align with recent legislation of the
House Bill 5 Foundation High School Program. Students will earn credit hours by showing
mastery in all levels of subject matter. Our educators will work tirelessly to see that each
student is successful through quality instruction.

The Texas College and Career Readiness Standards confirm, “Generally, the more standards a
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reading below the basic level for the past 15 years.”
(http://www.betterhighschools.org/expert/ask lit.asp} Many United States schools have
neglected to truly prepare their students for college. Beta Academy will ensure college
readiness by requiring that all graduates demonstrate proficiency using a matriculation exam.
This exam will be determined prior to the opening of Beta Academy High School. Instituting this
exam will provide a clear goal for our graduates to work towards. It will inspire much needed
focus, drive, and motivation for our scholars because the results will have a significant effect on
the students’ lives. “The countries with the best education outcomes all had these
(matriculation) tests at the end of high school. it was one of the most obvious differences
between them and the United States — which had a surplus of tests, few of which had
meaningful effects on kids’ lives.” (Ripley, p. 155) After receiving a truly rigorous, world-class
education at BA, our scholars will be able to demonstrate mastery of higher order thinking
skills, creative problem solving, and advanced literacy skills in a wide variety of content
including standards addressed by the TEKS. We purport that our matriculation exam will
determine whether or not BA scholars are truly prepared to enter the world of higher
education and therein find success.

Systems for Supporting At-Risk Students
Beta Academy is committed to providing the following support for our students that are at-risk

for dropping out of school.

Graduation Coaches/Advisors: Endeavoring to support our scholars each step of their
academic journey, BA will provide a graduation coach for its graduates. One advantage of a
small charter school is there will be a lower counselor to student ratio than regular ISD’s.
Therefore, BA school counselor will act as graduation coach/advisor and will work with the
faculty to forge productive relationships with the scholars and determine additional support for
their individual needs. The graduation coach will not only assist each BA scholar in planning for
graduation, but will also help the student manage dual credit courses, offer guidance through
the college selection and application process, and keep the parents abreast of all credit issues.
The graduation coach will participate in all areas of planning and scheduling courses, identify
and help with problem areas, and act as a strong support for the scholar.

Additional Dropout Prevention Strategies: Beta Academy High School will include nine
selected strategies from the following report on “15 Effective Strategies for Dropout
Prevention” developed by the National Dropout Prevention Center (NDPC} in association with
Franklin P. Schargel. They have been recognized by the U.S. Department of Education and the
National Education Goals Panel as “the most effective strategies to help prevent school
dropouts.” Although appearing to be independent, these strategies frequently overlap and are
synergistic and can be implemented as stand-alone programs (i.e. mentoring or family
involvement projects}. These strategies have been successful in all school levels from K-12 and
in rural, suburban, or urban centers.
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Nine Selected Effective Strategies for Dropout Prevention:

1. Mentoring/Tutoring: Beta Academy will provide mentoring as a one-to-one caring,
supportive relationship between a mentor and a mentee that is based on trust.
Tutoring, also a one-to-one activity focuses on academics and is an effective way to
address specific needs such as reading, writing, or math competencies.

2. Service Learning: Service learning connects meaningful community service experiences
with academic learning. Beta Academy will utilize this teaching/learning method to
promote personal and social growth, career development, and civic responsibility.

3. After School Opportunities: BA will provide after-school programs that inspire interest
in a variety of areas. Such experiences are especially important for students at risk of
school failure.

4. Family Engagement: Research consistently finds that family involvement has a direct,
positive effect on children’s achievement and is the most accurate predictor of a
student’s success in school. This is why BA will offer effective PTO and parent oriented
opportunities to ensure family engagement,

5. Active Learning: Beta Academy educators will show students that there are different
ways to learn, which enables students to find new and creative ways to solve problems,
achieve success, and become lifelong learners.

6. Educational Technology: Technology is highly motivating and offers many opportunities
for delivering instruction that engages students in authentic learning, addresses multiple
intelligences, and adapts to a variety of student learning styles. Beta Academy is
committed to using technology in the educational environment.

7. Individualized Instruction: Beta Academy will provide a customized individual learning
program for each at-risk student that shows potential for dropping out of school. This
will allow teacher flexibility with the instructional program and extracurricular activities
to meet the unique needs of below grade level students.

8. School-Community Collaboration: When all groups in a community provide collective
support to the school, a strong infrastructure sustains a caring environment where
youth can thrive and achieve. This is seen in BA’s pre-charter interface with community
resources and groups.

9. Career and Technical Education: Beta Academy will provide a quality guidance
program, which is essential for all students. School-to-work programs recognize that
youth need specific skills to prepare them for the larger demands of today’s warkplace.

Supplemental Programming

1. If summer school will be offered, describe the program{s). Explain the schedule and length of the
program including the number of hours and weeks. Discuss the anticipated participants, including
number of students and the methods used to identify them. Describe the anticipated resource and
staffing needs for these programs, and explain how they will be funded.

2. Describe the extra- or co-curricular activities or programming the school will offer; how often they
will occur; and how they will be funded.

3. Describe the programs or strategies to address student mental, emotional, and social development
and health.

4. If applicable, describe any other student-focused activities and programs that are integral to the
educational and student-development plans.
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the world. Their mission is to bring business and education together in a positive working
relationship.

FBLA GOALS: Develop competent, aggressive business leadership. Strengthen the
confidence of students in themselves and their work. Create more interest in and
understanding of American business enterprise. Encourage members in the development of
individual projects that contribute to the improvement of home, business, and community.
Develop character, prepare for useful citizenship, and foster patriotism. Encourage and
practice efficient money management. Encourage scholarship and promote school loyalty.
Assist students in the establishment of occupational goals. Facilitate the transition from
school to work. A BA teacher will supervise this club; therefore, no additional funds needed.

Invisible Children: Dedicated to raising awareness of and money for the children affected by
the violence between the tord’s Resistance Army {LRA} and Ugandan government in Northern
Uganda. The BA invisible Children’s club will raise money through various entrepreneurial ideas
they plan and organize to support the Invisible Children Schools for Schools program, a branch
of the overall organization, which is dedicated to raising money for the re-building of 11
secondary schools in Northern Uganda. Invisible Children itself is a non-profit organization and
one of its primary goals is to provide quality education to the children of Northern Uganda
through the re-building of secondary schools in that region. A BA teacher will supervise the
Invisible Children’s club; therefore, no additional funds are needed.

Student Government: Student government serves to engage students in learning about
democracy and leadership. The student government will help share students’ ideas, interests,
and concerns with teachers, administrators and the community. They will help raise funds for
school-wide activities, including social events. They will participate in community projects and
promote school reform. Student Government members will also be a voice in schoo! decisions
when appropriate, building leadership capacity in them as they help tackle and solve campus
issues. A BA teacher will supervise the student government; therefore, no additional funds are
needed.

Honor Society: Selection for the honor society is based on five criteria: citizenship, service,
leadership, scholarship and character. Members must maintain a high grade point average (the
national minimum is a 3.5) and become good citizens {by participating in service projects).
Participation requirements include the scholar participate/lead a school service to the
community, school or other organization(s). The projects help students meet the required
service hour monthly total. A BA teacher will supervise the Honor Society; therefore, no
additional funds are needed.

One of Beta Academy’s most important ventures will be to meet not only the mental
development of every BA scholar, but also the emotional, social and health development. We
believe that a great school should aim to develop both a student’s heart and mind with
curriculum that builds and instills the virtues of prudence, justice, temperance, and fortitude.
Character building curriculum will be adopted and embedded into the school's cuiture.
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Embedding character education as a foundational component at BA enables us to create a
schooi culture that can potentially transform students, staff, home, and community.

A group of economists and sociologists in the 1970’s conducted research that suggested
that, “cognitive abilities only went so far.” They discovered that character habits such as
persistence, motivation, empathy and self-control mattered even more than IQ. Perhaps
even more exciting was the discovery that “character was malleable, more malleable in
fact than 1Q, Character could change dramatically and relatively quickly — for better and
for worse—from place to place and time to time.” (Ripley, 120)

Therefore, Beta Academy will focus on cultivating the character of our scholars.

Our teachers will provide a caring and nurturing environment while reinforcing the importance
of students’ responsibility for their education and accountability for their actions. The classic
Bobo Doll experiment performed in 1961, by Albert Bandura showed that children have a
tendency to model the behavior of trusted adults. When aggressive behavior was modeled, the
children imitated the aggression. When exposed to a non-aggressive model, the children
showed very little aggressive behavior (http://www.experiment-resources.com/bobo-doll-
experiment.html}. Therefore, BA faculty and staff will model, instruct, challenge and lead
students in the development of a lifestyle consistent with a culture of love and respect, with an
emphasis on academic success. Learning from an environment that fosters moral character
development, love and respect for self, peers and teachers, students will bring these traits into
aduithood by having positive examples role-modeled from early childhood through high school.

Student Focused Activities: Beta Academy will not incorporate any additional student-focused
activities and programs at this time.

Special Populations and At-Risk Students

1. Describe the overall plan to serve students with special needs, including but not limited to students
with Individualized Education Programs {IEPs) or Section 504 plans; students receiving BE or ESL
services; students identified as Gifted and Talented (GT); and students at risk of academic failure or
dropping out. identify the special populations and at-risk groups that the school expects to serve,
including an explanation of how those projections were developed (e.g. through data related to a
specifically targeted school or neighborhood or more generalized analysis of the population to be
served). Discuss how the course scope and sequence, daily schedule, staffing plans, and support
strategies and resources will meet or be adjusted for the diverse needs of students.

2. Explain more specifically how you will identify and meet the learning needs of students with mild,
moderate, and severe disabilities in the least restrictive environment possible. Specify the programs,
strategies, and supports you will provide, including the following:

a. Methods for identifying students with special education needs {and avoiding misidentification);

b. Specific instructional programs, practices, and strategies the school will employ to provide a
continuum of services; ensure students’ access to the general education curriculum; and ensure
academic success for students with special education needs;
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c. Plans for monitoring and evaluating the progress and success of special education students with
mild, moderate, and severe needs to ensure the attainment of each student’s goals as set forth
in the IEP;

d. Plans for promoting graduation for students with special education needs (high schools only);
and

e. Plans to have qualified staffing adequate for the anticipated special needs population.

3. Explain how the school will meet the needs of students requiring BE or ESL services, including the
following:

a. Methods for identifying these students (and avoiding misidentification);

b. Specific BE/ESL instructional programs, practices, and strategies the school will employ to
ensure academic success and equitable access to the core academic program for these students;

c. Plans for monitoring and evaiuating the progress and success of these students, including exiting
students from BE/ESL services; and

d. Means for providing qualified staffing for these students.

4. Explain how the school will identify and meet the learning needs of students whao are performing
below grade level and monitor their progress. Specify the programs, strategies, and supports the
school will provide for these students.

5. Explain how the school will identify and meet the needs of intellectually gifted students, including the
following:

a. Specific evidence-based instructional programs, practices, strategies, and opportunities the
school will employ or provide to enhance their abilities;

b. Plans for monitoring and evaluating the progress and success of intellectually gifted students;
and

T

TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN TIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Special Populations and At-Risk Students:

Beta Academy sees all children as unique individuals. We know that every scholar has his or her
own strengths, weaknesses, and talents, not to mention personal obstacles to overcome.
Scholars that are at-risk, special needs, ESL and Gifted and Talented alt have different styles of
learning. When we look at each child, we know that they all see the world in a different way;
their perspectives are shaped by their individual backgrounds, experiences, family dynamics,
educational foundation, etc. We understand that celebrating our differences, rather than
discouraging them, is the only way to truly see and appreciate each other for our unique skills
and strengths, Beta Academy will be a school that embraces learners with myriad approaches
to learning.

In the 77075 zip code, which is the area of the proposed charter school site, 48.03% of the
population speaks Spanish in the home (USA.com). Another statistic that will influence BA’s
preparation for serving special populations indicates that approximately 5% of Pasadena ISD
scholars will be identified as Gifted & Talented with numbers varying from campus to campus
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(pasadenaisd.org). Additionally, it is noteworthy that 78% of scholars in PISD are economically
disadvantaged, 56% of the population is at-risk academically, and 28.8% of scholars are Limited
English proficient (LEP} (texastribune.org). Based on these statistics, BA will service high
numbers of scholars who are ethnically, linguistically, and academically diverse.

All scholars at BA will be held to high standards and expectations. However, this does not
exclude anyone because BA values every type of learner. Our teachers will be trained to
individualize instruction based on the unique needs of each scholar. In the top performing
country of Korea, which had “epidemic poverty and illiteracy” until they enacted dramatic
reforms in their education system, people believe that “performance was mostly a product of
hard work—not God-given talent” (Ripley, p. 64). Also, in Finland, “teachers considered most
special ed scholars to have temporary learning difficulties, rather than permanent disabilities”
(Ripley, p. 164}. We agree with the Finns that ALL scholars can improve when they are in an
environment that infuses their minds and souls with hope through high expectations, rigor,
excellent instruction, and the brightest and best teachers. If other countries are providing an
excellent education to their economically and ethnically diverse scholars, than we believe that
the United States and the great state of Texas can, too!

Countries that believe that school is serious understand that schoo! must be serious for
EVERYONE. They also know that “if rigor was a prerequisite for success in life, then it had to be
applied evenly. Equity — a core value of fairness, backed up by money and institutionalized by
delayed tracking ~was a telltale sign of rigor” {Ripley, p. 140}. Beta Academy will treat our
special populations with equity. Believing that all scholars can perform on a high level, our goal
is to close the achievement gap between our diverse scholars.

international research says that “keeping children of different abilities and backgrounds
together in the same classroom tends to lift the performance of everyone, everywhere in the
world” (Ripley, p.285). Beta Academy will hire the most highly trained resource staff to support
the variety of special populations included in BA. We will employ an inclusion model for our
special ed, £SL, Gifted and Talented, and our at-risk scholars. Teachers will not be left to fend
for themselves, but rather, they will be connected to other staff members in a culture of unity
and family at BA in order to reach all scholars and meet their diverse needs.

The course scope and sequence, daily schedule, staffing plans, support strategies, and
resources will be adjusted for the diverse needs of our unique BA scholars. For example, when
the scope and sequence is moving too quickly or too slowly for any of our special pepulation or
at-risk scholars, it will be adjusted for them. When a student is given adequate time to truly
master the material before moving on, they will no longer struggte through those areas in the
subsequent lessons. Also, the daily schedule will be rearranged when necessary to
accommodate scholars that are receiving additional services out of the classroom. The entire
school will work together to make sure that our scholars are receiving the best instruction to
meet their needs. A strong focus on creating a team-oriented school culture, with regular
collaborative meetings, will help the faculty and staff remains on the same page with respect to
our diverse population of learners.
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Beta Academy will identify special education scholars using the guide to the Admission Review
and Dismissal {ARD) process found on the Texas Education Agency website: “Special education
services shall be provided to eligible scholars in accordance with all applicable federal law and
regulations, state statutes, rules of the State Board of Education {SBOE) and commissioner of
education, and the State Plan Under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
(IDEAY” 19 TAC §89.1001(a) (http://fromework.esc18.net). We will carefully follow all state and
federal mandates for assessment, development of individualized education plans and providing
free and appropriate educational services in the least restrictive environment possible for each
student qualifying for special services.

Identifying scholars suspected of disabilities affecting their ability to access general education
curriculum will begin in the classroom, as teachers observe and assess the academic, behavioral
and socio-emotional functioning of each student. When a pattern of school failure is apparent,
the teacher will inmediately initiate the Response to Intervention (Rtl) process. As defined by
the potlicy written by the school board, the instructional specialist or learning coach appointed
by the principal, after meeting with the referral committee, will plan and assist the classroom
teacher in implementing intervention strategies for improving performance in the general
classroom setting. Scholars who are meeting minimal passing requirements in general
education but who may be experiencing frustration beyond what might be considered to be
age and grade appropriate may also be referred for Rtl. Scholars suspected of having
intellectual disabilities should also be immediately referred for a full and individual evaluation
to a school psychologist or diagnostician. Response to Intervention efforts for scholars
suspected of having moderate intellectual disabilities will necessarily be short term, and those
demonstrating potentially severe disability may proceed directly to the assessment phase of
identification of need. g

During the assessment phase, evaluators will conduct structured observations across settings,
interviews with teachers and care givers, and informal and standardized assessment tools
appropriate for the referral concern. Following Individuals with Disabilities Education Act
{IDEA) and TEA guidelines, BA will contract the services of a multi-disciplinary team of
evaluators, which could include an educational diagnostician, a school psychologist, a speech
pathologist, an audiologist, an occupational or physical therapist, among others, again
depending upon the referral concern. When the evaluation results have been compiled and
analyzed by the team of specialists, the principal or their designee will arrange an ARD meeting
to include the parent, classroom teacher, special education teacher and a member of the
school’s administration, along with any relevant service providers.

The ARD committee will review and discuss the evaluation results and any disabilities indicated
by the assessment report. During the ARD, the evaluator establishes a disability condition and
the ARD committee determines eligibility for specially designed instruction. Based upon these
results and the identified disability, the multi-disciplinary team, together with the parent, will
define measurable goals to improve student performance in the specified areas of need. These
standards based {TEKS) goals and objectives will collectively make up the Individualized
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Education Plan (IEP). The principal will appoint a special education coordinator for each
campus, who will track and monitor IEP implementation and student progress to ensure that
the student is improving at the rate defined by the IEP for each goal.

Assessing disabilities that may not be addressed by IDEA, but which negatively impact basic life
activities, is governed in part by Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973. The Rtl process includes strategies for addressing these types of
impairments as well, and although assessment tools will vary, the determination of a specific
disability, implementation of the ARD process and development of IEPs will be strenuously
employed for scholars suspected of these types of disabilities. The ARD process will identify
scholars who qualify for specific modifications in order to access general education in the least
restrictive environment possible.

Beta Academy will provide and implement, as required by the IEPs of its special education
scholars, a continuum of services designed to ensure scholars’ access to the generat education
curriculum, including, but not limited to, multi-sensory instruction, peer tutoring, “push in”
paraprofessiona! support for individual scholars within the general education classroom, and
co-teaching effected by a general education and a specialized teacher functioning in the same
classroom. The next layer of service provision would include “pull out” instruction by resource
teachers, designed to target specific skills deficits. Finally, self-contained, specialized classrooms
that could offer life skills training, positive behavioral supports, among others, will be offered as
determined by the ARD committee. Monitoring and evaluating the progress and success of
special education scholars will be conducted at each grading period, or more often as specified
by the IEP, by a special education coordinator appointed by the principal.

3. Students Requiring ESL Services — Beta Academy expects to service a large population of ESL
scholars. Knowing the needs of our community, we are prepared to provide a strong literacy
program in order to develop the diverse linguistic needs of our specific population.

Some methods for recommending scholars for ESL services are as follows: home language
surveys, teacher recommendation, parent request, student request, and administrator
recommendation. In order to identify ESL scholars, BA will have a Language Proficiency
Assessment Committee (LPAC) which will utilize a variety of assessment tool(s) such as: teacher
observations, anecdotal records, student writing samples, and the Woodcock-Munoz Language
Survey (Score: Below Level 4). The LPAC will consist of the following: classroom teacher,
parent{s)/guardian, one administrator, and the ESL teacher. Having a variety of assessments,
documented teacher observations, as well as student work samples will assist the LPAC in
identifying ESL scholars accurately in order to avoid misidentification.

Beta Academy will implement English as a Second Language program that uses a mixed model
of inclusion and puli-out/small group instruction for our ESL scholars. Scholars that are
identified as newcomers (non-English speakers) will receive pull-out instruction {only as
needed) from a certified ESL teacher/specialist in order to provide intensive [anguage
instruction to build a foundation in Basic Interpersonal Communication Skills {BICS). Scholars
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Special Populations and At-Risk Students —P. 34

2. Provide replacement language for the statement “They will also take the
Comprehensive English Language Learning Assessment {CELLA) every spring.” that

addresses the use of the Texas English Language Proficiency Assessment System
(TELPAS) when evaluation students.

The English Language Learners (Ells) of Beta Academy will take the Texas English Language
Proficiency Assessment System (TELPAS). The TELPAS measures the progress that ELLs make in
acquiring the English language. Title lll, Part A of the No Child Left Behind Act of 2001 (NCLB)

requires states to conduct annual statewide English language proficiency assessments for ELLs in
grades K-12 in the language domains of listening, speaking, reading, and writing.

TELPAS fulfills federal requirements for assessing the English language proficiency of ELLs in
kindergarten through grade 12 in four language domains: listening, speaking, reading, and
writing. TELPAS assesses students in alignment with the Texas English Language Proficiency
Standards (ELPS}, which are part of the Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills {TEKS). TELPAS
provides performance data used to fulfill state and federal reporting requirements. Student

performance is reported in terms of four English language proficiency ratings: beginning,
intermediate, advanced, and advanced high. TELPAS is administered to all ELLs, including ELLs
who do not participate in a bilingual or English as a second language (ESL) program because of
parent denial.
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Among the factors that provide an early indicator is the student’s ability to master readingin
the early years. When the State of Arizona projects how many prison beds it will need, it factors
in the number of kids who read well in the fourth grade (Arizona Republic (9-15-2004)
www.sheahomes.com). This reinforces BA’s fervent desire to be a reading mastery center of
excellence and provide a foundational strategy that enables scholars to meet graduation
requirements.

In addition, BA will also include specific strategies from the following report on “15 Effective
Strategies for Dropout Prevention” developed by the National Dropout Prevention Center in
association with Franklin P. Schargel. They have been recognized by the U.S. Department of
Education and the National Education Goals Panel as “the most effective strategies to help
prevent school dropouts.” These strategies although appearing to be independent, frequently
overlap and are synergistic and they can be implemented as stand-alone programs (i.e.
mentoring or family involvement projects). These strategies have been successful in all school
levels from K-12 and in rural, suburban, or urban centers.

The 15 Effective Strategies

1. Mentoring/Tutoring - Beta Academy will provide mentoring as a one-to-one caring,
supportive relationship between a mentor and a mentee that is based on trust. Tutoring, also a
one-to-one activity focuses on academics and is an effective way to address specific needs such
as reading, writing, or math competencies.

2. Service Learning - Service learning connects meaningful community service experiences with
academic learning. Beta Academy will utilize this teaching/learning method to promote
personal and social growth, career development, and civic responsibility.

3. Alternative Schooling - Beta Academy will be an alternative schooling option that provides
potential dropouts a variety of options that can lead to graduation, with programs paying
special attention to the scholars’ individual social needs and the academic requirements for a
high school diploma.

4, After School Opportunities - Beta Academy will provide after-school programs that inspire
interest in a variety of areas. Such experiences are especially important for scholars at risk of
school failure.

5. Early Childhood Education - Birth-to-three interventions demonstrate that providing a child
educational enrichment can modify 1Q. The most effective way to reduce the number of
children who will ultimately drop out is to provide the best possible classroom instruction from
the beginning of their school experience, which BA will endeavor to provide.

6. Family Engagement - Research consistently finds that family involvement has a direct,
positive effect on children’s achievement and is the most accurate predictor of a student’s
success in school. This is why BA will offer effective PTO and parent oriented opportunities to
ensure family engagement.
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7. Early Literacy Development - Beta Academy will provide early interventions to help low-
achieving schotars recognize that focusing on reading and writing skiils is the foundation for
effective learning in all subjects.

8. Professional Development - Teachers at BA will be required to complete 30 hours of
professional development yearly, so they can continue to develop skills, techniques, and learn
about innovative strategies.

9. Active Learning - Beta Academy educators will show scholars that there are different ways to
learn, which enables scholars to find new and creative ways to solve problems, achieve success,
and become lifelong learners.

10. Educational Technology - Technology is highly motivating and offers many opportunities for
delivering instruction that engages scholars in authentic learning, addresses multiple
intelligences, and adapts to a variety of student learning styles. Beta Academy is committed to
using technology in the educational environment.

11. individualized Instruction - Beta Academy will provide a customized individual learning
program for each at-risk student that shows potential for dropping out of school. This will allow
teacher flexibility with the instructional program and extracurricular activities to meet the
unique needs of below grade level scholars.

12. Systemic Renewal - Systemic renewal calls for a continuing process of evaluating goals and
objectives related to school policies, practices, and organizational structures as they impact a
diverse group of learners. Beta Academy will establish a culture of evaluation and
reassessment.

13. School-Community Collaboration - When all groups in a community provide collective
support to the school, a strong infrastructure sustains a caring environment where youth can
thrive and achieve. This is seen in BA’s pre-charter interface with community resources and
groups.

14. Career and Technical Education - Beta Academy will provide a quality guidance program,
which is essential for all scholars. School-to-work programs recognize that youth need specific
skills to prepare them for the larger demands of today's workplace.

15. Safe Schools - Beta Academy will provide and nurture a safe, loving environment for
scholars. We will establish a comprehensive violence prevention plan, including conflict
resolution, which will deal with potential violence as well as crisis management. Violence
prevention means providing daily experiences at all grade levels that enhance positive social
attitudes and effective interpersonal skills in all scholars.

5. Gifted and Talented Students — In regards to Gifted and Talented (GT) scholars, Beta
Academy will comply with TEC §12.059. According to demographic research, BA does not
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anticipate a high population of Gifted and Talented scholars, 5% or fewer. Our highest
concentration of special population scholars is projected to be our ESL (28%) and at-risk
scholars (78%). Due to the large ESL and at-risk population, BA will focus on meeting their
unique needs.

However, BA will differentiate instruction for our Gifted and Talented scholars. We are
dedicated to implementing a rigorous curriculum; therefore our GT scholars will be sufficiently
challenged. To provide appropriate and stimulating educational experiences for gifted scholars,
differentiation may include: acceleration of instruction, in-depth study, a high degree of
complexity, and advanced and varied content (http://www.nagc.org/). One way that the
classroom teacher can differentiate instruction for the GT scholars is through text selection.
While the class is learning a specific reading strategy such as how to find the main idea, all
scholars will be given leveled texts or reading selections that will appropriately challenge them.
A program that will assist with differentiation is the AR reading program. Teachers will easily be
able to monitor if scholars are reading books that are at their independent level, rather than
books that are far too easy for them. Another innovative approach that BA will take is providing
tutoring for not only our struggling learners, but also our GT scholars. They will be tutored
according to their areas of weakness, and challenged in their strengths so they will continually
progress at an optimum rate.

Beta Academy values and appreciates all types of learners and will embrace each and every one
of our special populations, including ESL, special ed, at-risk, and Gifted and Talented scholars.

Educational Staff Capacity

1. Identify the key members of the school’s educational leadership team. Identify only individuals who
will play a substantial and ongoing role in school development, governance, and/or management,
and will thus share responsibility for the school’s educational success. These may include current or
proposed governing board members, the school leadership/management team, and any essential
partners who will play an important ongoing role in the schoaol’s development and operation.
Describe the team’s individual and collective qualificatiens for implementing the school design
successfully, including capacity in areas such as school leadership, administration, and governance;
and curriculum, instruction, and assessment.

Describe the group’s ties to and/or knowledge of the target community.

2. |dentify any organizations, agencies, or consultants that are partners in planning and establishing the
school, along with a brief description of their current and planned role and any resources they have
contributed or plan to contribute to the school’s development.

3. Identify the principal candidate and explain why this individual is well-qualified to lead the proposed
campus in achieving its mission. Summarize the proposed leader’s academic and organizational
leadership record. Provide specific evidence that demonstrates capacity to design, launch, and
manage a high-performing charter school. If the proposed leader has never run a school, describe any
teadership training programs that (s}he has completed or is currently participating in. Discuss the
evidence of the leader’s ability to effectively serve the anticipated population. Also provide, as
Attachment £.3, the qualifications, resume/curriculum vitae, and professional biography for this

individual.
OR
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If no candidate has been identified, provide as Attachment E.3 the qualifications and job description
for this role, and discuss here the timeline, criteria, and recruiting and selection process for hiring the
campus leader,

4. Describe the responsibilities and qualifications of the school’s leadership/management team beyond
the principal. If known, identify the individuals who will fill these positions and provide, as
Attachment E.4, the qualifications, resumes/curricula vitae, and professional biographies for these
individuals. For any position not yet filled, instead provide in Attachment E.4 the job descriptions and
qualifications for each position, and discuss here timeline, criteria, and recruiting and selection
process for each.

5. Explain who will work on a full-time or nearly full-time basis following award of a charter to lead
development of the school and the ptan to compensate these individuals.

6. Explain the plan for distributing to parents information related to the qualifications,
experience, and certifications of each teacher, including any professional or educational
degrees held and a statement of any certification under TEC §21.057 or PL 107-110

§1111({h}(6)(B)(ii).
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WiLL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Educational Staff Capacity

Educational Leadership Team: Foundational to the mission of Beta Academy is our belief that
the best way to provide innovative, rigorous instruction is to hire teachers of the highest
caliber. The board of directors leading Beta Academy collaborates effectively as a team of
former teachers, school administrators, volunteers and successful business entrepreneurs in
community and international domains. Comprised of members representing diversity in age,
gender, ethnicity, professional expertise, and personal experience, Beta Academy’s team of
school leaders is uniquely poised to support the proposed school superintendent and to
facilitate the realization of the school’s vision.

Helen Abernathy holds a Master of Education in Teaching English to Speakers of Other
Languages {TESOL} with a Reading Specialist endorsement. Prior to serving as an ESL teacher for
Virginia Beach City Public Schools, Helen worked for a year in Gaborone, Botswana, Africa, as a
first grade teacher of a linguistically diverse population. A former adjunct professor at Regent
University in Virginia Beach, Virginia, Helen currently serves as a writer and editor of classic
literature curriculum for Chrysalis International, an organization whose mission is to raise the
literacy rate among children in poverty stricken countries. In addition to her professional
service, she has been a volunteer tutor for at risk students in her community throughout her
career. Helen’s international and ESL classrcom experience and her genuine, on-going
commitment to the underserved in her community are invaluable to the process of planning for
the population of at-risk and limited English proficient scholars anticipated to enroll in Beta
Academy.

A professional educator for over thirty years, Teresa Sones holds a Master of Arts in Behavioral
Sciences, specializing in School Psychology. A former junior high and high school teacher, Teresa
served as the principal of a private schoo! in Houston from 1990 through 2008. Currently the
vice president of Gateway Supply Inc., an international procurement and logistics company she
helped to establish, Teresa is also a freelance technical, speech and narrative writer and editor.
An active member of her southeast Houston community, Teresa has served as a voiunteer in

Beta Academy 38 of 369



many capacities, including acting as a translator for Spanish speaking clients and the English
speaking doctors and health service providers at Eastwood Health Clinic, an intake clerk for The
Bridge Over Troubled Waters {a women'’s shelter in Pasadena), a teacher for Spanish speakers
wanting to learn English at Life Church in Houston, and a tutor for residents of Kidz Harbor.

During his second year of teaching in the Garland Independent School District, Justin James was
recognized as the “2014 Teacher of the Year” at Hudson Middle School as well as Sachse
Chamber of Commerce “2014 Teacher of the Year.” As Secretary for The Beta Foundation
{(governing board of Beta Academy), Justin’s AVID Path training will help drive Beta Academy's
school-wide commitment to this innovative and effective college preparatory program. justin is
a detailed oriented project coordinator and a caring volunteer mentor to his students. He has
provided tutoring to disadvantaged and at-risk students in his community for seven years and
his current pursuit to complete his master’s degree in educational leadership provides a
relevant role model of excellence for the scholars of Beta Academy.

Timothy Wayne King, an entrepreneur in the oil fitting business since 1981, established Tubular
Resources in Sugar Land, Texas, after attending St. Mary's University in San Antonio, Texas. As
the president of his own company for over 30 years, Tim has mastered the fiduciary challenges
associated with a start-up operation, as well as those encountered during the natural growth
and constriction of business opportunities through the years. Tim's experience with the
financial details of business makes him an ideal treasurer for the board of directors. He will
exercise oversight of annual budget preparation and general financial operations as well as the
development of sound financial strategies for continuous growth and expansion. As large as his
body of business acumen is Tim’s heart for the underserved and at-risk populations at home
and abroad. He is a board member of Ima’s Home for Children, an orphanage in the Philippines,
and a long-time financial supporter of local 4H Clubs and the Pasadena Rodeo. Reach Out
America, an international emergency relief organization, is another of Tim’s philanthropic
interests. For over twenty-five years, however, Tim’s compassionate financial support for
community events in southeast Houston, where Beta Academy has proposed to open its first
campus, demonstrates an equally sincere commitment to the underserved close to home.

The school leaders’ broad range of collective expertise and experiences represents a unique
blend of professionalism, commitment to excellence and compassionate service. Each member
of the leadership team possesses the mindset that an exceptional education should be
accessible to all, without respect to socio-economic status, ethnicity or geography. At the heart
of every effort is the desire to acquire and keep only those teachers with the high levels of
education and expertise necessary to effectively maintain innovation in instruction, appropriate
classroom management, and caring responsiveness to the needs of the whole student. As such,
the board of directors has identified Latisha Andrews, CEO of The Beta Foundation, as the
superintendent candidate for Beta Academy.

Latisha Andrews, CEO of The Beta Foundation, the proposed [eader, possess a stellar academic
and leadership record. Latisha will act as the Principal for the first year of operation. She
graduated Summa Cum Laude with a 4.0 in Master of Business Administration and currently
serves as the Director of a charter school in Pasadena, Texas. Prior to working for Responsive
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CFO/Business Manager: TBD

Timeline for employment is July 2015: Full-Time

The CFO/Business Manager will provide analysis of the financial health of the organization with
an understanding of budget constraints and discretion. The competitive candidate will have a
MBA and be able to demonstrate the ability to provide full financial tracking in accordance with
TEA account codes. This individual will also have to demonstrate the attention to detail
required providing monthly cash flow to budget reconciliation, risk analysis, monthly audit
ready expenditure reporting, and GAAP adherence. Recruiting efforts will commence
immediately upon notification of charter award and include Texas Workforce, local community
advertisements, school property signs, and school website/social media. The selection process
will include both an interview and a background check.

These positions, time period, and salaries are also reflected in the startup timeline and startup
budget attachments. We will staff remaining positions in July and Aug 2015. These salaries and
other cost associated with startup will be covered through the $203,999 in current pledges,
ongoing pledges, and a line of credit loan if required.

Upon joining the Beta Academy family a teacher’s qualifications, experience, and certifications
will be sent in an email announcement to the parent’s email account. The information will also
be posted in the school’s website.

WHEN YOU HAVE FINISHED, LEAVE THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE BLANK.
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Section Two - Operations Plan

School Calendar and Schedule

1. Discuss the annual academic calendar for the school. Explain how the calendar reflects the needs of
the educational program, including total number of days/hours of instruction. In Attachment 0.1,
provide the school’s proposed calendar for the first year of operation.

2. Describe the structure of the schoo! day and week. Include the number of instructional hours/
minutes in a day for foundation subjects. Note the length of the school day, including start and
dismissal times, Explain why the school’s daily and weekly schedule will be optimal for student
learning. Describe how the instructional day will be structured to ensure adequate coverage of ali
the TEKS. Provide the minimum number of instructional hours/minutes per day and week that the
school will devote to academic instruction in each grade. Provide, also in Attachment 0.1, a sample
daily and weekly schedule for each grade configuration of the school.

3. Note the number of hours dedicated for teacher planning and collaboration, if applicable.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE N THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.,

Section Two-Operations Plan

Schoo! Calendar and Schedule

Beta Academy’s academic year will have 180 instructional days excluding weekends with the
exceptions of tutorial Saturday's, staff development days {scholars do not attend those days),
benchmark testing days, and school breaks. The academic calendar notes four tri-semester
grading periods to reflect scholar growth in both core and enrichment curriculum. Elementary
scholars will receive a total of 6 hours and 10 minutes of instructional time within each
standard academic day. Intermediate and high school level scholars will receive a total of 6
hours of instructional time during a standard academic day. A proposed school calendar is
provided in attachment 0.1

Elementary: A routine school day for an elementary scholar will begin at 7:50 a.m. and end
with dismissal at 3:10 p.m. for a total school day of 7 hours and 25 minutes. Extended day
tutorial services will be provided until 4:00 p.m. to target and encourage optimal growth for the
entire student body. Tutorials are targeted for scholars who are above grade level, on grade
level and below grade level. The academic day is structured to incorporate core foundational
subject areas during all instructional times. Daily, scholars will receive a minimum of S hours
and 25 minutes in core subjects in each elementary grade level. Weekly, scholars will receive
instructional time in foundational subjects for 26 hours and 25 minutes. The TEKS will be met
adequately through daily/weekly instructional time in TEKS-based curriculum for every core
subject.

Elementary enrichment curriculum will be divided among three subject areas to enhance the
learning experience for 45 minutes each day; 3 hours and 45 minutes of weekly enrichment.
Art, Music, and Physical Education will be rotated weekly with the advantageous benefits of
creativity, sportsmanship/social skills and critical thinking skills. A sample elementary
daily/weekly schedule is provided in attachment O.1.

Intermediate and High School Day: The time and hours for intermediate and high school grade
levels will stay the same as the elementary level grades. However, there will be structural
differences due to block scheduling. For these grade levels, the academic day is structured to
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nothing matters more than education. “People in these countries (Korea and Finland) agreed on
the purpose of school: school existed to help students’ master complex academic material.
Other things mattered too, but nothing mattered as much (Ripley, p. 117).” Our positive school
culture will create a passion for learning and discovery which promotes inquiry and reasoning
that reinforces intellectual thought. Teachers, administration, and parents will work together to
help scholars understand that while school is rewarding it is diligence and hard work that
produce positive results.

The positive social and character development of every BA scholar is important. Thus, all adult
members of BA will be role models and exhibit positive character traits. “Teachers who foster
positive relationships with their students create classroom environments more conducive to
learning and meet students' developmental, emotional and academic needs {American
Psychological Association, n.d., para. 2).” Social development also includes the social interaction
scholars experience with their peers and others. Beta Academy scholars will be taught, and held
responsible, to demonstrate: responsibility, patience, canfidence, cooperation, generosity,
dependability, diligence, kindness, and honesty. In addition, scholars will learn conflict
resolution through mediated peer-to-peer collaboration.

Beta Academy'’s caring environment strives to incorporate thinking and feeling along with
personal behavior in the character development of its scholars. The BA “Goiden Rules” plan of
action is a proactive, collaborative, and effective comprehensive approach that encourages
scholar intervention to conflict resolution.

The Beta Academy Peer-to-Peer Plan of Action:

Golden Rule: Be respectful at all times, in all places, to all people
1. Be respectful in:
a. Words
b. Attitude
€. Purposeful Action
d. Observing the personal space of others (6-inch Rule)
Intervention: Intervene
1. When poor behavior arises:
a. Use your words:
¢ “| believe you might want to reconsider your actions.
2. No one deserves bullying:
a. Use your words:
¢ "l do not like the way you are treating me.”
e “Please stop.”
e “Thatis wrong.”
e “You shouldn’t do that.”
3. Get an Adult:
a. If your words are not enough to stop bullying or poor behavior that is happening, get an
adult immediately!

”n
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Address it; Peers (modeling kindness with wisdom) with teacher facilitator
Addressing issues requires:

1. Work through self-reflection: “We ask you to
a. Look inside to determine why you . {fill in with behavior)
b. Take personal responsibility through apologizing specifically for what you did or said.
c. State what you will do to correct your behavior now and in the future,”
2. 2™ Opportunity:
a. Everyone deserves an extra moment to reconsider self-reflection. Offer the student a
moment to re-address the need to re-consider this opportunity.
3. Consequence {(apply either 1 or 2);
a. “If you cannot take personal responsibility, a more severe consequence will be
required.”
b. “Thank you for your sincere apology. The teacher will determine whether additional
consequences or action is required.”

Beta Academy will cast its vision for school culture before school officially commences by
casting it to all teachers and supporting staff members. This will occur through meaningful
communication and shared values to ensure that quality teaching/coaching is the expectation
of all those who collaborate with BA and its scholars. Second, parents and scholars will receive
thorough, written communication that includes a detailed description of BA’s inclusive school
community, its cultural climate, its expected attitudes toward learning, and expectations within
the learning environment.

The focus of school orientation is to inspire BA families to embrace a new culture of rigorous
academics with excitement, and to encourage our scholars to passionately pursue learning in
order to secure their own futures. From the beginning, BA desires its scholars to take personal
responsibility for their own education and its parents to understand the key role they play as
coaches who fully support the core values, teachings, and the joy for learning that is the of BA.

Scholars that enter mid-year will experience a smooth transition as they enter a defined school
culture exemplified by the BA student body and entire staff. In addition, each new scholar will
be assigned a peer to assist in coaching and modeling BA’s vision.

Beta Academy holds firm to the belief that ALL children can learn. OQur scholars with special
needs will receive the support and instruction they need in order to thrive in a rigorous learning
environment. While some learning disabilities require permanent additional support and
assistance, some can be overcome by learning strategies to compensate without continual
support by the special ed., ESL or any other remedial program. We feel the same way about our
low income, at-risk scholars. “In one study of U.S. eighth graders, for example, the best
predictor of academic performance was not the children’s I1Q scores — but their self-discipline
{Ripley, p.120)." BA's gifted and talented scholars will be challenged at their specific skill level
through enhanced daily activities as well as extended day tutorials.
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A typical school day of a BA scholar in first grade begins in the gymnasium. The scholars sit in
orderly rows with their class, separated by grade level. Cheerful music is playing and the
children are encouraged to sing along. At 7:45 the principal warmly greets the student body,
“Good morning, Beta scholars!” They chorus in reply, “Good morning!” The principal calls the
scholars who are celebrating a birthday to come to the front. The birthday schoiars can choose
a birthday pencil and have the honor of leading the school pledges. The principal directs the
student body to rise. The birthday scholars lead their peers in reciting the pledges to the
American flag and the Texas flag. Next, they declare a pledge to excellence, the BA Creed:

“I' am a scholar of excellence. | am dedicated to a life of learning, integrity, high
academics, physical fitness, and a life of quality without compromise. | will not lie, cheat,
slander or steal, or tolerate those who do. | will serve as an example to my friends and
community, fulfilling excellence in alt areas of my life today.”

The teachers and/or principal will recognize scholars for modeling a character trait or for an
academic achievement. The principal will inscribe their name(s) on a golden leaf, publically
praise the scholar{s), and display the scholar’s achievement in honoring BA’s culture of
excellence in all things. The leaf will hang on the ‘Tree of Character’ in the main assembly room
to inspire leadership within others. It will serve as a visual reminder to the entire school
community that hard work and positive personal character is recognized as well as rewarded.
Notable character traits are highly valued in every scholar, and are both coached and modeled
by the staff of BA through active engagement in the academic hours and social times within
each school day.

Scholars will derive a sense of personal pride and wellbeing, respect for the school, and pride in
their fellow peers through personal recognition. The daily atmosphere the scholar will
experience supports high standards built upon a safe and nurturing foundation regularly
reinforced through positive communication. The ‘Golden Leaf’ reward program is designed to
offer scholars both internal and external gratification. Through the external praise, visual
display, and shared celebration with peers and staff, a scholar experiences internal gratification
for a job well done. Scholars will hold not only themselves accountable, but also care for the
success of their classmates as well. Scholars will learn to rejoice in their success and the success
of others through student-centered activities and by positive reinforcement of BA faculty and
staff. After the daily morning assembly, the teachers lead their scholars to the classroom to

begin learning.

When the first grade scholars reach their classroom, they immediately put their things away
and prepare for the day. They join their class for a morning meeting on the classroom carpet.
They listen attentively as the teacher begins English/Language arts instruction. After the whole
class lesson, the scholars participate in learning centers such as: independent reading, phonics
practice, sight word study, journal writing, sequence a story, vocabulary study, sentence
construction, and listening center, etc. While the scholars work diligently in their centers, the
teacher instructs small guided-reading groups.
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The class transitions to an exciting social studies lesson. Because literacy is so highly valued at
BA, the scholars learn content through rich, engaging literature. The teacher begins by reading
a short picture book about Abraham Lincoln. Next, the teacher uses the whole brain teaching
method to introduce the important facts the scholars need to know about President Lincoln.
She instructs the scholars to turn and teach the information to their designated partner. During
this time the teacher listens in and monitors to ensure the scholars are staying on task and
discussing the topic of the lesson.

Next, the scholars take out their social studies interactive student notebooks. They take the
teacher provided notes about Abraham Lincoln and glue them onto the right-hand side of the
correct page number. The teacher models the appropriate steps using her own notebook and a
document camera. The teacher asks the scholars to turn and discuss with a partner the three
key facts they have learned about Abraham Lincoln. At the bottom of their class notes, the
scholars write one sentence that explains the main idea of the lesson. On the left hand side of
their iSN, the scholars glue a small character web organizer with a picture of Abraham Lincoln
at the center.

In order to assist their brains in storing the new information in their long-term memories, the
scholars draw symbols, pictures, or words to represent the three facts they have learned about
Abraham Lincoln. Presenting the information in a new and creative way activates the right side
of their brains. The scholars place their interactive notebooks in the designated bin to be
graded at a later time. The teacher wraps up and briefly reviews the lesson with the scholars.
Then the scholars walk in an orderly manner to the lunchroom to eat, afterwards they go
outside for rigorous play (recess).

After rigorous play the scholars return to their classroom ready for mathematics. The teacher
invites the scholars to the meeting area on the carpet. The class actively engages in the
following activities: calendar study, weather graph, counting, number pattern, and clock.

The teacher does a daily mental math activity. She holds up a brown paper bag and says, “l put
one quarter, one nickel and two pennies in our mystery bag. How much money do we have?”
Scholars solve the mental math and answer.

The teacher introduces the lesson about fractions. She uses manipulatives {pattern blocks) to
demonstrate how to identify one-half, one-third, and one-sixth. Then the scholars use their
own pattern blocks to recreate the fractions they just learned. After sufficient practice, the
scholars will practice math facts using games. Finally, they will finish with their written math
practice.

Next, the scholars go to physical education. Afterwards, they'll finish their school day with a
hands-on science lesson. The teacher introduces the iesson and objectives. After activating
prior knowledge and introducing key vocabulary, the teacher displays the new vocabulary
where all scholars can see it. The scholars watch an educational video, “All About Plants”, and
then engage in a class discussion about what was learned in the video.
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The teacher gives each cluster of scholar desks a small potted plant. The scholars take turns
observing and carefully hoiding the plant. Then they use the plant as a model, draw iton a
piece of plain construction paper, and label the parts of the plant. The scholars return their
completed assignments to the designated area and the teacher wraps up the lesson. The
scholars pack up for dismissal and go to the appropriate classroom for the extended day
tutorials.

A typical day for a BA teacher begins earlier than the first morning bell with preparations in the
classroom for the academic day. The teacher will begin the academic day by joining her
scholars to state the BA Creed, which serves as a reminder that each day should be conducted
in excellence for not only the scholars but also for the teacher, as well.

Next, the teacher rejoices with the scholars who are praised for notable character traits and
academic achievement on the ‘Tree of Character’. The teacher’s daily focus is scholar-centered
with an intentional effort to integrate the joyful engagement of academics to stimulate a
passion for learning. The BA teacher classroom management centers on academic achievement
through engagement and development of personal character within a positive learning
environment. The teacher coaches character development through mediation and models it
though daily interactions with the entire school community including scholars, parents and
staff. The morning and afternoon center on mastering academic subjects and inciude an
appropriate lunch period and preparation time. The teacher will, on alternate days, help to
monitor scholars during morning duty, during lunch, and dismissal duty as well as conduct
tutorial sessions.

Throughout the day, the teacher works diligently to foster an atmosphere of excellence as she
inspires scholars academically and personally through public recognition and personal
encouragement. The faculty is the heartbeat of the cultural foundation of the school. The
teachers model it, teach it, and inspire it to every scholar, every day.

References
Kaufman, S. PhD, UVA. {n.d.). Improving students’ relationships with teachers to provide
essential supports for [earning: Positive relationships can also help a student develop socially. in
American Psychological Association. Retrieved March 12, 2014, from
https://www.apa.org/education/k12/relationships.aspx

Student Admissions and Enrollment

1. Briefly analyze the competition in the area for the same students. Describe the methods that the
proposed school will use to recruit and retain students.

2. Explain how the plan for student recruitment and marketing will provide equal access to all
interested students and families. Specifically describe the plan for outreach to families in poverty,
academically low-achieving students, students with disabilities, and other youth at risk of academic
failure.

3. Provide, as Attachment 0.2, the school’s Admissions and Enrollment Policies, which should include

the following:
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allow us to set up information booths at their store to connect with families on site. The
Southbelt Leader, a local south Houston newspaper, is also very interested in a future BA and
will run free notifications of charter information meetings as a service to the community.
Multiple apartment managers located across the street and behind the proposed school are
excited about the possibility of a school of choice conveniently located for their thousands of
tenants and have given us permission to go door-to-door with the exciting charter information.
By communicating locally and with a personal touch, BA is confident that young local students
will soon be attending a world-class school right in their own backyard.

Not only will BA successfully recruit local students, but through passionate, innovative teaching
and parental involvement, we will retain them long-term. Our inspiring teachers will appeal to
young minds by engaging them through interactive Whole Brain Teaching, the AVID program,
and project-based learning (PBL) strategies. Scholars and parents can find the extra help they
need in our extended school days that offer tutoring for every scholar. Additionally, we will be
offering Saturday schools throughout the year to ensure every scholar is reaching their
potential. Critical parental involvement will be achieved through once-a-month parent
community nights where local organizations and leaders will speak to families about health and
fitness issues, successful financial strategies, and job/career guidance workshops. Parents will
also be encouraged to volunteer at the schoo!, join the PTO/PTA, and stay connected to their
child’s teacher and classroom. The focus of BA is to build a dynamic school and community
network to ensure productive and lasting relationships.

Since education can, and does change a child’s future, the founding board selected a location
within the Pasadena Independent School District that has limited school choice options and a
high population of students at risk for school failure and high school dropout. in fact, 37% of
residents in the 77075 zip code where the school will be located never graduated from high
school (2010 Census Database). This area is in desperate need of a positive change.

Beyond the numbers, percentages, and statistics, BA sees children that deserve an incredible
education regardless of where they live, what their race, or how affluent their families. We wil
ensure equal access to every interested family through open enrollment and offer hope to all of
our community without prejudice. As stated earlier, our plan for outreach to families struggling
with poverty, disabilities, or at-risk scholars is to communicate locally. The marketing materials
as well as the charter information meetings will be bilingual. The face-to-face meetings at local
businesses and apartment complexes will help reach families who may be unable to attend an
information meeting. The once-a-month parent community nights will give families access to
important help and information from local organizations. Beta Academy will be centrally
located within walking distance from the thousands of surrounding apartments and accessible
from the numerous city bus stops located just steps from the school.

We can help our community raise world class leaders by offering families a school of choice that
will foster an environment of academic rigor, character development, love, and respect. We
have a passion to uncover the hidden potential in every child and throw the door open to hope,
opportunity, and a life-changing educational experience.
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[ Beta Academy will not be specializing in performing arts.

Student Discipline

Describe the school's approach to student discipline summarizing the school's proposed Discipline

Policy. Provide as Attachment Q.3 the school’s proposed Discipline Policy. Together, the narrative

description and the proposed policy should address the following:

1. The code of conduct for the school; TEC, §12.131 requires that the governing body of an open-
enrollment charter school adopt a code of conduct for its district or for each campus.

2. Practices the school will use to promote good discipline, including both penalties for infractions and
incentives for positive behavior;

3. Alist and definitions of the offenses for which students in the school must (where non-discretionary}
and may (where discretionary} be suspended or expelled, respectively;

4. An explanation of how the school will take into account the rights of students with disabilities in
disciplinary actions and proceedings;

5. Procedures for due process when a student is suspended or expelled as a result of a code of conduct
violation, including a description of the appeal process that the school will employ for students facing
expulsion and a plan for providing services to students who are expelled or out of school for more
than ten days; and

6. Explanation of how students and parents will be informed of the discipline policy.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Student Discipline

Notable character traits are highly valued in every scholar, and are both coached and modeled
by the staff of BA through active engagement in the academic hours and social times within
each school day.

The discipline is used as a tool to help support the school culture. The BA school culture is a
positive, safe, and nurturing environment that instills hope, stimulates scholarly learning,
supports personal fulfillment through achievement, and develops personal character. First and
foremost we will focus on positive scholarly behavior and encourage desired behavior through
classroom incentives and rewards. The school-wide focus will be encouraging examples of
desired character traits, such as: respect, honor, obedience, responsibility, truthfulness, self-
control, dependability, generosity etc. through the merit system.

Beta Academy makes this a focus and priority every morning during assembly by recognizing
students in front of their peers for merits earned the previous day. The BA principal will inscribe
the students name(s) on a golden leaf, publically praise the scholar(s), and display the scholar’s
achievement in honoring Beta’s culture of excellence in all things. The leaf will hang on the
‘Tree of Character’ in the main assembly room to encourage an atmosphere of positive
behavior within the student body. The ‘Tree of Character’ will serve as a visual reminder to the
entire school community that positive personal character is recognized as well as rewarded.

When infractions occur involving one or more student BA teachers will refer to the peer-to-peer
plan of action previously discussed in our school culture.
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Demerits will be used as a tool to communicate with the parents. A “demerit” is a mark
denoting a rules violation and may be issued the FIRST time a student is in noncompliance with
arule. A “demerit” slip will be issued to students for parent signature. The name of the staff
member originating the demerit will be on the demerit slip for contact in case of questions.

Parents and students will be aware of the discipline policies and procedures as they will be
listed in our ‘Parent/Scholar Handbook’ and every student will be given a copy before
enroliment is complete. As part of the enrollment guidelines BA will collect a signed
Acknowledgement Form located in the back of every Parent/Scholar Handbook stating that
their signature indicates they have received and agree to abide by the Student Discipline
Policies and Procedures.

Students Rights and Responsibilities

As citizens and members of the school community, students have a right to an education and
basic security. Students have the right to choose how to behave and to know the consequences
that will follow.

Due Process

Students have a right to due process before their rights are restricted. The school mandates
that all students shall be treated fairly and honestly in resolving grievances, complaints, or in
the consideration of any disciplinary action, suspension or expulsion. Due process shall be
defined as fair and reasonable approaches to all areas of student grievances and discipline on
the part of all school officials in order not to arbitrarily deny a student the benefits the
instructional process.

If a student is determined to have violated the rules and regulations of the school to the extent
a suspension or expulsion is deemed necessary the student will receive alternate instruction
during the time of suspension equivalent to that provided to their peers.

Due Process for Students with Disabilities

If discipline which would constitute a change in placement is contemplated for any student with
a disability, the following steps shall be taken: (1) not later than the date on which the decision
to take such action is made, the parents of the student with an exceptionality shall be notified
of that decision and provided the procedural safeguards notice described in 34 CFR 300.504;
and {2) immediately, if possible, but in no case later than nine school days after the date on
which such decision is made, the ARD committee of the school and other qualified personnel
shall meet and review the relationship between the child’s disability and the behavior subject
to the disciplinary action.

If, upon review, it is determined that the child’s behavior was not a manifestation of his or her
disability, except as provided in 34 CFR 300.121 (d), which relates to the provision of services to
students with exceptionalities during periods of removal. Upon notice to the parents or
guardians and up to the date of review and determination of whether the behavior was a
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manifestation of his or her exceptionality, the child will receive alternative instruction
equivalent to the instruction provided to his or her peers.

Parents may request a hearing to challenge the manifestation determination. Except as
provided below, the child will remain in his or her current educational placement pending the
determination of the hearing.

If a parent requests a hearing or an appeal to challenge the interim alternative educational
setting or the manifestation determination resulting from a disciplinary action relating to
weapons or drugs, the child shall remain in the interim alternative educational setting pending
the decision of the hearing officer or until the expiration of the time period provided for in the
disciplinary action, whichever occurs first, unless the parent and the schoo! agree otherwise.

Appeal
The student or parent may appeal the decision of the director by following the school grievance

policy.

Leadership Pipeline

1. Describe the sponsoring entity’s current or planned process for sourcing and training potential
school leaders for campuses opening in subsequent years, regardless of location.

2, Explain how you have developed or plan to establish a pipeline of potential leaders. If known,
identify candidates already in the pipeline for future positions.

TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS 80X. iT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Leadership Pipeline

Human Resourcing is key to all performance and we understand our strength is built upon the
quality of the leaders, teachers and staff. Sourcing will be accomplished by screening potential
school leaders to verify technical and certification qualifications. Second, we will ensure they
have a mindset and attitude compatible with the culture and goals of BA. Third, we will observe
their competency in utilizing both technical ability and attitude to ensure potential leaders
personify the pedagogy and method of instruction required by our school design and culture.
Training will be accomplished through courseware, face to face, professional development and
over the shoulder mentoring to ensure BA’s culture and processes are learned through
demonstration. The key performance attributes will be included on leadership job descriptions
and performance evaluations. The performance evaluations will be a method of ensuring
cultural attributes are met, challenges are discussed, and follow on training is administered as
required.

Beta Academy’s academic focus on leadership extends to culture and staffing as well. The plan
to establish a pipeline of potential leaders begins with the vision and pedagogy of the school.
This vision is supported with goals and the goals are supported by actionable steps. This is the
heart of establishing a leadership pipeline culture because it ensures everyone in the
organization can understand the guiding principles behind organizational activities.

With the anticipated growth and expansion to three campuses, BA will intentionally and
deliberately establish culture and expectations to ensure a steady stream of internal leadership
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milestones. If performance improvement standards are not achieved, the teacher will be
dismissed. The leadership pipeline concept will be established not only for campus expansion
but also to help handle leadership/teacher turnover. In addition, Beta Academy will continually
maintain resumes and utilize promising candidates as substitute teachers to reduce the
transition impact.

Attachment 0.4: We have not developed personnel policies at this time.

Professional Development

Describe the school’s professional development expectations and opportunities, including the following:

1. Identify the person or position responsible far professional development,

2. Discuss the core components of professional development and how these components will support
effective implementation of the educational program. Discuss the extent to which professional
development will be conducted internally or externally and will be individualized or uniform.

3. Provide a schedule and explanation of professional development that will take place prior to school
opening. Explain what will be covered during this induction period and how teachers will be
prepared to deliver any unique or particularly challenging aspects of the curriculum and instructional
methods.

4. Describe the expected number of days/hours for professional development throughout the school
year, and explain how the school’s calendar, daily schedule, and staffing structure accommodate this
plan. Include time scheduled for common planning or colfaboration and how such time will typically

be used.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Professional Development
The sponsoring entity is responsible for establishing the professional development for the
CEO/Superintendent.

The CEO/Superintendent is responsible for establishing the professional development for the
teachers, staff and ensuring the HR Manager is tracking individual requirements and
completions.

The core components of professional development at BA are: Whole Brain Teaching, AVID
training, the culture and language of BA, Interactive Student Notebooks, hands-on learning,
training on joyful rigor, curriculum training, and staff schedules and responsibilities. Training for
these instructional methods and strategies is a vital part of the educational program because
they support BA’s vision and mission. Beta Academy teachers are expected to impiement these
methods daily and will be held accountable by their direct administrator. As we value highly
educated and performing teachers, we will take advantage of external training opportunities
when applicable. However, internal training that is specific to the unique vision and mission of
BA will be required.

Beta Academy believes that the majority of professional development should be individualized
so that improvement opportunities are addressed based on each teacher’s specific need(s} for
growth. In BA’s start-up year, most if not all of our professional development will be uniform. In
subsequent years, only newly hired staff will be required to take the mandatory training listed
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above. Returning staff will have more autonomy in their professional development choices, as
approved by the principal, to ensure areas needing improvement are being addressed.

During faculty in-service week, before the school year commences, professional development
will be from 8 a.m.-12 p.m., Monday-Friday. Teachers will be given the afternoon to work
independently in their classrooms. The following topics will be covered:

The Culture and Language of Beta Academy

Staff Schedules & Responsibllities

What is Joyful Rigor?

Curriculum Training

Overview of Whole Brain Teaching (this will be ongoing throughout the year)
American Red Cross training in Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation (CPR) and Automated
External Defibrillation (AED)

Owm s wN e

Beta Academy staff will be well prepared to overcome unforeseen challenges regarding
curriculum and instructional methods as they will receive both administrative and entity board
support. The key leadership team will remain present and accessible to ensure that a
collaborative professional development environment is created. When an environment of trust
and support is present, the staff will be comfortable bringing any unique challenges to their
colleagues and leaders for assistance.

Beta Academy will require 30 hours of professional development per teacher each school year.
Twenty of those mandatory training hours will be provided during the in-service week before
the school year commences. There will be two additional faculty in-services days when the
teachers will attend four additional training hours each of those days. The remaining two hours
of professional development will be completed at the teachers’ discretion throughout the
school! year.

Teachers that teach the same grade level will have common planning time. Elementary school
teachers, grades K-5, will have 50 minutes of planning time every day. Two to three times a
week they will meet during their planning to work collaboratively. Middle/High School teachers,
grades 6-12, will have 90 minutes of planning every other day due to block scheduling. They will
collaborate as a grade level, grouped by content area, for a portion of every planning time.
Common planning times will be used to share ideas and strategies, prepare for grade level
special events/activities, plan joyfully rigorous lessons that align with the TEKS, and
collaboratively problem solve.

During independent planning time, teachers will be given autonomy to complete numerous
tasks and responsibilities such as: preparing manipulatives, experiments, and learning activities,
making copies, organizing their classrooms, filing paperwork, connecting with parents,
communicating with faculty/staff, etc.
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Performance Management

The TEA will evaluate the perfoarmance of every charter school annuatly according to a set of academic,

financial, and organizational/governance performance standards that will be incorporated into the

charter agreement.

Applicants may propose to supplement the TEA performance standards with school-specific academic or

organizational goals.

1. Describe any mission-specific educational goals and targets that the school will have. State goals
clearly in terms of the measures or assessments you plan to use.

2. Describe any mission-specific organizational goals and targets that the school will have. State goals
ciearly in terms of the measures or assessments you plan to use.

3. Who will be responsible for managing the data, interpreting it for classroom teachers, and leading or
coordinating professional development to improve student achievement?

4. Explain the training and support that school leadership and teachers will receive in analyzing,
interpreting, and using performance data to improve student learning.

TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Beta Academy will not be utilizing school-specific academic or organizational goals in addition
to the TEA performance standards. While we will be utilizing the instructional methods and
measurements discussed in the Program Overview section, we will not be requesting evaluation
outside of the established rigorous TEA criteria.

Parent and Community Involvement

1. Describe what you have done to assess parent and community demand for your school.

2. Explain how you wili engage parents and community members from the time that the school is
approved through opening.

3. Describe the role, to date, of any parents and community members involved in developing the
proposed school.

4. Describe how you will engage parents in the life of the school {in addition to any proposed
governance roles described in Section 3 below). Explain the plan for building family-school
partnerships that strengthen support for learning and encourage parental involvement. Describe any
volunteer activities the school will offer to parents. {Charter Schools are public school and may not
require parents to volunteer.)

5. Discuss the community resources that will be available to students and parents. Describe any
partnerships the school will have with community organizations, businesses, or other educational
institutions. Specify the nature, purposes, terms, and scope of services of any such partnerships
including any fee-based or in-kind commitments from community organizations or individuals that
will enrich student learning opportunities. include, as Attachment 0.8 existing evidence of support
from intended community partners such as letters of intent/commitment, memoranda of
understanding, and/or contracts. Do not provide petitions, meeting sign-in sheets, or other materials that

viplate the Public Disclosure Policy mentioned previously,
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS 8OX. (T WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Parent and Community Involvement

Efforts to assess demand within BA’s target demographic included community surveys and
public hearings which reveal a significant interest from the surrounding community for a school
of choice within the public education system. Volunteer surveyors obtained parent signatures
affirming parental intent to enroll their scholars in BA. The surveys represent over 1,000 eligible
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children eager to attend BA. Our public hearing event, advertised in the Southbelt-Elington
Leader, had over 600 parents and community leaders asking for a school culture that expects
high scholastic standards and a character building learning environment.

As defined in the school culture, BA's visible and invisible school culture will reflect the
contribution of its entire learning community including its scholars, teachers, administrators,
and parents. Through collaboration, the administration, teachers, and parents will serve as
coaches who encourage scholars to become leaders. Beta Academy has an army of volunteers,
parents and community leaders as reflected by the public hearing meeting in which over 600
people attended and are waiting for the news of a charter award. To date, parents, and
community volunteers have been engaged in different aspects of bringing BA to their
community; from helping with surveys, public hearings, donations, pledges, building a
playground on the proposed first campus site, calling local government officials to set up
meetings for a board member to meet with them, soliciting support from local organizations
and businesses, etc.

The proposed Superintendent, Latisha Andrews worked with realtor Jan Saunders from Remax
Southwest (community supporter, previously serving on the sponsoring entity board) and
located a beautiful building that is perfectly suitable for a school. The facility has a large gym
and educational classrooms available with little to no modification needed. BA board members
contacted the owners and found they also have a heart for the PISD community and have
embraced the concept of opening a charter school at this location. The facility owners have
moved forward with the city and are completing the E-rated certificate of occupancy
requirements for a school. Beta Academy has obtained a Memorandum of Understanding
(MOU) pending charter approval. All this has been accomplished at no cost by networking with
likeminded supporters and community philanthropist desiring to address the needs of the
underserved scholars in our community.

In addition to the location selection, parents and volunteers have built a playground on the
proposed location in preparation for a charter school. Pledges of $204,000 have been made to
BA, play equipment and over 800 library books have also been donated. All this has been
accomplished by parent and community volunteers at 50.0 cost to Beta Academy.

Upon award of the charter, our Start-up Timeline in attachment 0.9 details the start-up plans
and identifies board members and supporters who will be immediately engaging the
community supporters and financial backers. We will mobilize our volunteers and begin
promoting BA in the community to begin preparation tasks for the first day of school and
beyond. Volunteers will be help in the distribution of mailers, brochures, and door-to-door
flyers. The neighborhood Walmart, a hub of local activity less than half a mile from the
proposed school campus, will allow us to staff information booths to connect with families that
BA will serve. The Southbelt Leader, a local south Houston newspaper, has also expressed their
excitement of a future BA and will work with us to obtain free notifications in the community
announcement section of charter information meetings and open-enroliment events. Multiple
apartment managers located across the street and behind the proposed campus are excited
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about the possibility of a school of choice conveniently located for their thousands of tenants
and have given our volunteers permission to go door-to-door with the exciting charter
information.

From the beginning, BA scholars will take personal responsibility for their own education and
parents will be encouraged to take an active role in their scholar’s daily academics. This
involvement will foster an understanding of the key role they play as coaches who fully support
the values, teachings, and the joy for learning. Beta Academy will encourage parental
involvement in all areas and events of the school: Parent Teacher Organization (PTO), AR
Events, Graduation coaches, classroom parent, cross-guard, seasonal events, field trips, and
Dads of Great Student’s {D.0.Gs}: a national program that engages Fathers, grandfathers, step-
fathers, uncles, and other father figures to volunteer and serve at a variety of school activities
and provide security through presence, portray a positive male role model, inspire children,
reduce bullying, and enhance the educational environment.).

Beta Academy understands that accessing zero/reduced cost services within our community
will enhance the academic experience of BA scholars. Volunteers seeking to establish a charter
school of choice have contacted government and city program leaders and business owners,
with like-minded goals of helping students succeed. Martha Smith and Hope King have led the
efforts to contact community resource programs and business leaders with a heart for the
children of this community to partner with them. Through their efforts Beta Academy has a
wealth of resources available to us such as:

HOUSTON DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES (HDHHS)

Programs we will join with HDHHS to provide resources and services to our students and the

community are:

e Project Saving Smiles: Targets 2" graders enrolled in the free or reduced lunch program.
Oral health problems, such as tooth decay and gingivitis, are common in children from low
income families. By partnering with HDHHS, BA can sponsor events where free dental
screenings, sealants, fluoride varnishes and oral health education is offered to our scholars,
their families, and the community by hosting annual/bi-annual events.

e Vision Partnership: A child’s emotional, neurological and physical development can be
affected by his or her poor vision. Beta Academy will partner with HDHHS to bring services
to children 6-18 who fail their prescreen vision test or have been identified by a school
representative. Students will receive tests for eye diseases, color blindness, depth
perception and eye muscle balance. Eyewear will be given to those identified as having a
vision problem.

e See to Succeed: Beta Academy will join HDHHS in their initiative to bring vision-related
health and education services to all underserved children in our community by holding an
annual See to Succeed event at our campus.

e HIP HOP for HIV: Beta Academy will partner with HDHHS to bring HIV screening and
AID/HIV awareness education to the students and youth of our community through
awareness events/campaigns annually.
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e Come Grow With Us: Beta Academy will promote, encourage and provide opportunity for
our students and families to join the community garden program so they can learn the
process of growing their own nutritious foods, windowsill gardening and the importance of
organic foods and herbs. Ongoing information will be available to the families of BA,

PASADENA AND HOUSTON PUBLIC LIBRARY

Pasadena Public Library: 1201 Jeff Ginn Memorial Dr., Pasadena, TX 77506
Pasadena Public Library: 4330 Fairmont Pkwy, Pasadena, TX 77504
Bracewell Neighborhood Library: 9002 Kingspoint Drive, Houston, TX 77089

Beta Academy has contacted these three libraries and received verbal support for a charter
school in the area. All three librarians agreed they would fove to work with our teachers to
organize events that will enhance the learning process of our scholars. The librarians will work
with our teachers to ensure AR reading books are available for BA scholars use. Library Reading
Day field trips and educational days may/can be organized for BA scholars as well. Upon charter
award our community liaison will contact them to establish a calendar of events, etc. that will
be held for our scholars.

Beta Academy teachers will promote and utilize all available children and adult
resource/services provided by the Houston and Pasadena Public Libraries. Scholars/families will
be encouraged to use the resources at home and during Library study events. Our teachers will
be informed of these free services for the fullest utilization in bringing quality resources to our
scholars. Resources BA will utilize are:

Online Children’s Services:

s Accelerated Reading (AR): The most popular and successful reading product of all time.
AR’s advanced technology helps make essential reading practice more effective for every
student, personalizes reading practice to each student’s current level and helps manage all
reading activities including read to, read with, and read independently to build a lifelong
love of reading and learning. Additionally, the program incorporates four types of quizzes:
Reading Practice, Vocabulary Practice, Literacy Skills, and Textbook Quizzes.

s Tutor.Com: Online homework help and tutoring service via the Internet to connect
students to tutors at anytime from anywhere.

e K-12 Tutor.com Learning Suite: This one-to-one learning solutions for students features
Live Homework Help, ProafPoint (writing and proofreading service), and Skills Center
Resource Library (library of worksheets, videos and sample problems to further a student's
subject comprehension).

¢ Training Robotics: Engages youth to take an interest in Science, Technology, Engineering
and Mechanics through the manipulation and construction of Lego Robots.

e Britannica Online for Kids: A search engine for information in encyclopedias, educational
magazines, videos, and Web sites,

» Encarta for Kids: Educational videos, games and other interactive research and learning
tools for a complete reference resource for students and families.
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¢ Facts on File Science Online: information on experiments, definitions, diagrams, and
timelines.

¢ HPL Mobile Express: Beta Academy is super excited to partner with HPL in bringing this
amazing resource to our campus. Upon charter award we will establish a calendar schedule
with them in order to bring this mobile computer-training lab to our scholars, families and
community. The Mobile Express will not only bring the above noted children’s library
resources, it will also bring technology and computer access to our high-need
neighborhood; providing literacy programs, workforce development training workshops and
many other needed media type resources for all such as:

> WeCAN {Wireless Empowered Community Access Network) -
igitalinclusion@cityofhouston.net. A digital literacy program which focuses on drop-out
prevention/GED recovery and job/workforce readiness. WeCan provides high-need
neighborhoods with affordable Internet access, local content, and opportunities to
receive training and equipment to ensure those at risk families benefit from the use of
technology.

» College Education Assistance and The C.O.R.E, (Careers, Opportunities, Resources and
Education): Workshops and educational opportunities for scholars and their families in
resume writing, applications and interview techniques.

HOUSTON POLICE DEPARTMENT

Beta Academy has established a partnership with the departments Administrative Lieutenant
and Community Liaison who, upon charter award will help us plan and schedule on an as need
on-going and annual basis safety and education events for our scholars, parents and
community. Proposed educational events include: Sexual Assault, drug abuse, bullying and
other juvenile related programs such as “Stranger Danger.” Beta Academy will also plan with
HPD education events for our parents on ID theft and Cyber Safety, Robbery and Crime
Prevention and many issues that can jeopardize the overall safety and well-being of our
scholars and community.

HOUSTON FIRE DEPT., STATION 18

In a letter of support from Capt. Hawthorne he states, “Their commitment to building strong
relationships between students, parents, ond school faculty ensures an environment of
excellence.” Beta Academy is happy to have the support of our local Fire department and will
work with Captain Hawthorne and other area Fire Stations to bring fire safety awareness to our
scholars, families, and community.

HOUSTON CHILD PROTECTIVE SERVICES {CPS)

This Resource External Relation Specialist has offered her expertise to BA and stated her
services can be “utilized by provision of written educational materials as well os focilitating
awareness programs for students, families, and faculty.”

The valuable educational services that Beta Academy will provide are readily embraced by
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many within the community who are eager to collaborate and synergize efforts to bring a
higher level of education to the families of PISD. These groups have been extremely supportive
and partnership plans/resource networking has been established with:

CARING FOR CHILDREN FOUNDATION OF TEXAS

Caring for Children Foundation of Texas has submitted to the Beta Academy board their letter
of support which states, “Their commitment to building strong relationships between students,
parents, and community and school faculty ensures an environment of healthy, educated
students.”

By partnering with this great organization, Beta Academy can bring free childhood
immunization services to our students and the underserved areas of PISD and Harris County
communities. Email correspondence, stated, “f hope our letter of support helps you to move
forword with your wonderful plan to open new charter schools. Good luck ond my blessings to
you. Let me know when you are ready for our Care Van services.”

NINOS CON DESABILIDADES! - KIDS WITH DISABILITIES FIRST!

Letters of support have been obtained and in conversations with Ms. Perez she has stated, “We
look forward to assisting you in educating parents in understanding their student’s disability.”
This great organization has offered to host two educational seminars a year for our parents and
teachers.

BAY AREA TUTORING & FAMILY COUNSELING

Dr. Callender is our resource for students with learning disabilities and needs across all
academic subjects, designs programs to meet the individual child's unique learning needs. On
her website Dr. Callender states, “'Turning Students Around' is a psychoeducation-mativotion
praogrom, developed as o positive treatment approach aimed at improving attitude, building
self-esteem and increasing mativation in academics and behavior,” Her programs assist
students with improved comprehension, structural analysis, phonetics, writing, and
mathematics.

In numerous conversations with Dr, Callender, she has continually reiterated the need for
higher education standards and school of choice options for the Houston Metropolitan area.
She has enthusiastically embraced Beta Academy’s vision and states, “she will assist us in any
way she can to bring a chorter school to PISD.”

Beta Academy is thrilled to have the backing of Dr. Callender. Her expertise in the following

areas will be of great benefit to the scholars, families, and faculty of Beta Academy:

e Dyslexia: Testing, Alpha Phonics, Multimodality Teaching, Orton/Gillingham techniques &
materials

e Vision Perception Therapy: Training to remediate visual perception weaknesses in: Body
image, concept, and schema, visual-motor coordination, figure ground perception,
perceptual constancy and position in space

e Auditory Perception Therapy: Listening skills, sustaining attention, learning to concentrate,
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improving memory

e Diagnostic Testing: Professional diagnosis of visual/auditory weaknesses with professionally
designed programs for the individual student
SAT Test Preparation

e Professional Testing-Other: Comprehensive Educational Assessment, Intellectual Testing,
WAIS, WISC IV, Slosson, WIPPSI, Gifted/Talented Testing, ADHD Testing

LEAGUE OF UNITED LATIN AMERICAN CITIZENS (LULAC)

LULAC Council 4967 Mission Statement

To advance the economic condition, educational attainment, political influence, housing, health
and civil rights of the Hispanic population of the Greater Houston Area

Beta Academy’s vision and mission is shared by LULAC through our common educational goal.
We both desire higher standards of education for the PISD community across all ethnicities and
backgrounds. By partnering with organizations like LULAC, “at risk” scholars who receive a BA
education will have those doors of opportunity opened to them for better economic conditions
and better health and housing, with equal opportunities. In a telephone conversation with
LULAC, they expressed deep concern for the high numbers of dropouts among the Hispanic
youth; stating, “We have to do more to reach this at risk population.” Beta Academy board
members strongly agree! Something MUST be done!

After sharing with LULAC BA’s commitment to offer an educational choice to a high risk
demographic area, which currently experiences above average dropout rates, they expressed a
willingness to forge a partnership so together we can reach a higher number of “at risk”
students/families. Future meetings with LULAC’s educational committee and BA board
members will be set upon charter award to begin planning, coordinating and working toward
our common goal of bringing a higher educational choice to PISD.

WELLS FARGO

Wells Fargo shares our vision to teach students how to become financially savvy. They have
expressed their support for establishing a charter school in the PISD community and their letter
of support states, “They have the right vision, the right heart, ond the right team ta be
successful.” Beta Academy is excited to partner with them in offering our students the
following:

e Financial Banking Curriculum http://handsonbanking.org/en/

e Hands on Banking program which provides the essentials of financial education, real-world
skills, and knowledge every student can use, including how to:

Identify "needs" vs. "wants"

Plan early for the future

Earn more money by learning more skills

Build their own budget to control their money

Become an entrepreneur by starting their own business venture

Control spending with a spending plan
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¢ Build credit wisely and avoid debt
¢ [nvest in higher education and find the money to pay for it
e Kids Savings Day: They will cater this program to meet Beta Academy scholar’s needs.

SCOUTING

Boy Scouts of America and the Girl Scout programs are premier leadership organizations for all
boys and girls in K-12 grades. Their programs give participants exposure to science and
technology, business and economic literacy, visual arts, and outdoor and environmental
awareness. Scouting teaches self-reliance, strength of purpose and conviction of character. The
scouting environment encourages youth to connect with others and take action to make the
world a better place. Beta Academy has received enthusiastic support from both organizations
and will partner with them to bring a vibrant scouting experience to our students and
community.

SCRABBLE CLUB #511

A retired PISD Special Education teacher has offered to establish a junior league scrabble club
for Beta Academy scholars. Her own unique way of learning the phonetics of words for proper
spelling will be an added benefit to our scholars’ vocabulary and language arts learning. She
will motivate our students to love words through the fun of pfaying scrabble. She has provided
us with the information to acquire the necessary equipment for the National Scrabble
Assaciation program and stated in her email, “f ook forward to warking with you and the
students in establishing a successful scrabble club for Beta Academy.”

HOUSTON HOBBY AIRPORT LIONS CLUB (HHALC)

With the support of HHALC scholarships, BA students with physical disabilities and/or diabetes
will be afforded the opportunity to attend Texas Lions Summer Camp programs. Latisha
Andrews, CEQ has spoken at their monthly club meetings on two occasions and shared the
vision for Beta Academy. She has received over-whelming support for a charter school.

SAN JACINTO COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Central Campus: Billy Smith, Administrator

South Campus: Quiana Brown, Director — Dual Enroliment

We have spoken with Ms. Smith and a Memorandum of Understanding with SICC South
Campus and Beta Academy will be initiated upon charter award. As a dual credit campus, Beta
Academy will offer our scholars the option to earn college credits in many of their courses.

LETTERS OF SUPPORT RECEIVED: - Attachment 0.8

Start-Up & Ongoing Operations
1. Provide, as Attachment 0.9, a detailed start-up plan for the school, specifying tasks, timelines, and
responsible individuals. This plan should align with the start-up budget in the Financial Plan

Workbook.
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Operational Staff Capacity

1. Identify the key members of the school's operational leadership team. identify only individuals who
will play a substantial and ongoing role in school development, governance, operations. and/or
management, and will thus share responsibility for the school’s operational success. These may
include current or proposed governing board members, the school leadership/management team,
and any essential partners. Describe the team’s individual and collective qualifications for
implementing the Operations Plan successfully, including capacity in areas such as the following:

Staffing;

Parent and community engagement;

Professional development;

Performance management;

PEIMS management; and

f. General operations.

2. ldentify the superintendent and explain why this individual is well-qualified to lead the proposed
charter school in achieving its mission. Summarize the proposed leader’s academic and
organizational leadership record. Provide specific evidence that demonstrates capacity to design,
launch, and manage a high-performing charter school. If the proposed leader has never run a school,
describe any leadership training programs that (s)he has completed or is currently participating in.
Discuss the evidence of the leader’s ability to effectively serve the anticipated population. Also
provide, as Attachment 0.10, the gualifications, resume/curriculum vitae, and professional

biography for this individual.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Ppan oo

Operational Staff Capacity
Leadership Team’s Individual Qualifications
The Beta Foundation President: Teresa Sones
s Entrepreneur, Co-founder, and President of Gateway Supply, an international supply
company with annual revenue over $4 Million
Master in Behavioral Science (Concentration in School Psychology)
37 year educator with expertise in Middle and High School education
Received multiple educational achievement recognitions
Public and private school administration
Over 30 years volunteer tutoring to disadvantaged and at risk children in community

The Beta Foundation Vice President and Treasurer: Timothy Wayne King

» Entrepreneur, Co-founder, and President of Tubular Resource Inc., an international
company with annual revenue over $1.3 Million
Selected for a Honorary Doctorate in medicine for his efforts in cancer research

e Philanthropist with both time and financial support of multiple efforts which include:
> Board Member for Reach Out America: International emergency relief organization
> Board Member for Ima’s Home Orphanage Philippines
> Financial Supporter of 4 H Pasadena Rodeo

e Over 30 years providing support and volunteer time in community

The Beta Foundation Board Member; Helen Abernathy
e Master’s in Education: Teaching English To Speakers of Other Languages (TESOL) with
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accomplished educator with hands-on experience in working with at risk scholars and a depth
of knowledge in public and private school administration. Together, this team brings a vast
knowledge of school operations to include PEIMS management and the professional
development reguired to staff, manage, operate, and lead a charter school intentionally
designed to reach the at risk community in the proposed geographical area.

WHEN YOU HAVE FINISHED, LEAVE THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE BLANK.
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Section Three - Governance Plan

Legal Status and Governing Documents
1. Describe the sponsoring entity’s legal status, including the type of entity and corporate
qualifications, if applicable. Submit any governing documents beyond those provided with the

Eligibility Documentation which are already adopted, such as board policies, in Attachment G.1.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Section Three — Governance Plan

Legal Status and Governing Documents

The Beta Foundation, founded August 5, 2011, has been granted by the Internal Revenue
Service the following status:

501 (c) (3) public charity status 170 (b) (1} (A) (ii)

Effective August 15, 2011

Attachment G.1: We have not developed board policies at this time.

Organization Charts

Submit, as Attachment G.2, organization charts that show the school governance, management, and
staffing structure in: a) year one and b) at capacity. The organization charts should clearly delineate the
roles and responsibilities of — and lines of authority and reporting among — the governing board, staff,
any related bodies (such as advisory bodies or parent/teacher councils), and any external organizations
that will play a role in managing the school. The organization charts should also document clear lines of
authority and repprting within the school.

Governing Board
1. Describe the governance structure of the proposed school, including the primary roles of the
governing board and how it will interact with the principal/head of school and any advisory bodies.
2. Describe the size, current and desired composition, powers, and duties of the governing board.
Identify key skills, areas of expertise, and constituencies that will be represented on the governing
board.
3. Explain how this governance structure and composition will help ensure that:
a. the school will be an educational success and that annual school and student performance will be
reported to students, parents, and the community;
b. the school will be an operational success, including complying with all required reporting,
including attendance, PEIMS, governance, and grant reporting;
¢. the board will evaluate the success of the school and school leader; and
d. there will be active and effective representation of key stakeholders.
4. If the current applicant team does not include the initial governing board, explain how and when the
transition to the governing board will take place.
5. If this application is being submitted by an existing non-profit organization whose sole purpose is
not the oversight of the charter school, respond to the following:
a. Will the existing non-profit's board govern the new school/campuses, or has the school formed a
new non-profit corporation governed by a separate board?
b. if the non-profit’s current board will govern the charter school/campuses, what steps have been
taken to transform its board membership, mission, and bylaws to assume its new duties?
Describe the plan and timeline for completing the transition and orienting the board to its new

duties.
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Principals will control campus budgets that will include items such as office supplies, copies,
field trips, purchasing incentive awards, STAAR testing materials, and limited discretionary fund
for campus needs. They will interact directly with the board during professional development
training, the boards on site visits, and during the board’s guest reading appearances for school
wide reading month and/or Dr. Seuss day.

The Beta Foundation is currently comprised of four board members. As Beta Academy grows,
the governing entity will actively seek to augment board composition to include an Attorney,
CPA, and Health Care Professional. In addition to establishing policy, procedures, and oversight,
the board’s current areas of expertise and duties are as follows:

Teresa Sones, President

A 37 year educator, with both classroom and public/private school administration experience,
she has additional expertise in entrepreneurship business startup. Teresa serves as President of
Gateway Supply, {an international supply company with annual revenue over $4 Million). With
a Master in Behavioral Science {Concentration in School Psychology), Teresa will be directly
involved with curriculum selection, classroom methods, special education, and establishing
Beta Academy culture.

Timothy Wayne King, Vice-President/Treasurer

Tim provides networking opportunities with both international and community resources, local
business/political contacts, and strong expertise in fiduciary management. Tim will be directly
involved in networking with community resources and ensuring sound, prudent financial
practices.

Justin James, Secretary

Currently completing his Masters in Educational Leadership, Justin has a passion for academic
rigor. In his first year of teaching Justin was awarded the “2013 Rookie of the Year” for Hudson
Middle School. In his second year of teaching Justin was awarded “2014 Teacher of the Year”
for Hudson Middle School and also “2014 Teacher of the Year” for Sachse Chamber of
Commerce. In his third year of teaching, Justin is the AVID Lead, responsible for implementing
the program into Hudson Middle School, Garland ISD. A top performing teacher, he is just as
impressive with efforts to make a difference outside of the classroom with a lengthy array of
community volunteer efforts. This likeminded individual was drawn to Beta Academy’s
educational philosophy and vision and will be involved with implementing AVID, curricuium
selection, and establishing Beta Academy culture.

Helen Abernathy, Director

Helen brings an educational background and hands-on experience in ESL instructional methods.
Her expertise in ESL is complimented by both her teaching experience in Botswana, Africa and
her background in writing/editing international literature curriculum. Helen brings a high level
of ESL proficiency to an educational need that will impact the majority of Beta Academy’s
targeted demographic. She will also be directly engaged in curriculum selection, classroom
methods, special education, and establishing Beta Academy culture.
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The school will be an educational success by:

e Establishing professional development and academic goals that support the mission and
vision of Beta Academy

e Monitoring the academic performance and achievement of the scholars
Evaluating and analyzing the results of benchmark testing, STAAR and other assessment
tools

e Providing corrective action as required by addressing academic deficiencies discovered in
the testing analysis

e Performing quality checks by visiting and observing BA classrooms and the school
environment

One of The Beta Foundation’s guiding principles is parental partnerships. Therefore, scholar

performance feedback is vital to both the culture and success of BA’s academic program.

Reporting scholar performance will be an ongoing dialog throughout the school year. The

governing board will ensure annual school and scholar performance is reported to scholars,

parents, and the community through a variety of methods including:

¢ Nine week comprehensive grade reports to parents on the scholar’s academic progress

e Parent/guardian can monitor, via on-line access software, scholars’ academic progress

¢ Under our guiding principle of strong parental partnerships, teachers will communicate
frequently with parents, either in person or by phone, to share information personally
about the progress of their scholar

e The general public will be informed of school and scholar performance through school open
house venues, school website, annual TEA required reports, and the TEA website

The governing board will ensure Beta Academy is an operational success through a high

standard of compliance with required reporting:

e Attendance/PEIMS: The PEIMS Coordinator will be required to attend professional
workshops, training, and seminars for attendance tracking, grade reporting, transcripts, and
admission procedures. The governing board will utilize professional development training
programs, seminars, confarences, and on-line training from Region 4 Education Service
Center and TEA for PEIMS Coordinator and school attendance staff training.

* Governance: The Beta Foundation Secretary will ensure all required State, Federal and TEA
governance forms and reports are complete, accurate, and submitted in accordance with
applicable governance guidelines on or before the required due date.

s Grant Reporting: In alignment with TEA reporting requirements all grants received wili be
spent with an unprecedented level of transparency and accountability. The Vice-
Chair/Treasurer will take responsibility for quarterly grant reporting. The grant funds will be
accounted for separately from the school’s revenue.

The governing structure is designed so that the key stakeholders are actively involved in all vital
decision-making. Because the key stakeholders are locally based and community minded they
will be a visible presence at Beta Academy. They will have an active role in visiting, observing
and analyzing the governing aspects of the school such as: curriculum selection and
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school.

We will comply with all Texas Open Meeting Acts {TOMA) in regards to board meeting
frequency, notices, announcements, minutes, member selections/recruitment, etc. At this time
there are no plans for committee’s but as Beta Academy grows we will assess the need for
them and how best to structure them to the fullest benefit to the board and BA. In accordance
with our bylaws, Sect. 5.01, the Chairman of the board or the board can establish designated
committees to further board objectives.

Board members have a duty to disclose any conflict of interest or other ethical issues that
would jeopardize The Beta Foundation’s entity or the BA charter school. Either the board
member themselves, another member of the board or even a concerned employee of Beta
Academy or community member may bring it to the attention of the governing board by
presenting it at a meeting of the board. The governing board will address the concern;
determining if there is or is not one with appropriate action taken to dismiss the concern or
removal of the board member in question. Qur Conflict of Interest Policy is attached in G.3
along with a proposed Code of Conduct for board members.

The board will be diligent in their screening of potential board candidates to ensure there are
no conflicts of interest and it will be the responsibility of each board member to be careful in
entering into any business relationship that could be a conflict of interest. The Beta Foundation
takes this very serious! At this time we feel confident that there are no conflicts of interest
regarding our current board of directors and their relationship with Beta Academy open-
enrollment charter school.

The governing board will be expanded as Beta Academy grows and board over-
sight/responsibilities increase. The Beta Foundation Board of Directors continually networks
and seeks potential board members. Election of additional board members will be done in
concert with the campus growth plan established and discussed in section 2 of the charter
application. Vacancies will be filled in accordance with The Beta Foundation By Law 3.05; the
Chairman of the Board will appoint Directors to fill vacancies. It is the board’s intention to
expand the Board of Directors to include an Attorney, CPA, and Health Care professional.
Although it is unpredictable how and when a board member will encounter like-minded people
that align with the vision and mission of Beta Academy, we are confident there are
philanthropic citizens looking for an opportunity to invest in their community and the future of
our youngest citizens and thus, be willing to become an active leader on the Board of Directors.

The governing board will be diligent in board member training. Compliance with Section 12.123
of the Texas Education Code (TAC) and Texas Charter Schools Association (TCSA)} training
requirements will be maintained. All board members will complete the applicable required
twelve {12} training hours within their first year of board service and the required six (6)
training hours in their second and subsequent years, as outlined in part (d) of 19 TAC §100.1102
through 100-1105. A calendar schedule of training for the governing board will be developed
upon charter award and TEA published training dates. All training will be with a TEA registered
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resolution for all individual(s) and will be overseen by the HR Manager to ensure all steps are
clearly followed and protocol is adhered to.

Should scholars and/or parents have a concern/grievance they may seek resolution by following
the below stated procedural resolution steps set forth in the Scholar/Parent Handbook.

Resolution Steps:

Step 1-Teacher: Scholar/parent may present concern/grievance to classroom teacher. Should
the issue not be resolved after meeting with the teacher they may take the next appropriate
action (Step 2).

NOTE: The parent should inform the teacher the matter is being taken to the Assistant
Principal and scholars must have written permission from parents to take the matter further.

Step 2 —Assistant Principal: Bring the concern/grievance to the Assistant Principal. If no
resolution is reached they may take the next appropriate action {Step 3).

Step 3- Principal: Bring the concern/grievance may to the Principal. If no resolution is reached
they may take the next appropriate action (Step 4).

Step 4- Superintendent: If resolution is not reached with the Superintendent, a formal hearing
with The Beta Foundation board may be requested. The Superintendent must pass the request
to the Board of Directors.

For a concern/grievance regarding the general operation of Beta Academy {outside the
operation of the classroom}, the concerned party should follow Steps 2-5 above.

For a concern/grievance regarding school policies or decisions among the Beta Academy Staff,
the concerned party should follow Steps 2-5 above.

The goal of Beta Academy’s Grievance Policies/Procedures is to arrive at an equitable and
timely resolution for concerns/grievances as overseen by the HR manager. The above
procedures are intended to be used only when matters cannot be resolved informally. Any
party with a grievance should exhaust all informal means of resolution before taking the matter

further.

WHEN YOU HAVE FINISHED, LEAVE THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE BLANK.

Beta Academy 82 of 369







gymnasium, kitchen facilities, and securable administrative office spaces.

Latisha Andrews contacted the owners and found they too are community minded and
embraced the concept of opening a charter school at their location. The facility owners have
already moved forward with the city to obtain E rated certificate of occupancy in accordance
with school requirements. Beta Academy has obtained a Memorandum of Understanding
{MOU) — Facilities Use Agreement pending charter approval. All this has been accomplished at
no cost by networking with likeminded supporters and community philanthropist desiring to
address the needs of the underserved scholars in the PISD community.

Location: 9701 Almeda Genoa Rd, Pasadena TX, 77075 is the identified location for campus
one. The locations for the additional two campuses are TBD.

Size: 30,000 square feet currently available with more room for expansion in the primary
structure. There are also twenty classrooms that can be made available with plenty of property
and appropriate city zoning to add modular classrooms as required for future growth.
Common areas and amenities: Cafeteria, gym, fenced baseball diamond, large shaded grounds
suitable for play equipment, security entrance in primary structure, handicapped restroom
facilities, showers, and circle drive with covered awning for scholar pickup/drop off.
Anticipated number of classrooms: 20 classrooms at capacity

Approx. square footage per classroom: 500 to 713 sq. ft.

Anticipated Specialty Classroom Needs

s 2 Computer labs accommodating 25 scholars, Amenities are computers, internet, and
supporting IT hardware.

e 1 Art room accommodating 25 scholars. Amenities are art tables, deep sink, and running
water for cleanup.

e 1 Special Ed room accommodating 3 to 5 scholars. Amenities include specialized
instructional material only.

* 1 Speech room accommodating 3 to 5 scholars. Amenities include specialized instructional
material only.

Anticipated Administrative/Support Space Needs

e Main Office Area: Registrar, Office admin (1lea)

e PEIMS and Testing Coordinator Office (1ea)

CEO/Superintendent Office (Also serving as Principal year one) (1ea)
CFO/ Business Mgr Office (1ea)

Human Resource Mgr (1ea)

Assistant Principal Office (1ea)

Copy room (1 ea)

Teacher workroom/ Supply room (1ea)

Small supply room for IT and facility management (1ea}
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Currently Available

e Gymnasium {arge enough to accommodate 60 to 70 scholars. Amenities include four
basketball hoops, two volley ball courts, performance stage, and space for a myriad of
physical education activities. Also includes restroom and showers.

® Grounds include fenced softball field. Grounds large enough to accommodate a
multipurpose sports field for flag football, soccer, baseball, track, etc.

* Elementary age appropriate playground (materials and equip donated, volunteers built in
anticipation of charter award)

Facility has large shaded grounds which will accommodate required playground. The gym will
provide the common space required for school and parent assemblies.

Financial Plan

1. Describe the systems, policies, and processes the schoo! will use for financial planning, accounting,
purchasing, and payroll, including a description of how it will establish and maintain strong internal
controls and ensure compliance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and all
financial reporting requirements.

2. Describe the roles and responsibilities of the school’s administration and governing board for school
finances and distinguish between each.

3. Describe the school’s plans and procedures for conducting an annual audit of the financial and
administrative operations of the school.

4. Describe how the school will ensure financial transparency to the TEA and the public, including its
plans for public adoption of its budget and public dissemination of its annual audit and annual
financial report on its website.

5. Describe any business services to be outsourced, such as payroll and auditing services, including the

anticipated costs and criteria for selecting such services,
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Financial Plan

Financial planning is based on the Average Daily Attendance (ADA) of the school’s scholars.
Beta Academy will begin aggressively soliciting for students in Dec 2014 to get a solid
attendance estimate before hiring teachers in fun/jul 2015. This will also enable us to
appropriately scale our startup costs such as computer labs, classroom space, furniture, etc. on
realistic cash flow expectations.

The annual budget(s) will be prepared by the CEQ/Superintendent in conjunction with the
principal of each campus detailing all sources of revenue and expenses. The Beta Foundation
board will approve the operating budget and have full fiscal responsibility for ensuring
adherence. The CEQ/Superintendent is responsible for all capital expenditures and staffing
levels consistent with ADA ratios and revenue. Principals will control campus budgets that will
include items such as office supplies, copies, field trips, purchasing incentive awards, STAAR
testing materials, and limited discretionary fund for campus needs. The CFO/Business Manager
will disseminate annual budgets, perform full financial tracking with emphasis on monthly cash
flow to budget reconciliation, risk analysis, and provide monthly audit ready expenditure
reporting. The Beta Foundation will utilize a payroll and PEIMS compliant service for back office
support. The governing board has fuli responsibility of ensuring compliance with GAAP.
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The role of the governing board is to provide auditable fiduciary oversight compliant with
GAAP.

The role of the CEQ/Superintendent is to establish financially prudent budgets, manage capital
expenditures, and ensure staffing is performed in accordance with ADA ratios and revenue.

The role of the CFO/Business Manager is to exercise the due diligence and attention to detaii to
provide full financial tracking with emphasis on monthly cash flow to budget reconciliation, risk
analysis, monthly audit ready expenditure reporting, and GAAP adherence.

The fiscal year of Beta Academy is Sep 1 to Aug 31. Utilizing the services of a certified audit firm,
we will submit an electronic PDF copy of the audit within 150 days {Jan 28) through a TEASE
Audit account in accordance with FASRG §7.3.6.1 - Data Collection & Reporting module and
Nonprofit Charter School Suppiement.

Financial transparency will be maintained establishing concise and transparent lines of
accounting in keeping with the TEA Financial Accountability System Resource Guide {FASRG)
and ensure all expenditures are clearly traceable to appropriate TEA account codes. Beta
Academy will aiso electronically submit the annual audit report to the TEA and paosting on the
schools website. Beta Academy will be compliant with TEC §39.084, which requires charter
schools to post on the school’s Internet website a copy of the budget adopted by the board of
trustees. The website is required to prominently display an electronic link to the adopted
budget. The statute requires the adopted budget to remain on the website until the third
anniversary of the date the budget was adopted.

CPA Auditing Service: Beta Academy will retain the services of a certified auditing firm with
specialization in Texas Charter School audits and submission requirements. Estimated cost in
Financial Plan Worksheet year one is $10,000.

Financial accounting: Beta Academy will use an integrated application service/software
program which covers all aspects of financial PEIMS reporting, data management, and provide

back shop payroll services. Estimated cost in Financial Plan Worksheet year one is $136,000.

Payroll service: Estimated cost in Financial Plan Worksheet year one is $13,000.

6. Provide, as Attachment F.2, the following documents for the sponsoring entity:
a. For organizations in existence for one or more years: a copy of the most recent ungqualified audit

report.
~OR—

For organizations less than one year old: If an audit report is not available, provide an unaudited
financial report that includes a statement of financial positions, a statement of activity, and a
cash flow statement (inception to date).

b. A credit report of the sponsoring entity.

c. The sponsoring entity’s most recently filed {IRS) Form 990, Form 990-N, or Form 990-EZ.
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7. Provide the completed Financial Plan Workbook as Attachment F.3, in developing your budget. It is
important to budget conservatively and to consider that charter schools often have lower than
anticipated attendance rates in the first five years of operation. Therefore, a reasonable planning
estimate of $5,381 per student, which accounts for a daily attendance rate of 80%, should be used
when planning and developing the budget.

8. As Attachment F.4, present a detailed budget narrative which includes description of assumptions
and revenue estimates, including, but not limited to, the basis and calculations for revenue
projections, staffing levels, and expenditures. The narrative response should specifically address the
degree to which the school/campus budget will rely on variable income (e.g., grants, donations,
fundraising}. Also include in Attachment F.4 any commitments of financial support/pledge letters
from parents or other sources.

a. Indicate the amount and sources of funds, property or other resources expected to be availahle
through banks, lending institutions, corporations, foundations, grants, etc. Note which are
secured and which are anticipated, and include evidence of commitment for any funds {e.g. grant
award letters, LOIs, or foan agreements). Explain the basis for assumptions around
unsecured/anticipated funding sources.

b. Discuss the school's contingency plan to meet financial needs if anticipated revenues are not
received or are lower than estimated.

c. Provide a detailed year one cash flow contingency, in the event that revenue projections are not
met in advance of opening.

Business Management Capacity
1. ldentify the key members of the school’s business leadership team. Identify only individuals who will
play a substantial and ongoing role in school/campus development, governance, and/or
management, and will thus share responsibility for the school’s financial success. These may include
current or proposed governing board members, the school leadership/management team, and any
essential partners who will play an important ongoing role in the school’s development and
operation. Describe the team’s individual and collective qualifications for implementing the Business
Plan successfully, including capacity in areas such as the following:
a. Financial management;
b. Fundraising and development; and
c. Accounting and internal controls.
2. Describe the sponsoring entities’ capacity and experience in facilities acquisition and management,

including managing build-out and/or renovations, as applicable.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Business Management Capacity
Operational Leadership Team’s Individual Qualifications

The Beta Foundation President: Teresa Sones

e Entrepreneur, Co-founder, and President of Gateway Supply, an international supply
company with annual revenue over 54 Million

s Public and private school administration

The Beta Foundation Vice President and Treasurer: Timothy Wayne King

e Entrepreneur, Co-founder, and President of Tubular Resource Inc., an international
company with annual revenue over $1.3 Million

o Philanthropist with both time and financial support of multiple efforts which include:
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Legal Relationships

1

Provide evidence that the board is independent from the CMO and self-governing, including evidence
of independent legal representation and arm’s-length negotiating.

Describe any existing or potential conflicts of interest between the school’s governing board,
proposed school employees, the CMO, and any affiliated business entities.

List al! subsidiaries or related entities that are affiliated or owned in whole or in part by the CMO, and
identify the nature of those entities’ business activities.

Explain whether the school has or will have any relationship with or receive any services from any of
the entities listed in the previous question.

Explain the supervisory responsibilities of the CMO (if any}, including which school employees the
CMO will supervise, how the CMO will supervise these employees, and how the governing board will
oversee the CMO’s supervisory responsibilities. Additionally, explain how these employees will be
reported in PEIMS,

If the school’s governing board intends to enter into a lease with the CMO or any of its affiliates,
provide evidence that such agreements are separately documented and not part of or incorporated
in the school management contract. Any facility agreements must be consistent with Texas state
statutes and the school governing board’s authority and practical ability to terminate the
management agreement and continue operation of the school.

Not Applicable. We did not use a charter management organization.

Organizational Structure
1. Provide a detailed description of the roles and responsibilities of the CMO.

2.
3.

Describe the scope of services and costs of ali rescurces to be provided by the CMO.

Describe the oversight and evaluation methods that the governing board will use to oversee the
CMO. What are the school-wide and student achievement results that the CMO must achieve? How
often, and in what ways, will the board review and evaluate the CMO’s progress toward achieving
agreed-upon goals? Will there be an external evaluator to assess the CMO’s performance? What are
the conditions, standards, and procedures for board intervention, if performance is deemed
unsatisfactory?

Describe the compensation structure and payment schedule, including clear identification of all fees,
bonuses, and any other compensation to be paid to the CMO.

. Describe the respective financial responsibilities of the governing board and the CMO. Which

operating and capital expenditures will each party be responsible for? What types of spending
decisions can the management organization make without obtaining board approval? What reports
must the CMO submit to the board on financial performance, and on what schedule? How will the
school governing board provide financial oversight?

What is the term of the management agreement? Explain the conditions and procedures {including
time frames, notice, and decision-making procedures) for renewal and termination of the contract.
How often will the management agreement be renewed? Describe the conditions that both the CMO
and the school must satisfy for the management agreement to be renewed. On what grounds may
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b. Year 3 arganization as a whole

c. Year 5 organization as a whole
The erganization charts should clearly delineate the roles and responsibilities of ~ and lines of
authority and reporting among — the governing board(s), staff, any related bodies (such as advisory
bodies or parent/teacher councils), and the CMO.

3. Explain how the relationship between the governing board, CMO, and school administration will be

managed. Clearly delineate the roles and responsibilities of — and lines of authority and reporting
among — the governing board(s), staff, any related bodies (such as advisory bodies or parent/teacher

councils), and any external organizations that will play a role in managing the schools.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Not Applicable. We did not use a charter management organization.

Leadership Pipeline

1. Describe the CMO’s current or planned process for sourcing and training potential school leaders for
schools apening in subsequent years, regardless of location, if applicable.

2. Explain how you have developed or plan to establish a pipeline of potential leaders. If known,

identify candidates already in the pipeline for future positions.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Not Applicable. We did not use a charter management organization.

Campus Staff Structure
1. Explain how the relationship between the school leadership team and the rest of the staff will be
managed. Note the teacher-student ratio, as well as the ratio of tota! adults to students for a

“typical” campus.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Not Applicable. We did not use a charter management organization.

Performance Management

1. Describe the CMQ’s approach to academic underperformance for schools that fall short of student
academic achievement expectations or goals at the school-wide, classroom, or individual student
level.

2. Describe the CMO's process for monitoring performance of the portfolio as a whole. What actions
will you take if the organization in Texas, or as a whole, fails to meet goals? Discuss how the
organization assesses its readiness to grow and under what circumstances the organization will

delay or modify its growth plan.
TYPE YOUR RESPONSE IN THIS BOX. IT WILL EXPAND AS NEEDED.

Not Applicable. We did not use a charter management organization.

Performance Evaluation Information

1. Explain any performance deficiencies or compliance violations that have led to formal authorizer
intervention with any school in which services were provided by the CMO in the last five years, and
explain how such deficiencies or violations were resalved.
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Beta Academy Geographical Boundary

The proposed location for the first Beta Academy campus is within the Pasadena independent
School District (PISD), with future sites to fall within the geographic boundary defined by a
sixty-mile radius of downtown Houston. The founding board selected this geographical area
because of limited school choice options and the high population of students at risk for school

failure and high school dropout.

Traditional Districts:

Aldine ISD

Alvin ISD

Angleton ISD
Brazosport ISD

Clear Creek ISD
Columbia-Brazoria ISD
Cypress-Fairbanks ISD
Danbury ISD

Deer Park ISD
Dickinson ISD

Fort Ben [SD

Galena Park ISD
Goose Creek CISD
Harris County Dept of Ed
Hitchcock ISD
Huffman ISD

Katy ISD

La Marque ISD

Lamar CISD

Needuville ISD
Pasadena ISD

Royal ISD

Sheldon ISD

Spring ISD

Sweeny ISD

Texas City ISD

Waller ISD

Charter Districts:
Academy of Accelerated Learning Inc

Alief Montessori Community School
Ambassadors Preparatory Academy

Alief ISD
Anahuac ISD
Barbers Hill ISD
Channelview ISD
Cleveland ISD
Crosby ISD
Damon ISD
Dayton ISD
Devers ISD

East Chambers ISD
Friendswood I1SD
Galveston ISD
Hardin ISD
Hempstead I1SD
Houston ISD
Humble ISD
Klein ISD

La Porte ISD
Liberty ISD

New Caney ISD
Pearland I1SD
Santa Fe ISD
Spring Branch I1SD
Stafford MSD
Tarkington ISD
Tomball ISD

Accelerated Intermediate Academy
Alphonso Crutch's-Life Support Center
Aristoi Classical Academy

Amigos Por Vida-Friends for Life Pub Charter School
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Arrow Academy

Beatrice Mayes Institute Charter School
Calvin Nelms Charter Schools

Children First Academy — Houston

Ed White Memorial High School

Excel Academy

George | Sanchez Charter

Global Learning Village

Harmony School of Science — Houston
Houston Alternative Preparatory Charter
Houston Heights High School

Ischool High at Univ Park

Joshua's Learning Land

Kipp Inc Charter

Koinonia Community Learning Academy
Mainland Preparatory Academy

Meyer Park Elementary

Odyssey Academy Inc

Promise Community School

Responsive Education Solutions

Richard Milburn Academy (Suburban Houston)

Stepping Stones Charter Elem

Texas Serenity Academy

The Rhodes School

Two Dimensions Preparatory Academy
Victory Prep

Yes Prep Public Schools Inc

Bay Area Charter Inc

CORE Academy

Comaquest Academy

Draw Academy

Evolution Academy

Fallbrook College Preparatory Academy
Girls & Boys Preparatory Academy
Harmony School of Excellence
Harmony Science Academy

Houston Gateway Academy Inc
Houston Heights Learning Academy Inc
Jamie's House Charter School

Juan B Galaviz Charter School

Kipp Southeast Houston

La Amistad Love & Learning Academy
Medical Center Charter School
Northwest Preparatory

Premier Learning Academy

Raul Yzaguirre School for Success
Ser-Ninos Charter School

Southwest School

Texans Can Academies

The Pro-Vision Academy

The Varnett Public School

University of Houston Charter School
Walipp-Tsu Preparatory Academy
Zoe Learning Academy
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6. Describe any previous experience you have that is refevant to serving on the charter school’s board
(e.g. other board service). If you have not had previous experience of this nature, explain why you
have the capability to be an effective board member.

I have previously served as a board member for an arphanage for street children in the
Philippines {Ima’s Home for Children) during its first year of incorporation. Besides being
involved as a board member of Ima’s Home for Children, | partnered with two individuals in
founding and operating an international procurement and logistics company just before |
retired from school administration at Life Christian Academy, where | served as a teacher’s aide
while attending college, as a classroom teacher after | completed my undergraduate degrees,
and as the school principal and director after earning a master’'s degree. Each of these
expeliences required either participating on a board or working with a board to achieve the
organization’s goals in a professional and fiscally responsible manner.

7. Describe the specific knowledge and experience that you would bring to the board.

As a former teacher and school principal,  understand the value of, and have experience
maintaining, trust-based relationships among board members, teachers and schoot
administrators, parents, students and community members. | am experienced in the processes
of vetting, hiring, conducting performance reviews, coaching, consulting with, and
appropriately dismissing personnel. | have practical experience developing and implementing
business plans and budgets. Mentoring, developing leaders and resolving conflict are skills |
have studied, practiced and taught. | have participated in marketing activities for a private
school as well as for a new business, | bring a iong- demonstrated love for children and young
peopie and a passion for their academic success and ultimate preparation to be respected,
contributing citizens of their communities and our world, both of which have guided my
personal and professional efforts for most of my life.

School Mission and Program
1. What is your understanding of the school’s mission and guiding beliefs?

The school’s mission is to prepare young people for a successful college experience and for
effective and rewarding participation in the workplace. We believe every student can learn and
can achieve appropriately designed goals that will allow them to compete successfully in a
global marketplace. Instilling and supporting character qualities such as personal responsibility,
perseverance to complement a strong work ethic and integrity will facilitate the development
of world class leaders. An environment of rigor and teachers who will challenge each scholar to
become a lifelong learner are pivotal elements that will facilitate our students’ progress on
their personal journeys to academic and career success.

Teresa Elizabeth Callender Sones
Page 2 of 8
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Governance
1. Describe the role that the board will play in the school’s operation.

The board will define, communicate, evaluate and periodically refine the policies that set the
course for the school to realize its mission and stated goals. The board will review legal,
financial and business matters associated with the charter schoo!. The board will hire a school
manager {superintendent/principal) who will develop and implement the processes necessary
for accomplishing the school’s goals and will allocate school resources toward that end. The
board will approve annual budgets, review financial reporting and exercise due diligence in
ensuring that internal controls with respect to financial matters are in place. The board will
review the products of data gathering efforts in order to ensure that the school is being
managed according to the stipulations of the schooi’s charter,

2. How will you know if the school is successful at the end of the first year of operation?

The target increment of academic improvement for each grade level will be realized, based
upon appropriate and state-recognized achievement measures. School leadership will be
recognizably strong and supportive, and the school environment will be characterized by order
and respect for self and others. Staff retention rate will be higher than the retention rate for
other area public schools, as will expressed parental satisfaction with the school, based upon
data nbtained by survey. End of the year financial reports will demonstrate a balanced budget.
Finally, a recognizabie school climate of excitement about the future will prevail.

3. How will you know at the end of four years of the school is successful?

Again, measuring success will be both qualitative and quantitative in approach. Each year,
previnously determined standards for academic improvement will be demonstrated across all
grade levels. A high standard of excellence in academics, behavior and personal responsibility
will continue to challenge each scholar. A waiting list for enrollment will be evidence of
growing parental and community support for the charter school. Increased enrollment will
increase the budget to allow for expansion, additionai staff development and training, and
higher salaries in order to continue to attract the top quality teachers who are essential to the
successful implementation of the school’s educational plan. Student morale will be high, with
behavioral problems trending downward across the four years. School leadership, faculty and
staff will report high ievels of satisfaction with the overall school operation. Collaborative
efforts between members of the community and the school will be on the rise, as will parental
involvement in school activities and in the process of their child’s education in general.

Teresa Elizabeth Callender Sones
Pape 4 of 8
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Certification

I, Teresa Sones, certify to the best of my knowledge and ability that the information | am providing to
the Texas Education Agency as a board member is true and correct in every respect.

Signature Date

VERIFICATION

State of (r@’a— S

County ofvgb(/l/' S

: n =2
On this dayT I Qname of affiant) appeared before me the
undersigned notary public and deposed that he/she executed the above instrument and that the
statements and answers contained therein are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge and
belief.

A
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 9 6 day of

Mloadl ,20]4.

{Notary Public} QM Z_MO’LGR‘.L
Mycommlsslgexc/es%%, IS oo 1%

(SEAL)

- — e —— - ————

"A"“\. JEANNE E. HRYHORCHUK
: -..‘*--, MY COMMISBION EXPIRES |
‘-m.‘;,?: FEBRUARY 15, 2018 |

Teresa Elizabeth Callender Sones
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Curriculum Vita

February 2011
Teresa Elizabeth Sones ]
2823 Timber Briar Circle 713-558-1041
Houston, Texas 77059

Degrees Earned:

Master of Arts, University of Houston-Clear Lake, Houston, TX, May 8, 1993
Major: Behavioral Sciences—3Specialist in School Psychology
GPA: 3,966

Bachelor of Science, University of Houston-Clear Lake, Houston, TX, May 9, 1981, Cum Laude
Major: Biological Sciences
GPA: 3.724

Bachelor of Arts, University of Houston-Clear Lake, Houston, TX, May 9, 1981, Cum Laude
Major: Chemistry
GPA: 3.724

Work Experience:

Vice President, March, 2005 to present, Gateway Supply inc., Houston, TX
General Duties: Collaborating with company CEO and president to frame a new
business enterprise—from gbtaining certificate of incorporation to developing
grganizational structure, marketing tools, vendor relationships and operational
processes; implementing client base growth strategies and feedback processes;
Developing and presenting project bids; Negotiating contracts with clients and
vendors; Drafting solutions for client-specific logistics challenges
Daily Duties:

Accounting Department: Managing and reconciling company bank, savings and
credit card accounts; Managing and performing all tasks related to
accounts payable and receivable; interfacing with contract payroll and
human resources specialists and maintaining required employee tax
and payroll documentation; Reconciling client and vendor accounts;
Preparing and analyzing monthly financial reports

Logistics Department: Arranging ocean, land and air transfer of domestic and
international cargo; Verifying cargo and resolving discrepancies;
Coordinating freight consolidation; Preparing documentation required

by forwarding agents, domestic and foreign customs agencies and
transportation entities

Supervisor: Roger D. Crooks, CEO {roger@gatewaysupplyine.com)

Freelance Technical, Speech and Narrative Writer/Editor, 1995-present
Duties: Writing and editing text for corporate websites, brochures and multi-media

presentations; Writing and editing speeches, magazine articles, business
letters and other text as contracted
References: Provided upon request
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School Principal, August, 1990 to July, 2008, Life Christian Academy, Houston, TX

Duties: Providing leadership and supervision in the maintenance of a stimulating
learning environment; Building a qualified, diverse and dedicated facuity and
staff; Screening potential students; Directing student activities and promoting
excellence in academics and personal growth; Developing and implementing
academic, athletic, fine arts and community service programs; Implementing
parent volunteer program; Financial budgeting and reporting, Evaluating
student and faculty member performance; Conducting faculty training seminars
and workshops; Leading parent-teacher conferences, mediation and conflict
resolution efforts; Interfacing with government agencies and public and private
educational professionals on behalf of individual students as well as the school
as an organization

Supervisor: Jim Kilgore, School President (713-910-1911)

Academic Tutor, June, 1977 to present (part time), Bay Area Tutoring and Reading Clinic,
Houston, TX
Duties: Tutoring elementary students in math, reading, and science; Tutoring secondary
and college students in algebra, geometry, trigonometry, biology, chemistry,
statistics, written expression and Spanish
Supervisor: Narma Callender, Ph.D., LPC (281-488-4431)

Secondary School Teacher, August, 1981 to May, 2008, Life Christian Academy, Houston, TX

Duties: Planning, implementing, monitoring and evaluating self-paced and traditional
academic programs for intermediate and high school students; Conducting mini
classes and tutorials; Participating in career planning and educational guidance
conferences with parents and students

Supervisors: Jim Kilgore, School President {713-910-1911); James Horton, Principal
(713-818-8662); Daniel E. Calk, Administrator/Interim Principal; and James B.
Hughes, Founding Principal

Contract Draftsperson, June, 1989 to August, 1990 (part time), Sandefer Oil and Gas, Inc.,
Houston, TX
Duties: Performing geological and land map drafting services for onshore and offshore
oil exploration geologists
Supervisor: Mike Neely, Drafting Department Supervisor

Contract Draftsperson, January, 1987 to May, 1990 (part time), David Rogers Drafting, Houston,
™
Duties: Performing geological and land map drafting and airbrushing services
Supervisor: David Rogers

Teacher’s Aide, August, 1976 to May, 1981 (part time}, Life Christian Academy, Houston, TX
Duties: Assisting teacher with classroom decorating and paperwork duties; Monitoring
student progress; Providing individual student tutorials
Supervisor: Donna Charlesworth (713-910-0808)
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Accounts Payable Clerk, April to June, 1975, Texas Marine and Industrial Supply, Houston, TX
Duties: Coding invoices; Financial posting for accounts payable department

Mailroom Clerk, February to April, 1975, Texas Marine and Industrial Supply, Houston, TX
Duties: Checking invoices for accuracy; Operating postage machine; Folding and stuffing
envelopes

Academic Honors and Awards:
Phi Kappa Phi Honor Society, December, 2001-present
Psi Chi National Honor Society in Psychology, April, 1991
Space Center Rotary Scholarship, Spring, 1980 and Fall, 1980
Dean’s List, University of Houston-Clear Lake, Spring, 1978; Fall, 1978; and Spring, 1979
Honor Roll, San Jacinto College, Fall, 1975; Spring, 1976; and Fall, 1976

Other Awards:
Recognized by Congressional Youth Leadership Council as “Educational Leader and Mentor” and

“Honorary Member of the 2008/2009 National Nominating Committee,” August, 2008
Honored by Congressional Youth Leadership Council for “Outstanding Service as an Educational
Advisor,” May, 1999
Friends of Youth Award, Life Christian Academy, Houston, TX, May, 1989
Services to Young People Award, American Biographical Institute, 1987

Community Service:
Ima’s Home for Children, Santa Fe, TX, May, 2009-present
Duties: Serving as member of Board of Directors for home for “street children” in
Manila, Philippine Islands
Kidz Harbor, Liverpool, TX, September, 2009-present
Duties: Tutoring residents in all subject areas; Assisting with parties and holiday-
related activities for residents
Life Church, Houston, TX, May-December, 1598
Duties: Teaching English as a second language to Spanish-speaking adults
The Bridge Over Troubled Waters, Pasadena, TX, January to May, 1990
Duties: Providing support to victims of sexual assault and family violence, assessing
clients for intake eligibility, performing general clerical and cleaning duties, and
providing referral information to crisis hotline callers.
Eastwood Health Clinic, Houston, TX, December, 1985 to March, 1987
Duties: Assisting medical personnel as a translator for Spanish-speaking patients and as
an examining room assistant

Computer Skills:
Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint and Publisher
Proficient in QuickBooks, Outlook and Adobe software applications

Foreign Language Skills:
Spanish—Moderately proficient in reading, writing, speaking and understanding
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Professional Bio
Teresa Elizabeth Callender Sones

A former educator and current vice president of Gateway Supply Inc., an international
procurement and logistics company, Teresa Sones does her homework with respect to
assessing client needs, developing innovative solutions and establishing long-term customer
relationships based on personalized care and well-founded trust. A leader whose life has been
defined by service to others, Teresa demonstrates sound business practices marked by a
genuine concern for the interests of Gateway clients. Teresa’s graduate studies focused on
assessing students’ academic, behavioral and social needs and fostered a genuine appreciation
for the uniqueness of each individual and situation. Applied in the corporate setting, this
mindset contributes to Gateway's reputation for effectively managing critical timelines and
meeting client expectations with respect to quality, suitability and cost in the creation of
solutions for the challenges multi-national supply chain efforts present. Her experience in
school administration contributes to effective team building, and her love for teaching
translates into her daily practice of encouraging professional growth in the members of the
accounting and logistics departments she oversees. Maintaining high expectations for
excellence in professionalism, integrity, courtesy and respect among the team members fosters
employee loyalty as well as ultimate customer satisfaction—the end product of a successful

business effort.

Teresa Elizabeth Callendar Sones
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BOARD MEMBER BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT

Background
1. Name of charter school on whose Board  The Beta Foundation-sponsoring entity; Beta
of Directors you serve Academy-proposed charter school
2. Full name Timothy Wayne King
Home Address 1688 Creekside Drive, Sugar Land, TX 77478
Tubular Resource, Inc
Business Name and Address 1108 Soldiers Field Court #800, Sugar Land, TX 77479
Phone Number 281-980-0057

E-mail address

Resume and professional bio are attached here.
Resume and professional bio are attached
elsewhere in the application (indicate Attachment number),

L1

3. Indicate whether you currently or have previously served on a board of a school district, another
charter school, a non-public school or any not-for-profit corporation.
[ ] Does not apply to me ] Yes
The Beta Foundation, Vice-President/Treasurer
Ima’s Home for Children, board member
Life Church, board member
Reach Out America, Chair

4. What was your motivation to serve on the board of the proposed charter school?

My desire to serve on the board began with Latisha Andrews presenting to me an opportunity

to be a founding board member to bring a high quality school of choice to our community. We

share a passion for exceilence in education and want every child, without regard to background

or ability, to have equal access/opportunity to a rigorous academic curriculum; taught by highly
_trained educators.

5. What is your understanding of the appropriate role of a public charter school board member?

As charter holder, the school board is accountable for governance and fiscal oversight; thus, the
role of the board and the responsibility of each board member are to ensure Beta Academy
functions within the bounds of and according to the promises set forth in the charter and to
abide by all TEA rules and guidelines. As a board member, it is my responsibility to ensure that
there are clear defined financial, organizational, risk management and reporting policies in
place to guide the processes instituted and to give diligent oversight to the overall operations
and finances and supervision to by the school’s CEO/superintendent/principal.

6. Describe any'previous experience you have that is relevant to serving on the charter school’s board
(e.g. other board service). If you have not had previous experience of this nature, explain why you
have the capability to be an effective board member.

Ima’s Home for Children; board member for an orphanage for street children in the Philippines.
Life Church Board: Life Christian Academy private K-12 school.
Reach Out America: Chair

Timothy Wayne King
Page 1of 6
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Certification

I, Timothy Wayne King, certify to the best of my knowledge and ability that the information I am
providing to the Texas Education Agency as a board member is true and correct in every respect.

Sig —Date

VERIFICATION

State of I EXOS
County of lj*k@_,\{ vy S

On this day,fﬁm o-\—&u.c\ (JSO_L,\M_ ‘L/W\-\, {name of affiant) appeared before me the
undersigned notary public #nd depos&ﬂhat he/she dxécuted the above instrument and that the
statements and answers contained therein are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge and
belief,

Subscribed and sworn to before me this (Q 5 Q\/L\ day of

J'\A.QACQ\ ,20 <l

My commiissi
(SEAL)
B, JEANNE E. HRYHORCHUK
a‘%‘ MY COMMIGSION EXPIRES
Siyw? FEBRUARY 15, 2018
Timothy Wayne King

Page 6 of 6

/45 of 67



L ] [
Timothy Wayne King
F er.sona? contuact m?or matlion r emovea iOI' pOSI mg loa pllB]IC 501"0111

The Beta Foundation: 832.656.5841

EDUCATION
St. Mary’s University 1972-1975
Bachelor of Science in Chemistry and Biology
University of Texas Health Science Center 1975-1978
Department of Oncology

AWARDS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS

¢ Magna Cum Laude: St. Mary’s University
Research Thesis was accepted and published in the Journal of the American
Medical Association

e “Androgen Receptor in the Rat Brain- Assays and Properties” accepted
May 25, 1973

WORK EXPERIENCE

Co-founder/Co-owner/President: Tubular Resource, Inc. 1983-Present
e Leadership and growth in the company operations
e Work with steel mills to develop new grades of steel for various well applications.
e Formulate corporate marketing strategies to develop new accounts resulting in
annual sales of 35 million dollars
Negotiate and receive major US and foreign mill distribution contracts
Applied and received API license for manufacture and end finishing of Oil
Company Tubular Goods
e Set up API 5CT Specifications to process pipe for specific industry applications

Vice President: International Materials and Service Company, Inc.  1978-1987

e Employed in the startup and development phase

e Developed and implemented a computerized inventory control system for
managing a sixty million dollar inventory

e Assigned coordinated and managed the sales, service and administrative
operations

e Special assignments included: market evaluation for new products, creating plans
for their implementation, managed over 100 employees, provided leadership to
coordinate the various corporate operations

Project Coordinator: University of Texas, Department of Oncology 1975-1977
e Project coordinator at the Health Science Center for federally funded research
programs
e Development of new laboratory procedures and assays for extracting receptors
from living cells for quantitative and qualitative analysis.
¢ Research thesis was accepted and published in the Journal of the American
Medical Association.
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Biography

Timothy Wayne King, an entrepreneur in the oil fitting business since 1981, established
Tubular Resources in Sugar Land, Texas, after attending St. Mary’s University in San
Antonio, Texas. As the president of his own company for over 30 years, Tim has
mastered the fiduciary challenges associated with a start-up operation, as well as those
encountered during the natural growth and constriction of business opportunities
through the years. Tim’s experience with the financial details of business makes him an
ideal treasurer for the board of directors. He will exercise oversight of annual budget
preparation and general financial operations as well as the development of sound
financial strategies for continuous growth and expansion. As large as his body of
business acumen is Tim’s heart for the underserved and at-risk populations at home and
abroad. He is a board member of Ima’s Home for Children, an orphanage in the
Philippines, and a long-time financial supporter of local 4H Clubs and the Pasadena
Rodeo. Reach Out America, an international emergency relief organization, is another of
Tim's philanthropic interests. For over twenty-five years, however, Tim’s compassionate
financial support for community events in southeast Houston, where Beta Academy has
proposed to open its first campus, demonstrates an equally sincere commitment to the
underserved close to home.

Timothy Wayne King
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Certification

1, _ certify to the best of my knowledge and ability that
the information | am provudmg to the Texas Education Agency as a board member is true and correct in
every respect.

Signz Dawe

VERIFICATION

—
State of l@( oS
County of ‘L\O){ (AS

On this day, :_Tl Aaytan j&mc.s {name of affiant) appeared before me the
undersigned notary public and deposed that he/she executed the above instrument and that the
statements and answers contained therein are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge and
belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this Q 3 day of

[\/\O\AC,Q» 2014

(Notary Public) Q@m g /L‘l'"‘ﬁ hovellL
My commnssng-ex/pires $603 S .90‘57

(SEAL)

i"b i

ﬁ'k 've,u. JEANNE E. HRYHORCHUK
.‘% MY COMMISEION EXPIRES

'}FEBRUARY 15, 2018

Page 4 of 4

Justin D. James
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Justin Deshun James
Personal comact information removed for posting to a public domain

The Beta Foundation: 832.656.5841

Objective

To pursue leadership opportunities where I can impact the education of students by opening
doors of Hope and empower them to succeed.

Education

University of North Texas Currently Enrolled
Masters in Educational Leadership

Southwestern Assemblies of God University, Waxahachie, TX Dec 2011
Bachelors of Art in Secondary Education, gh 1t

North Garland High School May 2007
High School Diploma

Certifications
Pedagogy and Professional Responsibilities Ec-12 Passed 2011
English Language Arts/Reading 4" — 8" Passed 2012

Awards

2014 Teacher of the Year - Hudson Middle School
2014 Teacher of the Year - Sachse Chamber of Commerce
2013 Rookie of the Year - Hudson Middle School

Experience

7th Grade English Teacher; Hudson Middle School, Garland 1SD Aug 2012 ~ Present
[ worked in a professional learning community to compose general education lesson
plans. This position has also allowed me to teach students grade level objectives that
prepare them for future success.

AVID Elective Teacher; Hudson Middle School, Garland ISD Jan 2014 - Current
Responsible for implementing AVID program. Attended the AVID National Conference
in 2013 as well as observed several existing AVID Elective Classes.

Substitute Teacher; Garland ISD Jan 2012 — June
2012 Substitute Teaching allowed me to serve in the place of a teacher and continue the
educational day throughout the Spring Semester of 2012. I faciliated the lesson plans of
the teacher and engaged students in viable learning.
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Justin Deshun James
Personal contact information removed for posting to a public domain

The Beta Foundation: 832.656.5841

Student Teacher, 8th grade; Red Oak Junior High, Red Oak, TX Sept 2011 - Dec 2011
Over 12 weeks, I observed a veteran teacher and her practices in education. The final 6
weeks week I taught her classes and gained a wealth of knowledge in classroom
management and best practices of teaching.

Academic Services Service Specialist; Apr 2011 - Sept 2011
Southwestern Assemblies of God University, Waxahachie, TX
] worked closely with the Dean of Academic Services to provide quality facilities and experiences
to the university. My responsibilities included: Coordinating Freshmen New Student Orientation
and Campus Quality Improvement

Student Ministries Leader; Christian World Church, Richardson, TX Sept 2011 — Present
While serving students 7-12th grade, [ oversee the functions and group relations of
Momentum Student Ministries. Everything from summer camp experience to weekly
events is communicated through my office and department.

Activities

The Beta Foundation, Houston, TX Feb 2014 — Current
Secretary, Board of Directors

Fellowship of Christian Athletes Aug 2014 - Current
Huddle Sponsor - Sponsored the annual See You At The Pole Event for Hudson Middle
School. Oversee weekly meetings that are led by FCA Student leaders.

Southwestern Assemblies of God University, Waxahachie, TX

Student Congress President June 2009-June 2011
Student Congress Vice-President June 2008-June 2009
Professor’s Assistant, Teacher Education Office Sept 2008-Dec 2012

Lead Student Leader of the university; facilitated student representation among all
campus events and student relation issues.

Impact Waxahachie Coalition; June 2010-June 2011
Waxahachie Chamber of Commerce, Waxahachie, TX
As part of my duties as Student Congress President, I sat on the Board of the Impact
Waxahachie Coalition. I participated in community awareness and served as a liaison for
Southwestern Assemblies of God University.
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Biography

During his second year of teaching in the Garland Independent School District, Justin
James was recognized as the “2014 Teacher of the Year” at Hudson Middle School as
well as Sachse Chamber of Commerce “2014 Teacher of the Year.” As Secretary for The
Beta Foundation (governing board of Beta Academy), Justin’s AVID Path training will
help drive Beta Academy'’s school-wide commitment to this innovative and effective
college preparatory program. Justin is a detailed oriented project coordinator and a
caring volunteer mentor to his students. He has provided tutoring to disadvantaged and
at-risk students in his community for seven years and his current pursuit to complete his
master’s degree in educational leadership provides a relevant role mode! of excelience
for the scholars of Beta Academy.

Justin James
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BOARD MEMBER BIOGRAPHICAL AFFIDAVIT

Background

1. Name of charter school on whose Board  The Beta Foundation-sponsoring entity for
of Directors you serve Beta Academy

2. Fuil name Helen Abernathy
Home Address 809 Old Bridge Ln. Chesapeake, Va. 23320

OX

Business Name and Address -
Phone Number (757) 831-4104

Resume and professional bio are attached here.
Resume and professional bio are attached
elsewhere in the application (indicate Attachment number).

Indicate whether you currently ar have previously served on a board of a school district, another
charter school, a non-public school or any not-for-profit corporation.
[X] Does not apply to me [ ] Yes

What was your motivation to serve on the board of the proposed charter school?

My main motivation for serving on the board for the proposed charter school is | believe
in the dreams and goals of Beta Academy. | want to serve the community and people of
Houston, Texas by providing outstanding education through Beta Academy. | am very
passionate about seeing a metamorphosis in the heart of the American education system
so that it will rise to take its place as a world leader by producing students that are
creative, competent and capable of competing in today’s world market.

What is your understanding of the appropriate role of a public charter school board member?

| understand that it is my responsibility as a public charter school board member to
oversee and ensure that Beta Academy is fulfilling its goals and terms according to its
charter, is thriving as a quality public school, and is using its funds in the most
effective/efficient manner to create a school that meets the important needs of its
community.

Describe any previous experience you have that is relevant to serving on the charter school’s board
(e.g. other board service). If you have not had previous experience of this nature, explain why you
have the capability to be an effective board member.

One reason | am capable of being an effective board member is my own teaching
experience in the Virginia Beach public schoo! system as well as my experience teaching
at an international school in Botswana, Africa. | hold a master’s degree in TESOL (Teaching
English to Speakers of Other Languages) with an endorsement as a Reading Specialist.

7.

Describe the specific knowledge and experience that you would bring to the board.
| have specific knowledge in the fields of TESOL/ESL and Reading.

Helen Abernathy Page 1of 5
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Certification

1, y knowledge and ability that the information | am
P nember is true and correct in every respect.

VERIFICATION

S
State of / Cx oo

County of L"*LO/U\A S
On this day, 'L,%ﬁ- Q./Lau—&.“”ﬂ‘mname of affiant) appeared before me the

undersigned notary public and deposed that he/she executed the above instrument and that the
statements and answers contained therein are true and correct to the best of his/her knowledge and
belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this &4 O/L day of
Mw C,av L2014 .

{Notary Public) Q&VN, {MW
My commissk%s l‘fﬂifkﬂ,?/’ S.O’lo (3

(SEAL)
e MY COMMISSION EXPIRES
-'.‘% st?r FEBRUARY 15, 2018
Helen Abernathy Page 5 of 5
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HELEN ABERNATHY

THE BETA FOUNDATION: 832.656.5841
Personai contact infoermation removed
Jor public domain

EDUCATION
Regent University, Virginia Beach, VA
M.A, in Education 2001-2003

Major: TESOL (Teaching English to Speakers of Other Languages), with a
Reading Specialist endorsement

Texas Bible College, Houston, TX. 1998-2001
Christian Education Diploma
Major: Christian Education, Earty Childhood Education

Azalea Garden Christian School, Norfolk, VA.
High School Diploma 1994-1997

College Preparatory Degree

AWARDS

Who's Who Among Students in American Universities
& Colleges 2000 - 2001

TEACHING EXPERIENCE
Glenwood Elementary School, Virginia Beach, VA.
ESL Specialist 2006-2013

[Taught Grades K-8, Differentiated Instruction, Developed Lesson
Plans, Parent Qutreach Meetings, etc.]

Regent University, Virginia Beach, VA.

Adjunct Professor - “Roles & Responsibilities of the ESL Specialist” 2007 -2008
[Developed syllabus and overall course structure, and administered all
grades.]

Lynnhaven Elementary School, Virginia Beach, VA.
ESL Specialist 2005-2006

[Taught Grades K-5, Differentiated instruction, Developed Lesson Plans,
Parent Outreach Meetings, etc.]

1
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HELEN ABERNATHY

THE BETA FOUNDATION: 832.656.5841
Personal contact information remaved
Jor public domain

TEACHING

EXPERIENCE

CONTINUED Point of View Elementary School 2005
Reading Specialist
[Taught Grades 4-3, Intensive Reading and Writing Instruction, Small &
Whole Group Instruction Collaborated with Teachers, etc.]

The Leaming Centre School, Botswana, Africa

First Grade Classroom Teacher 2004
[International School Teacher, Managed a Class with Diverse Cultures,

Languages and Ethnic Backgrounds, Wrote Weekly Student Evaluation,
Administered Grades, Organized Educational Field Trips, Established

Positive Relationships with Parents and Colleagues, etc.]

RELATED EXPERIENCE 2003-

Chrysatis International, Orlando, FL. Present

Non-Profit Organization

Curriculum Writer & Editor

[Developed and wrote curriculum for the following classic
literature: Pinocchio, Hans Brinker and The Silver Skates, Benjamin
West & His Cat Grimalkin, and Little House in the Big Woods, Edited
curriculum for the following classic literature: The Lion, the Witch

& the Wardrobe]

REFERENCES
References available upon request
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Biography

Helen Abernathy holds a Master of Education in Teaching English to Speakers of Other
Languages (TESOL) with a Reading Specialist endorsement. Prior to serving as an ESL
teacher for Virginia Beach City Public Schools, Helen worked for a year in Gaborone,
Botswana, Africa, as a first grade teacher of a linguistically diverse population. A former
adjunct professor at Regent University in Virginia Beach, Virginia, Helen currently serves
as a writer and editor of classic literature curriculum for Chrysalis International, an
organization whose mission is to raise the literacy rate among children in poverty
stricken countries. In addition to her professional service, she has been a volunteer tutor
for at risk students in her community throughout her career. Helen’s international and
ESL classroom experience and her genuine, on-going commitment to the underserved in
her community are invaluable to the process of planning for the population of at-risk
and limited English proficient scholars anticipated to enroll in Beta Academy.

Helen Abernathy
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Sponsoring Entity: The Beta Foundation

Proposed Charter School Name: Beta Academy

Nineteenth Generation Charter Application
Bilingual Education/ESL, Section 504, and Dyslexia Assurances

TEC, Chapter 29, Subchapter B, TEC §12.104(b){2)}(G), and 19 TAC §§89.120!-. 1265 require charter
schools to identify limited English proficient students based on state criteria and to provide an appropriate
bilingual education or English as a second language program conducted by teachers certified for such
courses.

A. The charter holder centifies that prior to serving students the charter will have policies and procedures
in place ensuring that it complies with the legal and regulatory requirements concerning identifying
and providing appropriate educational services to limited English proficient students,

Check one:

[X]Yes
[INo

Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 ULS.C. §794, prohibits discrimination on the basis of
disability in any program receiving federal financial assistance. A recipient that operales a public
education program or activity shall provide a free, appropriate public education to qualified individuals.

B. The charter holder certifies that prior to serving students the charter will have policies and procedures
in place ensuring that it complies with the legal and regulatory requirements concerning identifying
and providing appropriate educational services to students protected by Section 504.
Check one:

[X]Yes
[No

TEC §38.003, TEC §12.104¢b)2}(K). 19 TAC $74.28 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29
U.S.C. §794, require charter schools to identify students with dyslexia or related disorders and to provide
appropriate educationat services.

C. The chaner hoider certifies that prior 10 serving students the charler wiil have policies and procedures
in place ensuring that it complies with the legal and regulatory requiremenis concerning identifying
and providing appropriate educational services to students with dyslexia or related disorders.

Check one:

[X]Yes
[CINo

I the undersigned hereby certify that the information contained in this document is, to the best of my
knowledge, correct and that the governing body of the chanter holder has authorized me to provide these
assurances,

Printed Name of Sponsoring Entity Board Chair

Signature of Sponsoring Entity Board Chair Date
{must sign in blue ink)
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The Beta Foundation 45-3019142
Name of Sponsoring Entity FEI No./Taxpayer ID

Beta Academy
Proposed Charter School Name

TEXAS EDUCATION AGENCY
Division of Planning and Grant Reporting

neral lication of rances for Federal Program ministered e

U.S. Department of Education

Authority for Data Collection: 20 USC Section 1232e and P. L. 107-110, No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, Title IX, Part
C. Section 9306 (a).

Planned Use of Data: The requirements established in United States Code Annotated, Title 20, Education, Chapter 31,
Subchapter 11, Section 1232e stipulate that "Each local education agency which participates in an applicable program
under which federal funds are made available to such agency through a State agency shall submit, to such agency or
board, a general application containing the assurances set forth in subsection (b) of this section™, The requirements of
P. L. 107-110, No Child Left Behind Act of 2001. Title IX, Part C, Section 9306 (a) stipulate that "any applicant, other
than a State educaticonal agency that submits a plan or application under this Act, whether separately or pursuant to
section 9305, shall have on file with the State educational agency a single set of assurances, applicable to each program
for which a plan or application is submitted.” The application shall cover the participation by the local educational
agency, public agency, nonprofit private agency, institution, organization or Indian tribe in all federal programs
administered by the U.S. Department of Education.

Instryctions: This general application will be in effect for the duration of participation in federal programs until such lime
as the requirements change. The superintendent or authorized official must sign the certification and return to the
address below, Payment for federally funded applications and contracts cannot be made by this Agency until the
generzal application is received. Payments to grantees for current grants may be delayed if the General Application of
Assurances is not received in the time requested. For further information, contact the Division of Planning and Grant
Reporting at (512)463-7004,

Certification:

I, the undersigned authorized official for the above-named local educational agency, public agency, nonprofit private
agency, institution, organization or Indian tribe in accordance with 20 USC Section [232¢ and P. L. 107-110, No Child Left
Behind Act of 2001, Title IX, Part C, Section 9306 (a), hereby apply for participation in federally funded education
programs.

I centify that the above-named local educational agency, public agency, nonprofit private agency, institution, organization
or Indian tribe will adhere to the assurances stated on the reverse side of this form.

Typed Name of Authorized Official or Pate Telephone Authorized Original Signature (blue ink)
Charter Holder

The Beta Foundatoin

Typed Title of Authorized Official of 02/20/14 713-337-1049 %__ @.%M

Charter Holder

Teresa Sones, President

Address of Charter Holder City State Zip Code
9701 Almeda Genoa Rd. Houston TX 77075

DIGA/CS-001R03
Page | of 2
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ASSURANCES

The following nssurances are provided in accordance with the United Slates Code Annotated, Title 20, Education, Chapter 31,
Subchapter 111, Section 1232¢ and P, L. 107-110, No Child Left Behind Act ol 2001, Title 1X, Part C, Section 9306 (a):

Assurance is hercby given that

(1) the local educational ngency will administer cach program covercd by the application in accordance with all applicable statutes,
regulations. program plans, and applications:

{2) the control of funds providcd 10 the local cducational agency under cach program, and title to property acquired with those funds, will be
in a public agency and a public agency will administer those funds and property:

{3) the local educational agency will use fiscal conirol und fund accounting procedurcs that will ensure proper dishursement of. and
accounting for, Federa)l lunds paid 10 that agency under cach program:

(4) the local educational apency will make reports to the Texas Education Agency or State Board of Education and to the Secretary of
Liducation as may rcasonably be necessary to cnable the Texas Education Agency or State Board of Education and the Sceretary of
Education to perform their dutics and the local educational agency will maintain such records, including the records required under
section [2321 * of this title, and provide access to those records, as the Texas Education Agency or State Board of Education or the
Secretary of Education decem necessary 1o perform their duties;

(5) the local educational agency will provide reasonable opportunitics for the participation by 1cachers, parenis, and other interested
agencies, organizations, and individuals in the planning for and operation of each program:

(6} any application. ¢valuation, periodic program plan or report relating to cach program will be made readily available to parents and other
members of the general public;

(7} in the case of any project involving construction-
{A) the project is not inconsistent with overall State plans for the construetion of school facilities. and

{B) in developing plans for construction. due consideration will be given to cxcellence of architecture and design and to compliance with
standards prescribed by the Secretary of Education under section 794 of Title 29 in order to ensure that facilitics constructed with
the use of Federal funds are accessihle to and usable hy individuals with disabilitics:

(8) the local educational agency has adopted effective procedures for acquiring and disseminating to teachers and adminisirators
participating in cach program significant information from educational rescarch, demonstrations, and similar projects, and for adopting.
where appropriate, promising cducalional practices developed through such projects: and

{(9) nonc of the funds expended under any applicable program will be used to acquire equipment (including computer software) in any
instance in which such acquisition results in a dircet financial benefit to any organization representing the interests of the purchasing
cnlity or its cmployees or any affiliate of such an organization.

AND
In addition to the above, the following assurances arc provided in accordance with P. L. 107-110, No Child Left Behind Act of 2001,
Title IX, Part C, Section 9306 (a):

(1) (A) the control of funds provided under each such program and title to property acquircd with program funds will be in a public agency
or in a nonprofit private agency. institution, organization, or Indian tribe, if the law authorizing the progrum provides for assistance to
those entities: and
{B) the public agency. nonprofit privalc agency, institution, or organization, or Indian trihe will administer the funds and property to the
extent requircd by the authorizing statutes:

(2) the applicant will adopt and use proper methods of administering cach such program, including —

{A) the enforcement of any obligations imposed by law on agencies, institutions, organizations. and other recipients responsible for
carrying out cach program: and
(B) the correction of deficiencies in program operations that are identified through audits. monitoring. or cvaluation:

(3) the applicant will cooperate in carrying oul any evaluation of cach such program conducted by or for the State educational agency, the
Sccretary, or other Federal officials;

{(4) before the application was submitted. the applicant afTorded a reasonable opporiunity for public comment on the application and
considered such comment,

* Section 1232f, United States Code, Title 20, Education
RECORDS
Each recipient of Federal funds under any applicable program through any grant, subgrant, cooperative agreement, loan, or other
arrangement shall kcep records which fully disclose the amount and disposition by the recipient of those funds. and the total cost of
the activity for which the funds are used. the share of that cost provided from other sources, and such other records as will facilitatc

an cffective financial or programmatic audit.

Page 2 of 2
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Sponsoring Entity: The Beta Foundation

Proposed Charter School Name; ~ Beta Academy

Nineteenth Generation Charter Application
Special Assurances Document

The chair of the proposed sponsoring entity shall initial each of the following on this page and the next to indicate an
understanding of and a commitment to comply with each of following assurances:

'}?‘ Open Meetings Requirements:
The charter holder assures that all meetings in which charter school business is discussed will be posted to
provide public notice, held in an open public forum, and any action items voted upon in a public forum as
required by the Open Meetings Act in Govemment Code, Chapter 551.

4

Furthermore, the charter holder assures that all of the following will be discussed in open meetings and only
acted upon with approval of the charter holder board:

- The annual budget and all amendments to the budget,

- Any changes to job descriptions from those submitted in the application for charter, and

- Any changes in compensation from compensation as submitted in the application for charter.

¥  Public Information Requirements:
The charter holder assures that information, that is considered public, requested by anyone will be provided in
accordance with Government Code, Chapter 552.

X Criminal H istory Check Requirements:
The charter holder assures that criminal history checks will be completed in accordance with law and that no
person will serve as a member of the goveming body of a charter holder, as a member of the governing body of
the charter school, or as an officer or employee of an charter school if the person has been convicted of a
misdemeanor involving moral turpitude, a felony, an offense listed in TEC 37.007(a) or an offense listed in
Article 62.01{5) Code of Criminal Procedure.

% Anunnal Training Requirements:
The charter holder assures that all annual training requirements for board members and school administrators will
be completed in accordance with law and commissioner rules.

‘tﬁ Residential Facilities Monitoring (R FM)} System:
The charter holder assures thay it understands that, pursuant to 19 Texas Administrative Code (TAC}
§97.1072, there is a specific system for monitoring school districts aud charter schools that serve students with
disabilities wheo reside in RFs. The charter holder further assures that it nuderstands that it will be required to
report data related to students with disabilities residing in RFs in TEA's data collection system known as RF
Tracker and that it may be subject to RFM intervention activities and on-site visits based upon a review of the
data it reports or on random or other means of selection.

A Special RF Training:
The charter holder assures that all personnel involved with serving students with disabilities residing in an RF and
personnel involved with reporting data in RF Tracker will receive training on the RFM system.

SAS 544-14
Page 1 of 2 RFA 701-14-104
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Sponsoring Entity: The Beta Foundation

Proposed Charter School Name: ~ Beta Academy

Admission and Enrollment

__The charter holder assures that parents or prospective students will not be required to attend an interview or
meeting of any kind prior to admitting and/or enrolling a student, or during the time in which the student is
enrolled.

__The charter holder assures that volunteer hours, or payment in lieu of volusteer hours, will not be required of the
parent or guardian as a requirement for student admission or enrollment.

__The charter holder assures that there will be no specified days designated for enrollment and/or admission. If
space is available, a student will be enrolled and admitted on any day at any time of day and must be counted as
and considered a charter student immediately. State law does not allow for a trial enrollment period at a public
school.

The charter holder assures that no student auditions will be required prior to enrollment and admission at the

~chanter school unless the charter is originally approved by the State Board of Education (SBOE) as a performing
arts school with an audition component or the charler was amended by the commissioner of education to
designate the school a performing arts school with an audition component,

_The charter holder understands that a student may be ineligible for enroilment at a charter school based on a
history of a criminal offense, a juvenile court adjudication, or discipline problems under Texas Education Code
(TEC), Chapter 37, Subchapter A, only if the enroliment prohibition was specifically approved by the SBOE
when the charler was originally awarded, or if the charter was amended by the commissioner of education to
allow this enrollment prohibition. It must be noted that the enrollment prohibition is not allowed for any prior
discipline problems, but only those specified in TEC, Chapter 37, Subchapter A.

Withdrawal and Expulsion Issues

__The charter holder understands that only the parent or guardian may withdraw a student from the charter school,
and the only time charter administrators may withdraw a student and use administrative withdrawal as the leaver
code is in the rare instances when:

- a student is withdrawn by the district because the district discovers, when verifying enrollment
information, that the student was not a resident of the district at the time of enroflment;

- the district discovers that the student has falsified enrollment information;

- proof of identification is not provided; or

- immunization records are not provided.

__The charter holder understands that a student who fails to comply with the charter school's student code of
conduct may not be administratively withdrawn. If a student commits an expellabie offense, as outlined in the
student code of conduct, the charter holder further understands that charter administrators may expel the student
only after due process has been afforded the student, and the charter holder board has determined that expulsion is
the appropriate consequence.

_The charter holder understands that it has an obligation 10 notify the schoo!l district in which the student resides
within three business days of any action expelling or withdrawing a student from the charter school. See
19 TAC §100.1211 (c).

I the undersigned hereby certify that the governing body of the charter holder lias authorized me to provide these
assurances as noted by my initials on this and the previous page.

Printed Name of Sponsoring Entity Board Chair

Signature ot Sponsoring Entity Board Chair Date SAS 544-14
Page 2 of 2 RFA 701-14-104
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Sponsoring Entity: The Beta Foundation

Proposed Charter School Name: Beta Academy

Nineteenth Generation Charter Application
Special Education Assurances and Development of Policies and Procedures

Pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act (IDEA 2004) Section
613 (a) (1), each charter school must have on file with the Texas Education Agency (TEA) a plan
that provides assurances that it has in effect policies, procedures and programs consistent with
State policies and procedures governing special education. { harter schools are required to
develop plans using the online Legal Framework for the Child-Centered Process following the
guidance below. Posting plans on the Legal Framework is not required, but is strongly encouraged.

Electronic Submission

Region 18 Education Service Center (ESC) in coordination with other ESCs provides leadership
to the State in the electronic development of charter policies and procedures through the online
Legal Framework for the Child-Centered Process Phase 1V: “Charting the Course” (Legal

Framework-Phase 1V} at http:/framework.esc18.net/.

Applicant Assurance Statement

The sponsoring entity’s CEQ must sign the assurance statement below certifying that the proposed
charter schoo! will have in place upon opening the above-described special education policies and
procedures. Once the contract is issued and a county district number is assigned, the charter
holder will develop its policies and procedures through the online Legal Framework.

Future Updates to Policies and Procedurcs
Charters will use the Legal Framework for developing and submitting updated policies and

procedures assurances in the future. Guidance from ESCs on updates to policies and procedures
will be ongoing.

Technical Assistance
For questions concerning or snformation about the electronic submission of charter policies and

procedures, please consull with your regional ESC special education contact at http:/w ww.tea,

Assurance Statemcnt

By signing below, the sponsoring entity assures that the proposed charter school will have in place
prior to opening policies and procedures that ensure implementation of IDEA 2004 and gi! federal
regulations, Texas laws, State Board of Education (SBOE) rules, and commissioner's rules
concerning students with disabilities receiving special education services and further assures that
any future amendments to the regulations, laws, and rules will be incorporated into policies and
procedures and implemented by the charter school.

Printed Name of Sponsoring Entity Board Chair

Signature of Sponsoring Entity Board Chair Date

(must sign in blue ink)
SAS 544-14

RFA 701-14-104
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mailto:latishaandrews@gmx.com

INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE
P. O. BOX 2508
CINCINNATI, OH 45201

Pate:  FEB 28 2012

THE BETA FOUNDATION
9701 ALMEDA GENOA RD
HOUSTON, TX 77075

Dear Applicant:

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

Employer Identification Number:
45-3019142
DLN:
17053243337001
Contact Person:
GAYLE M ADAMS
Contact Telephone Number:
(877) 829-5500
Accounting Period Ending:
August 31
Public Charity Status:
170(b} {1) (A) (ii)
Form 990 Required:
Yes
Effective Date of Exemption:
August 15, 2011
Contribution Deductibility:
Yes
Addendum Applies:
No

ID# 95073

We are pleased to inform you that upon review of your application for tax
exempt status we have determined that you are exempt from Federal income tax
under gection 501{c} {3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Contributions to you are
deductible under section 17¢ of the Code. You are also qualified to receive

tax deductible bequests, devises,

transfers or gifts under section 2055, 2106

or 2522 of the Code. Because this letter could help resolve any questions
regaxding your exempt status, you should keep it in your permanent records.

Organizations exempt under section 50¢1{c) {3} of the Code are further classified
as either public charities or private foundatioms. We determined that you are
a public charity under the Code section(s) listed in the heading of this

letter.

Please see enclosed Publjication 4221-PC, Compliance Guide for 501 (c) (3) Public
Charities, for some helpful information about your responsibilities as an

exempt organization.

Enclosure: Publication 4221-PC

Sincerely,

Lois G Lerner
Director, Exempt Organizations

Letter 947 (DO/CG)

171 of 369



John Steen

Corporations Section
Secretary of State

P.O.Box 13697
Austin, Texas 78711-3697

Office of the Secretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF FILING
OF

The Beta Foundation
801466854

The undersigned, as Secretary of State of Texas, hereby certifies that a Certificate of Amendment for the
above named entity has been received in this office and has been found to conform to the applicable

provisions of law.

ACCORDINGLY, the undersigned, as Secretary of State, and by virtue of the authority vested in the
secretary by law, hereby issues this certificate evidencing filing effective on the date shown below.

Dated: 02/13/2013

Effective: 02/13/2013

S5 N

John Steen
Secretary of State
17
Coamne visit us on the in'r?erncgf af 2(§pgflwmv.sos.ﬂare. tx. s/
Phone: (512) 463-5555 Fax: (512) 463-5709 Dial: 7-1-1 for Relay Services

Dranarad hir Mahhia Mnetafenn TID- 10303 Docoment: 465906300002
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Form 424
Revised 05/11
(‘ ey e.ae. ') FILED
Submit in duplicate lo: In the Office of the
Secretary of State _ . Secretarv of State of Texas
P.O. Box 13697 '
Austin, 'I'X 78711-3697 Certificate of Amendment FEB 13 2013
512 463-5555 C )
FAX: 512/463-5709 . Orporations Section
Filing Wee: See instructions
Entity Information
‘The name of the filing entlty is:
THE BETA FOUNDATION

State the name of the entity as vurrenily shown in the records of the secrotury of sinte. |f the amendment changes the name
of tho entity, siato the old nome and not the new nume.

The filinyg entity is a: (Select the uppropriata entity type below,)

[ For-profit Corporation [] Professional Corporstion
3 Nonproflt Corporation (] Prafessional Limited Liabilty Compuny
{TJ Coopenative Association ] Profcssional Assoclation
] Limiied Liabitity Company ] Limited Purtnership
The file number issued to the filing entity by the secretary of state is: 801466854
The dete of formation of the entity ls: 08/15/201)
Amendments

1. Amende¢d Name
(!t'the purposs ol the cetl e of ainendment iy [ change the wetie of the entity, wse the followinyg staement)

The amendment changes the certificate of formation to change the article or pravision that names the
filing entity. The article or provision is umended to read as follows:

The name of the tiling entity is: (state the new name of the entity below)

The pamo of (he entity must confaln un organizationul designalion or eccepied shbreviution of such term, as spplicabie.

2. Amended Registered Agent/Registered Office

The amendment changes the certificate of formation to change the article or provision stating the
name of the registered agent and the registered office address of the filing entity. The article or
provision Is amended to read as fallows:

tonn 124 [}
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Registered Apent
(Complete either A ot B, but not both, Also complete ,)

[T A. The registered agent is an organization (cannot be entity named above) by the name of:

aRr
{1 B. The registered agent is an individual resident of the state whose name is:

First Narme AL Lasi Name Suffix
The person executing this instrument affirms that the person designaled as the new registered agent
has consented to serve as registercd agent.

C. The business address of the registered agent and the registered office address is:

X
Strect Address (No P.O. Bay) Ciry State  Zip Cadle

3. Other Added, Altered, or Deleted Provisions

Other changes or additions to the certificate of formation may be made in the space provided below. 10 the space provided
is insufficient, incorporate the additional text by providing an attachment to this form. Please read the instructions to this

form for further information on {ormat.

Text Area (The attached addendum, if any, is incorporated henein by relerence.)

{ § Add each of the following provisions to the certificate of formation. The identification or
reference of the added provision and the fulf text are as follows:

[_] Alter each of the following provisions of the cerlificate of formation. The identification or
reference of the altered provision and the full text of the provision as amended are as follows:

{¢] Delete each of the provisions identified below from the certificate of formation.

ARTICLE Tl - Please dclete the following board of directors member:
LATISHA SMITH-ANDREWS, 970} ALMEDA GENOA RD, HOUSTON, TX 77075

Statement of Approval

The amendments to the certificate of formation have been approved in the manner required by the
Texas Business Organizations Code and by the governing documents of the entity.

Form 424 2
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Effectiveness of Filing (Scicct civer A, B, or C.)

A. |¥] This document becomes effective when the document is filed by the secretary of state.

B. [] This document becomes effective at a later date, which is not more than ninety (90) days from
the date of signing. The delayed eflective date is:
C. [} This document takes effect upon the occurrence of a future event or fact, other than the

passage of time. The 90™ day after the date of signing is:
The Tollowing event or fact will cause the document to take effect in the manner described below:

Execufion

The undersigned signs this document subject to the penalties imposed by law for the submission of a
materially false or fraudulent instrument and certifies under penalty of perjury that the undersigned is
authorized under the provisions of law governing the entity to execute the filing instrument,

Date: Feb 13, 2013

i

Printed ar typed name of authorized person {see insinictivas)

Latisha Andrews, CEQ/Superintendent

Form 424 8
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John Steen

Corporations Scction
Secretary of State

P.O.Box 13697
Austin, Texas 78711-3697

Office of the Secretary of State

February 14, 2013

Atin: Latisha Andrews

The Beta Foundation -
9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075 USA

RE: The Beta Foundation
File Number: 801466854

It has been our pleasure to file the Certificate of Amendment for the referenced entity. Enclosed is the
certificate evidencing filing. Payment of the filing fee is acknowledged by this letter.

If we may be of further service at any time, please let us know.

Sincerely,

Corporations Section
Business & Public Filings Division
(512) 463-5555

Enclosure

176 of 369
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Hope Andrade

Corporations Section
Secretary of State

P.0.Box 13697
Austin, Texes 78711-3697

Office of the Seretary of State

CERTIFICATE OF FILING
OF

The Beta Foundation
File Number: 801466854

The undersigned, as Secretary of State of Texas, hereby certifies that a Certificate of Fonmation for the
above named Domestic Nonprofit Corporation has been received i this office and has been found to

conform to the applicable provisions of law.

ACCORDINGLY, the imdersigned, as Secretary of State, and by virtue of the authority vested in the
secretary by law, hereby issues this certificate evidencing filing effective on the dats shown below.

The issuance of this certificate does not authorize the use of a name in this state in violstion of the rights
of enother under the federal Trademark Act of 1946, the Texas trademark law, the Assumed Business or

Professional Name Act, or the common law.

Dated: 08/15/2011
Effective: 08/15/2011

At

Hope Andrade
Secretary of State

Come visit us on the internet at hiip:/Mww.sos.state tx. us/ )
Fax: (512} 463-5709 Dial: 7-1-1 for Relay Services

Phone: (512) 463-5555
177 of 363



FILED
In the Off;
Secratary of s'tcaeg: !,}r-';%x“
CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION AU 15 201
Oo¥

THE BETA FOUNDATION Comorations Section
The undersigned natural person, of the age of cighteen (i8) years or more, acting
8s organizer of a Corporation under the Texas Business Organizations Code, adopts the
following Certificate of Formation,
ARTICLE |

The name of the corporation is The Beta Foundation, The filing entity being
formed is & non-profit corporation. The period of its duration is perpetual,
ARTICLEDD
The business sddress of the registered office of the corporation is 9701 Almeda
Genoa Rd., Houston, TX 77075 and the-name of its registered agent at such address is
Latisha Andrews.
ARTICLE II .
The mumber of directars of the corporation, which shall constitute its Board of
Directors and the governing body of the carporation, shall be fixed by or as provided in

the Bylaws of the corporation. Until changed by ar as provided in the Bylaws, the
number of directors shall be no fewer than three and no more than five. The current

Directors are:

1. Timothy Wayne King, 9701 Almeda Genoa Rd., Houston, TX 77075

Susan Nordin, 9701 Almeda Genoa Rd., Houston, TX 77075
Teresa Sones, 9701 Almeda Genoa Rd., Houston, TX 77075

2

Jan Saunders, 9701 Almeda Genoa Rd., Houston, TX 77075
Latisha Smith-Andrews, 9701 Almeda Genoa Rd., Houston, TX 77075
ARTICLE IV
The corporation shal] have no members.
ARTICLEV
The corporation is organized exclusively for cheritable and educational purpases,

including for such purposes the making of distributions to organizations that qualify as
tax exempt organizations under Section 501(c)3) of the Intermal Revenue Code of 1986,
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or the corresponding provision of any future federal tax code. In particular, the
corporation is organized to educate, train and prepare individuals to function well in
society and to provide educational opportunities and experiences. The corporation shall
also seek to own and operate an Open-Enrollment Charter School (the “School”) as
provided under the Texas Education code for the benefit of students in Texas, providing
such students with education opportunity and programs as it deems appropnate in
furtherance of the purposes set forth in this Certificate Formation,

The corporation is organized to have and exercise all rights and powers conferred
upon non-profit corporations under the laws of the State of Texas, or which may hereafter
be so conferred, in order to promote charitable and educational activities.

No part of the net eamings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of, or be
distributable to, its officers, directors or other private persons, except that the corporation,
in accordance with applicable law, shall be authorized and empowered to pay reasonable
compensation for services rendered and to make payments and distributions in
furtherance of the purposes of the corporation set forth in these Articles herein. No
substantial part of the activities of the corporation shall be the carrying on of propaganda,
or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and the corporation shall not participate
in, or intervene in (including the publishing or distribution of statements) any political
campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for public office.

Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the corporation shall not cacry on any
other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt from federal
income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or the
comresponding provision of any fumre federal tax code, or (b) by any corporation,
contributions to which are deductible under Section 170(c)(2) of the Internal revenue
Code of 1986, or the corresponding provision of any future federal tax code.

ARTICLE VI

All money and other assets owned or controlled by the corporation, wherever
derived, shall be devoted for use in performing the charitable and educational functions
of the corporation solely through the furthering of the primary purposes of the

corporation.

Except as otherwise required by applicable state or federal law, upon dissolution
or liquidation of this corporation, and after payment of all debts and satisfaction of all
liabilities and obligations of the corporation (or making adequate provision therefore),
and after the return, transfer, or conveyance of all assets requiring return, transfer, or
conveyance thereof because of the dissolution or liquidation of the corporation, any
remaining assels of this corporation shall be distributed to charitable or educational
organizations that would then qualify as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, or the corresponding provision of any future
federal tax code, as determined by the Board of Directors of the corporation,
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ARTICLE VII

The name and street address of the organizer is Latisha Andrews, 9701 Almeda
Genoa Rd., Houston, TX 77075.

ARTICLE vIll

This Certificate shall be effective on the date filed with the Secretary of State of
Texas.

ARTICLE IX

The initial Bylaws of the corporation shall be adopted by its Board of Directors,
and the power to alter, amend or repeal the Bylaws or adopt new Bylaws shall be vested
in its Board of Directors,

ARTICLE X

To the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, a director of this corporation
shall not be ltable to the corporation or its members for monetary damages for an act or
omission in the director’s capacity as a director, except that this Article does not
eliminate or limit the liability of a director to the extent the director is found to be liable

for:
(a)  abreach of a director’s duty of loyalty to the corporation;

(b)  anact or omission not in good faith that constitutes a breach of duty of the
director to the corporation or an act or omission that involves intentional misconduct or a
knowing violation of the law;

(c) a transaction from which the director received an improper benefit,
whether or not the benefit resulted from an action taken within the scope of the director’s

office; or

(d) an act or omission for which the liability of a director is expressly
provided by applicable law.

ARTICLE XI

The corporations shall indemnify any person who (i) is or was s director, officer,
employee, or agent of the corporation, or (ii) while a director, office, employee, or agent
of the corporation, is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer,
trustee, employee, agent, or similar functionary of another foreign or domestic non-profit
corporation, trust, employee benefit plan, or other enterprise, to the fullest extent that a
corporation may or is required to grant indemnification to a director under the Texas
Business Organizations Code as now written or as hereafter amended, but only to the

180 of 369

e —— 4 o ¢ n v i 4 4



extent permitted for (a) a corporation exempt from federal income tax under Section
501(c)(3) of the Intemal Revenue Code of 1986, or the comresponding provision of any
future federal tax code , and (b) a2 corporation, contributions to which are deductible
under Section 170(c)(2) of the Intenal Revenue Code of 1986, or the comesponding

provision of any future federal tax code.

ARTICLE XHI
Except as otherwise provided in the Bylaws of the corporation, this Certificate of

Formation may be altered, amended, or repealed only as provided in the Texas Business
Organizations Code, ag presently written or hereafter amended.

Dated QA.LA/ S}, W01
0

THE BETA FOUNDATION

By: /s/Latisha Andrews
Latisha Andrews , Organizer
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AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS OF THE BETA FOUNDATION

WHEREAS, the initial Board of Directors of The Beta Foundation (the
“Corporation™) caused to be filed with the Texas Secretary of State a Certificate of
Formation for the organization of the Comporation NOW, THEREFORE:

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Corporation, that these
Bylaws will govern its affairs in pursuit of its declared purposes.

PREAMBLE
CORPORATE PURPOSE, OBJECTIVES AND DEDICATION OF ASSETS

The Corporation shall submit an application with the State of Texas to own and
operate an Open-Enrollment Charter School (the “School™) as provided under the Texas
Education Code for the benefit of students in Texas, providing educational opportunities,
programs and such other functions as it deems appropriate in furtherance of the purposes
as provided in the Certificate of Formation. This Corporation is formed for charitable and
educational purposes, and it will be nonprofit and nonpartisan. No substantial part of the
activities of the Corporation will consist of the publication or dissemination of materials
or statements with the purpose of attempting to influence legislation, and the Corporation
will not participate or intervene in any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to
any candidate of public office. The Corporation will not engage in any activities or
exercise any powers that are not in furtherance of the charitable and educational purposes
described in the Certificate of Formation.

The properties and assets of the Corporation are imrevocably dedicated to
charitable and educational purposes. No part of the net eamings, properties or assets of
this corporation, on dissolution or otherwise, shall inure to the benefit of any private
person, or any director or officer of this Corporation. On liquidation or dissolution, all
properties, assets and obligations will be distributed or paid over to an organization
dedicated to charitable and educational purposes that is tax-exempt pursuant to Intemnal
Revenue Code Section 501(c)3) as amended or as otherwise required by state and
federal law.

The Corporation, in all its activities and programs, shall not discriminate on the
basis of sex, national origin, ethnicity, religion, disability or any other prohibited manner.

ARTICLE ONE
NAME. OFFICE AND SEAL

1.01 NAME: The name of the Corporation is “The Beta Foundation.”

1.02 OFFICE: The principal office of the Corporation will be tocated at 9701
Almeda Genoa Rd., Houston, TX 77075.
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1.03 SEAL: The corporate seal of the Corporation will be inscribed with the
Corporation name and year and place of its incorporation.

ARTICLE TWO
MEETINGS

2.01 REGULAR MEETINGS: Regular meetings of the Board of Directors will
be held as needed to conduct business and in accordance with Article 2.04 herein.
Meetings shall be held at a time and location selected by the Board and in accordance
with state law, The primary purpose of the meetings will be to review the performance of
the Corporation for the current fiscal year, to plan the program and activities of the
Corporation for the next fiscal year, and to transact any other business as may properly
come before the Board of Directors.

2.02 SPECIAL MEETINGS: Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be
called for any purpose not otherwise prescribed by statute, regulation, grant or loan
condition or the Certificate of Formation, by the Chairman, or by any two Directors, to
transact any business described in the call for the special meetings. The notice for a
special meeting must be provided in accordance with Article 2.04 herein.

2.03 ANNUAL MEETINGS: Annual meetings of the Board will be held in the
month of August or as soon thereafter as practical, at a time and location selected by the
Board. The primary purpose of the annual meeting will be to review the performance of
the Corporation for the current fiscal year, to plan the operations and activities of the
Corporation for the next fiscal year, to elect officers of the Corporation, and to transact
any other business as may properly come before the Board of Directors.

2.04 MEETINGS: Upon approval of the Corporation’s application for an Open-
Enrollment Charter, meetings shall be conducted in accordance with provisions of the
Texas Education Code, and the Board of Directors shall be subject to the requirements of
the Texas Open Meetings Act, including the following provisions: At no time shall a
quorum of the full board meet to deliberate any issue or business of the Corporation
without posting notice of a meeting as set forth below. Directors shall normally attend all
meetings in person.

{(a) Closed Meetings: The Board may meet in a meeting closed to the public to
deliberate on those matters specified in the Texas Open Meetings Act as proper
for closed meetings, including but not limited to consultation with attorney, real
estate, prospective gifts or donations, personnel matiers, security personnel or
devices, discipline of a student and complaint against an employee unless the
student or employee respectively requests an open meeting.

{b) Emergency Meetings: In the event of an emergency as defined in the Texas
Open Meetings Act, a meeting may be conducted by telephone conference call. If
a meeting involves telephonic participation, the telephonic participation must be
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by conference call in which all persons participating can be heard by all other
participants and the public.

(c) Video Conferencing: Meetings may also be conducted by videoconference
call, provided a quorum of the full board is present at one location, audio and
video is simultaneously available to the participants and the public, and other
prereguisites and requirements of the Texas Open Meetings Act are met.

2.05 MEETINGS NOTICE: Upon approval of the Corporation’s application for
an Open-Enrollment Charter, the following shall apply: Notice of all meetings of the
Board of Directors, except as otherwise provided by state law, regulation, the Certificate
of Formation or these Bylaws, will be delivered by mail postmarked, electronic facsimile
or e-mail transmission to each Director at least 72 hours before the time of the meeting.

(a) Posting of Notice: In addition, notice to the public of any meeting shall be
posted at the administrative offices of the Corporation in a location convenient to
the public at least 72 hours before the time of such meeting.

(b) Emergency Notice: Emergency meetings as allowed under the Texas Open
Meetings Act may be posted up to two hours before such meeting.

(c) Internet Posting: Notice and the agenda of all meetings of the Board of
Directors shall also be posted on the Corporation’s internet website, if any,
concurrently with the notice posted at the administrative offices, or as otherwise
required and authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act.

(d) Closed Meetings: The agenda shall clearly state whether the Board intends to
convene in a closed meeting and shall identify separately each matter to be
deliberated by the Board in the closed meeting and whether the Board may take
action on any such matter upon returning to the open meeting. The Secretary
shall note the times in the open meeting that the Board convenes to and adjourns
from the closed meeting.

2.06 AGENDA: Upon approval of the Corporation’s application for an Open-
Enrollment Charter, the following shall apply: At regular meetings of the Board, the
order of business shall be established in an Agenda approved by the Chairman and as
presented in the notice of the meetings. However, the Chairman may modify the order of
business. The agenda shall identify all matters to be presented to and considered by the
Board. Matters not disclosed in the agenda and meeting notice available to the public
shall not be deliberated or be considered by the Board, except as permitted by the Texas
Open Meetings Act.

2.07 RESOLUTIONS: All motions and resolutions of the Board will be written
or recorded in the minutes of the Board and certified copies will be placed in a journal of
proceedings of the Board. Such records shail be maintained in accordance with state law
and Article 2.10 herein.
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2.08 QUORUM: At any meeting of the Board of Directors or at any designated
committee of the Board, the appearance of a majority of the Directors or committee
members duly appointed, serving, and qualified to vote, will be necessary to constitute a
quorum to transact any business of the respective body.

2.09 VOTING: All matters at any meeting of the Board of Directors or any of its
designated committees, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Certificate of
Formation, or law, will be decided by a vote of a majority of the Directors or committee
members present at the meeting. If a quorum of the Board is present the affirmative vote
of a majority of the Board of Directors present at a meeting will be the act of the body of
corporate, unless the vote of a greater number is required by statute, regulation, the
Certificate of Formation, or these Bylaws. Voting on all questions may be by voice vote.
A roll call vote on any motion or resolution may be requested by any Director.

2.10 RECORDS: The Corporation will maintain at its principal office all
financial books and records of account, all minutes of the Board meetings and commitice
meetings, the list of Directors, and copies of all other material Corporate records, books,
documents and contracts as required by law. All such records will be made available for
inspection at any reasonable time during usual business hours for any lawful purpose to
any officer, Director, or person authorized by law or the Board to inspect such records,
and as required by the Texas Public Information Act. Upon leaving office, each Director,
officer or agent of the Corporation will tum over to the Chairman in good order any
Corporation monies, books, records, minutes, lists, documents, contracts or other
property of the Corporation in his or her custody or control.

2.11 PROCEDURES: For all matters of parliamentary procedures, the School
Board shall be guided by Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised, 10th ed. (Cambridge,
Mass.: Perseus Publishing, 2000).

ARTICLE THREE
DIRECTORS

3.01 MANAGEMENT: The activities, affairs, property and powers of the
Corporation will be managed, directed, controlled or exercised by and vested in the
Board of Directors.

3.02 NUMBER AND QUALIFICATIONS: The Board of Directors will consist
of no fewer than three (3) persons.

3.03 REMOVAL: Any Director who fails to attend three (3) consecutive
meetings may be asked to resign from office by resolution of the Board of Directors. The
Secretary will notify Directors when they have missed three (3) regular consecutive
meetings. Absences may be formally excused by vote of the Board. The Secretary will
certify a Director’s excessive absence to the Chaimman. Any Director may also be
removed with or without cause upon a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of all the remaining

AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS OF THE BETA FOUNDATION 185 of 369
PAGE 4



directors for removal. However, the Chairman of the Board may only be removed upon a
two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of all the remaining directors for good cause.

3.04 TERM: The Directors shall serve for three-year terms, which may be
renewed indefinitely by each respective Director, subject to Articles 3.03 and 3.06 herein
and with state law governing qualifications and restrictions on service as a member of a
governing body of a charter holder or charter school.

3.05 VACANCY: The Chairman of the Board will appoint Directors to fill
vacancies. Each Director appointed or designated to fill a vacancy on the Board of
Directors will hold office for the remainder of the term of the Board of Directors. A
vacancy occurring on any committee may be filled by the Board of Directors for the
remainder of the term of the position.

3.06 RESIGNATION: Any director or officer may resign from the Corporation
by delivering a written letter of resignation to the Chairman of the Board.

3.07 COMPENSATION: Except as provided in this section, no Director will
receive directly or indirectly any salary, compensation or gift from the Corporation,
except as authorized by state law. The Directors of the Corporation will serve as such
without salary. No Director will be entitled to any dividend or any part of the income or
principal of the Corporation or to share in the distribution of the assets upon dissolution
of the Corporation. The Board of Directors may authorize the payment by the
Corporation of the reasonable, documented and allowable expenses incumred by a
Director in performance of his or her duties in accordance with state and federal law.

ARTICLE FOUR
OFFICERS

4.01 OFFICERS: The officers of the Corporation will consist of the Chairman of
the Board, a Vice-Chairman of the Board, and a Secretary/Treasurer and any other
officers that the Board may establish and designate by resolution adopted by a majority of
vote of the whole Board.

4.02 APPOINTMENT: The officers of the Corporation will be appointed each
year by the Chairman of the Board at its annual meeting,

4,03 CHAIRMAN: The Chairman of the Board will preside at all meetings of the
Board of Directors. The Chairman will have other powers and duties not inconsistent
with these Bylaws as may be assigned by the Board. The Vice-Chairman will have the
powers and duties of the Chairman in his absence.

4.04 VICE-CHAIRMAN: A Vice-Chairman will act under the direction of the
Chairman and in his absence have the duties and powers of the Chairman. A Vice-
Chairman will have other duties and powers as the Chairman of the Board of Directors
may assign.
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4.05 SECRETARY/TREASURER: The Secretary will have the general powers
and duties usually vested in such office of a Corporation, including keeping all records,
documeants and the corporate seal at the principal office of the Corporation; affixing the
corporate seal to any instrument requiring it and to attest the same by his or her signature
when authorized by the Board of Directors or after the instrument has been signed by the
Chairman, Vice-Chairman or other authorized officer or agent: keeping the minutes of
the meetings of the Board of Directors, the Executive and other committees of the Board
of Directors, the Executive and other committees of the Corporation to recorded in one or
more books provided for that purpose, with the time and place, how they were called or
authorized, the notice given, the names of those present, and the proceedings therein; and
issuing proper notices in accordance with these Bylaws. The Secretary/Treasurer will
have such other powers and duties not inconsistent with these Bylaws as may be assigned
by the Board of Directors or the Chairman. The Secretary will be responsible for all
funds and securities of the Corporation and will have the general powers and duties
usually vested in such office of a Corporation, including receiving and documenting all
monies due and payable to the Corporation; depositing all monies received in the name of
the Corporation in a depository designed by the Board, disbursing monies of the
Corporation under the direction or orders of the Board; entering regularly in the books
kept by the Secretary/Treasurer a complete and accurate account of all monies received
and disbursed by the Corporation; rendering a statement of the financial accounts of the
Corporation to the Board as requested; exhibiting the books of the financial accounts of
the Corporation to the Board as requested; exhibiting the books of account in his custody
to any Director upon request; and submitting a full financial report to the Board of
Directors at the annual meetings. The Secretary/Treasurer will have such other powers
and duties not inconsistent with the Bylaws as may be assigned by the Board of Directors
or the Chairman,

4,07 CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER/EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE
CHARTER SCHOOL AND SCHOOL QOPERATION: The Board of Directors shall hire
a Chief Executive Officer for and to be employed by the Charter School. The Chief
Executive Officer selected may be a member of the Board of Directors as may be
permitied by state law, but if he/she is a member of the Board of Directors, he/she shall
resign such position on the Board immediately upon hiring if required by state law. The
Chief Executive Officer shall report to the Board of Directors of the Corporation. The
Chief Executive Officer shall be deemed to be a Superintendent of the school as provided
by the Texas Education Code.

The Chief Executive Officer shall be considered the “Executive Director” of the
Corporation and shall serve under such terms and conditions as the Board determines to
be in the best interest of the Corporation and the Charter School, including employment
“at will.” The Chief Executive Officer shall perform such duties as delegated and
assigned by the Corporation’s Board, or as required by state law.

4,08 OTHER OFFICERS: The Board of Directors may create by resolution other
offices, as it deems necessary to serve the Corporation and to operate the Charter School
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and may appoint other individuals, who need not be directors, to serve as officers or
agents of the Corporation.

ARTICLE FIVE
COMMITTEES

5.01 COMMITTEES: Designated committees may be established by the
Chairman of the Board or the Board to perform the duties and functions assigned in
furtherance of Board objectives. Any commitiee may include one or more Directors from
the Board. The Chairman of the Board or its designee will appoint the members, officers,
or others to committee positions. The rules of procedure of any committee may be set by
the Board. Any committee may be abolished or any commitiee member removed for any
reason and at any time by the Board of Directors.

5.02 NOTICE: Written notice of the time, place and agenda of all commitiee
meetings will be given by the committee chair in the same manner as notices given for
regular Board meetings. Each committee will keep and deliver a copy of minutes of its
proceedings to the Secretary of the Board and will report briefly on its activities at each
Board meeting.

ARTICLE SIX
DEPOSITS, CHECKS, LOANS AND CONTRACTS

6.01 DEPOSITORIES: All funds of the Corporation not otherwise employed will
be deposited in banks or other depositories designated by the Board of Directors and in
accordance with state law.

6.02 TRANSACTIONS: All checks, drafts, endorsements, notes and evidences of
indebtedness of the Corporation will be signed by such officers or agents and all
endorsements for deposits to the credit of the Corporation will be made as authorized by
the Board of Directors.

6.03 LOAN OR GRANT AUTHORITY: No loans or advances will be contracted
on behalf of the Corporation, and no note or other evidence of indebtedness will be issued
in its name, except as authorized by the Board.

6.04 CONTRACT AUTHORITY: The Chief Executive Officer is expressly
authorized by the Board of Directors to enter into contracts or execute and deliver
instruments on behalf of the Charter School.

ARTICLE SEVEN |
CONTRACTS WITH DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

7.01 INSIDER DEALING: Subject to any law, regulation, or contractual
agreement of the Texas Business Organizations Code, no Director, officer or committee
member will be interested directly or indirectly in any contract or program involving
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Corporation assets, relating to the operation conducted by it or in any contract for
furnishing services or supplies to it, unless (a} the contract is authorized by a majority of
Directors present at a meeting in which there is a quorum and vote without the interested
Director’s presence, (b) the facts and nature of the Director’s interest is fully disclosed to
the whole Board of Directors before the meeting in which the contract will be considered
and (c) the Corporation could not have obtained a more advantageous arrangement with
reasonable effort under the circumstances.

7.02 INSIDER LOANS: No loans or granis will be made by the Corporation to
its Directors, officers or committee members during their term of office. The Directors
who vote for or assent to, and any officer who participates in, the making of a loan to a
Director or officer will jointly and severally be liable to the Corporation for the amount
of the loan until it is repaid.

ARTICLE EIGHT
INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

8.01 LIABILITY: A Director or committee member will not be required to
fumish any bond or surety for his services as a Director or committee member, and will
not be liable for the act or omission of any other Director.

8.02 INDEMNIFICATION: Any person made or threatened to be made a party to
any action in court or other proceeding because he is or was a Director or committee
member will be indemnified by the Corpeoration against any and all liability and the
reasonable expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred in connection with the defense or
settlement of the action, except where it is adjudged that the Director or committee
member is liable for gross negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct in performing his
duties, The right of indemnification will not exclude any other right of the Director or
committee member. INDEMNIFICATION UNDER THIS SECTION IS SUBJECT TO
ANY AND ALL PROHIBITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND LIMITATIONS IMPOSED
BY LAW.

8.03 INSURANCE: The Board of Directors will have the power to purchase and
maintain at the Corporation’s expense insurance on behalf of the Corporation, the Board
of Directors, and others.

ARTICLE NINE
AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

9.01 AMENDMENT: Except as otherwise provided in the Certificate of
Formation, and subject to the power of the Board 10 amend or repeal these Bylaws, these
Bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed and new Bylaws may be adopted by a
majority vote, provided that written notice setting forth in detail the proposed Bylaws
revisions with explanations for the change is given at least three days previgusly. In the
case of an emergency, which must be explained in the notice, two hours notice of a
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proposed amendment may be given to all Directors, and the Bylaws may be amended
upon the unanimous vote of all Directors.

ARTICLE TEN
MISCELLANOQUS

10.01 FISCAL YEAR. The fiscal year of the Corporation will begin on
September 1 of each year and will end on July 31 of the next year.

10.02 ANNUAL REPORT: The Chief Executive Officer of the school will
provide to the Board no later than 90 days after the close of the fiscal year a report
containing the following information in appropriate detail.

(a) The assets and liabilities of the Corporation as of the end of the fiscal year;
(b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities during the fiscal year;

(c) The revenues and receipts, both restricted and unrestricted to particular
purposes, for the fiscal year,

(d) The expenses or disbursements, for both general and restricted purposes,
during the fiscal year;

(e) The substantial activities and projects begun, in progress, and completed
during the fiscal year;

(f) Such other information as may be required by the Texas Education Code
and interpretive regulations or as may be requested by the Board.

The report will be accompanied by a report of an independent accountant, or in
lieu of such report, the certificate of an authorized officer of the Corporation that such
statements were prepared without audit from the books and records of the Corporation.

10.03 TEXAS PUBLIC INFORMATION ACT: Upon execution of a contract
for an Open-Enrollment Charter with the State of Texas, the Corporation shall be subject
to the requirements of the Texas Public Information Act and shall promptly produce
public information for inspection, duplication, or both on application by any person in
accordance with such act.

10.04 CONSTRUCTION: Whenever the context requires, the masculine will
include the feminine and neuter, and the singular will include the plural, and vice versa.
If any portion of these Bylaws is declared invalid or inoperative, then so far as is
reasonable the remainder of these Bylaws will be considered valid and operative and
effect will be given to the intent manifested by the portion held invalid or inoperative.
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10.05 STATUTORY AND OTHER AUTHORITY: These Bylaws are subject to
and governed by any applicable federal or state laws and regulations, including the Texas
Education Code and interpretive regulations, pertinent local ordinances and the
Certificate of Formation.

ADOPTED this 20" day of February.

/s/ Teresa Sones

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
AMENDED AND RESTATED
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by| conference call in which all persons participating can be heard by all other
participants and the public.

Video Conferencing: Meetings may also be conducied by videoconference
, provided a quorum of the full board is present &t one location, audio and

idac is simultanecusly available to the participants and the public, and other

prarequisites and requirements of the Texas Open Mectings Act are met.

2.05 MEETINGS NOTICE: Upon approval of the Corporation's application for
an Open-Horollmeut Chaster, the following shall apply: Notice of all meetings of the
Board of Ipirectors, except as otherwise provided by state law, regulation, the Cenificate
of Formation o these Bylaws, will be delivered by mail postmarked, electronic facsimile
or e-mejl fransmission to each Director at least 72 hours before tha time of the meeting.

(8)| Posting of Notice: In addition, potice to the public of any meeting shall be
puosted at the administrative oiices of the Corporation in 2 location convenlent to
public at least 72 hours before the time of such meeting.

(b){ Emergency Notice: Emergency meetings as allowed under the Texas Open
Meetings Act may be posted up to two hours before such meeting.

(c)| Internet Posting: Notice and the agenda of all meetings of the Board of
Dinectors shall also be posted on the Corporation’s internet website, if any,
currently with the notice posted at the administrative offices, or as otherwise
ired and anthorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act,

(d)|Closed Meetings: The agenda shall clearly state whether the Board intends to
cogvene in a closed meeting and shall identify separately each matter to be
deliberated by the Board in the closed meeting and whether the Board may take
action on any such matier upon retuming to the open mecting, The Gcorctary
shell note the times in the open meeting that the Board convenes to and adjourns

from the closed meeting.

2.06 AGENDA: Upon approval of the Corporation’s application for an Open-
Eurollment Cherter, the following shall apply: At regular meetings of the Board, the
arder of blisiness shalt be established in an Agenda approved by the Chairman and as
presented in the notico of tho meetings. However, the Chairman may modify the order of
business, |The agende shall identify all matters to be presented to and considered by the
Board. ers not disclosed in the agenda and meeting notice available to the public
shall not bp deliberated or be considered by the Board, except as permitted by the Texas

Open Meetings Act.
2,0 RESOLUTIONS; All motions and resolutions of the Board will be written

ar recorded in the minutes of the Board and certified copies will he placed in 2 jounal of
proceedings of the Board. Such records shail be maintained in accordance with state faw

and Articlg 2.10 herein.
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{ QUORUM: At any meating of the Board of Directors or at any designated

2.09 VOTING: All matters at any meeting of the Board of Directors or any of its
designated fommittess, except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, the Certificate of

Formation, pr law, will be decided by a vote of a majority of the Directors or committee
members present at the meeting. If & quorum of the Board is present the affirmative vote
of » majorlty of the Board of Directors present at & meering will be the act of the body of

corporate, ynless the vote of a greater number is required by statute, regulation, the
Certificate i Fm-matlon or these Bylaws. Voting on all questions may be by voice vote.
Acroll cgll vpte on any motion or resolutton mey be requested by any Director.

2.10) RECORDS; The Corporatlon will maintain at its principal office all
financial bopks and records of account, all minutes of the Board meetings and committee
mectings, the list of Directors, and copies of all other material Corporate records, books,
documents gnd contracts as required by law. All such records will be made available for
+ inspection g any reasonable time during usual business bours for any lawful purpose to
any officer, [Director, or person authorized by law or the Board to inspect such records,
and as requited by the Texas Public Information Act. Upon leaving office, each Director,
officer or agent of the Corporation will turn over to the Chairman in good order any
Corporation| monies, books, records, minutes, lists, documents, contracts or other
property of thie Corporation in his or her custody or control,

2.11 [PROCEDURES: For all matters of parliamentary procedures, the School
Board shall be guided by Robert's Rules of Order Newly Revised, 10th ed. (Cambridge,
erseps Publishing, 2000),

ARTICLE THREE
DIRECTORS

: 3.01 [MANAGEMENT: The activities, affhirs, property and powers of the
: Corporation |will be managed, directed, coantrolled or exercised by and vested in the

ER AND QUALIFICATIONS: The Board of Directors will consist
three (3) persons,

3.03 REMOVAL: Any Director who fails to attend three (3) consecutive
meetings msy be asked 1o resign from office by resoludon of the Board of Directors. The
notify Directors when they have missed three (3) regular consecutive
meetings. Absences may be formally excused by vote of the Roard, The Secretary will
ceriify & Ditector’s excessive absence to the Chairman. Aay Director may also be
removed with or without cause upon & twa-thirds (2/3) majority vote of all the remaining
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directors fur remmoval, [lowever, the Chairman of the Board mgy only be removed upon a
two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of all the remeining directors for good canse.

. 3.04 TERM: The Directors shall serve for three-year tenms, which may be
renewed infefinitely by each respective Director, subject to Articles 3.03 and 3.06 herein
and with state law governing qualifications and restrictions on servico os 2 member of a

goveming body of a charter holder or charter school,

3.03 VACANCY: The Cheirman of the Board will appoint Directors to fill
vacancies. | Each Director appainted or designated to fill & vacancy op the Board of
Directors will hold office for the remainder of the term of the Board of Directors. A
vecancy ogourring on any committee may be filled by the Board of Directors for the
remainder pf the tenm of the pusition. )

3.06 RESIGNATION: Any director or officer muy resign from the Corporation
by deliverifg a written letter of resignation to the Chairman of the Board,

3.0 COMPENSATION: Except as provided in this section, nv Director will
ctly or indirectly any salary, compensation or gift from the Corporation,
orized by state law. The Directors of the Corporation will serve as such
alary, No Director will be entitled to any dividend or any part of the income or
principal of the Corporation or to share in the distribution of the assets upon dissolution
of the Corporation. The Board of Direciors may authorize the payment by the
Corporatioh of the reasonable, documented and allowable expenses incumred by &
in|performance of his or her duticy in accardance with stato and federal law.

ARTICLEFOUR
OFFICERS

4.0] OFFICERS: The officers of the Corporation will consist of the Chairman of
the B 8 Vice-Chairman of the Board, and a Secretary/Treasurer and any other
officers that the Board muy uslablish and designate by resolution adopted by & majority of
vote of thejwhole Board.

4.02 APPOINTMENT: The officers of the Carporation will be appointed each
year by thd Chairman of the Board at its anmus] meeting.

4,03 CHAIRMAN: The Chairman of the Board will preside at all meetings of the
Board of Directors, The Chairman will have other powers and duties not inconsistent
with these Bylaws as may be assigned by the Board, The Vice-Chairman will have the

powers and duties of the Chairman in his abzence,

4.04 VICE-CHAIRMAN: A Vice-Chairman will act under the direction of the
Chbairman knd in his ebsence have the duties and powers of the Chairman. A Vice-
ill have gther duties and powers as the Chairman of the Board of Directors
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and may sipcint other individuals, who need not be directors, to serve as officers or
agents of the Corporation,

ARTICLE FIVE
COMMITTEES

501 COMMITTEES: Designated committees may be established by the
Cheirman ¢f the Board or the Boerd to perform the duties and functions assigned in
furtherance/of Board obfectives. Any committee may include one or more Directors from
the Board. {The Chairman of the Board or its designee will appoint the members, officers,
or others tolcommittee positions. The rules of procedure of any committee may be set by
the Board. |Any committee may be abolished or any committee member removed for any
reason and it any time by the Board of Directors.

5.04 NOTICE: Written notice of the time, place and agenda of all committee
be given by the committee chair in the same manner as natices given for

drd meetings. Each committee will keep and deliver a copy of minutes of its
ingp to the Seoretary of the Board and will report briefly on its activities al each

Board tegljng.

ARTICLE SIX
SITS CKS, LO. C

6.0} DEPOSITORIES: All funds of the Corporation not otherwise emplayed will
in banks or other depositorics dusigneted by the Board of Directors and in

48 of the Cm'poran.cm will be s:gned'by such officers or agents and all
endorsemegts for depaosits to the credit ot the Corporation will be made a5 authorized Ly

the Board af Directors.

6.0{ LOAN OR GRANT AUTHORITY: No loans or advances will be contracted
an hehalf of the Carporation, and no note or other evidence of indebtednesg will be issued
in its flame| except as authorized by the Board.

6.0 CONTRAC1 AUTHORITY: The Chief Execulive Officer is expressly
authorized [by the Board of Directors to enter into contracts or execute and deliver
ing on behalf of the Charter School.

ARTICLE SEVEN
Co CT DIRECTO OFEICE

7.0] INSIDER DEALING: Subject to amy law, regulation, or contractual
agreement pf the Texas Business Organizations Code, no Director, officer or committee
member will be interested directly or indirectly in any contract or program involving
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assets, relating to the operation conducted by it or in any contract for
ices or supphes to it, unless (a) the contract is authorized by a mejority of
Directors present at a meeting in which there is a quorum end vote without the interested
Director’s piresence, (b) the facts and nature of the Director’s interest is fully disclosed to
the whole Hoard of Directors before the meeting in which the contract will be considered
uud (¢) the Corporation could not havo obtrined a more sdvantageous arrengement with

reasonable éffort under the circumstances.

Corporatio
furnishing

7.02/ INSIDER. LOANS: No loans or grants will be made by the Corporation to
its Directors, officers or committee members during their term of office. The Directors
who vote fgr or assent to, and any officer who participates in, the making of a loan to a
Director or|officer will jointly and severally be Iiable to the Corporation for the amouynt

of tho loan tmtil it is repaid.

ARTICLE EIGHT
IND, CATIO D OR. 1C

8.01l LIABILITY: A Ditector or commitiee mcmbor will not be required to
furnish any|bond ar surety for his services as a Director or committes membaer, and will
not be liable for the act or omission of any other Director,

8.02 INDEMNIFICATION: Any person made or threatened to be made a party to
any action jn court or other proceeding because he I8 or was a Direslor or committes
member wifl be indemnified by the Corporation against any and all liability and the
reasonable gxperises; including attorney's fees, incurred in connection with the defense or
settlement bf the action, except where It is adjudged that the Director or ‘committee
member is Jiable for gross negligence, bad faith or willful misconduct In performing his
duties. Thg right of indemnification will not exclude any other right of the Director or
committee member, INDEMNIFICATION UNDER THIS SECTION IS SUBJECT TO
ANY AND|ALL PROMIBITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND LIMITATIONS IMPOSED

BYLAW.

8.03[ INSURANCE: The Boerd of Directors will have the power to purchase and
maintain atithe Corporation’s expense insurance on behalf of the Corporation, the Board
of Directord, and others.

ARTICLE NINE
OF BYLAWS

9.0 AMENDMENT: Except as otherwise provided in the Certificate of
Formation, and subject to the power of the Board to amend or repes! these Bylaws, these
Bylaws may be altered, amended or repenled and new Bylaws may be adopicd by a
ma;onty vqte, provided that written notice setting forth in detail the proposed Bylaws
rovisions with explanations for the change is given at least three days previously. In the
case of an lemergency, which must be explained in the notice, two hours notice of a
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proposed amendment may be given to ajl Directors, and the Bylaws may be amended
upoft the ungnimous vote of all Directors.

ARTICLE TEN
MISCELLANQUS

1001 FISCAL YEAR. The fiscal year of the Corporation will begin on
September I{ of each year and will end on July 31 of the next year.

1002 ANNUAL REPORT: The Chief Executive Officer of the school will
provide to the Board no later than 90 days after the close of the fisval year & report

containing the following information in sppropriate detail.
()| The assets and liabilities of the Corporation as of the end of the fiscal year;
{(b) The principal changes in axsets and liabiiities during the fiscal year;

(c)l The revepues and reueipts, both restrioted and unrestricted to particular
purposes, for the fiscal year;

(d) Tho expenses ar disbursements, for both general and restricted purposes,
during the fiscal year;

(¢) The substandal activiies and projecfs begun, in progress, aod completed
duriny Lhe fiscal ycar,

] Snuch other information as may be required by the Texas Education Code
and interpretive regulations or as may be requested by the Board.

report will be sccompanied by a report of ka Independent acoountant, or in
lieu of sucl report, the certificate of an authorized officer of the Corporation that such
statoments were prepared without audit from the boaks and records of the Cotporation.

10.03 CONSTRUCTION: Whenever the context requires, the masculine will
include the ine and neuter, and the singuler will include the plural, and vice versa.
If any portjon of these Bylaws is declared invalid or inopergtive, then so far as is
reasonieble the remainder of these Bylaws will be considered valid and operative and
effect will bie given to the intent manifested by the portion beld invalid or inoperative.

10.04 STATUTORY AND OTHER AUTHORITY: These Bylaws are subject o
and governed by any applxcable federal or siate laws and regulations, including the Texas
Educadon |Code and interpretive regulations, pertinent local ordinances nod the

Certificate ¢f Formation.
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICITY OF BUSINESS RECORDS

The undersigned, with the understanding this statement is subject to criminal penalty
under State and Federal law for an intentionally false declaration, declare that the

documents attached hereto are true and correct copies of the Bylaws of The Beta
Foundation which were duly adopted by the Board of Directors on __ & 55' , 2011,
The originals of these Bylaws are maintained in the Business office of The Beta
Foundation at 9701 Almeda Genoa Rd., Houston, Texas.
S / 5 / /)
r 7

B-15-1|

he Beta Foundation Date

Director, The Beta Foundation D

State of Texas
’
oy OV DS
l v
Sworn to and subseribed before me this the 5 day o ‘&u@ﬁ 2011,

RUTH ELIZABETH HERNANDEZ

Natary Public, State of Te $ :
My Commission Expires Notary Public, Staterdf Jexas
September 25, 201

202 of 369





mailto:rick.salvo@tea.state.tx.us

REGULATIONS GOVERNING PUBLICATION

Cut the printed report from the newspaper and pastc here.

PASTE SO THAT NO PART CAN BE TORN AWAY

Forward certificate as promptly as possible.

204 of

PUBLISHER’S CERTIFICATE

STATE OF .........TEXAS . .. .
COUNTY OF ,... HARRIS } S5

Personally appeared before the undersigned
a notary public within and for said county
and Statc, David Flickinger, publisher of the South
Belt-Ellington Leader, a ncwspaper published at

11555 Beamer, Houston, county of Harris, Staic

of Texas, who, being duly sworn, states
on oath that the notices of............oooiiiininiee
THE BETA FOUNDATION

...............................................................

a true copy of which is hereto anpexed, was

published in said newspaper in its issue of

Acknowledgement of the publisher must be made
before a notary public or other official
authorized (o administer oaths,

Swarn to and subscribed before me this

.....................

............

Notary Public.
My commission expires J/lq ............ . 20.’.@

(SEAL)

FRANCES M. YANEZ

My Commission Expires
Januery 18, 2016
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Beta Academy
Curriculum Development Plan

The Beta Foundation is aware that curriculum development is an ongoing process that may
require revisions and modifications as scholars, educators, and programs mature and advance.
It should be fashioned from a collaboration of scholar interests, their individual needs, and Beta
Academy’s commitment to provide a rigorous, innovative education for all of its scholars.

The founding board members will be responsible for reviewing and adopting the curriculum
and textbooks for the proposed charter school, Beta Academy. After the proposed charter is
awarded, Terri Sones, board chair, Latisha Andrews, proposed superintendent, Helen
Abernathy, board member, and Justin James secretary will begin ordering curriculum samples
from the approved publishing list provided by TEA. The curriculum development timeline will
be divided into four phases in which the committee will focus on specific grade clusters. The
curriculum will be carefully and meticulously reviewed to ensure TEKS are met at each grade
level and to identify any missing TEKS. The curriculum development team will create or add
supplemental materials to cover any TEKS that are not addressed in the adopted textbooks and

curriculum,

The fourth phase of the curriculum development process will begin during the opening school
year. In February of 2016 the curriculum team will not only begin planning for its upcoming
seventh grade but step back and review our program’s curriculum. Asking questions such as:
How effective was the curriculum? Did it meet the TEKS in the most efficient way? Did it meet
the needs of our unique population of scholars? Were the teachers required to include an
excessive amount of supplemental materials in order to caver the TEKS? How con we improve
curriculum implementotion in the coming school year?

Curriculum Development Plan
Phases Dates Grade Focus
Phase 1 Aug. 1, 2014 — Sept. 30, 2014 Kindergarten-2" Grade
Phase 2 Oct. 1, 2014 - Nov. 30, 2014 Third-Fifth Grade
Phase 3 Dec. 1, 2014 - Jan. 30, 2015 Sixth Grade
Phase 4 Beginning in Feb. of 2016 Seventh Grade
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School Promotion Requirements

Scholars must maintain a C average or higher to be considered for promotion to the
next grade level. All Beta Academy scholars will be held to the following grading scale:

GRADING SCALE

S0-100 A
80-89 B
70-79 C

0-69 F

Additionally, Beta Academy will adhere to the state mandated policies on promoting
STAAR grade level scholars according to TEC, §28.021{sub-b}.

The following credits and courses are required for graduation from Beta Academy High

School. Beta Academy High School scholars will also be held to the above grading scale:
« English Language Arts Four Credits

English |

English 1|

English 11l

Advanced English Courses

» Mathematics Three Credits
Algebra i

Geometry
Advanced Mathematics Course

» Science Three Credits

Biology
Integrated Physics Chemistry or Advanced Science Course

Advanced Science Course
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s Social Studies Three Credits
U.S. History
U.5. Government
Economics
World Geography or World History or Combined World History/World
Geography

» Flective Courses Five Credits
Band/Orchestra
Chaoir
Drama/Theatre
Dance
Art/Sculptures
Foreign Language: Spanish & Chinese
Business
= Marketing
» Financial Management
= Entrepreneurial Skills
Computer Technology
s Keyboarding/Word Processing
=  Web/Graphic Design
Old Testament/New Testament Survey
Debate/Speech
US World Politics
Communications
s Journalism
m  Creative Writing
= Speech

Matriculation Exam - Beta Academy graduates will be required to show proficiency on a
matriculation exam before they are eligible to graduate. The matriculation exam will be
selected prior to the opening of Beta Academy High School.
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Note: CEO/Superintendent will act as Principal first year

Latisha Andrews

S
Personal contact information removed Jor posting lo a public domain
The Beta Foundation: 832.656.5841

A proven visionary leader, motivational speaker and marketing expert with extensive educational
leadership experience in private, public and charter schools as a teacher, principal and director.

EDUCATION

Capella University Oct 2004 — May 2006
Master’s in Business Association (Highest Honors 4.0 GPA)
Concentration in Marketing

University of Maryland College, Asian Division Jun 2002 - Dec 2003
Bachelor’s in Science: Psychology (High Honors)
Minor: Women's Studies

Texas Bible College, Houston Sep 1998 - May 2001
Diploma of Theology (Highest Honors 4.0 GPA)

AWARDS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Who’s Who Among Professional Women in Education, 2009
Summa Cum Laude: Capella University 2006
Magna Cum Laude: University of Maryland 2003
Honors Society: San Jacinto 2002
Who's Who in American Colleges and Universities 2001
WORK EXPERIENCE
Director: Responsive Ed (Vista Academy), Houston, TX April 2013-Present

¢ Administrative and educational responsibility/oversight for 250 elementary
students K-4 and 28 staff members (teachers, admin staff, support staff)

» Develop/evaluate/coordinate educational program to ensure conformance to state

and school board through meetings with staff, review of teachers’ activities, and

issuance of directives

Marketing campaigns to increase student enrollment and maintain ADA

Requisition and allocate supplies, equipment, and instructional material

Preparation of class schedules, cumulative records, and attendance reports

Community liaison

Oversee safety, security and building/grounds maintenance

Chicf Executive Officer: Beta Academy, Houston, TX June 2010 - Present
¢ Administrative and educational responsibility/oversight for students, teachers and
support staff (K-8); student records/attendance reports
o Fiduciary oversight of all business finances and fundraising campaigns
e Curriculum development, research and purchase
» Public relations, community liaison
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Note: CEO/Superintendent will act as Principal first year

Latisha Andrews
Personal contact information removed for posting lo a public domain

The Beta Foundation: 832.656.5841

Elementary Principal: Life Christian Academy, Houston, TX Aug 2006 - Junc 2010
» Administrative and educational responsibility/oversight for 130 elementary
students K-8 and 12 staff members (teachers, admin staff, support staff)
¢ Developed/evaluated/coordinated educational programs and curriculum to ensure
conformance 1o state and school board standards through meetings with staff,
review of teachers’ activities, and issuance of directives
» Plan/Led marketing campaigns to increase student enrollment
Requisitioned/allocated supplies, equipment, and instructional material
Developed academic schedules and calendars
Maintained student cumulative records and attendance reports
Community liaison

First Grade Teacher: Life Christian Academy, Houston, TX  Oct 2004 - Aug 2006
e Educational instruction for 18-20 students

Provided curriculum development instruction to academic staff

Taught classroom management seminars for local elementary schools

Developed K-5 and 11-12 Bible Course curriculum

Facilitated weekly Chapel services for grades K-12

Tutored students K-12

Accomplishment:  Students consecutively surpassed grade level scores on
Stanford Achievement Testing

Substitute Teacher (K-12): Dcpartment of Defense School System
Misawa Air Force Base, Misawa Japan Oct 2003 - Sep 2004

English Teacher/Teacher Aide (K-1) — Summer Youth Program:

Japanese National Public School, Aomori Prefecture, Japan  Summer 1991
e Assisted Japanese teachers with students classwork/activities
¢ Taught English

RELATED ACTIVITIES

Public Speaking 1999 - Current
Guest speaker for various children, youth and aduli events/functions in Ohio, California,
Indiana, Virginia, and Texas

Voluntcer 1994 - Current
Extensive volunteer work since age 15 at retirement homes, hospitals, schools,
orphanages, churches, homeless shelters, and youth mentoring/tutoring
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Note: CEO/Superintendent will act as Principal first year

Latisha Andrews
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Biography

Latisha Andrews is a passionate leader focused on bringing exceptional education to her
community. She is CEO of Beta Academy and the Beta Foundation and the Director of the
Responsive Ed Vista Academy charter school in Houston, TX. Ms. Andrews successfully
launched (2010) a private low-cost tuition school in a low-income area which she currently
staffs, leads, and financially manages. Partnering with Responsive Education Solutions as site
Director, she successfully launched (2013) a charter school in an adjacent community to meet the
extended community’s needs. On her quest to bring a tuition-free school to her neighborhood,
she has consulted with Geoffrey Canada, CEO of Harlem Children’s Zone, corresponded with
multiple local and state legislators, and made connections with business and community leaders.
For 14 years, she has provided volunteer services and tutoring to disadvantaged and at-risk
children in nearby neighborhoods. Latisha brings 10 years of educational leadership experience
and graduated Summa Cum Laude from Capella University with a Master of Business
Administration degree. Once reprimanded for “dreaming too big”, Andrews is on a mission to
bring a world-class, tuition-free school to her own backyard.

212 of 369



Job Title: CFO/Business Manager
Job Description:

The CFO’s duties and responsibilities, as assigned by the Board, include but are not limited to
the following:

e Establish concise and transparent lines of accounting in keeping with the TEA Financial
Accountability System Resource Guide (FASRG) and ensure all expenditures are clearly
traceable to appropriate TEA account codes

e Establish and maintain accounting records in keeping with GAAP guidelines.

» Prepare budgetary strategies for CEO/Superintendent and governing board based on
ADA attendance and growth projections. Strategies will include risk analysis, controls,
and short and long-term financial goals.

e Exercise the fiduciary diligence required to provide monthly cash flow to budget
reconciliations and monthly audit ready expenditure reporting.

e Set up systems for purchasing, storing, and distributing equipment and resources.

¢ Supervise financial receipts, disbursements, contributions, receivables, funding, and
deposits.

¢ Ensure grants are managed separately from other revenue sources and provide clear
and transparent lines of accounting.

e Administer payroll through back office support contract.

e Coordinate annual financial audits and comply with all state and federal surveys.

¢ Communicate clearly with staff, and local, state and federal governmental agencies.

Job Qualifications:

e Bachelor's Degree in Accounting, Finance, or Business. Master's Degree preferred. At
least 3 years of successful experience in business or finance. Experience with a nonprofit
organization preferred. School finance experience preferred. CPA or MBA.

Timeline:
¢ CFO will be hired August 1 of 2015,

Criteria:

e (andidates must meet job/experience qualifications and applicable TEA
standards/certifications. Enthusiastic about vision and pedagogy of school.

Recruiting/Selection Process:
e Recruiting efforts will commence immediately upon notification of charter award and

include Texas Workforce, LinkedIn, local community advertisements, school property
signs, and school website/social media. Key leadership will be identified by end of June
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with teaching positions identified by end of July to facilitate training and classroom
prep. All teachers considered for employment at Beta Academy will be Highly Qualified
in accordance with TEA determination forms.

Upon resume/application screening and reference validation, the most competitive
candidate’s will be contacted for an interview with the Principle and Assistant Principle.
The most competitive candidate’s will then have a peer interview and teaching
demonstration. Final candidates will meet with the CEQO/Superintendent for direct
overview of performance expectations, incentive rubric, Beta Academy culture, and job
description requirements. In accordance with the State Board for Educator Certification
(SBEC), all potential employees will undergo a national criminal history background
check perfarmed by the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBi) through the national
fingerprint data base.
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Job Title: HR Manager
Job Description:

The HR Manager’s duties and responsibilities include but are not limited to the following;

» Manage the overall employment policy and practices to ensure compliance with federal
and state hiring practices.

* Track professional training and teacher certification status. Ensure employee notices are
sent for expiring qualifications.

» Collaborate with the Principle and CEQ/Superintendent in developing employee
personal improvement plans as required

» Provide staffing and training recommendations to maintain a healthy leadership pipeline

o Schedule group professional development training when requirements dictate.

e QOversee a wide variety of personnel policies. Design and implement workflow for
employment processes and agreements.

e Develop and maintain Employee Benefit Handbook

s Consult with and offer advice to administrators regarding sensitive personnel issues.

¢ Monitor and record information in compliance with all state and federal regulatory
requirements.

s Manage grievance process to ensure an equitable resolution to staff, student, or parent
issues.

e Give policy and procedural recommendations to administration that will propagate the
school’s goals and objectives.

Job Qualifications:

e Bachelor's degree from accredited college. Master's degree preferred. 3 years of related
experience preferred.

Timeline:
» HR Manager will be hired July 1 of 2015.
Criteria:

» Candidates must meet job/experience qualifications and applicable TEA
standards/certifications. Enthusiastic about vision and pedagogy of school.

Recruiting/Selection Process:
e Recruiting efforts will commence immediately upon notification of charter award and
include Texas Workforce, Linkedin, local community advertisements, school property

signs, and school website/social media. Key leadership will be identified by end of June
with teaching positions identified by end of July to facilitate training and classroom
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prep. All teachers considered for employment at Beta Academy will be Highly Qualified
in accordance with TEA determination forms.

Upon resume/application screening and reference validation, the most competitive
candidate’s will be contacted for an interview with the Principle and Assistant Principle.
The most competitive candidate’s will then have a peer interview and teaching
demonstration. Final candidates will meet with the CEQ/Superintendent for direct
overview of performance expectations, incentive rubric, Beta Academy culture, and job
description requirements. In accordance with the State Board for Educator Certification
{SBEC), all potential employees will undergo a national criminal history background
check performed by the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) through the national
fingerprint data base.
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Ba BETA ACADEMY

1st Grade
Sample Daily Schedule

Monday

7:30-7:50 IDoors Open-Breakfast

7:50-10:20 ’ELAR — English, Language Arts and Reading

10:20-11:00 [Social Studies

11:00-11:30 |Lunch

11:30-12:00 [Rigorous Play

12:00-1:30 Mathematics

1:30-2:20 IPhysical Education

2:20-3:10 Science

3:10 Dismissal

3:10-4:00pm JExtended Day Tutorials
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BETA ACADEMY
Sample 1st Grade Weekly Schedule

(L P 4§ S

Doors Open/ oorOpen/ | " Doors Oen/ Doors Oen/
Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast
7:50-10:20 ELAR ELAR -1 hour Technology ELAR ELAR ELAR
Application {Computer Lab)
10:20-11:00| Social Studies Social Studies Social Studies Social Studies Social Studies
11:00-11:30 Lunch Lunch Lunch Lunch Lunch
11:30-12:00} Rigorous Play Rigorous Play Rigorous Play Rigorous Play Rigorous Play
12:00-1:30 Mathematics Mathematics Mathematics Mathematics -1 hour Mathematics
Technology Application
{Computer Lab)
1:30-2:20 |Physical Education Music Physical Education Art Physical Education
2:20-3:10 Science Science Science Science Science
3:10 Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal
3:10-4:00 Extended Day Extended Day Extended Day Extended Day Extended Day
Tutorials Tutorials Tutorials Tutorials Tutoerials










Ba BETA ACADEMY

9th Grade
Sample Daily Schedule

Monday
7:30-7:50  |Doors Open-Breakfast
7:50-9:20 .
1st period | "BISM 1

9:25-10:55

2nd Period Algebra 1

11:00-12:30 .

3rd Period Physical Education
12:35-1:05 |Lunch
1:10-2:40 .

4th Period Elective
2:40-3:10 Advisory Class
3:10-4:00 Extended Day Tutorials

*Block Scheduling (A/B days)
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BETA ACADEMY

Sample 9th Grade Weekly Schedule

,,,,,,,

Doors Open Doors Open/ Doors Open/ Doors Open
Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast
7:50-9:20 English 1 Biology English 1 Biology English 1
1st Period
9:25-10:55 Algebra 1 World Geography Algebra 1 World Geography Algebra 1
2nd Period
11:00-12:30 Physical Elective | Physical Elective | Physical
3rd Period Education Education Education
12:35-1:05 Lunch Lunch Lunch Lunch Lunch
1:10-2:40 Elective II Foreign Language Elective | Foreign Language Elective il
4th Period
2:40-3:10 Advisory Class Advisory Class Advisory Class Advisory Class Advisory Class
3:10 Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal
3:10-4:00 Extended Day Extended Day Extended Day Extended Day Extended Day
Tutorials Tutorials Tutorials Tutorials Tutorials

*Note: A/B Days rotate every other week. Example: Scholars that have A-Day on Friday will. begin the following Monday with B-Day.
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Admissions and Enroliment
The application for admission to the school will be available in January and the deadline

will be in February of that same year,

Beta Academy will hold a lottery in the event that a grade or class is oversubscribed.
The governing board of BA acknowledges that we are subject to all federal and state
laws and constitutional provisions prohibiting discrimination on the basis of disability,
race, creed, color, gender, national origin, religion, ancestry, marital status, or need for
special education services. All students with qualifying residency will be given equal
consideration regardless of sex, national origin, race, color, ethnicity, religion, disability,
academic, artistic, or athletic ability, pregnancy, marital status, or sexual orientation.

There are no tests or academic requirements for admission to Beta Academy as well as
no tuition charges. A student is eligible for admission at BA if he/she resides within the

boundaries of the school districts referenced in this application and will be entering the
grade for which he/she is applying.

Lottery procedures
In the event that a grade or class is oversubscribed BA will hold a lottery. If a lottery is
required, BA will conduct the lottery approximately one week after open-enrollment.

¢ Application deadline will be in February. If BA receives more applications during the
open-enrollment than available spaces we will conduct a lottery.

s After BA’s first year of operation, first preference will be given to returning students
who have filled out a reenroliment form for the upcoming school year. These
students will automatically be assigned a space within the school.

e Beta Academy will exempt from the lottery any siblings of returning students.

» Beta Academy will follow federal guidelines and exempt students of the founders (so
long as the number of students allowed constitutes only a small percentage of the
total enroliment).

e Beta Academy will print out the names {on labels) of all students eligible for the
lottery and place them in a locked lottery box.

e The lottery will be held in a public setting, at a date, time and location set by the
board and provided to all applicants eligible for the lottery. All applicant names will
be pulled from the lottery and assigned a number (1, 2, 3...) until all applicant labels
have been pulled and everyone placed on the waiting list according to the number
assigned them for the grade level their student(s) is eligible for.

* Once the number of applications selected in the lottery equals the number of
available spaces for a grade, a waiting list will be generated by continuing to assign
numbers to the remaining applicants. This waiting list will be the only official, legal
document identifying the names of eligible students who have applied to the school.

o |f space comes available, BA will contact the parents by phone whose students are
on the waiting list. Applicants have 24 hours to respond before the next student on
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the list is contacted. Parents who fail to submit a signed letter of intent to enroll
their student{s) by the seiected date will forfeit opportunity to enroll.

Beta Academy will have a waiting list for the applicants who were not admitted through
the lottery. If an opening is available after everyone on lottery list has been admitted or
failed to enroll, the parents will be notified by phone and given 24 hours to accept. This
process will repeat until all the slots have been filled. The waiting list will carry over
through the entire school year. Failure to submit a signed letter of intent to enroll by the
date given will result in forfeiting an available spot.

Applications that are submitted outside of the designated application period wiil not be
processed until after the lottery is held. If there are no spaces available these students
will be placed at the bottom of the waiting list in the order the applications are received.
Beta Academy will include in its admission policy a statement that the school will not
discriminate in admissions based on gender, national origin, ethnicity, religion, disability,
academic ability, athletic ability, artistic ability or the district the child would normally
attend.

Beta Academy reserves the right to exclude a student from admission if the student has
a documented history of a criminal offense, juvenile court adjudication, or discipline
problems under TEA Subchapter A, Chapter 37,

A student application form must be filled out and submitted by an application due date
in order to be admitted to BA or included in the lottery process if the school is
oversubscribed. The information required on the application will include:
Student Information:

¢ Name

e Date of Birth

e Grade for upcoming year

e Home Address

* Telephone Number

e District of Residence

Parent or Guardian Information:
¢ Name
s Relationship to student
e Telephone Number
¢ Email Address
e Home Address

An enrolling student is not required to provide information in addition to the items
enumerated in TEC, §25.002. As such, the enrolling student must provide:
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e A birth certificate or another document suitable as proof of the child's identity

e A copy of the child's records from the school the child most recently attended or
information regarding where this information may be obtained by the school

e Arecord showing that the child has immunizations as required by state law

Transfer
Parents may request a transfer for their student to another BA campus with a transfer

request form, Transfer requests will be considered during the time of open enroliment.
Upon receipt of the transfer request form the campus Principal may consider the
amount of space available and discipline history of transferring student.

Withdraw
Beta Academy requests a 2 day prior notice of withdraws in order for forms and records

to be prepared. A withdraw form must be signed and completed by parents or students
18 years or older in order for the withdrawal to be complete.
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BETA ACADEMY STUDENT BEHAVIOR AND DISCIPLINE POLICIES

The disciplinary code at Beta Academy (BA) is based upon respecting one’s seif, respecting
school property, and respecting and honoring one another, including - but not limited to —
one’s parents, people in positions of authority, and those with whom our students work and
play each day. Enrollment in BA affirms both student and parental support for the discipline
code and decisions of BA staff regarding implementation of these guidelines.

For BA to function effectively and for students to receive the maximum benefit from education,
the procedures, behaviors, and attitudes stated in this outline must be maintained.

Students may be dismissed from BA if, in the opinion of the school administration, the student
and/or parents have demonstrated an unwillingness to comply with the Standards of Behavior
outlined and set forth in this section of the discipline policies.

BA does not operate as a “reform school” and is not prepared to accept or continue the
enroliment of students who have demonstrated unwillingness or inability to comply with our
behavioral standards. Students currently ineligible to re-enroll at the school they last attended
will not be considered for enrollment at BA. Students who have previously demonstrated
behavior problems while attending BA may not be allowed to re-enroll. Students who may be
“trying” to modify behavior, but whose behavior still falls short of BA’s behavioral standards,
may be dismissed by the administration at any point during the school year. Students who have
previously had behavior-related problems, whether at BA, home, or another school, may be
admitted on probation with the terms of the behavioral probation period outlined in an
agreement signed by the student and parents.

Merits

A “merit” is recognition given to a student for performing random acts of kindness or
distributing quality character traits. Merits are handed to students for their own personal
record and taken home for parents praise. Merits are also recorded in the student’s academic
record as well as tabulated and recorded on report cards. The following morning students are
recognized in front of the student body for their individual acts of kindness and/or displaying
positive character traits. Students having the highest number of merits are recognized at the
end-of-the-year Awards Ceremony.

Demerits
A “demerit” is a mark denoting a rules violation and may be issued the FIRST time a student is
in noncompliance with a rule. A “demerit” slip will be issued to students for parent signature.

The name of the staff member originating the demerit will be on the demerit slip for contact in

case of questions. NOTE: The homeroom teacher DOES NOT have the option to dismiss a
demerit issued by another staff member.

227 of 369



Accumulation of numerous demerits will necessitate a conference with the principal and may
affect eligibility for continued/re-enrollment at Beta Academy.

Parents and students should carefully review the policy and rules together. Students MUST
be familiar with school standards of procedure, behavior, and attitude in order to avoid
accumulating demerits.

Note: BA teachers apply in-school measures to encourage pasitive behavior {rewarding
desirable behaviars, ignoring minar infroctions (unless repeated accurrences)). Demerits are
typically reserved for behaviors that are repeated and inardinately disrupting daily activities. It
should be noted, however, that NEITHER verbal nor written “warnings” prior to the issuance of a
dermnerit by o teacher or staff member is required, especially when the behavior is sufficiently
seriaus or disruptive to merit porent notificotion,

The number of demerits earned by a student is tabulated and recorded on the student’s
academic record and report cards.

Detentions

A detention is a disciplinary action requiring students to attend schoo! outside of school hours,
on break times/non-academic times or after school and is imposed for noncompliance with
certain rules, repeat violations of rules, and for the accumulation of 3 demerits during one
grading period.

DETENTIONS ARE TABULATED AS A MINIMUM OF TWO DEMERITS WHEN THEY ARE
RECORDED ON THE STUDENT’S RECORD.

Detentions:
e Are served at the issuing teacher’s discretion.
s May not be rescheduled to accommodate school-related extra-curricular activities.
e Must be served before students are eligible to participate in any extracurricular
activities, including field trips and class parties.

A “detention slip,” with the name of the issuing staff member so parents know who to contact
if they have a question, will be sent home with the student or mailed. NOTE: the homeroom
teacher WILL NOT dismiss a detention issued by another staff member.

Detention slips must be signed by the parents and returned to school by the following school
day. Students who fail to serve their scheduled required detention time will not be admitted to
class the next day without a conference with his/her parents and the principal. The required
detention time will be doubled and rescheduied.

Conference with the Principal

Teachers may request that the principal have a conference with a student who is experiencing
serious behavioral difficuities. A conference with the principal will be recorded as a minimum of
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2 demerits, with the exact number of demerits imposed being determined by the principal. The
principal will consider the disciplinary code guidelines regarding the type of behavior and the
student’s cumulative demerit record. A “disciplinary referral” form noting that the student has
had a conference with the principal will be issued to the student by the principal and must be
returned, signed by the parents, the following day.

Suspension of Student Privileges

Students’ participation in clubs, field trips, school-sponsored parties, and other school activities,
including “break-time,” is a privilege at BA. “Suspension of Student Privileges” is a disciplinary
action which prohibits the student from participating in the above activities, whether before,
during, or after school hours for a period of at least one full school day and any weekend days
and/or holidays that may fall between the school days during which privileges have been
suspended.

A “disciplinary referral” form, noting privilege suspension, will be sent home to the parents by
the principal. Suspension of privileges will be recorded on the student’s record as a minimum of
3 demerits. The exact number of demerits imposed will be determined by the principal who will
refer to the guidelines outlined in this section of the discipline polies as well as to the student’s
cumulative demerit record and the number of days involved in the privilege suspension. Notices
of privilege suspension must be signed by the parents and returned to the principal the next
school day.

School-to-home communication is vital to the success of the students in this program. Failure
to return a signed notice will result in the student being issued a demerit AND being detained
in the school office until the parent can be contacted. Parents who fail to ensure that these
notices are signed and returned to school promptly often unintentionally communicate to their
students that such disciplinary measures are insignificant.

Demerits, detentions, conferences with the principal, and suspension of privileges are very
serious matters. In order for the student - with the help of his/her parents and teachers - to
focus on developing more appropriate behavior patterns so more serious disciplinary action can
be avoided, school-to-home communication is vitall

Suspension from School

Students may be suspended from school for behaviors as outlined later in this section of the
discipline policies. Students who are suspended from school for any number of days are
restricted from participating in and/or attending any school-related functions before, after, or
during regular school hours for the designated period of suspension. Failure to cooperate with
these restrictions will result in the student being dismissed from BA for the remainder of the
school year.

Students who are suspended from school for any reason and for any number of days are not
eligible for end-of-the-year Citizenship or Honor Roll awards.
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Participation in school activities such as field trips, school-sponsored parties, and extracurricular
activities may be restricted and/or terminated for the remainder of the year; pending a decision
by a behavioral review committee composed of BA school board members and/or BA staff
members. A “disciplinary referral” form advising parents of the student’s suspension from
school will be sent home by the principal. Suspensions will be recorded on the student’s
academic record as a minimum of 6 demerits. The exact number of demerits imposed will be
determined by the principal who will refer to the guidelines outlined later in this section of the
discipline policies as well as the student’s cumulative demerit record and the number of days
for which the student has been suspended. Notices of suspension forms must be signed by the
parents and returned to the principal.

A student will earn grades of ZERO on assignments, tests, and class participation for the days
he/she is suspended from school. Make-up work will not be offered. The grades of zero will be
averaged in the same manner as the grades for work completed. Students suspended from
school will be counted unexcused absences.

Before the student may be readmitted to class after a school suspension, the student and
his/her parents may be required to meet with a behavioral review committee composed of BA
school board members and/or BA staff members. Conditions of the student’s return to school
may include an In School Suspension (ISS) transitional day or days and/or a period of probation,
the terms of which must be agreed to in writing by the student and his/her parents.

Expulsion from School

Students may be “expelled,” or administratively withdrawn, from BA for the remainder of the
school year, for behaviors detailed later in this section of the discipline policies. In addition to
the principal a behavioral review committee composed of BA school board members and/or BA
staff members may also be involved in a decision regarding the expulsion of a student from
Beta Academy. The committee will base the decision on the admissions, behavioral guidelines
outlined in the discipline policies, as well as on the student’s behavioral and demerit records

from BA.

Expelled students will not be readmitted the next schoo! year. Honors and awards for which
an expelled student is otherwise eligible will be forfeited.

Sexual Harassment
Definition: Offensive and unwelcome conduct of a sexual nature directed toward a student or
other person or, offensive and unwelcome conduct aimed at another solely because of his or

her gender.

If a student believes he/she has been sexually harassed, the student or the student’s parents
should immediately report the incident(s) to the principal.
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If a student’s own conduct is offensive and unwelcome toward another student or a staff
member, the campus administrator will determine how the conduct should be handled in
accordance with BA’s code of conduct.

Off Limit Areas
A student pass is required when in OFF-LIMIT areas. OFF-LIMIT areas are:

® QOther students’ desks

® (lassrooms — without a staff member present

® Parked cars

® Gymnasium, without a teacher

® Teachers’ desk/files/supplies/personal property
® Private offices/school file cabinets

® Restrooms (other than at regular break times)
® (Cafeteria (other than at regular break times)

® Halls during class time

Parents Addressing Other Students
Parents are not to address a student personally about school related issues at any time. Only
school personnel are to address BA students about behavioral concerns.

In the event a parent observes or encounters a problem concerning discipline at any time
during the year, they should first call the teacher of the class in which the problem occurred.
For any remaining unresolved problems, parents should contact the school principal.

DISCIPLINARY CHART

In addition to receiving a demerit, detention, or other disciplinary action, students may also be
required to perform acts of restitution, such as cleaning up the area affected by his/her
misbehavior, writing notes of apology, paying for damage, etc.

Demerits

Should any of the following or other unaccepted behaviors be a persistent problem, in the
opinion of the teacher, the student will be referred for a conference with the principal. A
detention or a suspension of privileges may be used should the behavior(s) in question
continue to be exhibited after such a conference. A warning demerit is not required prior to
issuing a demerit.

® Being in off limits areas
® Talking without permission
® Being out of seat without permission

® Faijling to return school-to-home notes, homework slips, etc. signed by parents
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® Throwing items, food, etc. in class, at lunch, at break-time, etc.

® Attending class unprepared

® Leaving trash on desks, tables, lunch tables, bleachers, floors, campus grounds, or in any
other area

® Failing to observe the “six-inch rule” (hitting or inappropriately touching another
student in any way will not be tolerated)

® Failing to follow fire and emergency exit drill procedures (talking, running, pushing, etc)

® |eaning back in chairs; sitting on tables or other furniture not intended for such

® Behaviors not specifically mentioned above, but which disrupt or interfere with
maintaining a clean, quiet, safe and organized learning environment

Detentions

First Offense: Automatic detention
Second Offense: Subsequent offenses require a conference with the principal, with possible
suspension of privileges

Number of demerits recorded for a detention: 2

Offenses (not inclusive list)

Bringing an iPod, mp3 player, camera, radio, CD player, or other electronic device on
campus at any time. Note: BA permits possession of cell phones, however, cell phones
must remain turned off and in the student’s backpack during the school day

Being “out of uniform” during school day. Note: “Out of uniform” students may be
required to remain in the office all day or until appropriate uniform attire obtained

Having and/or reading unapproved books, magazines, newspapers, or having and/or
listening to unapproved CDs

Pulling fire alarm

“prank” call or calls to “911” as a prank
PARENTS OF THE OFFENDING STUDENT(S) WILL BE BILLED FOR ANY FINES IMPOSED BY
THE CITY.

Defacing (marking, drawing, writing, carving, or cutting on, or in any other way
destroying) books, desks, walls, bulletin boards or any areas of BA campus, equipment
machines, school property, etc.

Parents will be billed for any necessary repairs/ replacement (materials and labor with
a minimum charge of $20) resulting from their student’s actions.

Being disrespectful in word or in deed to a teacher or another staff member
Forging of signatures

Eating in class or other areas outside the cafeteria
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Failing to comply with the request of a teacher or another staff member

Using inappropriate language, gestures, racial comments, slander, cursing, swearing,
name calling, gossiping about others, etc.

Hazing, extortion, or harassment of others be it directly or through any social media
Making fun of or intentionally humiliating another student for any reason directly or
through any social media

Horse playing, wrestling, “play-fighting,” “piggy-backing” or lifting other students in any
manner, “trading punches” or playing any type of games which involve physically
striking another student

Hitting, pinching, slapping, biting, poking, pushing, pulling or in any other manner
touching a student inappropriately

Suspension of Privileges

First Offense: Suspension of privileges for a minimum of one full school day. {Number of
days determined by the severity of the offense and the student’s behavioral record.)

Second Offense: Suspension of Privileges for a longer period or suspension from school,
as well as a probationary period, which may include a suspension of privileges, once
regular class attendance has been re-established.

Third Offense: Longer suspension from school or expulsion for the rest of the school
year.

The number of demerits recorded for a suspension of privileges is 3; for suspension from
school, 6.

Cheating {(not inclusive list)

Seeking, providing, or obtaining answers to homework, daily work, quizzes or tests
{whether for one’s own use or for another student’s benefit)

Examining, copying, or taking test keys, score keys or completed tests or assignments
from the teacher’s desk or another student’s desk or files

Copying from another student’s work or from an answer key

Plagiarizing in any form

Preparing, having in one’s possession, using or sharing “cheat sheets”

Doing another student’s work for him/her

Locking at another student’s test during a testing session

Talking or asking about tests, test questions, or answers on a test with other students at
any time

Using a cell phone, calculator, or other technological device during class time without
teacher's knowledge and/or consent
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Fighting {not inclusive list; whether the fight occurs or is to occur on or off campus)
® Planning or talking about a fight

® Encouraging another student to fight

Self Defense
The claim of “self-defense” is restricted when, but not limited to

® The student had opportunity and did not seek to inform staff of threatened encounter
® The student provoked the use of physical force
® The student continued physical force after the other party abandoned the encounter

® The student did not attempt to walk away from the encounter

Viewing Pornography {not inclusive list)

® Viewing inappropriate magazines, Internet websites, advertisements, etc., including
materials that have been noted as “soft porn” during the school day

® Communicating via written notes, web pages or chat rooms in a sexually explicit or
sexually suggestive manner, including posting on internet sites inappropriate pictures,
symbols, lyrics, or other materials that could be construed as sexually suggestive during
and/or outside of a school day. BA students represent BA at all times and are expected
to demonstrate high levels of integrity on or off campus.

Harassment of Student, Teacher, Or Staff Member {not inclusive list)
® Making threatening, sexually suggestive or otherwise inappropriate verbal comments

® Making threatening, sexually suggestive or otherwise inappropriate gestures with hands
or body
® Making racial or ethnic jokes and/or hurtful and/or slanderous comments

IF, IN THE OPINION OF THE ADMINISTRATION, THE DEGREE OF THE OFFENSES LISTED ABOVE
IS SUFFICIENTLY SERIOUS, SUSPENSION FROM SCHOOL MAY BE REQUIRED.

Suspension from School {not inclusive list)

First Offense: Minimum of one full school day, with the number of days determined by the
severity of the offense and the student’s behavioral record. Students who have been
suspended from BA may be required to apply for readmission to the Behavioral Review
Committee of the BA School Board. Readmission guidelines, probationary agreements and any
other stipulations of the Review Committee will be strictly enforced. The BA School Board
and/or administration reserve the right to expel a student on the first offense involving any of
these behaviors.

Second Offense: Those students whose behavior warrants a second period of suspension
during the course of the same school year may be suspended for a longer period of time for the
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second offense or may be expelled for the rest of the school year at the discretion of the BA
School Board and/or the BA administration.

Bringing matches, lighters, alcohol, pornography, tobacco products, drugs, drug
paraphernalia, inhalants of any kind, substances which resemble or are intended to look
like drugs, knives (including pocket knives), guns, bullets, fireworks, sling shots, other
weapons or toy replicas of any of these items to school or to any school functions,
whether on or off campus

Talking about, joking about, or engaging in gang-related activities, including writing in a
manner which resembles gang graffiti or gang writing in any form, whether on or off
campus or via the Internet

Talking about, joking about, or using illegal drugs or drug paraphernalia of any kind,
whether on or off campus or via the Internet

Using permanent markers, temporary markers, liquid correction fluids, or any type of
aerosol product in an inappropriate manner, whether on or off campus

Talking about, joking about, or threatening to use violence against any student, staff
member, Beta Academy, or any individual or organization, whether on or off campus, or
via the Internet

Harassing another student or staff member via inappropriate touching, sexually
suggestive or offensive comments, whether on or off campus or via the Internet

Bringing and/or talking about, joking about or viewing sexually explicit materials or
related items, whether on or off campus or via the Internet

LYING, which includes relating information that is not true, misleading school faculty or
officials when questioned, misrepresenting the truth, refusing to “tell” when questioned
about school related incidents, withholding knowledge of situations that could
jeopardize the well-being of other students and/or the academic or behavioral
standards of the school

Credit During Suspension
A student will receive credit for work missed during the time of suspension if the work is made
up within the same number of days as the suspension.

Mandatory Suspension and Discretionary Expulsion

Any offense listed in Section 37.006 (a) or 37.007 (b) of the Texas Education Code, no
matter where or where the offense takes place.
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CHARTER SCHOOL CEQ/EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EVALUATION RUBRIC

By Charter School Tools

Beta Academy will use this rubric as our start-up evaluation tool. Adjustments will be made as needed.

Five Criteria and
Recommended
Weighting

Best in Class

Exceeds
Expectations

Meets
Expectations

Below
Expectations

Unsatisfactory

Academic
Performance
(40 points)

#1 or 2 school in
market serving similar
populations

Meets 100% of
charter application or
contract goals*

Meets 90% of charter
application or contract
goals*

Meets 50% of charter
application or contract
goals*

Fails to meet at least
50% of charter
application or contract
goals*

Financial
Management
(25 points)

Exceeds paid
enrollment target by
at least 3%; revenue
above budget and
expenses below
budget; year 3 equity
>10% of annual
revenue {or 3%/year)

Meets paid enrollment
target; revenue on or
above budget and
expenses on or below
budget; year 3 equity
>10% of annual
revenue (or 3%/year)

Meets enrollment and
attendance targets; net
operating surplus;
year 3 equity >5% of
annual revenue (or
2%/ year)

Short of enrollment
and attendance
targets; net operating
deficit; reserves <2%
of annual revenue; at
least one instance of
non-compliance
identified by
authorizer

Short of enrollment
and attendance
targets; net operating
deficit; reserves <2%
of annual revenue;
material control
weakness identified
by independent
auditor

Academic Program
Fidelity**
(20 points)

Academic program is
recognized as
exemplary by
authorizer, state
charter association,
and donors/investors

Academic program
implementation has
gone well beyond the
original charter
application; special
program elements are

Academic program
meets the description
in original charter
application or in
strategic plan adopted
by the board; all

Academic program
implementation meets
some of the elements
described in original
charter application or
strategic plan adopted

Academic program
does not meet most of
the elements
described in original
charter application or
updated strategic

infused throughout stakeholders can by the board plan; few stakeholders
the curriculum articulate and identify can articulate key
key elements of the clements of the
program program
Parent/Teacher/ 90% of parents, 80% of parents, 75% of parents, 50% of parents, Less than 50% of

Charter School Tools
www.charterschooltools.org
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Five Criteria and Best in Class Exceeds Meets Below Unsatisfactory
Recommended Expectations Expectations Expectations
Weighting
Student Satisfaction | students and teachers | students and teachers | students and teachers | students and teachers | parents, students and
(10 points) grade the school A or | grade the school A or | grade the school A or | grade the school A or | teachers grade the
B on all surveyed B on all surveyed B on all surveyed B on all surveyed school A or B on all
measures; 90% measures; 70% measures; 50% measures; 33% surveyed measures (or
attendance at parent attendance at parent attendance at parent attendance at parent no surveys
conferences; 90% conferences; 80% conferences; 75% conferences; 65% conducted); below
teacher retention and | teacher retention and | teacher retention and | teacher retention and | 33% attendance at
student re-enrollment | student re-enrollment | student re-enrollment | student re-enrollment | parent conferences;
less than 65% teacher
retention and student
re-enrollment
Fundraising/ Organization has Organization has met | Organization has Organization has Organization has
Community exceeded fundraising | fundraising goals and | received significant received insignificant | received no cash and
Relations goals and increased increased number of | cash and in-kind cash and in-kind

(S peints)

number of donors and
total raised every
year; at least 15
positive new stories
per year and at least
I5 school tours or
visits hosted per year

donors and total
raised most years; at
least 10 positive new
stories per year and at
least 10 school tours
or visits hosted per
year.

donations and has a
documented
fundraising plan with
annual goals; school
has many more
positive news stories
than negative and has
hosted at least 5
school tours or visits

donations, does not
have a documented
fundraising plan with
annual goals; school
has few or generally
neutral news stories;
organization web site
is not updated
regularly

in-kind donations,
does not have a
documented
fundraising plan with
annual goals; school
has significant
number of negative
new stories

* Charter application or contract goals include, for example, proficiency (AYP), decreasing in lowest performance band, increase in highest
performance band, graduation rate, attendance, teacher retention, grade promotion.

** Academic program elements include curriculum (e.g., STEM), instructional approach (e.g., direct instruction, blended learning), assessment
system, and extra-curricular or wrap-around services.
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PLEASE NOTE: The responsive information contains copyrighted information
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COMPONENTS OF EFFECTIVE TEACHING
OBSERVATION REPORT

()Cllll!( 1 2010

Charter School
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Baton Rouge, LA 70821
225.387.8605
www.charterschooltools.org
info@charterschooltools.org
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Teacher: Schoaol:

Date: Grade Level: Subject:
Class Size Highlight 0-3 or 4+ Yrs Length of Observation
Pre-Observation Conference Post Observation Conference
Criteria: E - Exceeds M - Meets P- Progressing DM - Does Not Meet NA - Not Applicable

Planning - Demonstrates competence in planning and preparing for instruction

Criteria: E M P DM NA

a. Utilizes state standards, and the schoel curriculum in planning (or projects

b. Driving questions focus on enduring understanding

c. Uses students' data to plan differentiated activities

d. Includes explicitly taught and assessed by project work or that will be encouraged by 21s
Century skills

e. Method of assessment identified

f. Identify resources including technology as needed for projects in the development and
seguencing of the project

g. Identify activities that lead students to answering the driving questions

Comments:
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Components of Effectuve Teaching Obscrvation Report

§I - Classroom Climate - Provides an atmosphere conducive to learning consistent with school mission.

Criteria: E M P DM NA

a. Promotes a safe and positive learning environment

b. Creates a learning community that encourages positive social interaction and self-reflection
by students

c. Manages classroom transitions and projects in a timely and orderly fashion

d. Establishes procedures and rules that support high expectations for student behavior

e. Promotes high expectations {or student/group perfarmance and/or presentation of quality
work

f. Treats students in a fair and equitable manner

Comments:
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Companents of Effective Teaching Observaoon Report

I1I - Instructional Management- Organizes teaching strategies to maximize the use of allocated instructional time to

increase student learning.

Criteria:

M

P

DM

NA

a. An agenda posted with instructional activities identified

b. Reviews previcus materials and/or activities as appropriate

¢. Students working collabaratively in groups

d. Students assigned authentic work that is developmentally appropriate

e. Incorporates higher level thinking skills and encourages students to express ideas clearly and
accurately

f. Directs and adequately supervises students to be on task quickly at the beginning of each
instructional activity

g. Maximizes student time-on task in groups and/or independently

h. Forms effective transition between instructional activities

i. Engages students in activities that involve real-life connection, and prior knowledge and
experience

j. Demonstrates flexibility in adjusting instruction when appropriate

k. Integrates a variety of technology applications and learning tools to enhance student
achievement

l. Demonstrates ability to communicate effectively with students

Comment:
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Components of Effecdve Teaching Observation Report

IV - Instructional Content Knowledge - Demonstrates competence in content knowledge appropriate to subject(s)
taught

Criteria: E M P DM NA

a. Presents accurate content at a developmentally appropriate level

b. Content is rigorous and relevant

¢, Content is consistent with the LCC

d. Relates relevant real-life examples and/or current events to the content

e. Answers guestions correctly and for direct students to additional resources

f. Integrates subject content appropriately for projects

g. Understands and uses various instructional strategies that are appropriate to the content
areas

Comment:

Y-y
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Components of Efiective Teaching Obscrvation Report
V - Student Progress - Demonstrates the ability to monitor, assess and facilitates student academic achievement

Criteria: E M P DM NA

a. Consistently monitors and evaluates student performance

b. Uses appropriate and effective assessment techniques (i.e. rubrics, formative and summative
assessments, etc)

¢. Provides timely feedback to students regarding their progress

d. Maintains accurate and complete student records

e. Follows grading policies and regulations

f. Monitors student attendance

Comment:
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Components of Effective Teaching Observavon Report
V1 - Professional Work Habits - Demonstrates behavior which reflects professional responsibilities

Criteria: E M P DM NA

a. Adheres to established laws, policies, school procedures, rules and regulations

b. Demonstrates professional and ethical conduct as defined by state law and school policy

¢. Interacts appropriately with students, parents and other personnel

d. Punctual with reports, grades, records and in reporting to work

e. Leads by example in appearance, manners, behavior and language

f. Teacher's Professional Growth Plan is in place

g. Participates in activities that foster professional growth

h. Performs additional duties as requested

Comment:
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Components of Effecuve Teaching Observaton Report

VI{ - Community Invelvement - Establishes relationships with stakeholders (parents, community and colleagues)

Criteria: E M P DM NA

a. Provides clear and timely infermation te parents/guardians and colleagues regarding
classroom expectations, student progress and ways they can assist learning

b. Encourages parents/guardians to become active partners in their children’s education and to
become involved in school and classroom

t. Seeks community invalvement in instructional programs (i.e. guest speakers, fietd trips, etc)

d. Utilizes the downtown community as a learning tool to engage students

Comment:

Charter Sczool Too;s :!omponcnts of Effecuve Teaching Obscrvation Report




Components of Effectve Teaching Observaton Report

VIII - Technology Competency - Demonstrates knowledge in the implementation of technology to improve student
achievement

Criteria: E M P DM NA

a. Demonstrates a sound understanding of technology operations and concepts

b. Plans and designs effective learning environments and experiences supported by technology

c. implements curriculum plans that inciude methods and strategies for applying technology to
maximize student learning

d. Utilizes the downtown community as a learning tool to engage students

e. Applies technology to facilitate a variety of effective assessment and evaluation strategies

f. Understands the social, ethical, legal and human issues surrounding the use of technology in
schools and applies that understanding in practice

Comment:

Charter szm Eﬁ ﬂz.ﬁponcnts of Effective Teaching Observation Report







Ninetecnth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Informatien Form
{MUST bc typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: [CEO/Superintendent Reports to: [Charter Holder Board of Directors

Salary Range: |75,000 - 255,000

List any other patential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, ¢tc...) 10 be
given to the individual in this position. 1n none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): [Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year one: [400 In year five: {1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: Master's Degree in Education or
Master's Degree with a minimum 5 years in Educational Administration.

Experience Required: Experience in operating a public, charter or private school. Successful performance in teaching
and administrative positions of increasing responsibility. Must have proven ability to function
effectively in communication, leadership, organizational management, and fiduciary contraols.

Certification Required: Master's Degree from an accredited college.
{Completion of minimal three (3) years of full-time teaching experience.
Completion of minimal two (2) years in a public, charter or private school principal position.

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbreviation ISD or CISD County dnstnct numbers may be accessed on line through
the Texas Education Directory found ai piitp;/ : ~ ns. Additionally, traditional
districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county district number (CDN).

# of Students

Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Ranpe
Cross Plains 1SD 030901 | |Cross Plains 347 87,550-298,256
Borden County 1SD 017901 { |Gail 239 183,544
Santa Gertrudis I1SD 137904 | |Kingsville 517 70,498-140,995
252 of 369 SAS 544-14
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Ninetcenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemcental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: [Beta Academy

Position: {CEQ/Superintendent Reports to: [Charter Holder Board of Directors

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

I.{Evaluate curriculum and innovative educational programs for recommendation to Charler Board Directors.

2, |Recriit/retain highly qualified applicants in accordance with non-discrimination and affirmative action policies.

3. |Staff evaluations: Identify opportunities for indiv prof growth; focus performance to Beta Academy's vision & pedagogy.

4. {Ensure high standards of educational achievement/performance for staff & students in alignment to BA vision & pedagogy.

5.|Annual budget: Develop for board approval; administer financial controls for proper execution of board approved budget.

6.15afeguard, control and administer all funds, physical assets and inventory for District.

7. [Community liaison with community groups, individuals, businesses, and elected officials intercsted in quality education.

8. | Provide applicable and news worthy information to the community via social media and local news outlets,

9. |Submit timely recommendations/applicable data/info to board so they can make informed decisions in BA governance.

10. |Custodian of Records: student, scholastic, business, financial, personnel, securities, titles, certificates & other as required.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.

253 of 369 SAS 544-14
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |CFO/Business Manager Reports to: {CEO/Superintendent

Salary Range: |45,000 - 65,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car aiowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, etc...) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please siate N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): |Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year one; [400 In year five: |1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: Bachelor's Degree or higher in Accounting, Finance, or Business. Master's Degree preferred.

Experience Required: At least 3 years of successful experience in business or finance. Experience with a nonprofit
organization preferred. School finance experience preferred.

Certification Required: CPA or MBA

Complete the following using information gathered from threc different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbreviation ISD or CISD. County district numbers may be accessed on line through

the Texas Education Directory found at hitp:/mansfield.tea,state tx.us/TEA AskTED. Web/Forms/Home.aspx. Additionally, traditional

districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county district number (CDN).

# of Students
Name of District CDN Laocated in (City) Served Salasy Range
Cross Plains ISD 030901 Cross Plains 347 66,980
Borden County ISD 017901 | |Gail 239 62,730
Santa Gertrudis ISD 137904 | |Kingsville 517 72,093

254 of 369 SAS 544-14
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enroliment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form

(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the revicw process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |CFO/Business Manager Reports to: |{CEO/Superintendent

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. |Develop and maintain timely and accurate accounting records for the school following TEA guidelines.

2. {Perform accounting processes and maintein the chart of accounts.

3. |Execute procurement through payment procedures on behalf of the school in accordance with state and federal laws.

4. [Prepare monthly, quarterly, and annual fisancial statements including budget to actual analysis and variance explanations,

5.|Develop administrative systems and procedures.

6. |Manage cash processes, including contributions, receivables, grants, funding, and deposits.

7.|Work with the Board and the Development Director to provide financial information and support for grants and donations.

8.1Act as payroll provider and benefit coordinator,

9. {Coordinate annual financial audits and any other reviews.

10. | Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.
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Ninetecnth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |HR Manager Reports to: | CEQ/Superintendent

Salary Range: {40,000 - 50,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, etc. .) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): |Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year one: |400 In year five: |1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: Bachelor's degree required. Master's degree preferred.
Experience Required: 3 years of related experience preferred,
Certification Required: none

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and

locatian, A traditional district is identified by the abbrcvnatlon ISD or CISD. County district numbers may be accessed on line through
the Texas Education Directory found at hitp.//ima : AL aspx. Additionally, traditional
districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the. county dlstnct number (CDN)

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Range
Cross Plains 1SD IEBOQO'I ﬁ:ss Plains 347 39,501
Borden County iSD 017901 | |Gall 239 55550
Santa Gertrudls 15D 137904 | [Kingsville 517 34,036

SAS 544-14
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: [The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: {HR Manager Reports to: [CEO/Superintendent

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. [Administer a wide vanety of personnel policies, processes and employment agreements.

2. [Collaborate with internal and external personnel for the purpose of implementing and/or maintaining services and programs.

3. |Consult and advise administrators on a wide variety of sensitive personnel issues.

4. [Establish time-frames in compliance with related reqnirements achieving organizational objectives.

5. |Investigate grievances and/or complaints from employees, students, or parents.

6. |Record and maintain information in compliance with regulatory requirements and established guidslines.

7. [Participate in meetings and seminars for the purpose of conveying and gathering current and useful HR strategies.

8. [Respond to inquiries to identify relevant issues and recommend or implement a remediation plan.

9. [Facilitate workshops and training to increase proficiency of staff in identifying and resolving issues.

10. |Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.

SAS 544-14
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Nineteenth Gencration Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being decmed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |PEIMS Coordinator Reports to: |CFO/Business Manager

Salary Range: {30,000 - 50,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, etc...) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): |Houston, Hards

Number of Students anticipated in year one: [400 In year five: [1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: Bachelor's degree in related fleld and/or 3 years related professional experience preferably in
PEIMS computer sclence or related fleld preferred.

Experience Required: Three years experience in school distrct administrative support position requiring collecting and
entering data; experience using coding systems.

Certification Required: none

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbrevmﬂon lSD or ClSD County dlstnct numbers may be accessed on line through

the Texas Education Directory found at http.//ma X. Additionally, traditional
districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county dlsmcl number (CDN)
# of Students

Name of District CDN Located in {City) Served Salary Ranpe
Cross Plains ISD 030901 [Cross Plains 347 45,174
Borden County I1SD 017901 | |Gail 239 136,873
Santa Gertrudis ISD 137904 | |Kingsville 517 51,763

238 of 369 SAS 544-14
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Haman Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY arcas left blank will resalt in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: {The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: lﬁeta Academy

Pasition: [PEIMS Coordinator Reports to: [CFO/Business Manager

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. {Coordinatc the colleclion, integration, and formatting of all data required for PEIMS submission.

2. |Comply with al} standards and laws according to PEIMS Data Standards and Student Attendance Accounting Handbook.

3. {Work cooperatively with campus, business office, and personnel office staff.

4.|Collect, organize, and format data required to submit district PEIMS data in a timely manner.

5. |Establish reporting time lines between campuses, the Technology Department, and other departments.

6. |Responsible for data quality in compliance with Performance Based Monitoring.

7. |Coordinate auditing of District PEIMS data against campus records and generate reporis on findings.

8.|Run reports and verification checks on data to ensure accuracy of information.

9. |Distribute edits and reports to appropriate staff for analysis, verification, and correction.

10. |Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open mecting of the charter holder board.
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: [Testing Coordinator Reports to: [CEQ/Superintendent

Salary Range: [25,000 - 35,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, etc...) to be
given 1o the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): |Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year one: 400 In year five: |1,6B0
Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required; Bachelor's degree preferred.

Experience Required: 3 years of related experience preferred.

Certification Required: nohe

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and

location. A traditional district is identified by tha abbrewatwn 1SD or CISD. County district numbers mny be accessed on line through
the Texas Education Directory found at hitp://ma °q, 518 A aspx. Additionally, traditional
districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county d:slrlct number (CDN)

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Range
Cross Plains ISD 030901 Cross Plains 347 29,801
Borden County ISD 017901 | {Gail 239 25,950
Santa Gertrudis (SD 137904 | {Kingsville 517 34,531

SAS 544-14
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemen¢al Human Resources laformation Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: {The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position:; [Testing Coordinator Reports to; {CEQ/Superintendent

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. [Assign, train, and direct support staff assigned to testing progmms.

2 {Adhere to all pertinent lews and guidelines for testing.

3. |Assist and advise siaff, as necessary, in any testing refated problems. Clearly communicate testing implementation goals.

4. |Stay current on latest state law and guideline changes and conduct iocal training for school staff.

5. [Oversee ordering of test materials, verify shipments, and coordinate repacking and shipping for assessment.

6. |Consult staff on test interpretation and legal/ethical considerations in testing

7. |Ovessee security for testing materials before and afier test

8. |Collaborate with administration to highlight problem areas, find soluticas, and work towards effective implementation.

9 1Create structure for test days and collaborate with staff for successful implementation,

10. |Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.

261 SAS 544-14
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Ninetecnth Generation Open-Enroliment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: [The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: [Principal Reports to: [CEQ/Superintendent

Salary Range: 165,000 - 85,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, teavel or housing allowance, cic...) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): {Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year one: [400 In year five: {1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: Master's degree required.
Experience Required: Minirmum 3 years experience teaching and 1 year experience In a leadership role.
Certification Required: Teaching Certification and/or Administrative Certification preferred.

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
Jocation. A traditional district is identified by the abbreviation 1SD or CISD County dzstnct numbers may be accessed on line through
the Texas Education Directory found at hittp: ; ~aspx. Additionally, traditional
districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county district number (CDN).

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Range _
Cross Plains ISD 030901 Cross Plains 347 65,912
Borden County ISD 017901 Gall 239 86,699
Santa Gertrudis ISD 137904 | [Kingsville 517 98,999

260 SAS 544-14
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY arecas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process,

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: {The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school:  |Beta Academy

Position: |Principal Reports to: |{CEO/Superintendent

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. |Moniter instructional and managerial processes to ensure that program activities are related to program oulcomes.

2. tUtilize program outcomes, data, and findings to take corrective actions.

3.|Regularly consult the campus-level committee about planning, operation, and evaluation of campus education program.

4. |Include students and community representatives in the education program evaluation when appropriate.

5. |Provide instructional resources and materials to support teaching staff in accomplishing instructional goals.

6. 1Foster collegiality and team building among staff members. Encourage their active involvement in decision-making process.

1. |Provide for two-way communication with superintendent, stafT; students, parents, and community.

8. |Communicate and promote expectations for high-level performance to staff and students.

9. {Ensure the effective and quick resolution of conflicts.

10. }Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE'" during the revicw process,

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |Assistant Principal Reports to: |Principal

Salary Range: {55,000 -70,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, etc...) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): |Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year one: {400 In year five: |1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: Master's or Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university.
Experience Required: jExperience working in schools with diverse populations.
Certification Required: Assistant Principal, Principal or Mid-Management certificate preferred.

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and

location. A traditional district is identified by the abbreviation ISD or CISD County djslnct numbers may be accessed on linc through
the Texas Education Directory found at hitp://ma ] ; A / e,85pX. Additionally, traditional
districts will not have an eight as the fourth dlgn in the county dlstncl number (CDN')

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Range
Cross Plains ISD 030901 Cross Plains 347 65,798
Borden County 15D 017901 Gail 239 62,730
Santa Gertrudis ISD 137904 Kingsville 517 57,890
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form

(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the revicw process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: [Assistant Principal Reports to: |Principal J

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. |Support the principal in articulating and communicating the goals and vision of the school.

2. |Monitor instructional progress through collaboration with the principal to evaluate advancement toward stated poals.

3.|Help develop and implement short- and long-range plans in all areas of the instyuctional program.

4. | Assist the principal in directing the strategic implementation of the cwrricula throughout the classrooms.

5. |Improve instruction through classroom observations, conferences, and test data.

6. |Counse! with teachers about professional problems and assist new teachers in adjusting to their teaching assignments.

7. |Receive ongoing trainiug with other siaff to remain current in effective instructional methods.

8.[Responsible for the supervision and evaluation of all assigned staff,

9.|Assist in the development and implementation of Board policies.

10. JAny other duties as assigned.

H a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.

265 of 36 SAS 544-14
Sake 28 RFA 701-14-104



Ninetcenth Gencration Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
{(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review proccss.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: [Beta Academy

Position: |Teacher Reports to: |Assistant Principal

Salary Range: 143,000 - 55,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, etc...) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): |Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year one: [400 In year five; |1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: Bachelor's degree required. Master's degree preferred. Teachers will be encouraged to attain a
Master's Degree within the first 5 years of employment or National Board Certification.

Experience Required: 3 years classroom experience preferred.

Certification Required: Must be Highly Qualified or Teacher certified. ESL Certification preferred

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbreviation 1SD or CISD. County district numbers may be accessed on line through

the Texas Education Directory found at htip://mansficld.tea statetx.usTEA AsKTED Web/Fonns/AHome.asps. Additionally, traditional

districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county district number (CDN).

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Range
Cross Plains ISD 030901 Cross Plains 347 39,974
Borden County ISD 017901 | |Gail 239 52,837
Santa Gertrudis 15D 137904 | [Kingsville 517 34,910
266 of 369 SAS 544-14
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Haman Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: jBeta Academy

Position: [Teacher Reparts to: {Assistant Principal

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

I.[Implement instructional activities that contribute to student engagement and academic growth,

2, |Select and modify instructional resources to meet the unique needs of students with varying backgrounds and needs.

J. {Ensure student growth and achievement is continuous and appropriate for age group, subject area, and program.

4,|Collaborate with peers to enhance the instructional environment and offers plans for improvement.

5.]Assume responsibility for meeting course and school-wide student performance goals.

6. |Establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with students, parents, and the community.

7.|Communicate effectively, both orally and in writing, with students, parents, and other professionals on a regular basis.

8. |Model appropriate character traits and ethical maturity in leading students.

9. [Meet professional obligations through efficient work habits such as meeting deadlines and honoring schedules.

10. |Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open mceting of the charter holder board.
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Homan Resources Information Form

(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |Substitute Teacher Reports to: |Assistant Principal

Salary Range: [80/day as needed, no guarantee of work

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, etc...} 1o be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A,

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): |Houston, Harrls

Number of Students anticipated in year one: {400 In year five: {1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: High school diploma. Bachelor's degree preferred.

Experience Required: Knowledge of core academic subject assigned. Genera! knowledge of curriculum and instruction.
Ability ta instruct students and manage their behavior. Classroom experlence preferred.

Ceriification Required: None

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and

location. A traditional district is identified by the abbreviation ISD or C!SD County district numbers muy be accessed on line through
the Texas Education Directory found at http://ma ] é aspx. Additionally, traditional
districts will not have an cight as the fourth digit in the county dlstnct number (CDN)

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Range
Beeville ISD 013901 Beeville 406 %0/day
Borden County SD lo17901 | fGal 239 80/day
Santa Gertrudis ISD 137904 IKingvalle 517 80/day
4
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: [Substitute Teacher Reports to: [Assistant Principal

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. |Prepare lessons that reflect accommodations for diffcrences in student learning styles.

2. |Present subject matter according to guidelines established by the TEA, board policies, and administrative regulations.

3.|Plan and use appropriate instructional and learning strategies, activitics, and materials effective (or assigned students,

4. }Conduct assessment ol student leamning styles and results to plan instructional activities.

5. |Demonstrate strong and effective classroom management skills.

6. [Plan and supervise assignments of teacher aide and volunteers.

7. |Model appropriate character traits and ethical maturity in teaching students.

8. |Uphold classroom and school-wide expectations of performance and behavior for students.

9. |Collaborate with staff on lesson plans, assignments, and responsibilities.

10. |Any other dutics as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.

269 of 369
SAS 544-14
Page 2 of 2 RFA 7C1-14-104



Ninetcenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplcmental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring eptity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |Special Education Teacher Reports to: {Assistant Principal

Salary Range: 142,000~ 55,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing atlowance, etc...) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Lacation {City and County): [Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year one: [400 In year five: |1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: Bachelor's degree from an accredited university. Master's preferred.

Experience Required: Knowledge of special needs of students in assigned area. Knowledge of Admission, Review, and
Dismissal (ARD) Committee process and Individuat Education Plan {IEP) goal setting process and
Implementation. 3 years experience preferred.

Certification Required: Valid Texas Teaching Certificate with required Special Education Certification.

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbreviation ISD or CISD. County district numbers may be accessed cn line through

the Texas Education Directory found at hitp;//mansfield.tea,state.tx. us/TEA, Ask TED. Web/Forms/Home.aspx. Additionally, traditional

districts will not bave an eight as the fourth digit in the county district number (CDN).

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Rangc
Cross Plains ISD 030901 | [Cross Plains 347 45,411
Borden County ISD 017901 Igaﬂ 239 55,436
Santa Gertrudis ISD 137904 [Kingsvllle 517 43,715
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: {Beta Academy

Position; [Special Education Teacher Reports to: |Assistant Principal

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1, |Posscss knowledge of ARD Committee processes and 1EP goal setting and monitoring.

2. {Collaborate with students, parents, and staff to develop IEP through the ARD committee process.

3.]Communicate effectively with students, parents, and appropriate staff about learning plans, strategies, and goals.

4, {Implement an instructional, therapeutic or skill development program for assigned students.

5.]Keep detailed accounts and written evidence of preparation as required.

6.{Plan and use appropriate instructional strategies that reflect an understanding of the styles and needs of assigned students.

7.{Work cooperatively with classroom teachers to modify regular curricula as needed.

8. | Assist special education students in regular classes with assighments.

9. |Develop transition plans outlining specific steps to prepare students for middle school or high school.

10. |Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form

{MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring eatity: {The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charier school: |Beta Academy

Position: [Nurse Reports to: [Principal

Salary Range: [30,000- 45,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, eic...) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): [Houston, Harris

Nuraber of Students aaticipated in year one: {400 In year five: {1.680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: B.S.N. or Registered Nurse with a bachelor's degree in a related discipline preferred.

Experience Required: Minimurmn of 1 year experience in public health nursing, community heaith nursing, school health
nursing or pediatric nursing preferred,

Certification Required: Qualified to practice as a Registered Nurse in the State of Texas and holds an unrestricted license
preferred. Certified in CPR or BLS {or obtaln in the first 6 months).

Complete the following using information gathered from three diffcrent traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbrevmtlon ISD or CISD County district numbers may be accessed on line through

the Texas Education Directory found at 1 g x. Additionally, traditional
districts will pot have an eight as the fourth dlglt in the county dlsmct number (CDN')
# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Range
Beeville ISD Q13901 Beeville 406 22,915
Borden County ISD 101 7901 Gail 239 56,793
Santa Gertrudis I1SD 13 Kingsville 517 53,616
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Nincteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form

(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: [The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: [Beta Academy

Position: {Nurse Reports to: JPrincipal

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individval will perform.

1. |Promote and protect the optimal health status of students.

2. |Provide health assessments. Obtain & health history. Screen and evaluate findings of deficit in vision, hearing, scoliosis, etc.

3.|Develop and implement a student health plan.

4. |Maintain, evaluate, and interpret cumulative health data to accommodate individual needs of students.

5.{Plan and implement school health management protocols.

6.|Develop procedures and provide for emergency nursing management for injuries or illnesses.

7. Maintain confidentiality about students, their families, and other employees of the school,

8. |Promote and assist in the control of communicable dis=ases.

9. IManage and dispense appropriate student medications as needed.

10. |Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form

(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |Counselor Reports to: [Principal

Salary Range: 140,000 - 55,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car atiowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, cfc...) {o be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): {Houston, Harris

Number of Studeats anticipated in year one: [400 In year five: {1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: Master's or Bachelor's degree from an accredited college or university.
Experience Required: Teaching intemship and 1 year of school counseling preferred.
Certification Required: Texas Certifled for School Counselor preferred.

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbreviation 15D or CISD. County district numbers may be accessed on line through

the Texas Education Directory found at hitp://mansfield.tea.state.tx.us TEA, AsKTED. Web/Forms/Home.aspx. Additionally, traditional

districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county district number (CDN).

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Range
Cross Plains (SD 030901 ICross Plains 347 52,169
Borden County 15D 017901 | iGail 239 74,340
Santa Gertrudis ISD 137904 | |Kingsville 517 41,478
Z or 369
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Nincteenth Generation Open-Enroliment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: [Counselor Reports to: |Principal

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1, [Exhibit knowledge and skills regarding the guidance program, pupils served, and counseling and development services.

2.|Act as advocates for students.

3.{Assist all students in developing and applying skills for maximum educational, career, personal, and sociat growth.

4. (Monitor developmental needs and personal problems that affect educational, personal, and social development.

5. [Collaborate to plan, implement, evaluate and advocate for a comprehensive development guidance program.

6. |Provide professional expertise to help faculty, staff, administration, parents, and other community members.

7. |Adhere to professicnal standards in all components of a comprehensive developmental guidance and counseling program.

8.|Provide help in the home, school, district, and community to support students' academic, personal, and social development.

9. {Interpret standardized test results and other available student data to promote sound decision making,

10. | Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: [The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |ESL Teacher Reports to: [Assistant Principal

Salary Range: (42,000 - 55,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, efc. ) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, piease state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County):; |Houston, Hartis

Number of Students anticipated in year ong: {400 In year five: |1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required, Bachelor's degree. Master's preferred.
Experience Required: 3 years of related experience preferred.
Certification Required: Teacher certification and ESL certification.

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbrewatton lSD or CISD. County dlstnct numbers may be accessed on line through

the Texas Education Directory found at hitp;/ms 2 x. Additionally, traditional
districts will nat have an eight as the fourth digit in the county dlstnct nurnber (CDN)
# of Students

Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Range
Cross Plains ISD looso1 | {cross ptains 347 39,974
Borden County ISD 017901 | |Gail 239 52,837
Santa Gertrudis ISD 137904 | |Kingsville 517 43,715
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enroliment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the asme of the sponsoring entity. |[The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Posttion: {ESL Teacher Reports to; |Assistant Principal

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. [Administers specialized ESL assessments.

2. |Conducts gssessment of eligibility in the ESL program.

3. |Acts as a linison between the student and other 1eachers, staff members and family.

4. |Strives by instruction and action to employ school's philosophy of education, instructional goals and objectives

5. |Assesses the accomplishments of students on a regular basis, provides progress reports as required.

6. [Notify parents of results and placement and make sure they have access to all information.

7. |Provide accommodstions and make sure they are being met.

B. |Assist in creating classsoom assessments or make necessary modifications.

9, |Analyze data to see if student needs to be moved to different tier or 1aken out of the ESL program.

10. |Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |Teacher Aide Reports to: |Teacher

Salary Range: [15,000-23,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.c., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, etc...) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): |Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year one: |400 In year five: [1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: High school diploma. Bachelor's degree preferred.
Experience Required: Ability to work well and communicate effectively with childreri. Classroom experience preferred.
Certification Required: Must be a Highly Qualified Alde (At least 2 years college hours accumulated)

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditionel districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbreviation 1SD or CISD. County district numbers may be accessed on line throngh

the Texas Education Directory found at http://mansfield.tea.state.tx.us/TEA . ASKTED. Web/Forms/Home.aspx. Additionally, traditional

districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county district number (CDN).

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in {City) Served Salary Range
Cross Plains ISD |030901 [Cross Plains 347 19,791
Borden County ISD 017901 | |Gail 239 17,760
Santa Gertrudis ISD 137904 |Kingsville 517 24,813
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Nincteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |[The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: jTeacher Alde Reports to: |[Teacher

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

I, |Help classroom and special education teachers with small group interventions in reading, inath, and writing.

2.{Work with teachers to build schoo! culture, following the school-adopted norms and consequences

3.| Administer one-on-one assessments with students.

4, |Make copies, grade papers, enter grades, update trackers, and change bulletin beards for classroom teachers as needed.

5. |Assist office stafTf as needed.

6. [Monitor students during moming break, lunch, and recess as needed.

7. {Encourage students in developing cognitive, social, emotional and skills appropriate 10 age and grade.

8. |Establish rapport with students and parents.

9. |Safeguard the health and safety of students.

10. | Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enroliment Charter Application
Supplemental Humap Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the revicw process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |Office Assistant/Clerk/Admin Reports to: |Principal

Salary Range: |25,000- 35,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, celt phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, etc...)} lo be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): {Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year one: 400 In year five: |1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: High school diploma. Bachelor's degree preferred.

Experience Required: Computer skills including Excel, Word, Access, Adobe. Professional communication and
Interaction etiquette, Highly organized and excellent prablem solvers. 3 years related experlence
preferred.

Certification Required: none

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, stwdent make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbreviation 1SD or CISD. County district numbers may be accessed on line through

the Texas Education Directory found at http://mansfield.tea,state tx.us'TEA AsKTED. Web/Forms/Home.aspx. Additionally, traditional

districis will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county district number (CDN).

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Range
Cross Plains 1SD 030901 | |Cross Plains 347 19,7N
Borden County ISD 017901 Gail 239 26,967
Santa Gertrudis [SD 137904 | |Kingsville 517 24,813
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enroliment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form

(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: {Beta Academy

Position: |Office Assistant/Clerk/Admin Reporis to: {Principal

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. {Perform daily clerical duties such as photocopying, faxing, mailing, and filing.

2.)Support staff in daily tasks end essigned projects.

3. |Bring professionalism to front office, answering phones, and interacting with students, parents, staff, and community.

4, |Maintain school calendar.

5.]Setup and coordinate meetings, conferences, and teacher developmental training,

6. |Coordinate and maintain records for staff office space, phones, parking, office keys, and materials.

7.1Prepace, edit, and execute mailings.

8. |Provide tours of the school to visitors as needed.

9. |Procure supplics.

10. JAny other duties as assigned.

If & charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open mecting of the charter holder board.
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enroltment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: [The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: [Technology/Media Specialist Reports to: |Principal

Salary Range: {30,000 - 50,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, etc...) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): |Houston, Harris

Number of Students anlicipated in year one; [400 In year five: |1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: Bachelor's degree preferred.

Experience Required: Experience in the use of computers and other instructlonal technology.
Centification Required: none

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and

location. A traditional district is identified by the abbrevmnon ISD or CISD County d:stnct numbers may be accessed on hine through
the Texas Education Directory found at hiip.//ms eld.tea, sts : ¢ 15, aspx. Additionally, traditional
districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county dlstnct number (CDN)

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in {City) Served Salary Range
Cross Plains ISD 030901 Igoss Plains 347 35,857
Borden County 1SD 017901 | |Gall 239 54,626
Santa Gertrudis ISD 137904 | [Kingsville 517 65,219
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282 pei 1362 RFA 701-14-104


http://mansfie]d

Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: [The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: {Technology/Media Specialist Reports to: |Principal

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. {Maintain systems and troubleshoot technology issues on the campus.

2. |Provide instruction and training on hardware/software technologies.

3. |Collaborate with staff regarding technological curriculum development and support.

4, |Work with administration to ensure classroom technology is maintained and updated.

5. |Coordinate a variety of activities in collaboration with teacher assignment and projects.

6, |Oversee the safety and security of Internet use.

7. |Perform regular technology purges and updates, eliminating spam, virus, and other harmful programs.

8. [Develop and solicit proposals for technology upgrades.

9. |Perform routine preventative maintenance tasks on equipment.

10. |Any other duties as assigned,

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must he documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder beard.
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST bc typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: [The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school:  |Beta Academy

Position: |Registrar Reports to; |Principal

Salary Range: [25,000 - 35,000

List any other potential forrn of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, eic...) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): |Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year one: {400 In year five; |1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: Bachelor's degree preferred.
Experience Required: 2 years secretarial or related experience in a public education environment preferred,
Certification Required: fnone

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbrevmuon ISD or CISD. County district numbers may be accessed on line through
the Texas Education Directory found at http://mansfie ate AA aspx. Additionally, traditional
districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county dlstnct number (CDN},

# of Students
Name of District CDN L.ocated in (City) Served Salary Range
Cross Plains I1SD 030901 Cross Plains 347 39,501
Borden County ISD 017901 Gail 239 32,763
Santa Gertrudls SD 137904 | |Kingsville 517 45,174
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas Jeft blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |[The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: [Beta Academy

Position: |Registrar Reports to: |Principal

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. |[Maintain all student record information in current status.

2. |Prepare, maintain, and account for student attendance records.

3. |[Maintain an accurate listing of students by grade level.

4. {Work in collaboration with PEIMS Coordinator.

5. [Establish proper systems of record keeping, reporting, and communicating with staff,

6. |Process all student admissions and withdrawals, including control of the procedures.

7. |Prepare all required records for use or storage.

8. JAssist Administrators and students with discipline incidents and reports,

9. | Track staff attendance for reporting to Payroll Manager

10. |Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enrollment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: |The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school. |Beta Academy

Position: |Facility Manager/Security Guard Reports to: {Principal

Salary Range: {25,000 - 30,000

List any other potential form of remuneration (i.e., car allowance, cell phone, memberships, travel or housing allowance, etc.. ) to be
given to the individual in this position. In none, please state N/A.

N/A

Proposed Location (City and County): ;Houston, Harris

Number of Students anticipated in year ane: 400 In yeer five: |1,680

Minimum Qualifications Required:

Education Required: High School diploma.
Experience Required: |Experience with maintenance, tools, smaii equipment, and in facliities management preferred.
Certification Required: none

Complete the following using information gathered from three different traditional districts comparable in size, student make-up, and
location. A traditional district is identified by the abbrevmuon ISD or CISD County dlstncl numbers may be accessed on line through
the Texas Education Directory found at hittp:.//ma A ) ! s aspx. Additionally, traditional
districts will not have an eight as the fourth digit in the county dlstncl number (CDN)

# of Students
Name of District CDN Located in (City) Served Salary Range
Cross Plains iSD 030901 ‘ass Plains 347 21,161
Borden County [SD 017901 | |Gail 239 28,967
Santa Gertrudis ISD 137904 | |KIngsvlile 517 22,752
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Nineteenth Generation Open-Enroliment Charter Application
Supplemental Human Resources Information Form
(MUST be typed)

ANY areas left blank will result in the application being deemed "INCOMPLETE" during the review process.

Enter the name of the sponsoring entity: {The Beta Foundation

Enter the name of the proposed charter school: |Beta Academy

Position: |Facility Manager/Security Guard Reports to: [Principal

Job Duties: List up to 10 key duties this individual will perform.

1. |Establish and maintain effective communication systems with campus administration,

2. [Review and establish priorities for work orders,

3, |Review plans, specifications, and shop drawings for compliance with disirict, city, state, and federal codes and laws.

4. [Work with administration to ensure buildings and grounds are clean, orderly, and well-maintained.

5. |Coordinate a variety of activities such as room, furniture and equipment arrangements for special events,

6. |Oversee the safety and security of the employees/property for the purpose of minimizing exposure to injury, loss, and theft.

7. {Determine the type of materials, equipment, supplies to be used or purchased.

8. |[Estimate time and material costs for the purpose of providing necessary information for making decisions.

9, [Perform routine preventative maintenance tasks on heating, electrical, air conditioning, and water equipment.

10. |Any other duties as assigned.

If a charter is awarded, this document becomes part of the original application. Changes to this
information must be documented in the minutes of an open meeting of the charter holder board.
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RFSPONSIVE TD THF COMMUMITY..DESIGNFD FOR THE STUDENT
THE MISSINL PICCL I EDMCATION

March 25, 2014

To whom it may concern,

I have had the distinct privilege to work with Latisha Andrews over the past year. in October of 2012 she was
approached by our Responsive Educations marketing team to be the Director for a new campus we desired to
open in the Houston area. In April 2013 Latisha joined our team. She then worked tirelessly and located an
available property for which she oversaw aver a million dollar renovation project; completed in less than 6
weeks. During this time Latisha also interviewed and staffed all positions, ran multiple marketing campaigns,
ordered curriculum and furniture, held parent and community information/interest meetings, and after a
summer of diligent work, with attention to detail, Latisha opened August 2013 with 250 students, K-4.

As a regional Director of Operations, | worked hand- in -hand with Latisha through the complete start-up
phases of a new school opening. She was initially placed on several existing campuses to job shadow and
observe. We began working together in early summer and Latisha has demonstrated excellence In every area

of Operations.

Her experiences in private school administration and public charter have made her one of my strongest
Directors in the Houston/East Texas Reglon. Her passion and life dream is to be a strong leader in the
education field and exemplifies this passion every day. Her commitment to community and relationship and
specifically how she communicates is her strongest asset.

Latisha Andrews has great organizational ability and can handie multiple projects at the same time. She was
key to meeting all timelines asked of her and worked tirelessly as she took full ownership of each functional
roliout of the new school opening. She was responsible for ali Landlord communication to meet permit
requirements, worked with the city to acquire all necessary documentation, oversaw construction and
remodeling of the Pasadena campus, held weekly Marketing events and managed to hire a quality full
academic staff. Qutside of her ability to have influence in the community, Latisha was on the sidelines doing
much needed reading and training on all other functions of Operations. She has successfully been executing
Risk Management, Facilities, Finance, Marketing, Human Resources, PEIMS, Academics, Payroll and other
administrative areas of responsibility.

PO Box 292730 wivr ResponsiveRd com

Lewisvifie TX 75029 o wwwe.PremiartHighSchools.com
Phone 972.316.3663 vest —E—_ wwiw iSchoolHigh.com
Mdlobdud  Vista Academics vavwr QuestMiddleSchools.rarn

Fax 972.215.,9505
wWinw Vista-Acadermies.com
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I have worked in Operations for Respansive Ed for over 5 years where { continually open new campuses. | have
nat had any initial start-up issues at Latisha’s campus. This is rare and | do believe that it is Latisha’s proactive
approach to knowing her business and being a strong business person that has headed off any true potential
problems that may occur within the first year of a new Charter.

| strongly recommend that Latisha Andrews be granted the opportunity to live a dream of bringing a free
public school choice to the community of at-risk children she has poured herself into far over 14 years, i will
support her in any way that | can. She has an exceptional work ethic and will execute alt that is necessary to be

successful in helping children become l(ifelong learners.

WAL

Gwen Abshire/ Regional Director of Operations
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e taetivees b luedn oo,

v oot 100 /0050 - . -
s G 3G 3661 @ - \iSchoolH g Uest f-'""‘K""'\_ wrvay e bl b gly e
9, Ml belmal % ey AT whee Chpethhiddintc e cenes

Foas P07 4ty
Poeamirs bagh S oo dy R A N P TI TEEL

289 of 369
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March 10, 2014

Beta Academy Board of Directors
9701 Almeda Genoa Road
Houston, Texas 77075

Beta Academy Board of Directors,

| enthuslastically support the expansion of Beta Academy charter school in the Pasadena School District.
South East Houston is an area of Harris County that is plagued by poverty, substance abuse and high
juvenile crime rates. The age of onset for addiction is getting younger and younger, as well as the age of
Incarcerations and rehablilitations. | believe that Beta Academy is making a difference In the youth of our
community and could combat these imperative community issues.

It is well known that commitment to school and cammunity is a protective factor against teen
pregnancy, substance abuse and high school dropout rates. Commitment to school and graduate rates
are suffering in the Pasadena School District, it is my belief that Beta Academy Is a remedy to these
issuas. The expansion of Beta Academy coutd reduce these alarming statistics In our area.

It is a collective responsibility of our community to help our youth become productive citizens no matter
what adversities they face. it is my hope that Beta Academy will continue to expand throughout the
Pasadena Scheool District as it truly takes a village to ralse a child.

Sincerely,

IMBinas—

Amber Buras, CPS

Coalition Coordinator
South East Harris County Community Coalition
281-914-3027

MISSION | To help individuals, families and communities stop alcohol/drug abuse
and addiction.
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Pasadena Independent School District

8880 Southbluff * Houston, Texas 77089
Office: 713-740-0656 * Fax:713-740-4140

Jill Lacamu, Princlpal * Dee Dee Pitts, Assistant Principal

2/08/2012

Beta Academy Board of Directors
9701 Almeda Genoa Rd.
Houston, TX 77075

Re: Support for Proposed Charter School
Beta Academy Board of Directors, :

I enthusiastically support establishing Beta Acaderﬁy as a charter school in the Texas Pasadena
Independent School District (PISD). The need for Improvement in our public schools is
compelling and the Beta Academy model will make a difference for all of our public school
students.

I believe Beta Academy directors and staff will create an academic environment of excellence,
leadership, and character development. Their commitment to building strong relationships
between students, parents, and school faculty ensures an environment of excellence. Beta
Academy’s proposed charter is a model for public education; purposefully designed to impact
our communities positively. They have the right vision, the right heart, and the right team to be

successful.

Please use my letter of support in your Beta Academy charter school application.

Si% . /.Q_w-fd—o’
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February 14, 2012

Beta Academy Board of Directors
9701 Almeda Genoa Rd.
Houston, TX 77075

Re: Support for Proposed Charter School
Beta Academy Board of Directors,

| enthusiastically support establishing Beta Academy as a charter school in the Texas Pasadena
Independent School District (PISD). The need for improvement in our public schools is
compelling and the Beta Academy model will make a difference for all of our public school
students. '

} believe Beta Academy directors and staff will create an academic environment of excellence,
leadership, and character development. Their commitment to building strong relationships
between students, parents, and school faculty ensures an environment of excellence. Beta
Academy’s proposed charter is a model for public education; purposefully designed to impact
our communities positively. They have the right vision, the right heart, and the right team to be
successful.

Please use my letter of support in your Beta Academy charter school application.

Sincerely,

Qpoy Xy

Judy L. Miller

293 of 369






Rir.%iﬁ:néc%nic @‘

18818 ROYAL CREST
SUITE 110
HOUSTON; TX 77088
(281) 4884431

February 10, 2012

Beta Academy Board of Directors
9701 Almeda Genoa Rd.
Houston, TX 77075

Re: Support for Proposed Charter School

Beta Academy Board of Directors,

| enthusiastically support establishing Beta Academy as a charter schoof{ in the Texas Pasadena
Independent School District {PISD). The need for improvement in our public schools is
compelling and the Beta Academy model wili make a difference for all of our public school

students.

| believe Beta Academy directors and staff will create an academic environment of excellence,
leadership, and character development. Their commitment to building strong relationships
between students, parents, and school faculty ensures an environment of excellence. Beta
Academy’s proposed charter is a model for public education; purposefully designed to impact
our communities positively. They have the right vision, the right heart, and the right team to be

successful.

Please use my letter of support in your Beta Academy charter school apﬁlication.

Sincerely,

(/]’“WM/' CJ)( lea e~

Norma Callender, Ph.D., LPC
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Start-Up Timeline

Completed
and In
Work

Completed:

Location selected: Magnetic lock entrance security door and security lighting installed and
wireless internet throughout

Playground construction complete (community volunteers built)

Acquired gymnasium play equipment, volieyball, basket balls, mats, etc.

Procured Beta Academy frontage sign

Developed logo and submitted trademark

Initiated fundraising through pledges and gifts. Received $204,000 in pledges to date
Initiated school library with over 800 books donated to date

Acquired over 20 computers complaint with on-line “Accelerated Reading” requirements
Acquired over $15,000 in classroom furniture and instructional aids

Partnered with 5t Agnes Academy Houston for technology sharing/donations

Working to satisfying occupancy code E requirements

08/2014 CEQ Superintendent will begin working 25% salary
Begin soliciting website designs/proposals
Begin scheduling board training
Sample curriculum ordered for kindergarten through sixth grade (Terri Sones, Helen
Abernathy, Justin James, Latisha Andrews)
Establish temp office/no charge (Latisha Andrews)
Begin soliciting for back office support i.e. payroll and financial accounting (Latisha Andrews,
Tim King)
Begin soliciting grants (Terri Sones, Helen Abernathy, Tim King, Justin James, Latisha
Andrews)
Engage community supporters and financial backers (Latisha Andrews, Tim King, Martha
Smith)
For contingency funds, secure line of credit (Tim King, Latisha Andrews)
Retain legal counsel for review of bylaws, Code of Ethics, Conflict of Interest, etc.
09/2014 Curriculum selected/written for kindergarten through second grade {Terri Sones, Helen
Abernathy, Justin James, Latisha Andrews)
Review back office support proposals {Latisha Andrews, Tim King, Philip Smith)
10/2014 Develop Website {Latisha Andrews)
Develop Enrollment Packet/HR Forms/School Forms (Terri Sones, Helen Abernathy, Latisha
Andrews)
Post/advertise Office Admin position (Latisha Andrews)
Contingency resolution deadline
11/2014 Curriculum selected/written for third through fifth grade

(Terri Sones, Helen Abernathy, Justin James, Latisha Andrews)
Begin advertising school opening on facility electronic reader board signage (Latisha

Andrews)
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Develop HR/Employee Handbook {HR Manager, Latisha Andrews)
Textbooks and workbooks ordered (Latisha Andrews, Tim King)
Equipment and furniture purchased (Latisha Andrews, Tim King)

08/2015

Hire Assistant Principal (Latisha Andrews)

Fill teaching positions (Latisha Andrews)

Training/professional development for all staff (Latisha Andrews, Helen Abernathy)
Classroom set up (teachers, Latisha Andrews, staff)

Teaching/office materials and supplies ordered {Latisha Andrews)

Parent Orientations 3 times a week during the evenings (Latisha Andrews)

Build traffic flow chart and establish student drop off and pick up procedures

Post directional/informational signage for parking, offices, drop off, pick up, etc. {Latisha
Andrews)
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Latisha Andrews

e ———|
Personal conlact information rentoved jor posting to a puEhc domain
The Beta Foundation: 832.656.5841

A proven visionary leader, motivational speaker and marketing expert with extensive educational
leadership experience in private, public and charter schools as a teacher, principal and director.

EDUCATION

Capella University Oct 2004 — May 2006
Master’s in Business Association (Highest Honors 4.0 GPA)
Concentration in Marketing

University of Maryland College, Asian Division Jun 2002 - Dec 2003
Bachelor’s in Science: Psychology (High Honors)
Minor: Women's Studies

Texas Bible College, Houston Sep 1998 - May 2001
Diploma of Theology (Highest Honors 4.0 GPA)

AWARDS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Who's Who Among Professional Women in Education, 2009
Summa Cum Laude: Capella University 2006
Magna Cum Laude: University of Maryland 2003
Honors Society: San Jacinto 2002
Who's Who in American Colleges and Universities 2001
WORK EXPERIENCE
Director: Responsive Ed (Vista Academy), Houston, TX April 2013-Present

* Administrative and educational responsibility/oversight for 250 elementary
students K-4 and 28 staff members (teachers, admin staff, support staff)
Develop/evaluate/coordinate educational program to ensure conformance to state
and school board through meetings with staff, review of teachers’ activities, and
issuance of directives

Marketing campaigns to increase student enrollment and maintain ADA
Requisition and allocate supplies, equipment, and instructional material
Preparation of class schedules, cumulative records, and attendance reports
Community liaison

QOversee safety, security and building/grounds maintenance

Chicf Exccutive Officer: Beta Academy, Houston, TX June 2010 - Present
e Administrative and educational responsibility/oversight for students, teachers and
support staff (K-8); student records/attendance reports
o Fiduciary oversight of all business finances and fundraising campaigns
¢ Curriculum development, research and purchase
« Public relations, community liaison
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Latisha Andrews
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Personal contact information removed Jor posting lo a pumlc domain

The Beta Foundation: 832.656.5841

Elementary Principal: Life Christian Academy, Houston, TX Aug 2006 - June 2010

¢ Administrative and educational responsibility/oversight for 130 elementary
students K-8 and 12 staff members (teachers, admin staff, support staff)

¢ Developed/evaluated/coordinated educational programs and curriculum to ensure
conformance to state and school board standards through meetings with staff,
review of teachers’ activities, and issuance of directives

e Plan/Led marketing campaigns to increase student enrollment

» Requisitioned/allocated supplies, equipment, and instructional material

e Developed academic schedules and calendars

* Maintained student cumulative records and attendance reports

»  Community liaison

First Grade Teacher: Life Christian Academy, Houston, TX  Oct 2004 - Aug 2006
¢ Educational instruction for 18-20 students

Provided curriculum development instruction to academic staff

Taught classroom management seminars for local elementary schools

Developed K-5 and 11-12 Bible Course curriculum

Facilitated weekly Chapel services for grades K-12

Tutored students K-12

Accomplishment:  Students consecutively surpassed grade level scores on
Stanford Achievement Testing

Substitute Teacher (K-12): Department of Defense School System
Misawa Air Force Base, Misawa Japan Oct 2003 - Sep 2004

English Teacher/Teacher Aide (K-1) — Summer Youth Program:
Japanese National Public School, Aomori Prefecture, Japan Summer 1991
e Assisted Japanese teachers with students classwork/activities

¢ Taught English

RELATED ACTIVITIES

Public Speaking 1999 - Current
Guest speaker for various children, youth and adult events/functions in Ohio, California,

Indiana, Virginia, and Texas

Voluntcer 1994 - Current
Extensive volunteer work since age 15 at retirement homes, hospitals, schools,
orphanages, churches, homeless shelters, and youth mentoring/tutoring
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Latisha Andrews
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Personal contact information removed jor posting to a public domain
The Beta Foundation: 832.656.5841

Biography

Latisha Andrews is a passionate leader focused on bringing exceptional education to her
community. She is CEO of Beta Academy and the Beta Foundation and the Director of the
Responsive Ed Vista Academy charter school in Houston, TX. Ms. Andrews successfully
launched (2010) a private low-cost tuition school in a low-income area which she currently
staffs, leads, and financially manages. Parinering with Responsive Education Solutions as site
Director, she successfully launched {2013) a charter school in an adjacent community to meet the
extended community’s needs. On her quest to bring a tuition-free school to her neighborhood,
she has consulted with Geoffrey Canada, CEO of Harlem Children’s Zone, corresponded with
multiple local and state legislators, and made connections with business and community leaders.
For 14 years, she has provided volunteer services and tutoring to disadvantaged and at-risk
children in nearby neighborhoods. Latisha brings 10 years of educational leadership experience
and graduated Summa Cum Laude from Capella University with a Master of Business
Administration degree. Once reprimanded for “dreaming too big”, Andrews is on a mission to
bring a world-class, tuition-free school to her own backyard.
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The Beta Foundation’s Proposed Code of Conduct/Ethics

The Beta Foundation will be in legal consuitation upon charter award to ensure we
Institute/adopt a Code of Conduct/Ethics is appropriate and in compliance with managing a
Texas Open-Enroliment Charter School. The following Code of Conduct is a modified version of
a sample taken from the California Society of Association Executives Policy & Procedures
Manual,

The Board expects of itself and its members ethical and business-like conduct. This
commitment includes proper use of authority and appropriate decorum in group and individual
behavior when acting as Board members.

Board members must represent, with un-conflicted loyalty, the interests of the membership.
This accountability supersedes any conflicting loyalty such as that to advocacy or interest
groups and membership on other Boards or staffs.

Board members must avoid any conflict of interest with respect to their fiduciary responsibility.

There must be no self-dealing or any conduct of private business or personal services between
any Board members except as procedurally controiled to assure openness, competitive
opportunity, and equal access to "inside" information.

Board members must not use their positions to obtain for themselves, family members, or close
associates, employment within Beta Academy.

Should a Board member be considered for employment by Beta Academy, he or she must
temporarily withdraw from Board deliberations, voting, and access to applicable Board
information.

Board members and members at large may not attempt to exercise individual authority over
Beta Academy staff except as explicitly set forth in Board policies.
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CODE OF ETHICS

The Beta Foundation will adopt the following Code of Ethics from Texas Association of
School Boards' as found on the tasb.org website:

Ethics for School Board Members
As a member of the Board |, , shall promote the best interests of the
District as a whole and, to that end, shall adhere to the following ethical standards:

Equity in Attitude
» [ will be fair, just, and impartial in all my decisions and actions.
e [ will accord others the respect | wish for myself.
e [ will encourage expressions of different opinions and listen with an open mind to
others' ideas.
Trustworthiness in Stewardship
e ] will be accountable to the public by representing District policies, programs,
priorities and progress accurately.
¢ [will be responsive to the community by seeking its involvement in District affairs
and by communicating its priorities and concerns.
e | will work to ensure prudent and accountable use of District resources.
» [ will make no personal promise or take private action that may compromise my
performance of my responsibilities.
Honor in Conduct
¢ [ willtell the truth.
* [ will share my views while working for consensus.
o I will respect the majority decision as the decision of the Board.
o [ will base my decisions on fact rather than supposition, opinion, or public favor.
Integrity of Character
o [ will refuse to surrender judgment to any individual or group at the expense of the
District as a whole.
¢ [ will consistently uphold all applicable laws, rules, policies, and governance
procedures.
» [ will keep confidental information that is privileged by law or that will needlessly
harm the District if disclosed.
Commitment to Service
o [ will focus my attention on fulfilling the Board's responsibilities of goal setting,
policymaking, and evaluation.
« 1will diligently prepare for and attend Board meetings.
¢ [ will seek continuing education that will enhance my ability to fulfill my duties
effectvely.
Student-Centered Focus
» 1 will be continuously guided by what is best for all students of the District.

Board Member Signature Date
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The Beta Foundation
Contflict of Intcrest Policy

Article I
Purpose

The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect The Beta Foundation’s (the
“Organization”) interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or
arrangement that might bencfit the private interest of an officer or director of the
Organization or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is
intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing
conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations.

Article II

Definitions

Interested Person
Any director, principal officer, or member of 2 committee with governing board

delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect fingncial interest, as defined below, is an
interested person.

Financial Interest
A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business,

investment, or family:

a. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Organization
has a transaction or arrangement,

b. A compensation arrangement with the Organization or with any entity or
individual with which the Organization has a transaction or arrangement, or

¢. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement
with, any entity or individual with which the Organization is negotiating a
transaction or arrangement, Compensation includes direct and indirect
remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not insubstantial. A financial
interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest, Under Article IIl, Section 2, a
person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of intesest only if the
appropriate govemning board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists,
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Article ITI

Procedures

1. Duty to Disclose
In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person must

disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all
material facts to the directors and members of committees with goveming board
delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or arrangement

2. Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists

After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and afier any discussion
with the interested person, he/she shall leave the governing board or committee meeting
while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The
remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.

3. Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest

a. An interested person may make a presentation at the govemning board or committee
meeting, but afier the presentation, he/she shall feave the meeting during the discussion
of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of
interest.

b. The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a
disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction
or arrangement.

c¢. Afier exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall determine
whether the Organization can obtain with reasonable efforts a8 more advantageous
transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of
interest.

d. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under
circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing board or committee
shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or
ammangement is in the Organization’s best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is
fair and reasonabie. In conformity with the above detenmination it shall make its decision
as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

4. Violations of the Conlflicts of Interest Policy

a. If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has
failed to disclose actual or possible coaflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the
basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure

to disclose.
b. If, after hearing the member’s response and after making further investigation as

warranted by the circumstances, the goveming board or committee determines the
member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take
appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.
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Artide IV

Records of Proceedings

The minutes of the goveming board and all committees with board delegated powers
shall contain:

a. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a financial
interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the
financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present,
and the goveming board’s or committee’s decision as to whether a conflict of interest in
fact existed.

b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the
transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any altematives to the
proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with

the proceedings.

Article V

Compensation

a. A voting member of the governing board who receives compensation, directly or
indirectly, from the Organization for services is precluded from voting on matters
pertaining to that member's compensation.

b. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters
and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Organization for services
is precluded from voting on matters pertaining 1o that member’s compensation.

c. No voting member of the governing board or any commitiee whose jurisdiction
includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly,
from the Organization, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing
information to any committee regarding compensation.

Article V1

Annual Statements

Each director, principal officer and member of a committee with governing board
delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms such person:

a. Has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy,
b. Has read and understands the policy,

¢. Has agreed to comply with the policy, and
d. Understands the Organization is charitable and in order to maintain its federal! tax
exemption it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-

exempt purposes.
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Article V]I

Periodic Reviews

To ensure the Organization operates in a manner consisteat with charitable purposes and
does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews
shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at 2 minimum, include the following

subjects:

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonabie, based on competent

survey information, and the result of arm’s length bargaining.

b. Whether partmerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management
organizations conform to the Organization's written policies, are properly recorded,
reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable
purposes and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit or in an excess

benefit transaction.

Article VIII

Use of Outside Experts

When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in Article VII, the Organization
may, but need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts are used, their use shall not
relieve the governing board of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are
conducted.

ADOPTED this_ 9™ day of @C v

W 2 Db

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICITY OF BUSINESS RECORDS

The undersigned, with the understanding this statement is subject to criminal penalty
under State and Federal law for an intentionally false declaration, declare that the
documents attached hereto are true and correct copies of the Bylaws of The Beta
Foundation which were duly adopted by the Board of Directors on &%aﬁ g 2011
The originals of these Bylaws are maintnined in the Business office of The Beta
Foundation at 9701 Almeda Genoa Rd., Houston, Texas.

B/ o2 &/ 7

Date

pJas/y
7 7

Date

RUTH ELIZABETH HERNANDEZ
Notary Publlc, Stats of Texas
My Commiasion Expires

State of Texas

County of Q’(A\r T \\ S
Swomn to and subscribed before me this thea"p' day of
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ctchurch.tv
Memorandum of Understanding

Facility Use Agreement

This agreement to lease is made and entered into March, 2014, between Beta Academy herein
referred to as Leaser, and Christian Temple, herein referred to as Lessee.

This agreement is contingent upon Beta Academy’s award for a charter school by the State
Board of Education.

Christian Temple Church agrees to lease to Beta Academy the education facility located at
9701 Almeda Genoa Rd, Houston, TX 77075 approximate 30,000 square feet for the sole
purpose of operating an Open Enrollment Public Charter School.

The intended lease is to commence August 1, 2013.

This agreement does not constitute a formal lease contract. Lease contract will be initiated upon

approval of The B ypen enrollment charter school application by the SBOE.
Lease Amount §__ TBD/month
o i 1 D -

wrch Date B
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APPROVED DURING CONTINGENCY PROCESS

To Whom [t May Concern:

Christian Temple Church has entered into a landlord/tenant
relationship with BETA Academy which will begin in August of 2015.
The leadership of Christian Temple Church is aware that all space made
available to BETA Academy must have an E occupancy rating.

Currently the proposed space has an A-1 Occupancy rating. We have
contracted with an architectural firm to identify the necessary changes
to go from an A-1 to an E occupancy rating.

We are committed to performing the necessary improvements in a
timely fashion in order to achieve the proper occupancy status. Our
goal is to have all necessary work/improvements completed on or
before June 1, 2015.

Sincerely,

Don Nordin
Lead Pastor
CT Church



APPROVED DIRING CONTINGENCY PPNGESS

LEASE AGREEMENT

This Lease Agreement ("Lease”) is made and entered into by and between Christian Temple
Assembly of God ("Landlord”), and Beta Foundation. a Texas 501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation
("Tenant").

SECTION 1: RECITALS

1.1 PROPERTY DESCRIPTION

Landlord is the owner of certain real property described as

1.2 FACILITY DESCRIPTION

Located on, and included within the term, the "Property” is a building containing
approximately 20,000 square feet of space with a common street address of 9701 Almeda
Genoa, Houston, Texas 77075, a paved parking area on the east and west side of the
building ("Facility"). The building located within the Facility is currently divided into three
areas. namely: (1) Sanctuary (2) Family Life Center and (3) Educational Building.

1.3 TENANT'S DESIRED USE OF DEMISED PREMISES

Tenant is an open-enrollment charter school, and desires to lease certain premises on the
Property and within the Facility for the sole purpose of operating an open-enrollment charter
school. educating such total number of students as may be approved by the Texas Education
Agency (“TEA") for occupancy, to occupy the Demised Premises (as defined below) for use
by the school.

1.4 DESIRE TO LEASE

Landlord desires to lease such Demised Premises to Tenant, Tenant desires to lease such
Demised Premises from Landlord, and the parties have agreed to such lease, at the rental rate

and otherwise on the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth.

Page 1 of 35
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IN CONSIDERATION of the Recitals set forth above, and other good and valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant

do hereby agree as follows:

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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SECTION 2: DESCRIPTION OF LEASED PREMISES.

2.1 LEASED PREMISES

Landlord hereby leases to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases from Landlord, use of the
following ("Demised Premises™): approximately 30,000 square feet of space on the Property

and within the Facility.
2.2 CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS

A. Improvements: Landlord shall be responsible for all Tenant improvements costs to
accommodate for an open-enrollment charter school, including, but not limited to, architectural
and engineering fees, construction fees, management fees, and all costs and/or fees resulting
from city and/or state requirements associated with the Americans with Disabilities Act
("ADA"). On or before June 30, 2015, Landlord will complete the improvements to the
Property, Facility, and/or Demised Premises, Security equipment is needed beyond what is

required for a church will be incurred at Tenant's cost.

B. Financing: Intentionally left blank. n/a

C. Ownership: Any Improvements to the Property, Facility, and/or Demised Premises installed by
either party during the Term of this Lease will become Landlord's property at the time such

Improvements are made.

D. Consent: All plans for construction/repairs and costs incurred to complete such work must be

agreed upon and signed by Tenant prior to any work being started.

E. Construction Quality: All construction required by this section will be performed by trained and
qualified persons in a good workman-like manner and will comply with applicable building
codes, local ordinances, govermmental regulations, and statutes (e.g., ADA, Architectural

Barriers, etc.).

F. Tenant Inspection: Tenant may, at reasonable times during construction, inspect the construction
of the Improvements. Tenant may object to any deficiencies in the completion of the

Improvements by providing specific written notice to Landiord and Landlord will promptly cure
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the deficiencies. Upon completion of the Improvements, Tenant will acknowledge in writing that
Improvements have been completed and that Tenant accepts the Demised Premises for the

purposes of this Lease.

G. Time is of the Essence: Landlord acknowledges that time is of the essence. Therefore,
should Landlord fail to obtain adequate financing for the Improvements on or before June 1,
2014, or complete the Improvements on or before July 30, 2014, Tenant shall have the right
to abate one (1) month of Base Monthly Rent for every week Landlord exceeds the applicable

deadline for completing, or obtaining adequate financing for, the Improvements.

H. Certificate of Occupancy ("CO") and Special Use Permit ("SUP"): Landlord is responsible
for obtaining a CO or SUP for the Demised Premises if required by a governmental body.

1. Definition of "Days”: Any reference herein to "days” shall mean calendar days.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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SECTION 3: TERM OF THE LEASE

3.1 TERM

The "Term" of this Lease is 36 months, commencing on July 01, 2015 ("Commencement Date")
and ending on June 30, 2018 ("Expiration Date"). Tenant will notify landlord of non-renewal

of the lease no later than December 31 of the preceding year before the end of the term

3.2 DELAY OF OCCUPANCY DUE TO HOLDOVER
If Tenant is unable to occupy the Demised Premises on the Commencement Date because of a
prior tenant's holding over of the Demised Premises, Landlord will not be liable to Tenant for
such delay and this Lease will remain enforceable. [n the event of such a delay, the
Commencement Date will automatically be extended to the date Tenant is able to occupy the
Demised Premises and the Expiration Date will also be extended by a like number of days, so
that the length of this Lease remains unchanged. If Tenant is unable to occupy the Demised
Premises after the 30" day after the Commencement Date because of a prior tenant's holding
over of the Demised Premises, Tenant may terminate this Lease by giving written notice
to Landlord before the Demised Premises become available to be occupied by Tenant and
Landlord will refund to Tenant any amounts paid to Landlord by Tenant. This Paragraph 3.2
does not apply to any delay in occupancy caused by construction on the Demised Premises to

be completed by Landlord, cleaning, or repairs.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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SECTION 4: RENT

4.1 RENT

A. Definition: All sums payable under this Lease, whether denominated as rent or not, shall

be considered "Rent" for all purposes.

B. Base Monthly Rent: On or before the first day of each month during this Lease. Tenant
will pay Landlord the greater of; (1) SEVENTY-FIVE AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($75.00)
per student Average Daily Attendance ("ADA") as documented on the most current Public
Education Information Management System ("PEIMS") report or (2) TWO THOUSAND
AND NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000.00) ("Base Monthly Rent").

The first full payment of Base Monthly Rent is due to Landlord on or before July 1, 2015.

C. Prorated Rent: If the Commencement Date is on a day other than the first day of a month,
Tenant will pay Landlord as "Prorated Rent" an amount equal to SEXTY FOUR AND
NO/ 100 DOLLARS ($64) per day. The Prorated Rent is due on or before the

Commencement Date.

D. Triple Neu: All taxes, insurance, and maintenance relating to the. Demised Premises and
Common Areas are included in the Base Monthly Rent.

E. Place of Payment: Tenant will remit all Rent due Landlord under this Lease to the
following person at the place stated or to such other person or place as Landlord may later

designate in writing:

Christian. Temple Assembly of God
Attn: CT Church Business Administrator
9701 Almeda Genoa Road

Houston, TX 77075

F. Method of Payment: Tenant must pay Rent due Landlord timely without demand,

deduction, or offset, except as permitted by law or this Lease. If Tenant fails to timely

Page 6 of 35
Tenant Initials: Landlord Initials:


http:2.000.00

pay any amounts due under this Lease or if any check of Tenant is returned to Landlord by
the institution on which it was drawn, Landlord after providing written notice to Teaant
may require Tenant to pay subsequent amounts that become due under this Lease in
certified funds. This paragraph does not limit Landlord from seeking other remedies
under this Lease for Tenant's failure to make timely payments with good funds.

G. Late Charges: If Landlord does not actually receive a Rent payment at the
desi'gnated place of payment within ten (10) days after the date it is due, Tenant will pay
Landlord a late charge equal to five percent (5%) of the amount due, In this
paragraph, the mailbox is not the agent for receipt for Landlord. The late charge is a cost
associated with the collection of Rent and Landlord’s acceptance of a late charge does not

waive Landlord's right to exercise remedies under Section 8.4.

H. Returned Checks: Tenant will pay $25.00 for each cheek Tenant tenders to Landlord
which is returned by the institution on which it is drawn for any reason, plus any late

charges until Landlord receives payment,
4.3 UTILITIES AND HVAC

A. Apportionment of Utilities: The party designated below will pay for the following
utility charges to the Demised Premises and any connection charges for the utilities.

1. Landlord: Landlord shall be responsible to pay for the following:

a. Water

b. Sewer

c. Electric

d. Gas

e. Trash Removal
f. Cable

g. All utilities not designated in Paragraphs 4.3.A.1. or 4.3.A.2. below.
2. Tenant: Tenant shall be responsible to pay for the following:
a. Telephone

b. Internet and adequate bandwidth for campus needs
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B. Payment Method: The party responsible for the charges under this section will pay the
charges directly to the utility service provider. The responsible party may select the utility
service provider except that if Tenant selects the provider. any access or alterations to the
Property, Facility, or Demised Premises necessary for the utilities may be made only with
Landlord's prior consent, which Landlord will not unreasonably withhold. If Landlord
incurs any liability for utility or connection charges for which Tenant is responsible to
pay and Landlord pays such amount, Tenant will immediately, upon written notice from

Landiord, reimburse Landlord such amount.

C. Availability of Utilities: Tenant should determine if all necessary utilities are

available to the Demised Premises and are adequate for Tenant's intended use.

D. HVAC Services: "HVAC Services" means heating, ventilating, and air conditioning of
the Demised Premises. Landlord will provide the HYAC Services to the Demised
Premises during the Normal Business Hours specified under Section 5.2 at no additional
charge and will, at Tenant's request, provide HYAC services to the Demised Premises
during other hours for no additional charge. Tenant will comply with Landlord's
procedures to make a request to provide the additional HVYAC services under this

paragraph. Duplicate stuff— Saturday 8 to 12 should fix it.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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SECTION 5: TENANT'S DUTIES

5.1 PERMITTED USE

Tenant shall be entitled to use the Demised Premises for the operation of an open-
enrollment charter school and for school-related activities and events. Tenant will have
use of the Demised Premises as depicted on Exhibit C, subject only to the Landlord's
right of access granted herein. Within the Demised Premises, Tenant's use may include
social events, extracurricular activities, fundraising events, school-affiliated entity events
and other meetings and activities related thereto. Such school and school-related events
may be open to Tenant's officers, employees, volunteers, students and their families and
friends. invitees of such persons, and the general public as may be allowed or required by
applicable law. Upon prior written consent and approval by Landlord (which Landlord
shall not unreasonably withhold). Tenant may conduct all such meetings. events or

activities in the Demised Premises.

5.2 HOURS

Tenant will operate and conduct its business in the Demised Premises during business
hours that are typical of an open-enrollment charter school, including, but not limited to.
Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday_ 7 a.m. to 7 p.m.; {"Normal Business

Hours").

3.3LEGAL COMPLIANCE

A, Prohibited Use: Tenant may not use or permit any part of the Property, Facility, or
Demised Premises to be used for: any activity that interferes with any other tenant's
normal business operations or Landlord's management of the Property; any activity that
violates any applicable federal, state, or local law, including but not limited to those
laws related to air quality, water quality, hazardous materials. wastewater, waste disposal,
air emissions, or other environmental matters; or the permanent or temporary storage of

any hazardous material, provided. However, chemicals typically used for non-collegiate

Page 9 of 35
Tenant Initials: Landlord Initials:



educational teaching and non-research purposes may be maintained on site for use in
science instruction provided they are stored: (a) in accordance with all applicable
federal, state, and local laws and regulations; (b} in amounts that do not exceed any law
governing the storage and handling of hazardous materials: and (c} in a safe and

appropriate manner.

B. Hazardous Material: “Hazardous material” means any pollutant, toxic substance,
hazardous waste, hazardous material, hazardous substance, solvent, or oil as defined
by any federal, state, or local environmental law, regulation, ordinance, or rule

existing as of the date of this Lease or later enacted.

C. Disclaimer: Landlord does not represent or warrant that the Property, Facility, or
Demised Premises conform to applicable restrictions, zoning ordinances, setback
lines, parking requirements, impervious ground cover ratio requirements, and other
matters that may relate to Tenant's intended use. Tenant must satisfy itseif that the
Demised Premises may be used as Tenant intends by independently investigating all
matters related to the use of the Property, Facility, and Demised Premises. Tenant
agrees that it is not relying on any warranty or representation made by Landlord _
Landlord's agent, or any broker concerning the use of the Property, Facility, or

Demised Premises.

3.4 SIGNAGE

Upon prior written consent and approval by Landlord, Tenant may put up permanent
signs that are ordinary and/or customary at public schools in the State of Texas as
determined by Tenant's Board of Directors at and in the Facility, so long as such do not
change the color, architectural treatment or appearance of the Property, Facility, or
Demised Premises. Consistent with the foregoing, Tenant may put up permanent
classroom and administrative office identification signs, achievement signs, bulletin and
announcement boards, and signs providing directions to various parts of the Demised
Premises. Any posters, banners and/or decorations, whether in classroom areas, or

Common Areas shall be affixed to walls in such a manner that they can be removed
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without damage (i.e., temporary), and shall be removed at the termination of this Lease.
All signs, whether permanent or temporary, must comply with all local, state and federal
rules, regulations and laws; and, Tenant will be solely responsible for obtaining the
applicable permits for such signage prior to construction or installation of the same. As
to signs, posters and boards that are located within the Demised Premises, Landlord's
consent and approval will not be unreasonably withheld. As to signs, posters and boards
that Tenant requests to be placed in the Common Area, Landlord shall be entitled to
exercise more discretion as to whether to consent or approve of such signs, and Landlord
may place reasonable restrictions on the same, including but not limited to size, colors,
content, requiring removal during third party events, and similar restrictions that may be
deemed appropriate by Landlord. Landlord agrees to allow a temporary sign/banner
during construction phase to be placed on the Demised Premises' building (e.g., Now

Enrolling, BETA Academy, Coining Soon etc.)

5.5 ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Tenant may not assign this Lease or sublet any part of the Demised Premises without
Landlord's written consent. An assignment of this Lease or subletting of the Demised
Premises by Tenant without Landlord's written consent is voidable by Landlord. If
Tenant assigns this Lease or sublets any part of the Demised Premises Tenant will remain

liable for all of Tenant's cbligations under this Lease.

5.6 LIENS

Tenant may not do anything that will cause the title of the Property. Facility, or Demised
Premises to be encumbered in any way. If Tenant causes a lien to be filed against the
Property, Facility, or Demised Premises, Tenant will within twenty (20) days after receipt
of Landlord's demand:

A. Pay the lien and have the lien released of record; or

B. Take action to discharge the lien.
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Tenant will provide Landlord a copy of any release Tenant obtains pursuant to this

paragraph.

5.7 MOVE-OUT CONDITION AND FORFEITURE OF TENANT'S PERSONAL

PROPERTY

A. Move-Out Condition: At the time this Lease is not renewed, Tenant will surrender the

Demised Premises in the same condition as when received, except for normal wear and
tezr or damage by fire or other casualty, Tenant will leave the Demised Premises in a
clean condition free of all trash, debris, personal property, hazardous materials, and
environmental contaminants.

. Personal Property: If Tenant leaves any personal property in the Demised Premises after

Tenant surrenders possession of the Demised Premises. Landlord may:

I. Require Tenant, at Tenant's expense, to remove the persona! property by providing

written notice to Tenant: or

2, Retain such personal property as forfeited property to Landlord.

. Definitions: "Surrender” means vacating the Demised Premises and returning all keys
and access devices to Landlord. "Normal wear and tear" means deterioration that
occurs without negligence, carelessness, accident_ or abuse.

. Removal of Fixtures: By providing written notice to Tenant before this Lease ends.
Landlord may require Tenant, upon move-out and at Tenant's expense, to remove,
without damage to the Property, Facility, or Demised Premises, any or all fixtures that were
placed on the Property, Facility, or Demised Premises by or at the request of Tenant. Any
fixtures that Landlord does not require Tenant to remove become the property of the

Landlord and must be surrendered toe Landlord at the time this Lease ends.

5.8 ALTERATIONS
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A. Consent: Tenant may not alter, improve, or add to the Property, Facility, or Demised
Premises without Landlord's written consent. Landlord wiil not unreasonably
withhold consent for the Tenant to make reasonable non-structural alterations,

modifications, or improvements to the Demised Premises.

B. Locks/Security Devices: Tenant may not alter any locks or any security devices on
the Properly, Facility, or Demised Premises without Landlord's consent. If Landlord
authorizes the changing, addition, or rekeying of any locks or other security devices,

Tenant must immediately deliver the new keys and access devices to Landlord.

C. Governmental Order: If a governmental order requires alteration or modification to the
Demised Premises, Landlord will, at its expense, modify or alter the item in

compliance with the order.

D. Ownership: Any alterations, improvements, fixtures, or additions to the Property,
Facility, or Demised Premises installed by either party during the Term of this Lease
will become Landlord's property at the time such alterations, improvement, fixtures,
or additions are made, except for those fixtures Landlord requires Tenant to remove

under this section or if the parties agree otherwise in writing.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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SECTION 6: MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS
6.1 CLEANING

Tenant must keep the Demised Premises clean and sanitary and promptly dispose of ail
garbage in appropriate receptacles. Landlord will provide, at its expense, janitorial
services to the Demised Premises that are customary and ordinary for the property type.
Should Tenant determine, in its sole discretion, that the janitorial services provided by
Landlord are unsatisfactory, Tenant may provide janitorial services to the Demised
Premises that are customary and ordinary for the property type and reduce its Base
Monthly Rent in proportion to the expense of such janitorial services. Tenant must
provide Landlord thirty (30) days' written notice of its decision to provide janitorial

services.

6.2 REPAIRS OF CONDITIONS CAUSED BY A PARTY

Each party must promptly repair a condition in need of repair that is caused, either
intentionally or negligently by that party or that party's guests, patrons, invitees,

contractors or permitted subtenants.

6.3 REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITY

Except as otherwise provided by this section, the party designated below, at its expense,
is responsible to maintain and repair the following specified items in the Demised
Premises. The specified items must be maintained in clean and good operable condition.
The specified items include and relate only to real property in the Demised Premises.

Tenant is responsible for the repair and maintenance of its personal property.

A, Landlord shall be responsible to maintain and repair the following:

1. Foundation, exterior walls, roof, and other structural components;

2. Glass and windows;
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10.

1L

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

. Fire protection equipment and fire sprinkler systems;

. Exterior and overhead doors, including closure devices, molding locks, and

hardware:

. Grounds maintenance_ including landscaping and irrigation systems;
. Interior doors, including closure devices, frames, molding, locks, and hardware;

. Parking areas and walks;

Any plumbing systems and/or drainage systems repairs, subject 10 Section 6.3.B,

below;

Electrical systems and mechanical systems;

Ballast and lamp replacement;

Heating, Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) systems;

Signs and lighting (i.e., Pylon, Fascia, Monument, and Door/Suite);
Extermination and pest control, including wood-destroying insects;
Fences and Gates;

Storage yards and storage buildings;

Improvements (as defined in Section 2.2.A. above) to the Property, Facility, or

Demised Premises;
Cranes and related systems; and

All other items and systems,

Tenant Initials:
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B. Tenant shall be responsible to maintain and repair any plumbing systems and/or
drainage systems repairs less than $500.00 per occurrence, up to a maximum of
$1,500.00 in one (1) calendar year, unless the problem was caused by Tenant's staff,

students or invitees.

6.4 PEST CONTROL

Landlord may not charge Tenant for pest control treatments to the Property or Facility
unless it is covered as a part of CAM charges assessed on all tenants of the Property or

Facility.
6.5 REPAIR PERSONS

Repairs must be completed by trained, qualified, and insured repair persons.
6.6 HVAC SERVICE CONTRACT

Landlord accepts full responsibility for the HVAC system for the Term of

this Lease.

6.7 COMMON AREA

Landlord will maintain the Common Areas of the Property and Facility (as depicted on
Exhibit A in a manner as Landlord determines to be in the best interest of the Property
and Facility. Landlord will maintain any elevator and signs in the Common Area.
Landlord may change the size, dimension, and location of the Common Area, provided
that such change does not materially impair Tenant's use and access to the Demised
Premises. Tenant has the non-exclusive license to use the Common Area in compliance
with Landlord's rules and restrictions. Tenant may not solicit any business in the

Common Area or interfere with any other person's right to use the Common Area.

6.8 NOTICE OF REPAIRS
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Tenant must promptly notify Landlord of any item that is in need of repair and that is
Landlord's responsibility to repair. All requests for repairs to Landlord must be

submitted in writing to CT Church Business Administrator.

6.9 FAILURE TO REPAIR

If Landlord fails to repair or maintain an item for which Landlord is responsible within
ten {10) days after Tenant provides Landlord written natice of the needed repair or
maintenance, Tenant may repair or maintain the item, without liability for any damage or
loss to Landlord, and L.andlord must reimburse Tenant within thirty (30) days of written
notice thereof, together with reasonable supporting evidence. for Tenant's actual out-of-
pocket cost to repair or maintain. If Tenant fails to repair or maintain an item for which
Tenant is responsible within ten (10) days after Landlord provides Tenant written notice
of the needed repair or maintenance, Landlord may: (1) repair or maintain the item,
without liability for any damage or loss to Tenant, and Tenant must reimburse Landlord
within thirty (30) days of mitten notice thereof, together with reasonable supporting
evidence, for Landlord's actual out-of-pocket cost to repair or maintain; or (2) exercise
Landlord's remedies under Section 8.4 below. The timelines expressed in this Section

6.9 may be extended upon mutual written agreement by both Tenant and Landlord.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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SECTION 7: INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY

7.1INSURANCE
A. Required Coverage by Tenant: Tenant shall carry at its own cost throughout the Term

1. Commercial general liability insurance for personal and bodily injury and property
damage of not less than TWO MILLION AND NO/100 DOLLARS
($2,000,000.00) or, upon. Landlord's request, such larger amount as is then
customary for a charter school of a size and location(s) comparable to Tenant's
school and occupying facilities comparable to the Demised Premises, insuring
Landlord as an additional insured, and Tenant against claims in connection with
injury and death sustained by persons, or for damage to property, while on the
Demised Premises; fire and extended coverage insurance on the equipment,
fixtures, and other improvements of the Demised Premises owned by Tenant in
an amount not less than the full insurable replacement value thereof; and
employer's liability and workers' compensation insurance prescribed by

applicable law.

2. Any proceeds from such fire and extended coverage insurance shall be used to
repair and restore the property owned by Tenant. subject to Section 8.10 (entitled
"Casualty Loss) hereof. Both the public liability and the fire and extended
insurance coverage shall provide that Landlord receive at least thirty (30) days'
written notice prior to change or cancellation of the coverage. Simultaneously
herewith, annually hereafter, and each time a change is made in any insurance or
insurance carrier, Tenant will furnish to Landlord a memorandum or certificate
of insurance as to the term and coverage of the insurance in force, the persons
insured and the fact that the coverage may not be canceled, altered or permitted to

lapse or expire without thirty (30) days' advance written notice to Landlord.

B. Required Coverage by Landlord: Landlord shall carry at its own cost throughout the Term
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I. Commercial general liability insurance with single-limit coverage for personal and
bodily injury and property damage of not less than TWO MILLION AND
NO/100 DOLLARS ($2,000,000.00), or such larger amount as is then customary
for occupying facilities comparable to the Facility, insuring Landlord as insured
and Tenant as additional insured against claims in connection with injury and
death.

2, Fire and extended coverage insurance on the real and personal property,
equipment, fixtures, and other improvements of the Property, Facility, and
Demised Premises owned by Landlord in an amount not less than the full
insurable replacement value thereof; and

3. Employer's liability and workers" compensation insurance prescribed by

applicable law.

Any proceeds from such fire and extended coverage insurance shall be used to repair and
restore the property owned by Landlord, subject to Section 8.10 (entitled "Casualty
Loss") hereof Both the public liability and the fire and extended insurance coverage shall
provide that Tenant receive at least thirty (30) days' written notice prior to change or
cancellation of the coverage. Simultaneously herewith, annually hereafter, and each time
a change is made in any insurance or insurance carrier, Landlord will furnish to Tenant a
memorandum or certificate of insurance as to the term and coverage of the insurance in
force, the persons insured and the fact that the coverage may not be canceled, altered or

permitted to lapse or expire without thirty (30) days' advance written notice to Tenant.

C. Waiver of Subrogation

Landlord and Tenant each waive, subject to the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas,
any and all rights to recover against the other party, or against any of the officers,
directors, employees invitees, members, patrons, guests or agents of such other party, for
any loss or damage to such waiving party arising from any cause covered by any
property or liability insurance carried by such party to the extent of the limits of such

policy. Landlord and Tenant, from time to time, shall cause their respective insurers to
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issue appropriate waiver of subrogation rights endorsements to all property and liability

insurance policies carried in connection with the Property, Facility, or Demised Premises.

7.2 INDEMNITY

Subject to the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, each party will indemnify and, hold
the other party harmless from any bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, suits.
Actions, liabilities, damages. or any other loss caused, negligently or otherwise. By that party

or that party's employees, patrons. guests, or invitees.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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SECTION 8: GENERAL
8.1 TAXES

Tenant acknowledges that Landlord is a non-profit 501(0(3) organization and therefore
will not be liable for any property taxes associated with the property. Should landlord
lose their 5¢1(c)(3) status, any additional taxes owed by landlord will not be passed on to

tenant during the term of this lease.
8.2 ACCESS BY LANDLORD

A. Access by Landlord: During Tenant's Normal Business Hours Landlord may enter the
Demised Premises for any reasonable purpose, including but not limited to purposes for
repairs, maintenance, altecations. and showing the Demised Premises to prospective tenants or
purchasers. Landlord may access those areas of the Demised Premises dedicated to

Tenant's exclusive use after Tenant's Normal Business Hours if:

1. Entry is made with Tenant's permission; or

2. Entry is necessary to complete emergency repairs. Landlord will not unreasonably
interfere with Tenant's business operations when accessing the Demised

Premises.

B. Landlord Signage: During the last sixty (60} days of this Lease, Landlord may place a "For

Lease" or similarly worded sign in the Demised Premises.
y gn

C. Notification: Should Landlord need to enter either: (1) any area of Demised. Premises during
Normal Business Hours, or (2) those areas of the Demised Premises dedicated to Tenant's
exclusive use after Normal Business Hours, Landlord shall notify the Campus Director of
Tenant's school at the Demised Premises in advance of the need for entering the Demised
Premises and a time will be arranged for entry. Landlord agrees to not disrupt or disturb

the educational process unless in the case of an emergency.
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8.3 LIABILITY

To the extent permitted by law, Landlord is not responsible to Tenant or Tenant's
employees, patrons, guests, or invitees for any damages, injusies, or losses to person or

property caused by:

A. An act, omission, or neglect of Tenant, Tenant's agent, Tenant's guest, Tenant's
employees, Tenant's patrons, Tenant's invitees, or any other tenant on the Property or in
the Facility; or

B. Fire. flood, water, leaks, ice, snow, hail, winds, explosion, smoke, riot, strike,
interruption of utilities, theft, burglary, robbery, assault, vandalism, other persons, or

environmental contaminants.
8.4 DEFAULT

A. Default by Landlord: If Landlord fails to comply with any term, provision, or covenant
of this Lease within thirty (30) days after Tenant provides Landlord with written
notification of Landlord's failure to comply. Landlord will be in default and Tenant may
seek any remedy provided by law. If, however, Landlord's noncompliance reasonably
requires more than thirty (30) days to cure, Landlord will not be in default if the cure is

commenced within thirty (30) day period and is diligently pursued.

B. Default by Tenant: If Tenant fails to comply with any term, provision, or covenant of
this Lease within thirty (30) days after Landlord provides Tenant with written notification
of Tenant's failure to comply, Tenant will be in default and Landlord may seek any remedy
provided by law. If however, Tenant's non-compliance reasonably requires more than thirty
(30) days to cure, Tenant will not be in default if the cure is commenced within thirty (30)

day period and is diligently pursued.

8.5 ABANDONMENT, INTERRUPTION OF UTILITIES, REMOVAL OF
PROPERTY, AND LOCKOUT

Chapter 93 of the Texas Property Code governs t le rights and obligations of the parties

with regard to:
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A. Abandonment of the Demised Premises;
B. Interruption of utilities;

C. Removal of Tenant's property; and

D. "Lock-out”" of Tenant.

8.6 HOLDOVER

If Tenant fails to vacate the Demised Premises at the time this Lease ends. Tenant will
become a tenant-at-will and must vacate the Demised Premises within thirty (30) days
after receipt of a written notice of termination from Landlord. Rent and all charges for

any holdover period will be 1.25 the Base Monthly Rent.

8.7 RELOCATION

Landlord may not require Tenant to relocate to another location on the Property or within

the Facility without Tenant's prior consent.

8.8 NON-DISTURBANCE

Landlord agrees to obtain, within thirty (30) days after this lease is fully executed, a non-
disturbance agreement in commercially reasonable form and substance pursuant to the
terms of which such mortgagee agrees that the rights of Tenant shall not be disturbed
following foreclosure or other exercise of remedies under such mortgage so long as
Tenant is not in default of any of the terms and provisions of this lease after any notice
and/or opportunity to cure as may be provided herein. With respect to any future
mortgage, Landlord agrees to obtain a non-disturbance agreement for Tenant before
executing any future mortgages on the Property or Facility containing the Demised

Premises.
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8.9 ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATES

Within ten (10) days after receipt of a written request from Landlord, Tenant will execute
and deliver to Landlord an estoppel certificate that identifies the terms and conditions of

this lease,

8.10 CASUALTY LOSS

A. Definition of "Casualty Loss": Any reference herein to "casualty loss" shall mean
the total or partial destruction of an asset resulting from an unexpected or unusual

event,

B. Notification: Tenant must immediately notify Landlord of any casualty loss of the
Demised Premises. Within twenty (20) days after receipt of Tenant's notice of a
casualty loss, Landlord will notify Tenant if the Demised Premises are less than or
more than 50% unusable, on a per square foot basis, and if Landlord can substantially
restore the Demised Premises within 120 days after Tenant notifies Landlord of the

casualty loss.

C. Less Than 50% Usable: If the Demised Premises are less than 50% unusable and
Landlord can substantially restore the Demised Premises within 120 days after Tenant
notifies Landlord of the casualty, Landlord will restore the Demised Premises to
substantially the same condition as before the casualty. If Landlord fails to
substantially restore within the time required, the Landlord and Tenant will meet and
as long as both parties agree to an alternative plan in writing, the lease will not

terminate,

D. More Than 50% Usable: If the Demised Premises are more than 50% unusable and
Landlord can substantially restore the Demised Premises within 120 days after Tenant
notifies Landlord of the casualty, Landlord may:

1. Terminate this Lease; or
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2. Restore the Demised Premises to substantially the same condition as

before the casualty.

If Landlord chooses to restore and does not substantially restore the Demised

Premises within the time required, Tenant may terminate this Lease.

E. Cannot Substantially Restore: If Landlord notifies Tenant that Landlord cannot
substantially restore the Demised Premises within 120 days after Tenant notifies

Landlord of the casualty [oss, Landlord may:

1. Choose not to restore and terminate this Lease; or

2. Choose to restore, notify Tenant of the estimated time to restore, and give
Tenant the option to terminate this Lease by notifying Landlord within ten (10)

days.

F. Rent Reduction: If this Lease does not terminate because of a casualty loss, Rent
will be reduced from the date Tenant notifies Landlord of the casualty loss to the date
the Demised Premises are substantially restored by an amount proportionate to the

extent the Demised Premises are unusable.

8.11 EMINENT DOMAIN

A. More Than 20% Taken: Upon receiving written notice from condemning autherity that
more than twenty percent (20%) of the floor area of the Demised Premises is to be taken
for any public or quasi-public use under any governmental law, ordinance or regulation, or by
right of eminent domain, or by purchase in lieu thereof. Tenant, at Tenant's sole discretion,
may terminate this Lease and the Rent shall be abated during the unexplored portion of this
Lease. Tenant may terminate this Lease in accordance with this provision upon providing

thirty (30) days' written notice to Landlord.

B. Less Than 20% Taken: If less than twenty percent (20%) of the floor area of the Demised
Premises should be taken as aforesaid, this Lease shall not terminate, however, the

Rent during the unexpired portion of this Lease shall be reduced in proportion to the area
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taken, effective on the date physical possession is taken by the condemning authority.
Following such partial taking, Landlord shall make all necessary repairs or alterations
within the scope of Landlord's work to make the Demised Premises an architectural

whole.

C. Common Area Taken: Upon receiving written notice from condemning authority that
more than thirty percent (30%) of the floor area of the Common Area is to be taken for
any public or quasi-public use under any governmental law, ordinance or regulation, or by
right of eminent domain, or by purchase in lieu thereof, Tenant, at Tenant's sole discretion,
may terminate this Lease and the Rent shall be abated during the unexplored portion of this
Lease. Tenant may terminate this Lease in accordance with this provision upon providing

thirty (30) days' written notice to Landlord.

8.12 ATTORNEY'S FEES

Any person who is a prevailing party in any legal proceeding brought under or related to
the transaction described in this Lease is entitled to recover prejudgment interest,

reasonable attorney's fees, and all other costs of litigation from the non-prevailing party.

8.13 REPRESENTATIONS

A. Authorized Representative: Each party signing this Lease represents that he or she

is of legal age to enter into a binding contract and is authorized to sign this Lease.

B. No Material Defects: Landlord is not aware of any material defect on Property,
Facility, or Demised Premises that would affect the health and safety of an ordinary
person or any environmental hazard on or affecting the Property, Facility, or Demised
Premises that would affect the health or safety of an ordinary person.

C. No Restrictions: Landlord expressly warrants that the sole intended purpose of this
Lease, i.e., the operation of an open-enroliment charter school, does not violate any
restrictive covenant, owners' association rules, tenants' association rules, or

Landlord's rules affecting the Property, Facility, or Demised Premises.
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D. Specially Designated National and Blocked Person: Each party and each signatory to

this Lease represents that:

l. Itis not a person named as a Specially Designated National and Blocked Person
as defined in Presidential Executive Order 13224:

2. It is not acting, directly or indirectly. for or on behalf of a Specially Designated
and Blocked person; and

3. Is not arranging or facilitating this Lease or any transaction related to this Lease

for a Specially Designated and Blocked Person.

To the extent permitted by law, any party or any signatory to this Lease who is a
Specially Designated and Blocked Person will indemnify and hold harmless any other
person who relies on this representation and who suffers any claim, damage, loss,

liability or expense as a result of this representation.

8.14 LANDLORD'S RULES AND REGULATIONS

These rules and regulations are adopted to maintain and enhance the safety and
appearance of the Property, Facility, and Demised Premises. From time to time
Landlord, at its discretion, may amend these rules and regulations for the purposes for
which they were adopted. Under this Lease, Tenant agrees to comply with these rules and
regulations as they may be amended. Exceptions or waivers must be authorized by Landlord in

writing,

A. Goods, merchandise, equipment, or any personal property may not be stored on the
Property or within the Facility, except for inventory within the Demised Premises
necessary for Tenant's normal business operations.

B. Food service for students’ child nutrition needs as required by law shall be permitted,
provided that Tenant obtains all permits required by city ordinances.

C. The Property, Facility, and Demised Premises may not be used for lodging or

sleeping quarters in any manner.
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D. Unless authorized by law or this Lease, no animals may be brought or kept on the
Property, Facility, or Demised Premises.

E. No obstruction or interference that impedes vse of the Common Areas, walks, drives,
londing areas, parking areas, corridors, hallways, vestibules, and stairs is permitted on the
Property.

F. Persons parking on the Property must comply with all posted signs and directions
regulating the parking areas.

G. Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, chemicals typically used for non-
collegiate educational teaching and non-research purposes may be maintained on site for
use in science instruction provided they are stored: (a) in accordance with all applicable
federal, state, and local laws and regulations; (b) in amounts that do not exceed any law
governing the storage and handling of hazardous materials; and (c) in a safe and
appropriate manner.

H. Tenants moving in or out of the Property must use only the service entrances and
service elevators during the move, All moves must be made at times that do not cause
inconvenience in the normal use of the Property.

I. Deliveries and shipping of goods and merchandise in or out of the Property must be made
only through the service entrances, service elevators, loading docks, or other designated
shipping and received areas. Shipments and deliveries must be made at times that do not
cause inconvenience to tenants or patrons on the Property.

J. Demised Premises must be kept clean and free of debris. Trash must be deposited into
appropriate receptacles.

K. Repair requests must be submitted to Landlord and CT Church Business
Administrator in writing in compliance with this Lease.

L. No modification to the Property, Facility, or Demised Premises may be made unless
authorized by Landlord, in writing, or permitted by this Lease.

M. No illegal or offensive activity is permitted on the Property, Facility, or Demised
Premises, nor is any activity that constitutes a nuisance or interferes with the rights of other
tenants.

N. Unless specifically authorized by Landlord, no solicitation or business operations are

permitted in the common areas.
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8.15 NOTICES

All notices under this Lease must be in writing and are effective when hand-delivered,

sent by mail, sent by e-mail, or sent by facsimile transmission to:
Tenant at the Demised Premises and a copy to:

Beta Foundation

Latisha Andrews
9701 Almeda Genoa

Houston, Texas 77075

Landlord at:

Christian Temple Assembly of God
Atin: CT Church Business Administrator
9701 Almeda Genoa Road

Houston, TX 77075

713.944.4815

E-mail: vicki@church.tv

Tenant shall have thirty (30) days to respond to Landlord for any written notices and/or

requests for information

8.16 FUNDING

Landlord acknowledges that Tenant is an open-enrollment charter school pursuant
to Chapter 12 of the Texas Education Code and therefore Tenant's ability to pay is
solely dependent on funding by the TEA. Therefore, should TEA fail to provide
funding to Tenant, or cancel its charter contract for any reason, Tenant's Board of
Directors will be forced to declare a Financial Exigency (i.e., a formal declaration

by Tenant's Board of Directors that Tenant's school located at the Demised
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Premises is facing an imminent fiscal crisis). Upon declaration of a Financial
Exigency by Tenant's Board of Directors. Tenant shall be allowed to terminate this
Lease without further obligation by notifying Landlord in writing of such

declaration.
8.17 TEA APPROVAL OEF SITE

This Lease is contingent on TEA's approval of the location. Should TEA fail to
approve the location of this Lease, Tenant shall have the right to terminate this
Lease with no financial obligation to Landlord (other than reimbursement to
Landlord for any expenditure made by Landlord for Improvements under Section
2.2 of this Lease) and all monies received by Landlord from Tenant will be

returned immediately.

8.18 APPROVAL BY TENANT'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS
This Lease is contingent upon approval of this Lease by Tenant's Board of Directors
within thirty (30) days of the execution of this Lease. Should Tenant's Board of Directors
fail to approve this Lease within thirty (30) days of execution of this Lease, Tenant shall
have the right to terminate this Lease with fro financial obligation to Landlord {other than
reimbursement to Landlord for any expenditure made by Landlord for Improvements
under Section 2.2 of this Lease) and all monies received by Landlord from Tenant will be
returned immediately.

8.19 MINIMUM ENROLLMENT

This Lease is contingent upon Tenant's ability to obtain 150 approved
Student Applications for Admission by June 30, 2015. Should Tenant fail to obtain
150 approved Student Applications for Admission by June 30, 2015, Tenant shall
have the right to terminate this Lease with no financial obligation to Landlord
(other than reimbursement to Landlord for any expenditure made by Landlord for
Improvements under Section 2.2 of this Lease) and all monies received by

Landlord from Tenant will be returned immediately.
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8.20 RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL
Tenant shall have the First Right of Refusal for any adjoining/additional space on the
Property or in the Facility.

8.21 NOTICE TO RENEW
Tenant shall provide to Landlord in writing a Notice to Renew or Vacate on or before

December 31* immediately preceding the Expiration Date.

8.22 MANDATORY FORUM SELECTION-

This Lease shall be governed by the laws of the state of Texas. Venue for any action,
suit, or other proceeding relating to this Lease shall lie exclusively in the state courts of
Harrison County. Texas, and the parties irrevocably consent to the exclusive jurisdiction

of those courts. Attomey's fees in any legal action shall be awarded to the prevailing
party.

8.23 EFFECTIVE DATE

If Landlord fails to execute this Lease and deliver same to Tenant on or before 5 p.m.
CST time, on January 30, 2015, all negotiations between Tenant and Landlord

concerning the lease of the Demised Premises shall be deemed terminated.
8.24 CAPTIONS

The paragraph headings appearing in this Lease are for convenience of reference
only and are not intended, to any extent and for any purpose, to limit or define the

text of any section or any subsection hereof.

8.25 CONSTRUCTION

The parties acknowledge that the parties and their counsel have reviewed and revised
this Lease and that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities
are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the

interpretation of this Lease or any exhibits or amendments hereto.
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8.26 CONFIDENTIALITY
Except as otherwise required by State law, Landlord and Tenant shall keep confidential
the terms of this Lease, including all sums payable under this Lease (the "Confidential
Information™), and neither Landlord nor Tenant shall release or disseminate any of the
Confidential Information to any third party, other than to their respective attorneys,
accountants, and officers, and then only to the extent that such attorneys, accountants, or
corporate officers expressly agree to be bound by the terms of the confidentiality
provisions of this Lease, or where disclosure is required by law. This obligation of

confidentiality shall survive the termination of this Lease.

8.27 USE OF ORGANIZATIONAL LOGOS AND NAMES

Neither party will use the other party's organizational logo, name, or other intellectual
property without the prior written permission of the party owning such logo, name, or

intellectual property.

8.28 SPOKESPERSON PRIVILEGES

At no time will Tenant act or speak publicly on behalf of Landlord in any actions or
activities within the context of their working relationship, although Tenant may publicly
acknowledge the working relationship with Landlord. At no time will Landlord act or
speak publicly on behalf of Tenant in any actions or activities within the context of their
working relationship but may publicly acknowledge their working relationship with.
Tenant, For any media contact regarding Landlord, Landlord or Landlord's designee
must be contacted before media access is approved or allowed. For any media contact
regarding Tenant, Tenant's Director of Corporate Marketing and Communications or

his/her designee must be contacted before media access is approved or allowed.
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8.29 RELIGIOUS EXPRESSION

Landlord shall permit Tenant to cover all religious symbols and/or messages displayed in
either: (1) student classrooms, or (2) those areas designated for the school’s exclusive
use. Landlord shall have the same access to the school's students as any other community
organization. Landlord shall not proselytize during school-affiliated programs. Landlord

shall not exercise any influence over the content of the school’s curriculum or programs

8.30 ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Lease contains the entire agreemeat between Landlord and Tenant and may not be

changed except by written agreement.

8.31 BINDING EFFECT

This Lease is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective

heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and permitted assigns.

8.32 SEVERABLE CLAUSES
If any clause in this Lease is found invalid or unenforceable by a court of law, the
remainder of this Lease will not be affected and all other provisions of this Lease will

remain valid and enforceable.

8.33 WAIVER
Landlord's delay, waiver, or non-enforcement of contractual or statutory lien, rental due date,

or any other right will not be deemed a waiver of any other or subsequent breach by Tenant or

any other term in this Lease.
8.34 NO WAIVER OF IMMUNITIES

Nothing in this Lease shall be construed to waive any immunity enjoyed by Tenant or its

past or present officers, employees, or agents.
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8.35 QUIET ENJOYMENT

Provided that Tenant is not in default of this Lease, Landlord covenants that Tenant will

enjoy possession and use of the Demised Premises free from material interference.
8.36 TIME

Time is of the essence. The parties require strict compliance with the times for

performance.

8.37 COUNTERPARTS

This Lease may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed

an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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SECTION 9
SIGNATURES

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Lease this day of
October, 2014,

Landlord

Don Nordin Lead Pastor Christian
Temple Assembly of God
9701 Almeda Genoa Road

Houston, TX 77675
Phone: 713.944.4815

Tenant

Latisha Andrews

Chief Operating Officer
Beta Foundation

9701 Almeda Genoa

Houston, Texas 77075

(The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.)
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The Beta Foundation

Financial Statements
as of

August 31, 2013 and 2012

Together With

independent Auditors’ Report
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GUINN, SMITH & CO.

A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
2408 TEXAS DRIVE
IRVING. TEXAS 75062
Phoure: 1972 255-7020 Fax (972) $70-3250
E-mail: cwail ¢ guimnsmith com

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors
The Beta Foundation
Houston, Texas

Report on the Financizl Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of The Beta Foundarion {(a Texas not-for-profit corporation). which
comprise the statements of financial position as of August 31, 2013 and 2012. and the related statements of activilies and cash
flows for the years then ended. and the related notes to the financial statemens.

Monagemens's Responsibllity for the Financilal Statemenis

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation. and maintenance of
intemal conteol relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from materiat misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit 10 obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financia! statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including 1he assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due 10 fraud or error. In making those risk assessments. the auditor considers imternal control
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the rcasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management. as well as evaluating the overll
presentation of the financial statlements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion. the financial statements referred 10 above present fairly. in all meterial respects, the financie! position of The

Beta Foundation, as of August 31, 2013 and 2012, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended
in comformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Americe,

L e AV

Irving. Texas
March 19,2014
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The Beta Foundation

Statements of Financial Position
August 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Aassets:
Current assets: Cash and cash equivalents.. $ 10,672 § -
Total assets.. L b bevREseRe SO ERbnS b edaabEes SES IS IR AE S angR 0 s Lreesn s it bote sressensies B 10672 § -
Liabilities and net assets:
Unrestricted net agsets. ; eee B 10,672 § -
Total liabilities and net assets...... reranperetenshs h) 10672 § -

The accompanying notcs are an integral Bart of these financial statements.
314 of 369
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The Beta Foundation

Statements of Actlvities
For the Years Ended Aupust 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Change in net assels:
Revenue:
ContriBULONG. e emececsarieccevsatesserenens .8 17400 § 4,500
Total revenuC... .o cienariressnnescncns cvores 17.400 4,500
Opcrating expenses:
Supporting activities;
General and administrative....... 6,728 4,500
Total operating expenses 6,728 4,500
Excess of operating revenue over expenses 10,672 ~
Change in net assets........ccecoecernne 10,672 -
Net assets, heginning of year.., - -
Net assets, end 0 Year.......coeeerernrirnrareerrserene b 10672 § -

The accompanying notes are an integral gnrl of these financial statements.
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The Beta Foundation

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended Augnst 31, 2013 and 2012

2013 2012
Change in cash and cash equivalents:
Cash flows from operaling activities:
Cash received from donors and sales of religious materials.............cvcnncvninicnns 3 17,400 % -
Cash paid for operating expenses..........ov.s rerremsoresemeassenses susprnseeae et sanissesane N (6,728) -
Net cash provided by operaling activities.......c..oeunes rererssasesasersesrssosrirapnensenns 10,672 -
Increase in cash and cash equivalents..... reseeaseissansemsenseneastonnss 10,672 ~
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of YEar........cmcrrinmscsnimnsimssesssisinnasnssni - ~
Cash end cash equivalents, end of year b 10672 § -
Reconciliation of change in net assets to net cash provided
by operating activities:
ChEnge in DL B5SCLA.....cvirsereranisvesersormarssrassasissasirrenneras - Cerberreseaeseraaaas b arsatrennats § 10672 § -
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided
by opcrating activities:
NONCash CONMIBUEONS........orvecmeeeeeesisvosraesrerersreessrssnssssessosssssseasenesessssossossansosmerasns - (4,500)
Noncash expenses....... - 4,500
Tolal adjustments......c.crevesrrerveresens . cenveesaereansasarerans orvnene, - -
Net cash provided by operating activities............ eorrrrseronartossnis terersranassesnensnerenssanrensaans 5 10672 $ -

The accompanying notes ar3c la% inloc%'ul BPEHQ of these financial statements,
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The Beta Foundation

Notes to Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Orpanization

The Beta Foundation (the Organization) is incorporated under the laws of the State of Texas as a nonprofit
corporation. The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section
501(c)(3), as wel! as stalc income taxes, The Orpanization is orgenized to educate, train, and prepare individuals
to function well in society and to provide education opportunities and experiences. The Organization shall seck to
own and operate an Open-Enroliment Charter Schaol as provided under the Texas Education Code for the benefit
of students in Texas, providing such students with education opportunity and programs as it deems appropriate in
furtherance of its tax exempt purpose.

Ag of August 31, 2013 and 2012, and for the years then endcd, the activities of the Organization were restricted to
those necessary for the formation of the Organization and the preparation of the Organization to pursue an Open
Enrollment Charter pursuant to the Texas Bducation Code.

Basis of Accounting

The financial stalements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting and follow the reporting guidance
of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 958, Not-for-Profit Entitics. Under ASC 958, the Orgenization is
required to report information regarding its financial pogition and activities according to the following three clagses
of net assets:

Unrestricted Net Assets — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions,

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets -- Net assets whose use by (he Organization is subject to donor-imposcd
restrictions that either expire by passage of time or can be fulfilled and removed by actions of the
Organization. The Organization did not have any temporarily restricted net assets at August 3f, 2013 and
2012,

Permancntly Restricied Net Assets — Net assets whose use by the Organization is subject lo donor-impased
restrictions that cannot be removed by the passage of time or actions of the Orgenization. The Organization
did not have any permanently restricied net asscts at August 31, 2013 or 20]2,

Cagh and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers highly liquid investments with u
maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents. This classification is consistent with the purpose
of the funds,

Contributions
The Organization reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if thcy are received with donor
stipulations limiting the use of the donated asseis. A donor restriction expires when a stipulaled time restriction

ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished. At that time temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

The accompanying notes are an intcfrnlspart of thesc financial statements,
317 o €9
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The Beta Foundation

Notes to Financial Statements

2.

Noncash Donations

Donated materials, fixed rssets, and certain services are reflected as contributions at their estimated fair values on
the date of donation. The gift is recorded in the approprinte asset or expense account and as an increase in
unrestricted net assets. Services arc recorded if they create or enhance nonfinancial asscts or require specialized
skills, arc provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically nced to be purchascd if not provided
by donation.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the Organization's various programs and supporting services have been summarized on a
functional basis,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events through March 19, 2014, the date the financial statements werc
available to be issued.

CONTINGENCY

Should the Organization's application for an open-enroliment charter from the Texas Department of Education be

denied, the Organization's ebility to acheive its tax exempt purpose and continue operations would be scverely
impaired,
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COPYRIGHT MATERIAL
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PLEASE NOTE: The responsive information contains copyrighted information

that can only be made available to you for viewing in person. Because the
information indicates that it is protected by copyright, you may review this
information in person during normal business hours at TEA. If you are
interested in reviewing the copyrighted information, please send an email to
CharterSchools@tea.state.tx.us to schedule an appointment.
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Form 990-N (e-Postcard) Online - View and Print Return Page 1 of 1

X, APPROVED DURING CONTINGENCY PROCESS

Information copy. Do not send to IRS.

Form 990-N . . OMB No.
Electronic Notice (e-Postcard)
Depa.rr?:;'xf the for Tax-Exempt Organizations not Required To File Form 1545-2085
Internal Revenue Service 990 or 950-EZ 2013
Open to
Public
Inspection
A For the 2013 calendar year, or tax year beginning 9/1/2013, and ending 8/31/2014.
B Check if applicable C Name of organization: BETA FOUNDATION D Employer
[ Terminated, Out of d/b/a: DBA Beta Academy Identification
Dusiness % Latisha And B - ?sug]cl; 9142
[ Gross receipts are e Latisna Andrews - 4
normally $50,000 or less 2701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX, US, 77075
E Website: F Name of Principal Officer: Teresa Sones
2823 Timber Briar Circle
Houston, TX, US, 77079

Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice. We ask for the information on this form to carry
out the Internal Revenue laws of the United States. You are required to give us the information. We
need it to ensure that you are complying with these laws.

The organization is not required to provide the information requested on a form that is subject to the
Paperwork Reduction Act unless the form displays a valid OMB control number. Books or records
relating to a form or its instructions must be retained as long as their contents may become material
in the administration of any Internal Revenue law. The rules governing the confidentiality of the
Form 990-N is covered in Code section 6104.

The time needed to complete and file this form and related schedules will vary depending on
individual circumstances. The estimated average times is 15 minutes.

Note: This image is provided for your records only. Do NOT mail this page to the IRS. The IRS will
not accept this filing via paper. You must file your Form 990-N (e-Postcard) electronically.

This Form 990-N (e-Postcard) was accepted by the IRS on 10/6/2014.

https://3c-Ixa.gmx.com/mail/client/attachment/download/tatt0 _1---tmail39af8d3cefb3daé/;... 10/7/2014
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Assumptions Tab
» Column C; All line descriptions are locked and are to remain locked except those shaded gray and named *Custom'. Those lines can be
edited by the applicant.
* Columns H-K; enter In the percentage increase OR decrease that is anticipated for that particular line from year to year.
** PLEASE NOTE®® - In the 'Payroll Taxes and Benefits' section; percentoges entered will be that of total payroil for that particulor
year and NOT percentoge of Increase from year to yeaor.

5 YR Budget Tab

» Nothing needs to be entered into this tab other than assumptions in the '‘Descriptions of Assumptions' column, column ). ALL revenues
and expenses are automatically calculated based an the 'Enrallment’, 'Personnel’ and 'Assumptions’ tabs.

Start-Up Budget Tab

» Column D; Enter the revenues and expense the proposed school expects ta recelve and incur during the start-up period.

Payment Formula with Example Tab
* Use numbers here to enter In cash flows far state funding in Cash Flow Tab.

* Attual cash Rows are based on average attendance for each 6 week period reparted to TEA. If you experience a substantial change in
enrollment during the year your ADA will change and so will your payments.

Cash Flow Tab

¢ Columns D - I; Enter the revenues and expenses the proposed schoal anticipates recelving and incurring during the start-up phase in
the corresponding months, The amounts received and incurred, as a whale, should tle out to the figures entered Inta the ‘Start-Up
Budget' tab. As a checks and halances, column K will compare the *Start-Up Budget' tab versus the total column, cafumn J, of the Cash
Flow tab 1o ensure accuracy.

» Columns N - Y; Enter the revenues and expenses the praposed schoal anticlpates recelving and Incurring during YEAR 1 in the
carrasponding rmonths. The amounts received and incurred, as 2 whaole, should tie gut to the figuras calculated in the 'S YR Budget’
tab, column D. As a checks and balances, column AA will compare the 'S YR Budget’ tab, Year 1, versus the total column, column 2, of
the Cash Fiow tab to ansure aceuracy.
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Budget Narrative

The Beta Academy financial planning is based on the Average Daily Attendance {ADA) of the school’s scholars.
To ensure our staffing is in alignment with the ADA, Beta Academy will begin aggressively soliciting for
students in Dec 2014 to get a solid attendance count before hiring teachers and staffing. This will also enable
us to appropriately scale our startup costs such as computer labs, classroom space, furniture, etc. on realistic
cash flow expectations. The initial staffing will inciude the proposed CEQ/Superintendent Latisha Andrews
from Sept 14 - May 15 at .25% salary. The proposed CEC and HR Manager will be hired as full time in Jun 15
with the remaining staff hiring in July and Aug based upon the student enrollment response. These positions,
time period, and salaries are also reflected in the startup timeline and startup budget attachments. Our
revenue planning assumes a daily attendance rate of 80% with an estimate of $5,381 per student as set forth
in Section 4, Finance Plan, question 7, and also in the Financial Plan Workbook Attachment F.3,

The startup revenue estimates and assumptions include pledges of $203,999 and $7,000 cash. The remaining
funds will be from grants and ongoing pledges of support. As a contingency, if required, The Beta Foundation
will secure a line of credit loan from Chase Bank in Houston where The Beta Foundation holds our account.
While the board will aggressively pursue grants as an additional source of revenue, we chose to present a
conservative budget based only on funds and pledges to date. We have discussed the line of credit loan with
Chase Bank and received an extremely high level of confidence of approval although a formal letter could not
be issued until the charter is awarded. The board also has access to additional community lenders,
philanthropist, and personal funds if required. Our budget is not dependent upon the variable revenue of
grants and fundraising activities such as candy sales as a way to meet requirements

Specific assumptions included in the budget are as follows:

Teacher salaries are based on the actual average Pasadena ISD salary

Staff salary estimates are based upon networking discussions with other charter schools

The lease assumptions are based off of our current MOU

The classroom set up of $500 each is based upon pricing student desks and classroom furniture
Teaching materials, curriculum, office supplies, equipment, technology and telephone are based upon pricing
Hall pass security system is based on telephone quote

NWEA MARP testing is based upon telephone quote

School lunch service is based upon internet quote

AVID program is based upon internet quote

Legal service is based upon telephone estimate

Back office support is based upon a telephone estimate

345 of 369



GENESIS ORGANIZATIONAL ALIGNMENT
2001 Covey Glen Rd
McKinney, TX 75070
psmith@genesisoa.com
469-734-6272

January 20, 2014
To Whom It May Concern:

Genesis Organizational Alignment pledges $50,000.00 to The Beta Foundation for
startup funds to support their endeavor to establish Beta Academy, a Charter
School, within the Pasadena Independent School District (PISD).

Genesis Organizational Alignment applauds The Beta Foundation for recognizing
the need for families of PISD to have a School of Choice as there currently is no
charter school for students K-12 within this school district.

LCDR Philip E. Smith, USN Retired
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
{PI1SD) with a:

_\Aﬂonthly Pledgeof: {00 .00
Beginning Auoe V20 1M and Ending SLLM:\) \ ,20_\9

Yearly Pledge: S (Total pledge: $ )
To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of years.
Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name

State: SN 7 S

Telephone:* Telephone:

Tl 6,000
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

[ pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District

(PISD) with a:

_\ZMDnthly Pledge of: $ 2. 00. oo
Beginning_ Sy} 2014 and Ending :Su\x.z\) \ ,20\9

Yearly Pledge: $ (Total pledge: S )
To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of years,
Beginning: ,20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name:_f

Address:

€

’713411‘ j IQICD(DC)
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
{PISD) with a:

e 00
_/__ Monthly Pledge of: $_ |50

Beginning gu_ax { ,20_1 Y and Ending {Tu \ \ ,20 1
35 g

Yearly Pledge: S (Total pledge: S, )

To be paid on or before August 31% of each year for the total of ____years.

Beginning: ,20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of

To be paid on or hefore: 20

Ful Name:_*

Address: w
Telephone: “ Telephone:

i, TRt

Total 9,000
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District

(PISD) with a:

___\__{_, Monthly Pledge of: $ (0 OO

BeginningQ\UQi. \ , ZOJ_ﬂ and Ending (\U\Ug \ ;2014
Yearly Pledge: $ . (Total pledge: $ )

To be paid on or before August 31% of each year for the total of years.

Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20

©whwv. sEEEEEEEESEEEEoEnaanns.

City:u____ State: ! Zip: -

e
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
(PISD) with a:

;_\/_,Monthly Pledge of: § 5 Q0

Beginningﬁiﬁﬂﬁ [/ 204 and Ending% / ,2019

Yearly Pledge: S (Total pledge: § )
To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of years.
Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of $
To be paid on or before: 20

Addm#
o R - i EE

Telephone“__ Telephone:
Email:m

352 of 369

T2t ¥ 200.00



THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District

(PISD) with a:

o0
\/Monthly Pledge of: S §D .

Beginning A’V-O\ ‘ ,20 V4~ and Ending Su\\»\ \ ,2019
)

___ YearlyPledge: $ (Total pledge: § )

To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of years.

Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of $

To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name:

Addréss: ,

Telephéne:—ﬁlephoner
Emaﬂ:*
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena independent School District
{(PISD) with a:

\/_ Monthly Pledge of: $ IOO

Beginning QLLG\ i , 20 \L" and Ending N \UA\\{:‘ ,20_19

Yearly Pledge: $ (Total pledge: § )
To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of years.
Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of $

To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name;

Address: -
city:_ AN _stat.- SR, 2 S
Telephone: ‘. Telephone:

Email: w
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District

(PISD) with a:

s/ Monthly Pledge of: 5 ﬁ Jo

Beginning \Dﬂ/f)m})' | ,20/4 andEnding Juf/v 1 20/9

Yearly Pledge: $ (Total pledge: $ )
To be paid on or before August 31% of each year for the total of years.
Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20
Full Nam_
Address: !

City:

Telephone:

¢

“Ta-al: \3) OO0
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
(PISD) with a:

\_Monthly Pledge of: § 20O .60

Beginning Au3 \ , ,20 14 and Ending :Y&.,;‘M \ ,20_19

Yearly Pledge: $ (Total pledge: & J

To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of years.

Beginning: , 20 and Ending 20

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name—

]

Telephon Telephone

“Total: 0 000
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
(PISD) with a:

_zMonthly Pledge of: § ‘DD oo
Beginning A},\Q) \ 2014 andEnding Jw\tj \ 209

Yearly Pledge: $ ‘ (Total pledge: $ )
To be paid on or before August 31" of each year for the total of years.
Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20
Address: .

City:_ SR stte: a =
Telephone: AENNIEE  Te'cphone:

Total: (000
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
{PISD) with a:

Monthly Pledge of: $

Beginning , 20 and Ending , 20

&0 o~ OU
VY _Yearly Pledge: $ l; VODD . (Total pledge: $ 5) DOD s )
To be paid on or before August 31% of each year for the total of 5 years.

Beginning: Alj.s ie ,20 14 and Ending_&% \® 20 ‘Ct

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name:

Address:
City:'_____ State“ Zipm____
Telephone:-_ Telephone:
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

[ pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
(PISD) with a:

__'.... Monthly Pledge of: $ SO

Beginning A&Sué‘.{r' | 2044  and Ending ‘*‘":TH.\‘{ l 20149
Yearly Pledge: $ (Total pledge: S )

To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of years.

Beginning: , 20 and Ending 4 20

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20

Telephone Telephone:

Email:

Tatal:
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THE BETA FOUNDATICN

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
{PISD) with a:

_[Monthly Pledge of: $ |01%

Beginning AL@I@% } , 20 M and Ending_m\\{f } , Zﬂ_lj*

Yearly Pledge: $_ (Total pledge: § )
To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of years.
Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20

i, e
wiEEEE e iE s B SRR T
Te!ephoné—Telephoner

P U s

“Total (000
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District

{PISD) with a:

Monthly Pledge of. S

Beginning , 20 and Ending , 20
Yearly Pledge: $ (Total pledge: $ )

To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of years.

Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

__Léne Time Contribution of $__ {000 . 0O

To be paid on or before: %ﬁ&g 204 ‘:{

Full Name_

Address:

city: (N __ s 3 2

Telephoneujehphone:

Email:m
“Titul * 000,70
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
(PISD) with a:

J‘Z\éhly Pledge of: S 95

Beginning Hugué%/ ,20 [ L" and Ending j"’lj I ,20 / 9
Yearly Pledge: S (Total pledge: $ )

To be paid on or before August 31*" of each year for the total of years.

Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name (S

Address:*
City;_‘__smte‘ Zip: —
Telephone: _ Telephone:
Email: “

Total: | 500
362 of 369
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District

(PISD) with a:

J

Beginning Avljhﬁ' } ,20 1Y% and Ending S‘Mlj l ,20 19

Monthly Pledge of: 510 !

Yearly Pledge: 5 (Total pledge: § )
To be paid on or before August 31% of each year for the total of years.
Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20

Address:“
City:‘m State:._ Zipzn
Telephone:m Telephone:
Email: m

. 4
Total lo,000
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District

(PISD) with a:

-_‘{_,Monthly Pledge of: $ 75 .
Beginning éﬁ% !,.&51[’ / ,20“7[ and Ending Jui}}; [ , 20 H

Yearly Pledge: $ (Total pledge: $ )

To be paid on or before August 31% of each year for the total of years.

Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of

To be paid on or before: __ 20

Telephohe: , |

Email:

“Total: 4,500
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
{PISD) with a:

\/Monthly Pledge of: § 6@

Beginning {%U%/U 2,/‘\" | 20 14 and Ending Csuliﬁ ,20 q
Yearly Pledge: § (Total pledge: $ )

To be paid on or before August 31" of each year for the total of years.

Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of S

To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name

Address: ‘

City:_ State:g_ Zip:“
Telephone:m_ Telephone:
gy

Totu| I 3000
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
(PISD) with a:

_,4 Monthly Pledge of: S ?5': °0

Beginning }Q}%@&% /| 20 _Lfﬁ and Ending &]ﬂﬁ | 20 /7

Yearly Pledge: $ (Total pledge: S )
To be paid on or before August 31% of each year for the total of years.
Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name:

Address:

o EEEEEREIEE | e gEENEE 4 fEEEEEE
Telephone: _ Telephone:

Total: H 500
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
{PISD) with a:

/__Monthly Pledge of: $_ 150,00
Beginning i’-}qgm} I, ,20]14__ and Ending Wﬁfj | ,2019

Yearly Pledge: $ (Total pledge: $__ }

To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of years.

Beginning: , 20 and Ending , ;20

One Time Contribution of $

To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name:_-l_-s

e
City: State‘_ Zip"
Telephone:m__ Telephonem__

oot TR
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

| pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District
(PISD) with a: ’

kY

™
N Monthly Pledge of: § = 0O, 00
Beginning AL"C? d ;2014 andEnding Ity ! 20/ ¥
Yearly Pledge: S {Total pledge: § )
To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of years.
Beginning: , 20 and Ending , 20
One Time Contribution of $
To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name:.._-'
Address: m
o state (N zr: G
Telephon” Telephone:
et RS
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THE BETA FOUNDATION

9701 Almeda Genoa Rd
Houston, TX 77075

LETTER OF SUPPORT/CONTRIBUTION

I pledge to support The Beta Foundation in its endeavor to establish and maintain
Beta Academy, a Charter School, within the Pasadena Independent School District

(PISD) with a:

\/Monthly Pledge of: $ 15

20 ¥

Beginning Mgm;f \ , 20 \q' and Ending C[\k\‘\} \

Yearly Pledge: § (Total pledge: $

To be paid on or before August 31* of each year for the total of

years.

, 20

Beginning: ,20 and Ending

One Time Contribution of §

To be paid on or before: 20

Full Name:_

address ST
city sta S 7o'

Tele phone:“ Telephone:

~Total: #4500
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